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This Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the Mgament’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Cbadiand Results of
Operations, contains forward-looking statementthiwithe meaning of the Private Securities LitigatReform Act of 1995, that reflect our
views about future events and financial performaki¢een used in this report, the words “may,” “Willshould,” “anticipate,” “estimate,”
“expect,” “plan,” “believe,” “predict,” “potential, “intend” and similar expressions are intendeddientify forward-looking statements.
Forward-looking statements are subject to knownuarchown risks and uncertainties that could cacsgaaresults to differ materially from
those projected. You are cautioned not to placei@mdliance on these forwalabking statements that speak only as of the datedi. You ar
also urged to carefully review and consider theower disclosures made by us which attempt to adriseested parties of the factors which
affect our business, including “Risk Factors” smtti in Part | ltem 1A hereof and our reports filgith the Securities and Exchange
Commission from time to time.

References in this Annual Report on Form 10-K é&otémm “WellPoint” or the “Company” refer to WellRot, Inc. and its direct and
indirect subsidiaries, as the context requiresgafhe merger of Anthem, Inc. and WellPoint He&l#tworks Inc. on November 30, 2004.
References to the ter"WHN” refers to WellPoint Health Networks Inc. prito the merger. References to the terms “we,” “Sur “us,”
refer to WellPoint.
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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
General

We are the largest health benefits company in tefreemmercial membership in the United Statesjisgrover 34 million medical
members as of December 31, 2006. We are an indepelicensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield éiasion, or BCBSA, an association
independent health benefit plans. We serve our reesrds the Blue Cross licensee for California anthe Blue Cross and Blue Shield, or
BCBS, licensee for: Colorado, Connecticut, Georgidiana, Kentucky, Maine, Missouri (excluding 38uaties in the Kansas City area),
Nevada, New Hampshire, New York (as BCBS in 10 Nek city metropolitan and surrounding countiesd @s Blue Cross or BCBS
selected upstate counties only), Ohio, Virginiac{eding the Northern Virginia suburbs of WashingtbnC.), and Wisconsin. We also serve
our members throughout the country as UniCare. W digensed to conduct insurance operations iBGbBtates through our subsidiaries.

We offer a broad spectrum of netwdrksed managed care plans to the large and smdbwenpindividual, Medicaid and senior mark:
Our managed care plans include preferred providgrozations, or PPOs, health maintenance orgamimator HMOs, point-of-service plans,
or POS plans, traditional indemnity plans and othdarid plans, including consumer-driven healtmglaor CDHPs, hospital only and limited
benefit products. In addition, we provide a broedyof managed care services to self-funded custenncluding claims processing,
underwriting, stop loss insurance, actuarial sesjiprovider network access, medical cost managesmelnother administrative services. We
also provide an array of specialty and other prégland services including life and disability irsuce benefits, pharmacy benefit managen
specialty pharmacy, dental, vision, behavioral thelaénefit services, long-term care insurance &dble spending accounts.

For our insured products, we charge a premium asdrae all or a portion of the health care risk. &freklf-funded and partially insured
products, we charge a fee for services, and théogmpor plan sponsor reimburses us for all or nodshe health care costs. Approximately
93% of our 2006 operating revenue was derived fpoemium income, while approximately 7% was derifredn administrative fees and other
revenues.

Through December 31, 2006, our customer base phyniracluded Large Groups with 51 to 4,999 eligilelmployees (47% of our medi
members at December 31, 2006) and Individuals uager65 and Small Groups of one to 50 eligible eyg#s, also known as ISG (17% of
our medical members as of December 31, 2006). Qtlagor customer types included National Accountal{istate employer groups with
5,000 or more employees, accounting for 15% ofreedical members at December 31, 2006), BlueCard (¢osollees of non-owned BCBS
plans who receive benefits in our BCBS marketspaoting for 12% of our medical members at Decen®ie2006), Senior (over age 65
individuals enrolled in Medicare Supplement or Mede Advantage policies, accounting for 4% of oedival members at December 31,
2006) and State Sponsored Programs (primarily Médliand State Children’s Health Insurance Plarsyatting for 5% of our medical
members at December 31, 2006).

We market our products through an extensive netwbikdependent agents and brokers (primarily falividual, Small Group and
Senior customers) and through our in-house sates that are compensated on a commission basigfoisales and retention of existing
business (primarily for Large Group customers).ibtatl Accounts are generally sold through indepahbdeokers or consultants retained by
the customer working with our in-house sales force.

The aging of the population and other demographéracteristics and advances in medical technologyirtue to contribute to rising
health care costs. Our managed care plans andqisoaie designed to encourage
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providers and members to participate in qualitgteffective health benefit plans by using the fuliga of our innovative medical managen
services, quality initiatives and financial incerets. Our leading market share and high businesstieh rates enable us to realize the Itemga
benefits of investing in preventive and early détecprograms. Our ability to provide cost-effeetiiealth benefits products and services is
enhanced through a disciplined approach to intezostl containment, prudent management of our sipbgure and successful integration of
acquired businesses.

Our results of operations depend in large partcmuately predicting health care costs and on bilityato manage future health care
costs through underwriting standards, medical mamagt, product design and negotiation of favorpbdeider contracts.

We believe health care is local, and feel that axehthe strong local presence required to undetstad meet local customer needs. Our
local presence and national expertise have cregiedrtunities for collaborative programs that redvahysicians and hospitals for clinical
quality and excellence. We feel that our commitnterttealth improvement and care management proeiddsd value to customers and health
care professionals.

Our vision is to transform health care and becdmeenost valued company in our industry. Our misgdie improve the lives of people
we serve and the health of our communities. Orthestrategies to achieve our vision and fulfilt mission is automation of interactions with
customers, brokers, agents, employees and othehstialers through web-enabled technology and emmgutternal operations. We continue
to develop our e-business strategy with the goaleabming widely regarded as ab@siness leader in the health benefits industre. Sttateg
includes not only sales and distribution of heakimefits products on the Internet, but also impletatton of advanced capabilities that impr:
service benefiting customers, agents, brokerspanihers while optimizing administrative costs.

On January 8, 2007, we unveiled a comprehensivetplaelp address the growing ranks of the unirgsu@air plan is a blend of public
and private initiatives aimed at ensuring univecsalerage for children and providing new and mateetive options for the uninsured. This
plan is part of our mission to improve the livedted people we serve and the health of our commegnit

We recently announced the launct86f° Health, a program to integrate all care management pnogend tools into a centralized,
consumer-friendly resource that assists patientaiuigating the health care system, using theilthd&®nefits and accessing the most
comprehensive and appropriate care available. Aadilly, we recently began collaboration with 18etBlue Cross and Blue Shield plans to
launch the nation’s largest private database dtiheare information. Blue Health Intelligen&#, or BHI, is a unique resource that will
improve health care quality by providing the mostailed view available of health care trends, pesttices and comparative costs through a
claims database of 79 million people. BHI will stpghen the movement toward greater health carggeaency and informed decision making
by employers and, ultimately, providers and conggme

WellPoint is a large accelerated filer (as defimeRule 12b-2 of the Securities Exchange Act of4,98 amended) and is required,
pursuant to Item 101 of Regulation S-K, to provigetain information regarding its website and thailability of certain documents filed with
or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Comamssr SEC. Our Internet website_is www.wellpaiotn. We make available free of
charge, or through our Internet website, our AnfiReghort on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on FormQ,Gurrent Reports on Form 8-K, and
amendments to those reports filed or furnishedyaursto Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SecuritiesHaxge Act of 1934 as soon as reasonably
practicable after we electronically file such matkwith or furnish it to the SEC. We also include our Internet website our Corporate
Governance Guidelines, our Standards of Ethicalrigss Conduct and the charter of each standing dtbeenof our Board of Directors. In
addition, we intend to disclose on our Internet siiebany amendments to, or waivers from, our Stafsdaf Ethical Business Conduct that are
required to be publicly disclosed pursuant to ratethe SEC and the New York Stock Exchange, or EYWellPoint, Inc., which name
changed from Anthem, Inc. effective November 3@4£0s an Indiana corporation incorporated on Jluly2001.
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As required by NYSE Rule 303A.12, in 2006 we fileith the NYSE the annual chief executive officertifieate with no qualifications,
indicating that the chief executive officer is ureae of any violations of the NYSE corporate goveggastandards. In addition, we are filing
certifications required by Section 302 of the SadsaOxley Act of 2002 as exhibits to this AnnuapBe on Form 10-K.

Recent Transactions

We intend to continue our expansion through orggmievth and strategic acquisitions and transactibisted below are the more
significant transactions that we recently completed

We maintain a common stock repurchase programtasrzed by our Board of Directors. Repurchasesvade from time to time
prevailing market prices, subject to certain reitshs on volume, pricing and timing. During theayended December 31, 2006, we
repurchased and retired approximately 60.7 millibares at an average price of $74.91, for an agtgegst of $4.6 billion. On
March 15, May 16, August 17 and December 7, 2006Bward of Directors authorized increases of &lllon, $1.0 billion, $0.5
billion and $1.0 billion, respectively, in our coromstock repurchase program, which increased théaathorized common stock
repurchases to $5.5 billion since the current @ogs inception in 2005. As of December 31, 20069%0llion remained authorized
by our Board of Directors for future repurchasashsequent to December 31, 2006, we repurchasecktiretl approximately 6.0
million shares for an aggregate cost of approxiigaé63.5 million, leaving approximately $486.3 liwih for authorized future
repurchases at February 12, 2007. Our stock repsecprogram is discretionary as we are under rigatlan to repurchase shares.
We repurchase shares because we believe it idamruse of surplus capiti

On December 28, 2005 (December 31, 2005 for aco@uptirposes) we completed our acquisition of WiediiCe, Inc., or
WellChoice. Under the terms of the merger agreenbatstockholders of WellChoice received consitienaof $38.25 in cash and
0.5191 of a share of WellPoint common stock fohesttare of WellChoice common stock outstandingddition, WellChoice stock
options and other awards were converted to WellRoirmrds in accordance with the merger agreeméet plirchase price including
cash, fair value of stock and stock awards andheséid transaction costs was approximately $6.®bilWellChoice merged with
and into WellPoint Holding Corp., a direct and wiawned subsidiary of WellPoint, with WellPoint iiing Corp. as the surviving
entity in the mergel

On July 11, 2005, we announced that an agreementeeahed with representatives of more than 70QB@8icians nationwid
involved in two multi-district classction lawsuits against us and other health benefimpanies. As part of the agreement, we a
to pay $135.0 million to physicians and to conttéb$5.0 million to a not-for-profit foundation whesission is to promote higher
quality health care and to enhance the deliveigaoé to the disadvantaged and underserved. Ini@aadip to $58.0 million will be
paid in legal fees. As a result of the agreemeatingurred a pre-tax expense of $103.0 millionmythe year ended December 31,
2005, or $0.10 EPS, which represented the findeseént amount of the agreement that was not pusiyaccrued. Appeals of the
settlement initially filed by certain physiciansviesbeen resolved. Final cash payments under tleeagmt totaling $209.5 million,
including accrued interest, were made on Octolardb6, 2006

On June 9, 2005, we completed our acquisition eh&mos, Inc., or Lumenos, for approximately $185illilan in cash paid to the
stockholders of Lumenos. Lumenos is recognizedmsreeer and market leader in consu-driven health program

On April 25, 2005, our Board of Directors approwetivo-for-one split of shares of common stock, whi@s effected in the form of
a 100% common stock dividend. All shareholdersecbrd on May 13, 2005 received one additional shB¥WellPoint common
stock for each share of common stock held on theg. d’he additional shares of common stock weteilnliged to shareholders of
record in the form of a stock dividend on May 3@02. All applicable historical weighted averagershend per share amounts an
references to stock compensation data and marietspof out
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common stock for all periods presented in this AairReport on Form -K have been adjusted to reflect this -for-one stock split

* On November 30, 2004, Anthem, Inc., or Anthem, AredlPoint Health Networks Inc., or WHN, completéeir merger. WHNM
merged with and into Anthem Holding Corp., a diraetl wholly-owned subsidiary of Anthem, with Anthétolding Corp. as the
surviving entity in the merger. In connection witle merger, Anthem amended its articles of incafion to change its name to
WellPoint, Inc., or WellPoint. As a result of theerger, each WHN stockholder received consideraif@$23.80 in cash and one
share of WellPoint common stock for each share BfNA¢ommon stock held. In addition, WHN stock optand other awards were
converted to WellPoint awards in accordance withrtterger agreement. The purchase price includisig, ¢air value of stock and
stock awards and estimated transaction costs wasxmately $15.8 hillion

Industry Overview

The health benefits industry has experienced sa@amf change in the last decade. The increasingsfoa health care costs by employers,
the government and consumers has led to the grofnghiernatives to traditional indemnity healthursnce. HMO, PPO and hybrid plans, such
as POS plans and CDHPs, are among the various fafrmanaged care products that have developedtbegrast decade. Through these t
of products, insurers attempt to contain the cbbialth care by negotiating contracts with hosdgjtphysicians and other providers to deliver
health care to members at favorable rates. Theskipts usually feature medical management and qtedity and cost optimization measures
such as pre-admission review and approval for icentan-emergency services, pre-authorization opatint surgical procedures, network
credentialing to determine that network doctors laospitals have the required certifications andeetige, and various levels of care
management programs to help members better undédratel navigate the medical system. In additiooyigers may have incentives to
achieve certain quality measures, may share mecltisalrisk or have other incentives to deliver guahedical services in a cost-effective
manner. Also, certain plans offer members incestfee healthy behaviors, smoking cessation and hteiganagement. Members are charged
periodic, pre-paid premiums and pay co-paymenisscoance and deductibles when they receive sexvibile the distinctions between the
various types of plans have lessened over recamsyBPO, POS and CDHP products generally proedeced benefits for out-of-network
services, while traditional HMO products generaligvide little to no reimbursement for non-emergeaat-of-network utilization. An HMO
plan may also require members to select one afi¢heork primary care physicians to coordinate thahe and approve any specialist or other
services.

Recently, economic factors and greater consumeremgas have resulted in the increasing populafipraducts that offer larger, more
extensive networks, more member choice relatedterage, physicians and hospitals, and a desirgréater flexibility for customers to
assume larger deductibles and co-payments in réautower premiums. CDHPs, which are relativelgthideductible PPO products and which
are often paired with some type of member health eapenditure account that can be used at the erésriscretion to help fund member
out-of-pocket costs, help to meet this demand. C®&Bo usually incorporate member education, weinand care management programs, to
help customers make better informed health carisides. We believe we are well-positioned in eatbw regions to respond to these market
preferences.

Each of the BCBS companies, of which there weren88pendent primary licensees as of December 316,20@orks cooperatively in a
number of ways that create significant market athges, especially when competing for very largetinstite employer groups. As a result of
this cooperation, each BCBS company is able to éakentage of other BCBS licensees’ substantialipeo networks and discounts when any
member works or travels outside of the state irchvitheir policy is written. This program is refair® as BlueCarl, and is a source of
revenue for providing member services in our stiiesmdividuals who are customers of BCBS plansaféliated with us.
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Competition

The managed care industry is highly competitivehationally and in our regional markets. Compatitontinues to be intense due to
aggressive marketing, business consolidationsplifgration of new products and increased quaktiaeeness and price sensitivity among
customers.

Health benefits industry participants compete fstomers mainly on the following factors:

* price;

« quality of service

* access to provider networks;

» access to care management and wellness programs;

* innovation, breadth and flexibility of products anenefits;

» reputation (including National Committee on Qualitysurance, or NCQA, accreditation status);
* brand recognition; an

» financial stability.

Over the last few years, a health plan’s abilitynteract with employers, members and other thadigs (including health care
professionals) via the Internet has become a rmopeitant competitive factor. During the last sel/gears, we have made significant
investments in technology to enhance our electrioéraction with employers, members and thirdipart

We believe our exclusive right to market productder the most recognized brand in the industry, BAB our most significant markets
provides us with an advantage over our competitivaddition, our provider networks in our regi@mable us to achieve cost-efficiencies and
service levels enabling us to offer a broad rarfgeealth benefits to our customers on a more cffstiéve basis than many of our competitors.
We strive to distinguish our products through pdeviaccess, service, product value and brand réamgn

To build our provider networks, we compete withesthealth benefits plans for contracts with hosgitahysicians and other providers.
We believe that physicians and other providers grilyconsider member volume, reimbursement rdtemliness of reimbursement and
administrative service capabilities along with thduction of non-value added administrative taskemdeciding whether to contract with a
health benefits plan.

At the sales and distribution level, we competedgfealified agents and brokers to distribute oudprts. Strong competition exists am¢
insurance companies and health benefits plangkmta and brokers with demonstrated ability to seogw business and maintain existing
accounts. We believe that commission structurepeudservices, reputation, prior relationships,ligywand price of the products are the factors
agents and brokers consider in choosing whetheratdxet our products. We believe that we have getationships with our agents and
brokers, and that our products, support servicdscammission structure compare favorably to ourmetitors in all of our regions.

Reportable Segments
Through December 31, 2006, we managed our opesatfiwmaugh three reportable segments: Health Cpexi8ity and Other.
Health Care

Our Health Care segment is an aggregation of varoerating segments, principally differentiatedybpgraphic areas within which we
offer similar health benefit products and servidgesluding commercial
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accounts, Senior, Medicaid and other State Spoddnrsinesses. These geographic areas include @aif&€olorado, Connecticut, Georgia,
Indiana, Kentucky, Maine, Missouri, Nevada, New Hiaitire, New York, Ohio, Virginia, and Wisconsin.dddition, UniCare provides
services throughout the country.

S pecialty

Our Specialty segment is comprised of businessesdging life and disability insurance benefits, phacy benefit management, speci
pharmacy, dental, vision, behavioral health bersfivices and long-term care insurance. We ceasdghwriting workers compensation
business effective December 31, 2005; however,oméraue to provide network rental and medical mamagnt services to workers
compensation carriers.

Other

Our Other segment is comprised of our Medicaregssing business, including National GovernmentiSesy Inc., which name chang
from AdminaStar Federal, Inc. effective Novembey 2006, United Government Services, LLC and Empleglicare Services, Inc.; Arcus
Healthy Living Services, Inc., which works to deyglinnovative means to promote quality care, weihg and education; Arcus Financial
Services, Inc., which provides a number of prodtmtd/ellPoint-owned health plans associated withatdvantaged accounts such as Health
Savings Accounts, Flexible Spending Accounts andltidReimbursement Accounts; intersegment revendesapense eliminations; and
corporate expenses not allocated to our Health @aBpecialty segments.

For additional information regarding the operatiagults of our segments, see the Management’s 8&igmuand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations and Note I®utcaudited consolidated financial statementstertear ended December 31, 2006
included in this Form 10-K.

We announced a new organizational structure deditméacilitate our 2010 strategic plan. This neémaure capitalizes on our unique
local presence, and emphasizes company-wide inioovand strong customer focus. As a result of el organizational structure we are
organized around two strategic business units: Ceroial and Consumer Business, or CCB, and Spegcdtyior and State-Sponsored
Business, or 4SB. In addition, our government sexvbusiness includes the Federal Employee ProgmamNational Government Services,
Inc., which acts as a Medicare contractor in séwegions across the nation. We expect to revisgeportable segments in the first quarter of
2007 in accordance with the new organizationakstine which reflects how our chief operating demismaker evaluates the performance of
our business beginning January 1, 2007.

Products and Services
Health Care
A general description of our health benefit produantd services is provided below:

Preferred Provider Organization. PPO products offer the member an option tacseley health care provider, with benefits reimledrs
by us at a higher level when care is received fagparticipating network provider. Coverage is sabje co-payments or deductibles and
coinsurance, with member cost sharing usually éohiby out-of-pocket maximums.

Consumer-Driven Health Plans. CDHPs provide consumers with increased findmegponsibility, choice and control regarding how
their health care dollars are spent. Generally, eBEombine a high-deductible PPO plan with an eygpitunded and/or employee-funded
personal care account. Some or all of the dollmsaining in the personal care account at year-ance rolled over to the next year for future
health care needs.
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Traditional Indemnity. Indemnity products offer the member an optmselect any health care provider for covered sesviCoverage
is subject to deductibles and coinsurance, with bmoost sharing usually limited by out-of-pocketxdimums.

Health Maintenance Organization. HMO products include comprehensive managed lwanefits, generally through a participating
network of physicians, hospitals and other pro\§dér member in one of our HMOs must typically sekeprimary care physician, or PCP,
from our network. PCPs generally are family prémtiers, internists or pediatricians who provideassary preventive and primary medical
care, and are generally responsible for coordigaither necessary health care services. We offeDHblns with varying levels of co-
payments, which result in different levels of pramirates.

Point-of-Service. POS products blend the characteristics of HM@iademnity plans. Members can have comprehemti®-style
benefits through participating network providershaminimum out-of-pocket expenses (co-payments)adsal can go directly, without a
referral, to any provider they choose, subjecaitnpng other things, certain deductibles and coarsig. Member cost sharing is limited by out-
of-pocket maximums.

Management Services. In addition to fully insured products, we prd@iadministrative services to large group emplotfgas maintain
self-funded health plans. These administrativeisesvinclude underwriting, actuarial services, mablimanagement, claims processing and
administrative services for self-funded employ&maif-funded health plans are also able to use mwiger networks and to realize savings
through our negotiated provider arrangements, wdii@ving employers the ability to design certagatih benefit plans in accordance with
their own requirements and objectives. We also mmdie stop loss insurance for self-funded plans.

Senior Plans. We offer a wide variety of senior plans, proguend options such as Medicare supplemental pldedicare Advantage
and Medicare Part D Prescription Drug Plans, orikbe Part D. Medicare supplemental plans typigadly the difference between health care
costs incurred by a beneficiary and amounts pailfiegicare. Medicare Advantage plans provide Medidmmeficiaries with a managed care
alternative to traditional Medicare. Medicare Hawffers a prescription drug plan to Medicare ¢ligimembers. We offer Medicare Part D to
eligible Medicare beneficiaries in all 50 statesr Medicare-approved drug discount cards afford ivke@ beneficiaries, without facilitated
prescription drug coverage, access to our drugdigs. We are also the United States default glapdint of service facilitated, enrollment,
defined by the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid s, or CMS.

BlueCard. BlueCard host members are generally membersregide in or travel to a state in which a WellRasubsidiary is the Blue
Cross and/or Blue Shield licensee and who are eovender an employer sponsored health plan serbig@dnon-WellPoint controlled BCBS
licensee, who is the “home” plan. We perform ceredministrative functions for BlueCard host mensb&r which we receive administrative
fees from the BlueCard members’ home plans. Otlienirgsstrative functions, including maintenance of@lment information and customer
service, are performed by the home plan.

Medicaid Plans and Other State-Sponsored Programéle have contracts to serve members enrolled in d4édli State Children’s
Health Insurance Programs and other publicly furtteith care programs for low income and/or higldiced risk individuals. We currently
provide services in California, Colorado, Connadti¢ndiana, Kansas, Massachusetts, Nevada, New, X@w Hampshire, Ohio, Texas,
Virginia, West Virginia and Wisconsin.

Specialty

Pharmacy Products. We offer pharmacy services and pharmacy bemefitagement services to our members. Our pharneacicss
incorporate features such as drug formularies (e/her develop lists of
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preferred, cost effective drugs), a pharmacy nétaod maintenance of a prescription drug databagereil order capabilities. Pharmacy
benefit management services provided by us ina@eagement of drug utilization through outpatienespription drug formularies,
retrospective review and drug education for phgsisj pharmacists and members. Two of our subgidiarie also licensed pharmacies and
make prescription dispensing services availableudfin mail order for pharmacy benefit managemeentdi In July 2005, we launched
Precision Rx Specialty Solutions, a full service@plty pharmacy designed to help improve qualitgt eost of care by coordinating a relativ
new class of prescription medications commonlyrrefitto as biopharmaceuticals, also known as sipeai@dications.

In September 2005, we were awarded contracts & bfédicare Part D to eligible Medicare benefi@arin all 50 states. We began
offering these plans to customers through our hdshefit subsidiaries throughout the country amdiding administrative services for
Medicare Part D offerings through our pharmacy fissmmanagement companies on January 1, 2006.

Life Insurance. We offer an array of competitive group lifeunance benefit products to both large and smallgustomers in
conjunction with our health plans. The life produiciclude term life, accidental death and dismemiegit.

Disability. We offer short-term and long-term disabilitpgrams, usually in conjunction with our health glan

Behavioral Health. We offer specialized behavioral health plang laenefit management. These plans cover mentahhead
substance abuse treatment services on both aneinpahd an outpatient basis. We have implementga@yee assistance and behavioral
managed care programs for a wide variety of busgsthroughout the United States. These prograensfimred through our subsidiaries and
through third party behavioral health networks.

Dental. Our dental plans include networks in certaiiet in which we operate. Many of the dental béhafie provided to customers
enrolled in our health plans and are offered ot laotinsured and self-funded basis.

Vision Services. Our vision plans include networks within thates we operate. Many of the vision benefits apeiged to customers
enrolled in our health plans and are offered ot laotinsured and self-funded basis.

Long-Term Care Insurance. We offer long-term care insurance productsuio@alifornia members through a subsidiary. Theylerm
care products include tax-qualified and non-taxifjgd versions of a skilled nursing home care pdawdl comprehensive policies covering
skilled, intermediate and custodial long-term camd home health services.

Other

Medicare Fiscal Intermediary Operations. Through contracts held by National GovernmeaBes, Inc., United Government Servit
LLC, Anthem Health Plans of Maine, Inc., Anthem Hedlans of New Hampshire, Inc., Empire Medicaeev&es division of
EmpireHealthChoice Assurance, Inc. and Blue CrosisBiue Shield of Georgia Inc., we serve as figti@rmediaries providing administrative
services for the Medicare program, which genealtywides coverage for persons who are 65 or oldérfar persons who are disabled or with
end-stage renal disease. Part A of the Medicargrano provides coverage for services provided byitals, skilled nursing facilities and other
health care facilities. Part B of the Medicare pewg provides coverage for services provided by iofeyss, physical and occupational
therapists and other professional providers, abagetertain durable medical equipment and medigaplies. As a fiscal intermediary, we are
compensated for our services on a cost reimbursepasis.
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Customer Types

Our products are generally developed and marketédan emphasis on the differing needs of variaist@mer groups. In particular, our
product development and marketing efforts take atwount the differing characteristics betweenvim@us customer groups served by us,
including individuals and small employers, largepdoyers, seniors and Medicaid recipients, as wetha unique needs of educational and
public entities, federal employee health and bépefigrams, national employers and state-run progrservicing low-income, high-risk and
under-served markets. Each business unit is reigperisr product design, pricing, enrolling, undeitimg and servicing customers in specific
customer groups. We believe that one of the keymitasuccess has been the focus on distinct custpmoeps defined generally by employer
size and geographic region, which better enablée develop benefit plans and services that meetitiiqgue needs of the distinct markets.

In each geographic region, we balance the needstmmize products with the efficiencies of prodsteindardization. Overall, we seek to
establish pricing and product designs to achievapgmopriate level of profitability for each of ocmstomer categories. As of December 31,
2006, our customer types included the followingegaties:

Large Group includes employer customers with 54,899 employees eligible to participate as a merimbene of our health plan

In addition, Large Group includes customers wit0B, or more eligible employees with less than 5%ligfible employees located
outside of the headquarter’s state. These groupgearerally sold through brokers or consultantsimgrwith industry specialists
from our in-house sales force. Large Group caseshaaxperience rated or sold on a self-insuretsb@ike customer’s buying
decision is typically based upon the size and breaflour networks, customer service, the qualftpur medical management
services, the administrative cost included in awstgd price, our financial stability, reputatiordasur ability to effectively service
large complex accounts. Large Group also includesbers in the Federal Employee Program, or FER. BEBSA licensee, we
participate in a nationwide contract with the Fedlgovernment whereby we cover Federal employeédhaair dependents in our
multi-state service area. Service area is defiseth@ geographic area in which we are licensedlt®€BS products. We participate
in the overall financial risk for medical claims arpooled basis with the other participating BCB&panies, and are reimbursed for
our costs plus a fee. Large Group accounted for d7&ur medical members at December 31, 2!

Individual (under 65) and small groups are definesnembers who purchase health insurance sergdedigiduals or through
employers with one to 50 eligible employees. Whilividual policies are generally sold through ipdadent agents and brokers or
our in-house sales force, small groups are soldstiexclusively through independent agents anddssolSmall group cases are sold
on a fully-insured basis. Individual business soadold on a fully-insured basis and is usually icely underwritten at the point of
initial issuance. Individual and small group cusesmare generally more sensitive to product prieind, to a lesser extent, the
configuration of the network, and the efficiencyaafministration. Account turnover is generally léghvith individual and small
groups as compared to large groups. Individualssamall groups accounted for 17% of our medical menmlat December 31, 20(

National Accounts are defined as r-state employer groups primarily headquarteredWedlPoint service area with 5,000 or mu
eligible employees, with at least 5% or more elgémployees located in a service area outsideeo€adquarter’s state. Service
area is defined as the geographic area in whicaredicensed to sell BCBS products. National Acdés@ame generally sold through
independent brokers or consultants retained bguk®mer working with our in-house sales force. Meee a significant advantage
when competing for very large National Accounts tueur ability to access the national providemeks of BCBS companies and
take advantage of their provider discounts in tlegial markets. National Accounts represented 15%uomedical members at
December 31, 2001

BlueCard host customers are defined as enrolleethef BCBS plans, or the “home” plans, who recéigalth care services in our
BCBSA licensed markets. BlueCard host membershipuwated for 12% of our medical members at Decer8he006.
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» Senior customers are defined as members age 6&vandvith Medicare Supplement or Medicare Advantagiecies. Medicart
Supplement policies are sold to Medicare recipiastsupplements to the benefits they receive flmrMedicare program. Rates are
filed with and in some cases approved by stateamae departments. The Medicare Advantage progsaheimanaged care
alternative to the federally funded Medicare progr&lost of the premium is paid directly by the Fedigovernment on behalf of t|
participant who may also be charged a small premMetdicare Supplement and Medicare Advantage ptsdure marketed in the
same manner. Senior business accounted for 4%rahedical members at December 31, 2(

» State Sponsored program membership is definedgiBlelmembers with state sponsored managed ctamatives for the Medical
and State Children’s Health Insurance programsweatanage. Total State Sponsored program busagessinted for 5% of our
medical members at December 31, 2(

We expect to revise our customer type definitionthe first quarter of 2007 in accordance withrbes organizational structure which
reflects how our chief operating decision makedast®s the performance of our business beginningals 1, 2007.

In addition to reporting our medical membershipchgtomer type, we report by funding arrangementralicg to the level of risk that v
assume in the product contract. Our two principatling arrangement categories are fully-insuredsatidfunded. Fully-insured products are
products in which we indemnify our policyholdersaatst costs for health benefits. Self-funded préslace offered to customers, generally
larger employers, who elect to retain some orfalhe financial risk associated with their employdeealth care costs. Some customers choose
to purchase stop-loss coverage to limit their retdirisk. These customers are reported with ofifsetied business.

The following tables set forth our medical membgrdly customer type and funding arrangement:

December 31
2006 20051
(In thousands)
Customer Type:
Large Groug 16,01« 16,36
Individual and Small Group (ISC 5,654 5,64t
National Account: 5,04¢ 4,77¢
BlueCard 4,27¢ 3,91t
Total National 9,32: 8,691
Senior 1,22¢ 1,22¢
State Sponsored 1,881 1,93¢
Total medical membership by customer t 34,10! 33,85¢
Funding Arrangement:
Self-Fundec 16,74 16,58¢
Fully-Insured 17,35¢ 17,27:
Total medical membership by funding arrangen 34,10! 33,85¢
! Medical membership data for 2005 has been recleddid conform to the current presentation. Oulassifications for

minimum premium amendments to fully-insured corntsaesulted in an increase in self-funded membprahd a
corresponding decrease in fully-insured memberstiigh, no impact on total medical membership.

2 During the quarter ended December 31, 2006, ouecstrip of a joint venture in Puerto Rico changednfia 50 percent
ownership of a Medicaid managed care subsidiagygmaller percentage ownership in the joint vergysarent company.
Accordingly, as of December 31, 2006 and going &oywe no longer include the 222,000 membersaelat this
investment in our reported enrollment.
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For additional information regarding the changeniedical membership between years, see the Managisrdescussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations ideldiin this Form 10-K.

Networks and Provider Relations

Our relationships with physicians, hospitals amfgssionals that provide health care services tormmbers are guided by regional and
national standards for network development, reirebomrent and contract methodologies.

We attempt to provide market-based hospital reisdment along industry standards. We also seekstarethat physicians in our
network are paid in a timely manner at appropniates. We use multi-year contracting strategiesduding case or fixed rates, to limit our
exposure to medical cost inflation and increasé¢ prelictability. In all regions, we seek to maintaroad provider networks to ensure men
choice while implementing programs designed to ouprthe quality of care received by our members.

It is generally our philosophy not to delegate fidkancial responsibility to our physician providen the form of capitation-based
reimbursement. However, in certain markets we bel@apitation can be a useful method to lower castsreduce underwriting risk, and we
therefore have some capitation contracts.

Depending on the consolidation and integrationtgfgician groups and hospitals, reimbursement sgfiegesary across markets. Fee-for-
service is our predominant reimbursement methogologphysicians. We generally use a resourased relative value system, or RBRVS,
schedule to determine fee-for-service reimbursentémtvever, we also use proprietary fee schedulesgiitain markets. The RBRVS structure
was developed and is maintained by CMS, and is bgede Medicare program and other major payers.RBRVS and proprietary systems
are independent of submitted fees and thereforaatras vulnerable to inflation. In addition, wesbdamplemented and continue to expand
physician incentive contracting, which recogniziésical quality and performance as a basis for [insement.

Like our physician contracts, our hospital contsgutovide for a variety of reimbursement arrangesdepending on the network. Our
hospital contracts recognize unique hospital atteb, such as academic medical centers or commiumsfyitals, and the volume of care
performed for our members. Most hospitals are reirsdd on a fixed amount per day for covered ses\joer diem) or a case rate basis similar
to Medicare (Diagnosis Related Groups). Other hakpare reimbursed on a discount frapproved charge basis for covered services. Hd
outpatient services are reimbursed based on fiasd mates, fee schedules or percent of chargemprove predictability of expected cost, we
frequently use a multyear contracting approach and have been transiticioi case rate payment methodologies. Many ofhospital contract
have reimbursement linked to improved clinical parfance, patient safety and medical error reduction

Medical Management Programs

Our medical management programs include a broay afractivities that facilitate improvements irethuality of care provided to our
members and promote cost effective medical cares@medical management activities and programadmnénistered and directed by
physicians and trained nurses employed by us. ®tiee@oals of our medical management strategigséssure that the care delivered to our
members is supported by appropriate medical armahsfic evidence.

Precertification. A traditional medical management program ineshassessment of the appropriateness of certgaitddzzmtions and
other medical services prior to the service beamglered. For example, precertification is usecetertnine whether a set of hospital and
medical services is being appropriately applietheomember’s clinical condition, in accordance vetheria for medical necessity as that term
is defined in the membexrbenefits contract. Most of our health plans hiey@emented precertification programs for certaghhcost radiolog
studies, addressing an area of historically sigaift cost trends.
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Concurrent review. Another traditional medical management strategyuse is concurrent review, which is based oionally
recognized criteria developed by third-party meldsgeecialists. With concurrent review, the requiesnts and intensity of services during a
patient’s hospital stay are reviewed, often by asite skilled nurse professional in collaboratidthwhe hospitak medical and nursing staff,
order to coordinate care and determine the most®&fe transition of care from the hospital setting

Formulary management. We have developed formularies, which are sielestof drugs based on clinical quality and effemtiess. A
pharmacy and therapeutics committee of physiciaes gcientific and clinical evidence to ensure thiatmembers have access to the
appropriate drug therapies.

Medical policy. A medical policy group comprised of physiciaaders from various areas of the country, workingoioperation with
academic medical centers, practicing community giieyss and medical specialty organizations sudiha®\merican College of Radiology a
national organizations such as the Centers fordBs€ontrol and the American Cancer Society, détesyour national policy for the
application of new technologies.

Quality programs. We are actively engaged with our hospital neksd@o enable them to improve medical and surgiaeé and achieve
better outcomes for our members. We endorse, eagewand incent hospitals to support national inves to improve clinical care, patient
outcomes and reduce medication errors and hospigations. We have demonstrated our leadershifeireloping hospital quality programs.

External review procedures. We work with outside experts through a proacgssxternal review to provide our members sciecuify
and clinically, evidenced-based medical care. Wliemeceive member concerns, we have formal appeatgdures that ultimately allow
coverage disputes related to medical necessitgides under the benefits contract to be settleithddgpendent expert physicians.

Service management. In HMO and POS networks, primary care physigis@rve as the overall coordinators of memberdttheare
needs by providing an array of preventive healtkises and overseeing referrals to specialistafropriate medical care. In PPO networks,
patients have access to network physicians withqurtmary care physician serving as the coordinaftcare.

Care Management Programs

We recently introduced o®60° Healthsuite of integrated care management programs ansl wifered through our wholly-owned
subsidiary, Health Management Corporation, or HI260° Healthoffers the following programs, among others, thatéhbeen proven to
increase quality and reduce medical costs for @mbrers:

Condition ManagemerandMaternity Managemergrograms serve as excellent adjuncts to physicas. @& dedicated nurse and added
support from our team of dietitians, exercise pblpgjists, pharmacists, health educators and otatthprofessionals help participants
understand their condition, their doctor’s ordard how to become a better self-manager of theiditiom.

24/7 NurseLineffers access to qualified, registered nurses argytihis allows our members to make informed dexngsabout the
appropriate level of care and avoid unnecessaryyw®his program includes a robust audiotape ljpraccessible by phone, with more than
400 health topics, as well as on-line health edocdbpics designed to educate members about synspamd treatment of many common
health concerns.

Advanced Care Managemawrtiches out to participants with multiple healtredasues who are at risk for frequent and higklkeof
medical care in order to offer support and asstggam managing their health care needs. Advancee Kanagement identifies candidates
through claims analysis using predictive modelieghhiques, the use of health risk assessmentwdditzation management reports and
referrals from a physician or one of our other paogs, such as the 24/7 NurseLine.
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Early Risk Managemernttilizes integrated information systems and sopdastd data analytics to assist our members toaugptheir
compliance with evidence-based care guidelinesjigirtgy Personal Care Notes that alert members tenpial gaps in care, enable more
prudent health care choices, and assist in theza¢iah of member out-of-pocket cost savings.

Healthy Returnsg¥, HMC's secure web-based solution, complementsrgitagrams by reinforcing telephonic coaching aradl m
campaigns. The web site engages participants iladyg assessing their health status, gives thedifack about their progress, and tracks
important health measures such as blood presseightiand blood glucose levels.

Health Care Quality Initiatives

Increasingly, the health care industry is abledfirg quality health care based on preventive heattasurements, outcomes of care and
optimal care management for chronic disease. At@ur success has been our ability to work withratwork physicians and hospitals to
improve the quality and outcomes of the health sargices provided to our members. Our abilityrianpote quality medical care has been
recognized by the NCQA, the largest and most réedetational accreditation program for managed basdth plans.

Several quality health care measures, includindHsalth Plan Employer Data and Information SetlBDIS, have been incorporated
into the oversight certification by NCQA. HEDIS nseaes range from preventive services, such asrsageemammography and pediatric
immunization, to elements of care, including desiegthe complications of diabetes and improviegttment for patients with heart disease.
For the HMO and POS plans, NCQA's highest accréditds granted only to those plans that demorsirtels of service and clinical quality
that meet or exceed NCQA's rigorous requirementeémsumer protection and quality improvement. Plkaarning this accreditation level
must also achieve HEDIS results that are in thadsgrange of national or regional performance.tkrePPO plans, NCQA'’s highest
accreditation is granted to those plans that hagelkent programs for quality improvement and cansuprotection and that meet or exceed
NCQA's standards. Overall, our managed care plans bese rated “Excellent”, the highest accreditatmnNCQA.

We have committed to measuring our progress inawipg the quality of care that our members recéiveugh the Member Health
Index, or MHI. Comprised of 20 clinically relevamieasures, the MHI combines prevention, care managgmriinical outcome and patient
safety metrics.

Our wholly-owned clinical research and health outcomes relsesantesidiary, HealthCore, has supported biopharotmed manufacturer
health professionals, and health plans by enaltioge effective medical management and increasesigiby adherence to evidence based
care, and creating new knowledge on the valueinical therapies, resulting in better care decision

Pricing and Underwriting of Our Products

We price our products based on our assessmentreintinealth care claim costs and emerging healté cost trends, combined with
charges for administrative expenses, risk and p\dfe continually review our product designs andipg guidelines on a national and regio
basis so that our products remain competitive amsistent with our profitability goals and stratgyi

In applying our pricing to each employer group andtomer, we maintain consistent, competitive¢stiderwriting standards. We
employ our proprietary accumulated actuarial datdetermining underwriting and pricing paramet@vbere allowed by law and regulation,
we underwrite individual policies based upon thealita history of the individual applying for covei® small groups based upon case specific
underwriting procedures and large groups basedoh group’s aggregate claim experience. Also, weleyrcredit underwriting procedures
with respect to our self-funded products.
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In most circumstances, our pricing and underwritiegisions follow a prospective rating process Imcl a fixed premium is determined
at the beginning of the contract period. Any deweiatfavorable or unfavorable, from the medicalts@ssumed in determining the premium is
our responsibility. Some of our larger groups emipktrospective rating reviews, where positive eigree is partially refunded to the group,
and negative experience is charged against atediization fund established from the group’s fealle experience, or charged against future
favorable experience.

BCBSA License

We have filed for registration of and maintain sevservice marks, trademarks and trade namee détteral level and in various states
in which we operate. We have the exclusive righige the BCBS names and marks for our health bheqebducts in California (Blue Cross
only), Colorado, Connecticut, Georgia, Indiana, teky, Maine, Missouri (excluding 30 counties i tkansas City area), Nevada, New
Hampshire, New York (as BCBS in 10 New York Citytnepolitan and surrounding counties, and as Blues€or BCBS in selected upstate
counties only), Ohio, Virginia (excluding the Noetin Virginia suburbs of Washington, D.C.) and Wissio.

Each license requires an annual fee to be paltetCBSA. The fee is based upon enroliment and jrenBCBSA is a national trade
association of Blue Cross and Blue Shield licensiesprimary function of which is to promote anégerve the integrity of the BCBS names
and marks, as well as provide certain coordinadimong the member companies. Each BCBSA licensaeiisdependent legal organization
and is not responsible for obligations of other EB2Bmember organizations. We have no right to maskeducts and services using the BCBS
names and marks outside of the states in whichrevéc@nsed to sell BCBS products.

We believe that the BCBS names and marks are Validdntifiers of our products and services innterketplace. The license
agreements, which have a perpetual term, contafaigeequirements and restrictions regarding garations and our use of the BCBS names
and marks. Upon termination of the license agre¢smere would cease to have the right to use the B&&8mes and marks in one or more of
the states that we are authorized to use the naadkshe BCBSA could thereafter issue a licenses¢otie BCBS names and marks in these
states to another entity. Events that could causéermination of a license agreement with the BE&B®Ilude failure to comply with minimui
capital requirements imposed by the BCBSA, a chafigentrol or violation of the BCBSA ownership litsion our capital stock, impending
financial insolvency, the appointment of a trusteeeceiver or the commencement of any action agaiticensee seeking its dissolution.

The license agreements with the BCBSA contain tereguirements and restrictions regarding our afiems and our use of the BCBS
names and marks, including:

* minimum capital and liquidity requiremen

» enrollment and customer service performance remgnts;

» participation in programs that provide portabilifiymembership between plat

» disclosure to the BCBSA relating to enrollment &ndncial conditions;

» disclosures as to the structure of the BCBS sy#terontracts with third parties and in public staénts;
» plan governance requirements;

* arequirement that at least 80% (or, in the cagddud Cross of California, substantially all) ofigense’s annual combined n
revenue attributable to health benefit plans wiitdrservice area must be sold, marketed, admreidter underwritten under the
BCBS names and mark

* arequirement that at least 66 2/3% of a lice’s annual combined national revenue attributableetith benefit plans must be sc
marketed, administered or underwritten under th@8@ames and mark
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a requirement that neither a plan nor any of dsrised affiliates may permit an entity other thautea or a licensed affiliate to obte
control of the plan or the licensed affiliate oramquire a substantial portion of its assets rdlaidicensable service

a requirement that limits beneficial ownership of oapital stock to less than 10% for institutiomadestors and less than 5% for non-
institutional investors

a requirement that we guarantee certain contraandhfinancial obligations of our licensed affiat anc

a requirement that we indemnify the BCBSA against @aims asserted against it resulting from th&teetual and financial
obligations of any subsidiary that serves as afistermediary providing administrative services fedicare Parts A and |

We believe that we and our licensed affiliatesaneently in compliance with these standards. Thadards under the license agreem
may be modified in certain instances by the BCBSA.

Regulation

General

Our operations are subject to comprehensive aradlelétstate and federal regulation throughout thigdd States in the jurisdictions in
which we do business. Supervisory agencies, inetudiate health, insurance and corporation depatsnleave broad authority to:

grant, suspend and revoke licenses to transactdussi
regulate many aspects of our products and sen
monitor our solvency and reserve adequacy; and

scrutinize our investment activities on the basiguality, diversification and other quantitativeteria.

To carry out these tasks, these regulators pedtidiexamine our operations and accounts.

Regulation of Insurance Company and HMO Businesisif\c

The federal government, as well as the governnaritse states in which we conduct our operatioasghadopted laws and regulations
that govern our business activities in various wayese laws and regulations, which vary signifikaby state, may restrict how we conduct
our businesses and may result in additional burdadscosts to us. Areas of governmental regulaticlide but are not limited to:

licensure;

premium rates

benefits;

service areas

market conduct;

utilization review activities
prompt payment of claims;

universal health care regulation based on theatiity to individuals and small groups of a gouaent sponsored health pl
administered by a private contractor and fundethbseased premium taxe
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» assessments for state run immunization progr.

* requirements that pharmacy benefit managers passfa@urers’ rebates to customers;
» member rights and responsibilitie

» sales and marketing activities;

e quality assurance procedur:

» plan design and disclosures, including mandateeéfiisn

» collection, access or use of protected health in&dion;

» eligibility requirements;

» provider rates of payment;

e surcharges on provider paymer

e provider contract forms;

» provider access standari

* premium taxes and assessments for the uninsuredramierinsured;

» underwriting, marketing and rating restrictions $omall group product:

* member and provider complaints and appeals;

» underwriting and pricinc

» financial arrangements;

» financial condition (including reserves and minimuaapital or risk based capital requiremen
» reimbursement or payment levels for government égrousiness; and

. corporate governanc

These laws and regulations are subject to amendnaet changing interpretations in each jurisdiction
Our Senior plans, Medicaid plans and other StatmSgred programs are subject to extensive fedadhstate laws and regulations.

States generally require health insurers and HMQbtain a certificate of authority prior to comroéty operations. If we were to
establish a health insurance company or an HMOyrstate where we do not presently operate, wergiypeould have to obtain such a
certificate. The time necessary to obtain suchréficate varies from state to state. Each healgurer and HMO must file periodic financial
and operating reports with the states in whiclogsibusiness. In addition, health insurers and HEl®subject to state examination and
periodic license renewal. The health benefits lrggralso may be adversely impacted by court andategy decisions that expand the
interpretations of existing statutes and regulatidhis uncertain whether we can recoup, throughér premiums or other measures, the
increased costs of mandated benefits or otheraseckcosts caused by potential legislation, reigal@tr court rulings.

Medicare Changes

The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and &tadation Act of 2003, or MMA, became law in Dedsn 2003. The MMA
significantly changed and expanded Medicare. lerénent part, the MMA added prescription drug bged¢o Medicare for all Medicare
eligible individuals starting January 1, 2006. Effee January 1, 2006, we began offering Medicane B approved prescription drug plans to
Medicare eligible
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individuals in all regions of the country. In addit, we are also providing various administratieevices for other entities offering prescription
drug plans to their employees and retirees thrauwgtpharmacy benefit management companies and affilexted companies.

HIPAA and Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act

The federal Health Insurance Portability and Acdabitity Act of 1996, or HIPAA, imposes obligatiofer issuers of health insurance
coverage and health benefit plan sponsors. Thigsdawires guaranteed health care coverage for emgdloyers having two to 50 employees
and for individuals who meet certain eligibilityq@irements. It also requires guaranteed renewglbiihealth care coverage for most
employers and individuals. The law limits exclusidrased on preexisting conditions for individuasered under group policies to the extent
the individuals had prior creditable coverage.

The Administrative Simplification provisions of HAA imposed a number of requirements on coverediestfincluding insurers, HMC
group health plans, providers and clearinghoudémse requirements include uniform standards ofncomelectronic health care transactions;
privacy and security regulations; and unique id@mtrules for employers, health plans and pro\dd&¥e complied timely with requirements
that have gone into effect, and intend to complhwuture requirements on or before the compliadates.

Other federal legislation includes the Gramm-LeBtikey Act, which generally placed restrictions the disclosure of non-public
information to non-affiliated third parties, andjugred financial institutions, including insurets,provide customers with notice regarding how
their non-public personal information is used, irthg an opportunity to “opt out” of certain dissloes. State departments of insurance and
certain federal agencies adopted implementing atigumis as required by federal law. The Gramm-LeBldby Act also gives banks and other
financial institutions the ability to affiliate witinsurance companies, which may lead to new catopetn the insurance and health benefits
fields.

Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974

The provision of services to certain employee weltzenefit plans is subject to the Employee Ret@nincome Security Act of 1974, as
amended, or ERISA, a complex set of laws and réigulssubject to interpretation and enforcementhieyinternal Revenue Service and the
Department of Labor. ERISA regulates certain aspefthe relationships between us, the employers whintain employee welfare benefit
plans subject to ERISA and patrticipants in suchgl&ome of our administrative services and otbtiviies may also be subject to regulation
under ERISA. In addition, certain states requicerisure or registration of companies providingdtipiarty claims administration services for
benefit plans. We provide a variety of products serices to employee welfare benefit plans thatcavered by ERISA. Plans subject to
ERISA can also be subject to state laws and thstigureof whether ERISA preempts a state law has besd will continue to be, interpreted
by many courts.

HMO and Insurance Holding Company Laws

We are regulated as an insurance holding compasha@nsubject to the insurance holding companydddtse states in which our
subsidiaries are domiciled. These acts contairiceréporting requirements as well as restrictiomsransactions between an insurer or HMO
and its affiliates. These holding company laws geglilations generally require insurance compamesHMOs within an insurance holding
company system to register with the insurance deygant of each state where they are domiciled affitetavith those states’ insurance
departments certain reports describing capitatgira, ownership, financial condition, certain ncgmpany transactions and general business
operations. In addition, various notice and repgrtiequirements generally apply to transactionséet insurance companies and HMOs and
their affiliates within an insurance holding compaystem, depending on the size and nature oféimsactions. Some insurance holding
company laws and regulations require prior regmaspproval or, in certain circumstances, prioliget
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of certain material intercompany transfers of asastwell as certain transactions between insuremoganies, HMOSs, their parent holding
companies and affiliates. Among other restricti@tate insurance and HMO laws may restrict thatgluf our regulated subsidiaries to pay
dividends.

Additionally, the holding company acts of the ssatewhich our subsidiaries are domiciled resttiet ability of any person to obtain
control of an insurance company or HMO without prigulatory approval. Under those statutes, witlsogh approval (or an exemption), no
person may acquire any voting security of an insceaholding company, which controls an insurancegamy or HMO, or merge with such a
holding company, if as a result of such transacsioch person would “control” the insurance holdiegnpany. “Control” is generally defined
as the direct or indirect power to direct or catigedirection of the management and policies ofragn and is presumed to exist if a person
directly or indirectly owns or controls 10% or markthe voting securities of another person.

Guaranty Fund Assessments

Under insolvency or guaranty association laws iststates, insurance companies can be assessaddants paid by guaranty funds
policyholder losses incurred when an insurance @mecomes insolvent. Most state insolvency oranig association laws currently
provide for assessments based upon the amounewfiypms received on insurance underwritten withithsstate (with a minimum amount
payable even if no premium is received). Under mafiprese guaranty association laws, assessmegitssagisurance companies that issue
policies of accident or sickness insurance are metlespectively. The amount and timing of any fatassessments, however, cannot be
reasonably estimated and are beyond our control.

While the amount of any assessments applicablétard health guaranty funds cannot be predictitld eertainty, we believe that futu
guaranty association assessments for insurer imiscils will not have a material adverse effectwnliquidity and capital resources.

Risk-Based Capital Requirements

The states of domicile of our regulated subsidiahiave statutory risk-based capital, or RBC, resménts for health and other insurance
companies based on the RBC Model Act. These RBGinegents are intended to assess the capital adeqfidife and health insurers, taking
into account the risk characteristics of an insgrérvestments and products. The RBC Model Actfeeth the formula for calculating the RE
requirements, which are designed to take into aticasset risks, insurance risks, interest rates i@sid other relevant risks with respect to an
individual insurance company’s business. In generaler these laws, an insurance company must sabmeport of its RBC level to the
insurance department or insurance commissiongs sfate of domicile for each calendar year.

The law requires increasing degrees of regulateeysight and intervention as an insurance compaRBE€ declines. The RBC Model
Act provides for four different levels of regulayaattention depending on the ratio of a compamtaltadjusted capital (defined as the total of
its statutory capital, surplus and asset valuagserve) to its risk-based capital. The level glutatory oversight ranges from requiring the
insurance company to inform and obtain approvahftbe domiciling insurance commissioner of a corhprsive financial plan for increasing
its RBC, to mandatory regulatory intervention reing an insurance company to be placed under reggylaontrol in a rehabilitation or
liquidation proceeding. As of December 31, 2006, RBC levels of our insurance subsidiaries exceatldRBC thresholds.

Employees

At December 31, 2006, we had approximately 42,608gns employed on a full-time basis. As of Decem3fie 2006, a small portion of
employees were covered by collective bargainingements: 144 employees in the Sacramento, Cabfangia with the Office and
Professional Employees International Union, Lo&I 219 employees in the greater Detroit, Michigeeaawith the International Brotherhood
of Teamsters,
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Chauffeurs, Warehousemen and Helpers of Americealldo. 614; 17 employees in the New York city maptlitan area with the Office and
Professional Employees International Union, Lod&8;land 149 employees in Milwaukee, Wisconsin whih Office and Professional
Employees International Union, Local 9. Our emphksyare an important asset, and we seek to devedopto their full potential. We believe
that our relationship with our employees is good.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

The following factors, among others, could caugaaaesults to differ materially from those contd in forward-looking statements
made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and presgeisewhere by management from time to time. $aatbrs, among others, may have a
material adverse effect on our business, finar@atlition, and results of operations and you shoatefully consider them. It is not possible
predict or identify all such factors. Consequengiyu should not consider any such list to be a detastatement of all our potential risks or
uncertainties. Because of these and other fagiast,performance should not be considered an itialicaf future performance.

Changes in state and federal regulations, or the gfication thereof, may adversely affect our busines financial condition and
results of operations.

Our insurance, managed health care and health enainte organization, or HMO, subsidiaries are stilbjeextensive regulation and
supervision by the insurance, managed health ¢adfd® regulatory authorities of each state in whilcly are licensed or authorized to do
business, as well as to regulation by federal andllagencies. We cannot assure you that futurdatgy action by state insurance or HMO
authorities will not have a material adverse effacthe profitability or marketability of our helalbenefits or managed care products or on our
business, financial condition and results of openat In addition, because of our participatiogavernment-sponsored programs such as
Medicare and Medicaid, changes in government réigaor policy with respect to, among other thingémbursement levels, could also
adversely affect our business, financial condiiod results of operations. In addition, we cansstiee you that application of the federal
and/or state tax regulatory regime that currenplyli@s to us will not, or future tax regulation éigher federal and/or state governmental
authorities concerning us could not, have a mdtadeerse effect on our business, operations anfifal condition.

State legislatures and Congress continue to fosusealth care issues. A number of states, inclu@ialifornia, Connecticut, and
Pennsylvania, are contemplating significant refofitheir health insurance markets. These propaselgde provisions affecting both public
programs and privately-financed health insurancangements. Broadly stated, these proposals attenimptrease the number of insured by
raising the eligibility levels for public progranasd compelling individuals and employers to purehtasalth coverage. At the same time, they
reform the underwriting and marketing practicesi®@élth plans. As these proposals are still beilgtdel in the various legislatures, we cannot
assure you that, if enacted into law, these prdpagauld not have a negative impact on our busingssrations or financial condition.

From time to time, Congress has considered vafimuss of managed care reform legislation whictadbpted, could fundamentally al
the treatment of coverage decisions under ERISAlithahally, there have been legislative attemptbniit ERISA’s preemptive effect on state
laws. If adopted, such limitations could increase l@bility exposure and could permit greaterestatgulation of our operations. Other
proposed bills and regulations, including thosatezl to HIPAA standard transactions and code setsumer-driven health plans and health
savings accounts and insurance market reformatg ahd federal levels may impact certain aspdasardousiness, including premium
receipts, provider contracting, claims payments@modessing and confidentiality of health inforroati While we cannot predict if any of these
initiatives will ultimately become effective or, &nacted, what their terms will be, their enactnoentid increase our costs, expose us to
expanded liability or require us to revise the wislywhich we conduct business. Further, as we nastto implement our business initiative:
uncertainty surrounding the regulatory authoritg aequirements in this area may make it difficalehsure compliance.
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Our inability to contain health care costs, implemat increases in premium rates on a timely basis, niatain adequate reserves for
policy benefits, maintain our current provider agreements or avoid a downgrade in our ratings may advsely affect our business and
profitability.

Our profitability depends in large part on accusafeedicting health care costs and on our abilitynanage future health care costs
through underwriting criteria, medical managempnvduct design and negotiation of favorable provintracts. The aging of the population
and other demographic characteristics and advangasdical technology continue to contribute tangshealth care costs. Government-
imposed limitations on Medicare and Medicaid reimsiement have also caused the private sector toabgaater share of increasing health
care costs. Changes in health care practicestiorflanew technologies, the cost of prescriptiomggd:; clusters of high cost cases, changes in the
regulatory environment and numerous other factffexting the cost of health care may adverselycaferr ability to predict and manage he
care costs, as well as our business, financialiiondand results of operations. Relatively sméffledences between predicted and actual health
care costs as a percentage of premium revenuegsalhin significant changes in our results ofragiens.

In addition to the challenge of managing healtte carsts, we face pressure to contain premium r@@scustomer contracts may be
subject to renegotiation as customers seek to iothtair costs. Alternatively, our customers mayvmto a competitor to obtain more favore
premiums. Fiscal concerns regarding the continueloility of programs such as Medicare and Medicaaly cause decreasing reimbursement
rates or a lack of sufficient increase in reimbaoreat rates for government-sponsored programs iohwiie participate. A limitation on our
ability to increase or maintain our premium or reimsement levels or a significant loss of membersbsulting from our need to increase or
maintain premium or reimbursement levels could esklg affect our business, financial condition aesllts of operations.

The reserves that we establish for health insurpotiey benefits and other contractual rights aaddjits are based upon assumptions
concerning a number of factors, including trendiealth care costs, expenses, general economidgtiomsdand other factors. Actual experie
will likely differ from assumed experience, andtie extent the actual claims experience is lessréble than estimated based on our
underlying assumptions, our incurred losses wautdeiase and future earnings could be adverselgtatfe

In addition, our profitability is dependent uporr ability to contract on favorable terms with haafs, physicians and other health care
providers. The failure to maintain or to secure mest-effective health care provider contracts mesylt in a loss in membership or higher
medical costs. In addition, our inability to cortfravith providers, or the inability of providers poovide adequate care, could adversely affect
our business.

Claims-paying ability and financial strength raingy recognized rating organizations are an impoftctor in establishing the
competitive position of insurance companies andthéenefits companies. Rating organizations camtito review the financial performance
and condition of insurers. Each of the rating ageneviews its ratings periodically and there bamo assurance that our current ratings will
be maintained in the future. We believe our str@tings are an important factor in marketing owdurcts to customers, since ratings
information is broadly disseminated and generadigcuithroughout the industry. If our ratings are dgraded or placed under surveillance or
review, with possible negative implications, thewtigrade, surveillance or review could adverselgafbur business, financial condition and
results of operations. These ratings reflect eatihg agency’s opinion of our financial strengtpemating performance and ability to meet our
obligations to policyholders and creditors, andraseevaluations directed toward the protectiomweéstors in our common stock.
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A reduction in the enrollment in our health benefis programs could have an adverse effect on our bugss and profitability.

A reduction in the number of enrollees in our Heakenefits programs could adversely affect ourress, financial condition and results
of operations. Factors that could contribute teduction in enroliment include: failure to obtaemncustomers or retain existing customers;
premium increases and benefit changes; our exit figpecific market; reductions in workforce bystixig customers; negative publicity and
news coverage; failure to attain or maintain natityrecognized accreditations; and general ecooaauwivnturn that results in business
failures.

There are risks associated with being a contractowith the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services ¢ provide Medicare Part D
Prescription Drug benefits.

The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and &tadation Act of 2003, or MMA, became law in Dedsn 2003. The MMA
significantly changed and expanded Medicare coweraje MMA added the availability of prescriptiorud benefits for all Medicare eligible
individuals starting January 1, 2006. Effectiveulany 1, 2006, we began offering Medicare approwedgiption drug plans to Medicare
eligible individuals nationwide. In addition, weeaalso providing various administrative servicesdier entities offering prescription drug
plans to their employees and retirees through barmacy benefit management and other affiliatedpzories. We are also the United States
default plan for point of service facilitated enneént, as defined by the Centers for Medicare & Maid Services, or CMS. While we believe
we have adequately reviewed our assumptions amdatst regarding this complex and recent prograotuding those related to collectability
of receivables and establishment of liabilitieg #ttual results may be different than our assumgtand estimates. Risks associated with the
Medicare prescription drug plans include potentiaollectability of receivables resulting from pessing and/or verifying enroliment
(including facilitated enrollment), inadequacy efderwriting assumptions, inability to receive amdgess information, uncollectability of
premiums from members, increased pharmaceutictd,casd the underlying seasonality of this business

We are subject to funding risks with respect to regnue received from participation in Medicare and Melicaid programs.

We participate as a payer in Medicare Advantagea]itéee Part D and Medicaid programs and receivermaes from the Medicare and
Medicaid programs to provide benefits under thesgnams. Revenues for these programs are depeuapentannual funding from the federal
government and/or applicable state governmentsdiRgrfor these programs is dependent upon mangr&autside of our control including
general economic conditions at the federal or apple state level and general political issuespaimtities. An unexpected reduction or
inadequate government funding for these programsadsersely affect our revenues and financial tesul

The health benefits industry is subject to negativeublicity, which can adversely affect our businesand profitability.

The health benefits industry is subject to neggpivielicity. Negative publicity may result in incisead regulation and legislative review of
industry practices, which may further increaseaasts of doing business and adversely affect afitability by: adversely affecting our
ability to market our products and services; raqgius to change our products and services; oe&sing the regulatory burdens under which
we operate.

In addition, as long as we use the Blue Cross dud Bhield names and marks in marketing our hédwgttefits products and services, any
negative publicity concerning the Blue Cross angeBbhield Association or other Blue Cross and Bhield Association licensees may
adversely affect us and the sale of our healthfitsrqroducts and services. Any such negative gitplcould adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.
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We face competition in many of our markets and cusimers and brokers have flexibility in moving betwee competitors.

As a health benefits company, we operate in a highinpetitive environment and in an industry tisaturrently subject to significant
changes from business consolidations, new stragdiggnces, legislative reform, aggressive marlgepractices by other health benefits
organizations and market pressures brought aboahlgformed and organized customer base, partlgidanong large employers. This
environment has produced and will likely continagotoduce significant pressures on the profitabdithealth benefits companies.

We are dependent on the services of independentsaged brokers in the marketing of our health gaoelucts, particularly with respect
to individuals, seniors and small employer groupnbers. Such independent agents and brokers acaliypnot exclusively dedicated to us
and may frequently also market health care procafobsir competitors. We face intense competitiantti@ services and allegiance of
independent agents and brokers. We cannot assurtagowe will be able to compete successfully @sfagurrent and future competitors or
competitive pressures faced by us will not matiriahd adversely affect our business, financialditton and results of operations.

A change in our health care product mix may impacbur profitability.

Our health care products that involve greater gatensk generally tend to be more profitable tteministrative services products and
those health care products where we are able ftorishi to employer groups. Individuals and smafioyer groups are more likely to purch
our higher-risk health care products because sunthpsers are generally unable or unwilling to lggaater liability for health care
expenditures. Typically, government-sponsored f@ogralso involve our higher-risk health care preslug shift of enrollees from more
profitable products to less profitable productsiddave a material adverse effect on our finanmgldition and results of operations.

From time to time, we have implemented price insesan certain of our health care businesses. helee price increases may improve
profitability, there can be no assurance thatwhilsoccur. Subsequent unfavorable changes in ¢teive profitability between our various
products could have a material adverse effect otiimancial condition and results of operations.

Our pharmacy benefit management companies operata ian industry faced with a number of risks and uncgainties in addition to
those we face with our core health care business.

The following are some of the pharmacy benefit stdurelated risks that could have a material aslyeffect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations:
» the application of federal and state -remuneration laws

« compliance requirements for pharmacy benefit mantgeciaries under ERISA, including compliance lwitduciary obligations
under ERISA in connection with the development emglementation of items such as formularies, prefédrug listings and
therapeutic intervention programs, contracting leekwpractices, specialty drug distribution and otin@nsactions and potential
liability regarding the use of patie-identifiable medical informatior

* anumber of federal and state legislative propasadeing considered that could adversely affeetreety of pharmacy bene
industry practices, including without limitatiotnet receipt of rebates from pharmaceutical manufarguthe regulation of the
development and use of formularies, and legislatigposing additional rights to access to drugdridividuals enrolled in managed
care plans

» the application of federal and state laws and ®guis related to the operation of Internet and-seivice pharmacies;

» our inability to contract on favorable terms withgomaceutical manufacture
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The failure to adhere to these or other relevams land regulations could expose our pharmacy ktemafiagement business to civil and
criminal penalties. There can be no assuranceotitdbusiness will not be subject to challenge uwaeious laws and regulations or contractual
arrangements. Any such noncompliance or challermemave a material adverse effect on our busifi@ssicial condition and results of
operations.

As a holding company, we are dependent on dividendsom our subsidiaries. Our regulated subsidiariesare subject to state
regulations, including restrictions on the paymenof dividends and maintenance of minimum levels ofapital.

We are a holding company whose assets includd tiilecoutstanding shares of common stock of ousigligries including our
intermediate holding companies and regulated imagrand HMO subsidiaries. As a holding companyde@end on dividends from our
subsidiaries. Among other restrictions, state iasce and HMO laws may restrict the ability of cegulated subsidiaries to pay dividends. Our
ability to repurchase shares or pay dividends énftiiure to our shareholders and meet our obligatimcluding paying operating expenses and
debt service on our outstanding and future indetses, will depend upon the receipt of dividendsficur subsidiaries. An inability of our
subsidiaries to pay dividends in the future in aroant sufficient for us to meet our financial ollitpns may materially adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of openat

Most of our regulated subsidiaries are subjectB&Rtandards, imposed by their states of domiCiese laws are based on the RBC
Model Act adopted by the National Association afurance Commissioners, or NAIC, and require ounleggd subsidiaries to report their
results of risk-based capital calculations to tapattments of insurance and the NAIC. Failure tontaa the minimum RBC standards could
subject our regulated subsidiaries to correctiv®agcincluding state supervision or liquidatiorurtQegulated subsidiaries are currently in
compliance with the risk-based capital or otherilsintequirements imposed by their respective stafelomicile. As discussed in more detalil
below, we are a party to license agreements wéltBihie Cross and Blue Shield Association which amntertain requirements and restrictions
regarding our operations, including minimum capétadl liquidity requirements, which could restriog tability of our regulated subsidiaries to
pay dividends.

We face risks related to litigation.

We are, or may be in the future, a party to a waidé legal actions that affect any business, agkmployment and employment
discrimination-related suits, employee benefitraksibreach of contract actions, tort claims anellettual property-related litigation. In
addition, because of the nature of our businesgr@eubject to a variety of legal actions relatmgur business operations, including the
design, management and offering of our productssendces. These could include: claims relatintheodenial of health care benefits; claims
relating to the rescission of health insuranceqgiedi medical malpractice actions; allegationsrdi-eompetitive and unfair business activities;
provider disputes over compensation and terminaifgrovider contracts; disputes related to seffdied business; disputes over co-payment
calculations; disputes related to the pharmacy fitemanagement business; claims related to therfailo disclose certain business practices;
and claims relating to customer audits and conpradibormance.

Recent court decisions and legislative activity rimyease our exposure for any of these typesaiingl. In some cases, substantial non-
economic, treble or punitive damages may be soMgatcurrently have insurance coverage for sombeaxfd potential liabilities. Other
potential liabilities may not be covered by insuraninsurers may dispute coverage or the amounsafance may not be enough to cover the
damages awarded. In addition, certain types of desasuch as punitive damages, may not be covgretsirance, and insurance coverage
all or certain forms of liability may become undahie or prohibitively expensive in the future. Aagiverse judgment against us resulting in
such damage awards could have an adverse effextrarash flows, results of operations and finanogadition.
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In addition, we are also involved in pending ane#tened litigation of the character incidentaht® business transacted, arising out of
our operations and our 2001 demutualization, aadram time to time involved as a party in vari@avernmental investigations, audits,
reviews and administrative proceedings. These tigatfons, audits and reviews include routine goectal investigations by various state
insurance departments, state attorneys generahand.S. Attorney General. Such investigations @aatult in the imposition of civil or
criminal fines, penalties and other sanctions. Wlehe that any liability that may result from amiye of these actions, or in the aggregate, is
unlikely to have a material adverse effect on amsolidated results of operations or financial fosi

For additional information concerning legal actiaffecting us, see Part |, Item 3, Legal Proceesling

We are a party to license agreements with the Bluéross and Blue Shield Association that entitle ustthe exclusive and in certain
areas non-exclusive use of the Blue Cross and Bl8&ield names and marks in our geographic territoris. The termination of these
license agreements or changes in the terms and catimhs of these license agreements could adverselffect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We use the Blue Cross and Blue Shield names anksraaridentifiers for our products and serviceseatidenses from the Blue Cross
and Blue Shield Association. Our license agreemwiitsthe Blue Cross and Blue Shield Associationtam certain requirements and
restrictions regarding our operations and our digheoBlue Cross and Blue Shield names and mankfjding: minimum capital and liquidity
requirements imposed by the Blue Cross and Bluel@hissociation; enroliment and customer serviagéopmance requirements; participation
in programs that provide portability of membersbgiween plans; disclosures to the Blue Cross BideShield Association relating to
enrollment and financial conditions; disclosurescathe structure of the Blue Cross and Blue Stsgktem in contracts with third parties an
public statements; plan governance requirememneg@irement that at least 80% (or, in the caselaé Bross of California, substantially all)

a licensee’s annual combined local net revenuibataible to health benefit plans within its servéceas must be sold, marketed, administered
or underwritten under the Blue Cross and Blue 8hi@mes and marks; a requirement that at least386 &f a licensee’s annual combined
national net revenue attributable to health bemddibs must be sold, marketed, administered ormriteen under the Blue Cross and Blue
Shield names and marks; a requirement that nedtipdan nor any of its licensed affiliates may perani entity other than a plan or a licensed
affiliate to obtain control of the plan or the litsed affiliate or to acquire a substantial portfits assets related to licensable services; a
requirement that we guarantee certain contractuhfiaancial obligations of our licensed affiliat@nd a requirement that we indemnify the
Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association against@aiyns asserted against it resulting from the @mttral and financial obligations of any
subsidiary that serves as a fiscal intermediaryigding administrative services for Medicare Partard B. Failure to comply with the
foregoing requirements could result in a termimatif the license agreements.

The standards under the license agreements maydified in certain instances by the Blue Cross Bhaet Shield Association. For
example, from time to time there have been progosathsidered by the Blue Cross and Blue Shield @dason to modify the terms of the
license agreements to restrict various potentigir®ass activities of licensees. These proposals meuded, among other things, a limitation
on the ability of a licensee to make its providetworks available to insurance carriers or othéditiea not holding a Blue Cross or Blue Shield
license. To the extent that such amendments thctrese agreements are adopted in the future,dbeld have a material adverse effect on our
future expansion plans or results of operations.

Upon the occurrence of an event causing terminatiaghe license agreements, we would no longer taeight to use the Blue Cross
and Blue Shield names and marks in one or moreiofjeographic territories. Furthermore, the Bluessrand Blue Shield Association would
be free to issue a license to use the Blue Crad8are Shield names and marks in these statesoth@mnentity. Events that could cause the
termination of a license agreement with the BluesSmBlue and Shield Association include failuredmply with minimum capital
requirements imposed by the Blue Cross and Bluel&®issociation, a change of control or violatidrite Blue Cross and Blue Shield
Association ownership limitations on our capitalckt, impending financial insolvency and the appoisnt of a trustee or receiver or the
commencement of any action against a licensee
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seeking its dissolution. We believe that the Bluess and Blue Shield names and marks are valuddfifiers of our products and services in
the marketplace. Accordingly, termination of theelise agreements could have a material adversa eff@ur business, financial condition
and results of operations.

Upon termination of a license agreement, the Bltes€and Blue and Shield Association would impo¥eaestablishment Fee” upon
us, which would allow the Blue Cross and Blue Shig$sociation to “re-establish” a Blue Cross an@lre Shield presence in the vacated
service area. Through December 31, 2006 the feesetamt $83.41 per licensed enrollee. As of Decerdbe2006, we reported 28.5 million
Blue Cross and or Blue Shield enrollees. If theeR&blishment Fee was applied to our total Blues€emd or Blue Shield enrollees, we would
be assessed approximately $2.4 billion by the Bluess and Blue Shield Association.

Our investment portfolios are subject to varying eonomic and market conditions, as well as regulatianf we fail to comply with
these regulations, we may be required to sell celitainvestments.

The market values of our investments vary from ttméme depending on economic and market conditior various reasons, we may
sell certain of our investments at prices thatlese than the carrying value of the investmentsdiition, in periods of declining interest rates,
bond calls and mortgage loan prepayments genenallgase, resulting in the reinvestment of thesel$uat the then lower market rates. We
cannot assure you that our investment portfolidsprdduce positive returns in future periods. @egulated subsidiaries are subject to state
laws and regulations that require diversificatiéwor investment portfolios and limit the amountimfestments in certain riskier investment
categories, such as below-investment-grade fixenityasecurities, mortgage loans, real estateanity investments, which could generate
higher returns on our investments. Failure to cgmith these laws and regulations might cause iimvests exceeding regulatory limitation:
be treated as non-admitted assets for purposesasumng statutory surplus and risk-based capital, in some instances, require the sale of
those investments.

As a Medicare fiscal intermediary, we are subjectd complex regulations. If we fail to comply with tlese regulations, we may be
exposed to criminal sanctions and significant civibenalties.

Like a number of other Blue Cross and Blue Shielehpanies, we serve as a fiscal intermediary foMedicare program, which
generally provides coverage for persons who arer@der and for persons with end-stage renal diseRart A of the Medicare program
provides coverage for services provided by hospitilled nursing facilities and other health cfaeilities. Part B of the Medicare program
provides coverage for services provided by physgighysical and occupational therapists and gifafessional providers. Part B also
includes coverage for durable medical equipment siscdiabetic supplies and wheelchairs. As a fistafmediary, we receive reimbursement
for certain costs and expenditures, which is sultgeadjustment upon audit by CMS. The laws andilagns governing fiscal intermediaries
for the Medicare programs are complex, subjeatterpretation and can expose a fiscal intermed@penalties for non-compliance. If we fail
to comply with these laws and regulations, we cdigldsubject to criminal fines, civil penalties ¢dher sanctions.

Regional concentrations of our business may subjeas to economic downturns in those regions.

Most of our revenues are generated in the stat€slifornia, Colorado, Connecticut, Georgia, Indiakentucky, Maine, Missouri,
Nevada, New Hampshire, New York, Ohio, Virginia aifésconsin. Due to this concentration of businesthése states, we are expose
potential losses resulting from the risk of an exoit downturn in these states. If economic condgim these states deteriorate, we may
experience a reduction in existing and new busjnekih could have a material adverse effect onbmsiness, financial condition and results
of operations.
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Large-scale medical emergencies may have a mater&dverse effect on our business, financial conditioand results of operations.

Large-scale medical emergencies can take many fanti€an cause widespread illness and death. Bonp@g, there have been various
incidents of suspected bioterrorist activity in theited States. To date, these incidents haveteskin related isolated incidents of illness and
death. However, federal and state law enforcemffiotats have issued warnings about additional ptig terrorist activity involving biologic:
and other weapons. In addition, natural disastesh as the hurricanes experienced in the southagstet of the United States in 2005 and the
potential for a wide-spread pandemic of influenaapted with the lack of availability of approprigieeventative medicines can have a
significant impact on the health of the populatidiwide-spread areas. If the United States weexferience widespread bioterrorist or other
attacks, large-scale natural disasters in our cdreted coverage areas or a large-scale panderefuademic, our covered medical expenses
could rise and we could experience a material agveffect on our business, financial condition eeslilts of operations or, in the event of
extreme circumstances, our viability.

We have built a significant portion of our current business through mergers and acquisitions and we g&ct to pursue acquisitions
in the future.

The following are some of the risks associated &gquisitions that could have a material adverfebn our business, financial
condition and results of operations:

» some of the acquired businesses may not achieigpated revenues, earnings or cash fl
* we may assume liabilities that were not disclogedst or which were under-estimated;

* we may be unable to integrate acquired businessegssfully and realize anticipated economic, dfmaral and other benefits in
timely manner, which could result in substantiadtscand delays or other operational, technicalhantial problems

» acquisitions could disrupt our ongoing businesstract management, divert resources and makdiitudifto maintain our current
business standards, controls and proced

* we may finance future acquisitions by issuing comrstmck for some or all of the purchase price, Widould dilute the ownersh
interests of our shareholde

* we may also incur additional debt related to futacquisitions; and

* we would be competing with other firms, some ofethimay have greater financial and other resoutoes;quire attractive
companies

We have substantial indebtedness outstanding and méancur additional indebtedness in the future. As éolding company, we are
not able to repay our indebtedness except throughiddends from subsidiaries, some of which are resicted in their ability to pay such
dividends under applicable insurance law and undegkings. Such indebtedness could also adversely aff@ur ability to pursue
desirable business opportunities.

As of December 31, 2006, we had indebtedness adlisig of approximately $7.0 billion and had avaléaborrowing capacity under our
revolving credit facility of approximately $1.2 ldn, which credit facility expires on September, 2011. Our debt service obligations require
us to use a portion of our cash flow to pay inteagsl principal on debt instead of for other cogpermpurposes, including funding future
expansion. If our cash flow and capital resoureedrasufficient to service our debt obligations, mray be forced to seek extraordinary
dividends from our subsidiaries, sell assets, seleltional equity or debt capital or restructure debt. However, these measures might be
unsuccessful or inadequate in permitting us to reele¢duled debt service obligations.

As a holding company, we have no operations andependent on dividends from our subsidiaries éshao fund our debt service and
other corporate needs. Our subsidiaries are sepag! entities. Furthermore,
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our subsidiaries are not obligated to make funddlavie to us, and creditors of our subsidiariel§ éive a superior claim to certain of our
subsidiaries’ assets. State insurance laws regtacbility of our regulated subsidiaries to paydends, and in some states we have made
special undertakings that may limit the abilityoofr regulated subsidiaries to pay dividends. Intaad our subsidiaries’ ability to make any
payments to us will also depend on their earnitigsterms of their indebtedness, business andaasiderations and other legal restrictions.
We cannot assure you that our subsidiaries wiliide to pay dividends or otherwise contribute atriiute funds to us in an amount sufficient
to pay the principal of or interest on the indebtesk owed by us.

We may also incur future debt obligations that migiibject us to restrictive covenants that couldcafour financial and operational
flexibility. Our breach or failure to comply witing of these covenants could result in a defaulenwdr credit agreements. If we default under
our credit agreements, the lenders could ceasake fiurther extensions of credit or cause all afautstanding debt obligations under our
credit agreements to become immediately due analpaytogether with accrued and unpaid intereshdfindebtedness under our notes or our
credit agreements is accelerated, we may be utabdpay or finance the amounts due. Indebtedrmdd also limit our ability to pursue
desirable business opportunities, and may affecability to maintain an investment grade ratingdar indebtedness.

The value of our intangible assets may become impad.

Due largely to our recent acquisitions, goodwildlarther intangible assets represent a substamtiibp of our assets. Goodwill and ot
intangible assets were approximately $22.8 bilasrof December 31, 2006, representing approximd#dy of our total assets. If we make
additional acquisitions it is likely that we wikcord additional intangible assets on our balaheets In accordance with applicable accounting
standards, we periodically evaluate our goodwitl ather intangible assets to determine whetharad! portion of their carrying values may
longer be recoverable, in which case a chargertiregs may be necessary. Any future evaluationsireg an impairment of our goodwill at
other intangible assets could materially affectr@sults of operations and shareholders’ equithénperiod in which the impairment occurs. A
material decrease in shareholders’ equity coultiyin, negatively impact our debt ratings or paalytimpact our compliance with existing
debt covenants.

We face intense competition to attract and retainmployees.

We are dependent on retaining existing employedstracting and retaining additional qualified éoyges to meet current and future
needs and achieving productivity gains from ouestments in technology. We face intense competitoqualified employees, and there can
be no assurance that we will be able to attractratain such employees or that such competitionngnpotential employers will not result in
increasing salaries. An inability to retain exigtiemployees or attract additional employees coaicla material adverse effect on our busii
financial condition and results of operations.

An unauthorized disclosure of sensitive or confideilal member information could have an adverse efféaon our business,
reputation and profitability.

As part of our normal operations, we collect, psscand retain sensitive and confidential memberinétion. We are subject to various
federal and state laws and rules regarding thendalisclosure of sensitive or confidential menib&rmation, including HIPAA and the
Gramm-LeachBliley Act. Despite the security measures we hawvplace to ensure compliance with applicable lamgsrales, our facilities ar
systems, and those of our third party service pieng, may be vulnerable to security breaches,ciatandalism, computer viruses, misplaced
or lost data, programming and/or human errors loerosimilar events. Any security breach involvihg tmisappropriation, loss or other
unauthorized disclosure of sensitive or confidémtiamber information, whether by us or by one afwendors, could have a material adverse
effect on our business, reputation and resultgefations.

The failure to effectively maintain and modernize ar information systems and e-business organizatiooould adversely affect our
business.

Our business depends significantly on effectiverimfation systems, and we have many different inédiom systems for our various
businesses. Our information systems require aninggmmmitment of
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significant resources to maintain and enhanceiegistystems and develop new systems in order tp gaee with continuing changes in
information processing technology, evolving indystnd regulatory standards, and changing custoneéenences. In addition, we may from
time to time obtain significant portions of our ®ms-related or other services or facilities fraddpendent third parties, which may make our
operations vulnerable to such third parties’ falto perform adequately.

As a result of our merger and acquisition actigitiwe have acquired additional systems. Our falloimaintain effective and efficient
information systems, or our failure to efficientlipd effectively consolidate our information systedmseliminate redundant or obsolete
applications, could have a material adverse efiraiur business, financial condition and resultspdrations. In addition, as we convert or
migrate members to our more efficient and effecsiystems, the risk of disruption in our customevise is increased during the migration or
conversion process and such disruption could hawatarial adverse effect on our business, finarmgadbition and results of operations.

Also, our vision for the future includes becomingramier e-business organization by modernizingrattions with customers, brokers,
agents, providers, employees and other stakehdldensgh web-enabling technology and redesigniteyival operations. The goal of our e-
business strategy is to become widely regardea ashaisiness leader in the health benefits industrg strategy includes not only sales and
distribution of health benefits products on thesingt, but also implementation of advanced selfisercapabilities benefiting customers,
agents, brokers, providers, partners and employgesannot assure you that we will be able to zeaiuccessfully our e-business vision or
integrate e-business operations with our currerthateof operations. The failure to maintain suctidssbusiness capabilities could result in
competitive and cost disadvantages to us as couhpai@ur competitors.

We are dependent on the success of our relationshiyith a large vendor for a significant portion of air information system
resources and certain other vendors for various otér services.

We have an agreement with International Businesshivias Corporation, or IBM, pursuant to which wésourced a portion of our core
applications development as well as a componeatiofiata center operations and help desk to IBMavéedependent upon IBM for these
support functions. If our relationship with IBMtisrminated for any reason, we may not be ablentbdin alternative partner in a timely man
or on acceptable financial terms. As a result, veg mot be able to meet the demands of our custoametsin turn, our business, financial
condition and results of operations may be harrfibd.contract with IBM includes several service leagreements, or SLAS, related to issues
such as performance and job disruption with sigaift financial penalties if these SLAs are not mét. also outsource a component of our
center to another vendor, which could assume mbithedBM work and mitigate business disruption sloa termination with IBM occur. W
may not be adequately indemnified against all fbassosses through the terms and conditions oatfreement. In addition, some of our
termination rights are contingent upon payment fafea which may be significant.

We have also entered into agreements with largdarsmursuant to which we have outsourced certaintions such as data entry rele
to claims and billing processes and call centeratfmns for member and provider queries as wedleaitain Medicare Part D sales. If these
vendor relationships were terminated for any reag@nmay not be able to find alternative partnera timely manner or on acceptable
financial terms. As a result, we may not be ablméet the full demands of our customers and, im, tour business, financial condition and
results of operations may be harmed.

We may experience difficulties integrating the busiess of WellChoice with our business and may inclsubstantial costs in
connection with the integration, which could causes to lose many of the anticipated potential bene§ of the acquisition.

We acquired WellChoice with the expectation thatalquisition will result in various benefits, inding, among others, benefits relating
to a stronger and more diverse network of doctndsather health care providers, expanded and eelaftordable health care services,
enhanced revenues, a strengthened market positiars facross the United States, cross-selling dppities, technology, cost savings and
operating efficiencies. Achieving the anticipateshefits of the acquisition is subject to a numifarertainties, including whether
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we integrate WellChoice in an efficient and effeetmanner, and general competitive factors in theketplace. Failure to achieve these
anticipated benefits could result in increaseds;aftcreases in the amount of expected revenuediardion of management’s time and
energy and could materially impact our businessicial condition and results of operations.

Indiana law, and other applicable laws, and our aricles of incorporation and bylaws, may prevent or écourage takeovers and
business combinations that our shareholders mightomsider in their best interest.

Indiana law and our articles of incorporation agthtvs may delay, defer, prevent or render moreatiff a takeover attempt that our
shareholders might consider in their best interégis instance, they may prevent our shareholders feceiving the benefit from any premii
to the market price of our common stock offeredallyidder in a takeover context. Even in the absehegtakeover attempt, the existence of
these provisions may adversely affect the prevailivarket price of our common stock if they are \@evas discouraging takeover attempts in
the future.

We are regulated as an insurance holding compashg@nject to the insurance holding company acteettates in which our insurance
company subsidiaries are domiciled, as well aslairprovisions included in the health statutes mgiilations of certain states where these
subsidiaries are regulated as managed care conspamniéMOs. The insurance holding company acts agdlations and these similar health
provisions restrict the ability of any person tdaib control of an insurance company or HMO withprtibr regulatory approval. Under those
statutes and regulations, without such approvahfoexemption), no person may acquire any votiegriy of a domestic insurance company
or HMO, or an insurance holding company which calstan insurance company or HMO, or merge with subblding company, if as a result
of such transaction such person would “control”itreirance holding company, insurance company o©OHM ontrol” is generally defined as
the direct or indirect power to direct or causedtrection of the management and policies of ageend is presumed to exist if a person
directly or indirectly owns or controls 10% or markthe voting securities of another person.

Further, the Indiana corporation law contains bessncombination provisions that, in general, prioffd five years any business
combination with a beneficial owner of 10% or mofeour common stock unless the holder’s acquisitibthe stock was approved in advance
by our Board of Directors. The Indiana corporatiaw also contains control share acquisition pravisithat limit the ability of certain
shareholders to vote their shares unless theira@tiare acquisition is approved in advance.

Our articles of incorporation restrict the benefi@wnership of our capital stock in excess of #eownership limits. The ownership
limits restrict beneficial ownership of our votisgpital stock to less than 10% for institutionaldators and less than 5% for non-institutional
investors, both as defined in our articles of ipowation. Additionally, no person may beneficiadlywn shares of our common stock
representing a 20% or more ownership interest.ifThsse restrictions are intended to ensure ouptiante with the terms of our licenses w
the Blue Cross and Blue Shield Association. By egrent between us and the Blue Cross and Blue Shgsldciation, these ownership limits
may be increased. Our articles of incorporatiorhfiyio ownership of our capital stock beyond thesmership limits without prior approval o
majority of our continuing directors (as definedbur articles of incorporation). In addition, asalissed above in the risk factor describing our
license agreements with the Blue Cross and Bluel&issociation, such license agreements are dujéermination upon a change of con
and re-establishment fees would be imposed upamiriation of the license agreements.

Certain other provisions included in our articlésncorporation and bylaws may also have anti-take@ffects and may delay, defer or
prevent a takeover attempt that our shareholdeghtrebnsider in their best interests. In particutarr articles of incorporation and bylaws:
permit our Board of Directors to issue one or nggges of preferred stock; divide our Board of Dices into three classes serving staggered
three-year terms; restrict the maximum number ifadors; limit the ability of shareholders to reraalirectors; impose
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restrictions on shareholders’ ability to fill vacides on our Board of Directors; prohibit sharehaddieom calling special meetings of
shareholders; impose advance notice requiremenshéseholder proposals and nominations of diredtmbe considered at meetings of
shareholders; and impose restrictions on sharetsldeility to amend our articles of incorporatiand bylaws.

Certain hedging activities may affect the value obur common stock.

The New York Public Asset Fund (the “Fund”) sol@0Q,000 shares of our common stock in a publicrioffewhich closed on
September 22, 2006. Concurrently, the Fund soédprivate sale approximately 5,900,000 shares o€ommon stock to affiliates of J.P.
Morgan Securities, Inc. (“JP MorganThe Fund used substantially all of the net procéexs its sale of the shares to purchase two trasct
cash settled, equity-linked notes, each trancladingl to approximately 6,336,550 of our sharescwhiill mature approximately 6.5 and 12.5
months, respectively, after September 22, 2006sd netes were issued by an affiliate of JPMorgad the return on these notes is linked to
the future performance of our common stock.

At the time of the offering, we were advised thaMbrgan Chase Bank, National Association (LondcanBh) (“JPMorgan Chase
Bank”) expected to enter into hedging transactibnsugh one or more of its affiliates in connectigith the issuance of the equiligked note:
to the Fund. We were further advised that afteat#isthing its initial hedge, JP Morgan Chase Bami/ar its affiliates would modify its hedge
position from time to time prior to the maturity @arly redemption of the equity-linked notes byeeiny into or unwinding various derivatives
and/or purchasing or selling our common stock.drtipular, these hedging transactions are likelgdour shortly before the maturity or early
repayment of the equity-linked notes. Holders efelguity-linked notes may demand early redempti@ang time prior to their maturity.

The effect, if any, of these transactions on theketaprice for our common stock will depend on nedrgonditions and cannot be
ascertained at this time, but any of these aatwitiould reduce the price of our common stock ardéal to periods of heightened volatility in
the price of our common stock. We do not make apyeasentations or prediction as to the directiomagnitude of any effect that the
transactions described above may have on the gfite shares of our common stock. In additioniepresentation is made that JPMorgan
Chase Bank and/or its affiliates will engage insth&ransactions or that these transactions, omoeneaced, will not be discontinued without
notice.

We also face other risks that could adversely affeour business, financial condition or results of perations, which include:
* any requirement to restate financial results inethent of inappropriate application of accountimiggples;

» asignificant failure of internal controls overdimncial reporting;

» failure of our prevention and control systems eladb employee compliance with internal policesluding data security

» provider fraud that is not prevented or detectatliempacts our medical costs or those of-insured customer:

» failure to protect our proprietary information; and

» failure of our corporate governance policies orcgaures
ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED SEC STAFF COMMENTS.

None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We have set forth below a summary of our princgdite space (locations greater than 100,000 sdfiegte. We believe that our facilitit
will be sufficient to meet our needs for the foreegle future.
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Amount (Square Feet) of
Building Owned or Leased

Location and Occupied by WellPoint Principal Usage
370 Basset Rd., North Haven, ( 566,000 Operations
220 Virginia Ave., Indianapolis, IN 557,000 Operations
21555 Oxnard St., Woodland Hills, CA 421,000 Operations
11 Corporate Woods, Albany, NtY 375,000 Operations
1831 Chestnut St., St. Louis, V 312,000 Operations
DCS, 2015 Staples Mill Rd., Richmond, \ 295,000 Operations
700 Broadway, Denver, C 285,000 Operations
3350 Peachtree Rd., Atlanta, GA 272,000 Operations
9901 Linn Station Rd., Louisville, KY 255,000 Operations
DCN, 2015 Staples Mill Rd., Richmond, V 249,000 Operations
13550 Triton Office Park Blvd., Louisville, KY 234,000 Operations
4241 Irwin Simpson Rd., Mason, CH 224,000 Operations
15 MetroTech Center, Brooklyn, N 217,000 Operations
4361 Irwin Simpson Rd., Mason, C 213,000 Operations
2000 & 2100 Corporate Center Drive, Newbury Park,'C 211,000 Operations
2 Gannett Dr., South Portland, M 208,000 Operations
400 S. Salina St., Syracuse, NY 203,000 Operations
120 Monument Circle, Indianapolis, N 202,000 Principal executive office
3000 Goff Falls Rd., Manchester, NH 201,000 Operations
2221 Edward Holland Drive, Richmond, VA 193,000 Operations
8115-8125 Knue Road, Indianapolis, IN 184,000 Operations
6740 N. High St., Worthington, O 178,000 Operations
85 Crystal Run, Middletown, NY 172,000 Operations
1351 Wm. Howard Taft, Cincinnati, O 167,000 Operations
6737 West Washington St., West Allis, WI 159,000 Operations
5151-5155 Camino Ruiz, Camarillo, CA 149,000 Operations
2357 Warm Springs Rd., Columbus, ( 147,000 Operations
233 S. Wacker Drive, Chicago, L 146,000 Operations
602 S. Jefferson St., Roanoke, " 131,000 Operations
4553 La Tienda Drive, Thousand Oaks, €A 120,000 Operations
2825 West Perimeter Road, Indianapolis!IN 111,000 Operations
3 Huntington Quadrangle, Melville, NY 109,00C Operations
11 West 4249St., New York, NY? 105,000 Operations

1 Leased property

Our facilities support our various business segmeéfe believe that our properties are adequatesaitable for our business as presently
conducted.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.
Litigation
Multi -District Litigation Settlement Agreement

In May 2000, a case title@alifornia Medical Association vs. Blue Cross ofli@eania, et al.(the “CMA Litigation”) , was filed in U.S.
district court in San Francisco against Blue CiafsSalifornia (“BCC"), a subsidiary of WellPoint taé&h Networks Inc. (“WHN”) at the time,
and now a Company subsidiary. The lawsuit allegasBCC violated the Racketeer Influenced and @ar@rganizations Act (“RICQO”).
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In August 2000, WHN was added as a defendaBttne v. Humana, et ala class-action lawsuit brought on behalf of lrealtre
providers nationwide alleging RICO violations (tf8hane Litigation”). Effective upon the November, 2004 merger with WHN, WHN
became a wholly owned subsidiary of the CompanyS@ptember 26, 2002, Anthem was added as a defetoddye Shane Litigation.

In May 2003, in a case titlddenneth Thomas, M.D., et al., v. Blue Cross Bluel®®ssociation, et athe “Thomas Litigation”), several
medical providers filed suit in federal districturbin Miami, Florida against the Blue Cross andéBEhield Association (‘BCBSA”) and Blue
Cross and Blue Shield plans across the countriydintg the Company and WellChoice. The suit allethes the BCBSA and the Blue Cross
and Blue Shield plans violated RICO and challengasay of the same practices as the CMA Litigatiod #re Shane Litigation.

In October 2000, the federal Judicial Panel on Migitrict Litigation (“MDL”") issued an order conddhting the CMA Litigation, the
Shane Litigation and various other pending managee class-action lawsuits against the Companyotivet companies before District Court
Judge Federico Moreno in the Southern Districtlofifia for purposes of pretrial proceedings. A nagali was appointed by Judge Moreno and
the parties conducted court-ordered mediation. ®@celnber 9, 2004, Judge Moreno issued a new schgdutiler extending the expert
discovery deadline to February 7, 2005 and settinggfor September 6, 2005.

On July 11, 2005, the Company entered into a setite agreement (the “Agreement”) with represengstiof more than 700,000
physicians nationwide to resolve the CMA Litigatidine Shane Litigation, the Thomas Litigation aedain other similar cases brought by
physicians. Under the Agreement, the Company agmeethke cash payments totaling up to $198.0 millaf which $135.0 million is to be
paid to physicians and $5.0 million contributedtoot-for-profit foundation whose mission is to ma@te higher quality health care and to
enhance the delivery of care to the disadvantagadimars of the public. In addition, up to $58.0 imillwill be paid in legal fees to be
determined by the court. The Company also has ddeeienplement and maintain a number of operatichahges such as standardizing the
definition of medical necessity in physician contsa creating a formalized Physician Advisory Coitteal and modifying some of the
Company’s claims payment and physician contragtitnyisions. The Agreement was subject to, and ¢mmaid upon, review and approval by
the U.S. District Court for the Southern Distri€tfdorida. The court preliminarily approved thetkahent in an order filed July 15, 2005. The
hearing for final approval was held on Decembe&B5 in Miami, Florida. The Court issued a finall@r approving the settlement on
December 22, 2005, and issued an amended final apieoving the settlement on January 4, 2006. fesalt of the Agreement, the Company
incurred a pre-tax expense of $103.0 million, ol$(per diluted share after tax, for the year erdedember 31, 2005, which represents the
final settlement amount of the Agreement that watgpneviously accrued. Appeals of the settlemeitialy filed by certain physicians have
been resolved. Final cash payments under the Agmeetotaling $209.5 million, including accrued irgst, were made on October 5 and 6,
2006.

The WellChoice transaction was closed on Decem8gP@05, after the settlement was reached witlpldatiffs in the CMA Litigation,
the Shane Litigation and the Thomas Litigation. Tdrener WellChoice company, which was merged witd ato a wholly-owned subsidiary
of WellPoint, continues to be a defendant in therhs Litigation, and is not affected by the setdatrbetween the Company and plaintiffs.
The Company believes that any liability that masutefrom this action is unlikely to have a mateddverse effect on its financial position or
results of operations.

Other Litigation

Prior to WHN'’s acquisition of the group benefit optons (“GBO”) of John Hancock Mutual Life Insu@nCompany (“John Hancock”
John Hancock entered into a number of reinsurame@gements, including with respect to personaidaett insurance and the occupational
accident component of workersdmpensation insurance, a portion of which wasimaigd through a pool managed by Unicover Managjecs
Under these arrangements, John Hancock assumaedgskreinsurer and transferred certain of sg&ls to other companies. Similar
reinsurance arrangements were entered into by dahnock following WHN'’s
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acquisition of the GBO of John Hancock. These veriarrangements have become the subject of disputisding a number of legal
proceedings to which John Hancock is a party. To@any is currently in arbitration with John Hankoegarding these arrangements. The
Company believes that the liability that may reéudin this matter is unlikely to have a materialade effect on its consolidated financial
position or results of operations.

In various California state courts, the Compangdafending a number of individual lawsuits and twwpgorted class actions alleging the
wrongful rescission of individual health insurampe#icies. The suits name the Company as well as B&LBC Life & Health Insurance
Company (“BCL&H"), both Company subsidiaries. Tlaevbkuits generally allege breach of contract, bétl éand unfair business practices in a
purported practice of rescinding new individual nieems following the submission of large claims. led@mber 2006, the California Medical
Association filed a motion to intervene in onelud tlass actions. The motion has not been heagtldition, the California Department of
Managed Health Care and California Department sdfifance are conducting investigations of the afiega. The parties have agreed to
mediate most of these lawsuits and the mediatisrrésulted in the resolution of some of these léasBCC and BCL&H recently announced
an initiative to revise their rescission policieglgractices in California.

In various California state courts, several hospit@ave filed suits against BCC and WHN for paynadridlaims denied where the
member was rescinded. These lawsuits are currigntihe process of moving into arbitration. In adit a recent suit brought against BCC,
BCL&H and WHN by a non-contracting hospital in alifenia state court is a purported class actionisBuit also seeks to recover for
payment of claims denied where the member wasndedi In December 2006, this purported class gbitads also filed a motion to intervene
in one of the individual class action cases refeedrabove. The motion has not been heard. The Gongenies any wrongdoing. The
Company intends to vigorously defend these procggglihowever, their ultimate outcome cannot bequihg determined.

Other Contingencies

From time to time, the Company and certain of isssdiaries are parties to various legal proceegjingany of which involve claims for
coverage encountered in the ordinary course oflessi The Company, like HMOs and health insurengmgédly, excludes certain health care
services from coverage under its HMO, PPO and gilaars. The Company is, in its ordinary courseugibess, subject to the claims of its
enrollees arising out of decisions to restrict enyglreimbursement for certain services. The losssefi one such claim, if it results in a
significant punitive damage award, could have aem@tadverse effect on the Company. In additibe,risk of potential liability under puniti
damage theories may increase significantly thecadiffy of obtaining reasonable settlements of cagerclaims.

In addition to the lawsuits described above, then@any is also involved in other pending and thmeadditigation of the character
incidental to the business transacted, arisingbits operations and its 2001 demutualization, iarfdom time to time involved as a party in
various governmental investigations, audits, regiewd administrative proceedings. These investigatiaudits and reviews include routine
and special investigations by state insurance tieeats, state attorneys general and the U.S. Agjo@eneral. Such investigations could result
in the imposition of civil or criminal fines, pertigls and other sanctions. The Company believesathatiability that may result from any one
these actions, or in the aggregate, is unlikelyaee a material adverse effect on its consolidéteshcial position or results of operations.
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ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.
The Company did not submit any matters to a votgeotirity holders during the fourth quarter of 2006
PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELA TED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Market Prices

The Company’s Common Stock, par value $0.01 peesklisted on the NYSE under the symbol “WLPH Bebruary 12, 2007, the
closing price on the NYSE was $80.69. As of Februa, 2007, there were 146,423 shareholders ofdezfothe Common Stock. The
following table presents high and low sales prioegshe Common Stock on the NYSE for the periodidated.

High Low

2006

First Quarte! $80.37 $71.6:
Second Quarte 77.7( 65.5(
Third Quartel 79.9: 72.1:
Fourth Quarte 79.07 70.1¢
2005

First Quartei $63.9¢ $54.5¢
Second Quartér 71.2% 58.2(
Third Quartel 77.4( 65.0¢
Fourth Quarte 80.4( 70.2¢

! The market prices for the Company’s stock reflaettivo-for-one stock split, which was approved iy Board of Directors

on April 25, 2005.
Dividends

No cash dividends have been paid on our commok.stée declaration and payment of future dividewikbe at the discretion of our
Board of Directors and must comply with applicalale. Future dividend payments will depend uponfiancial condition, results of
operations, future liquidity needs, potential asgigns, regulatory and capital requirements ameiotactors deemed relevant by our Board of
Directors. In addition, we are a holding companyséprimary assets are 100% of the capital stockhar equity instrument of Anthem
Insurance Companies, Inc., Anthem Southeast, Amthem Holding Corp., WellPoint Holding Corp., Wedint Acquisition, LLC, WellPoint
Insurance Services, Inc., Lumenos, Inc. and ATHdihg Company, LLC. Our ability to pay dividendsaor shareholders, if authorized by our
Board of Directors, is significantly dependent uploa receipt of dividends from our insurance suhbsigls. The payment of dividends by our
insurance subsidiaries without prior approval & itisurance department of each subsidiary’s doianigijurisdiction is limited by formula.
Dividends in excess of these amounts are subjgarido approval by the respective insurance depamts

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Corpensation Plans

The information required by this Item concerningiséies authorized for issuance under the Compaaguity compensation plans is set
forth in or incorporated by reference into Partitéim 12 of this Form 10-K.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
The following table presents information relatedtw repurchases of common stock for the periodisdtied.

Total Number .
Approximate

Dollar Value

POSTES . of Shares e
Total Number Average ,fuabrltié’lf May Yet Be
of Shares Price Paid Announcyed Purchased
Under the
Period Purchased’ per Share Programs 2 Programs
(In millions, except share and per share dai
October 1, 2006 to October 31, 2C 2,137,13. $ 76.91 2,137,01 $ 335
November 1, 2006 to November 30, 2( 4,517,10! 74.3% 4,515,29: —
December 1, 2006 to December 31, 2 788,31! 76.61 654,00( 949.¢
7,442 55! 75.31 7,306,301

Total number of shares purchased includes 136 ,2at2s delivered to or withheld by the Company innaztion with employee payroll
tax withholding upon exercise or vesting of stoalaeds. Stock grants to employees and directorsstouk issued for stock option plans
and stock purchase plans in the consolidated séattsnof shareholders’ equity are shown net of tebsgees purchased.

Represents the number of shares repurchased thoougkpurchase program authorized by our Boaidirgfctors. During the year end
December 31, 2006, the Company repurchased appatediyr60.7 million shares at a cost of $4.6 billioxder the program. Remaining
authorization under the program is $949.8 millisoéDecember 31, 2006.

Performance Graph

The following Performance Graph and related infdiamacompares the cumulative total return to shalagrs of our common stock for
the period from October 30, 2001, the date of nitial public offering, through December 31, 20@6th the cumulative total return over such
period of (i) the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Indtve “S&P 500 Index”) and (ii) the Morgan Stanldgalthcare Payor Index (the “MS
Healthcare Payor Index”). The graph assumes arsiment of $100 on October 30, 2001 in each of omraon stock, the S&P 500 Index and
the MS Healthcare Payor Index (and the reinvestrokall dividends). The performance shown is natessarily indicative of future
performance.

The comparisons shown in the graph below are baséistorical data and the Company cautions theastbck price performance shown
in the graph below is not indicative of, and is imdénded to forecast, the potential future perfamoe of our common stock. Information used
in the graph was obtained from D.F. King & Co.,.lrcsource believed to be reliable, but the Comjgnot responsible for any errors or
omissions in such information. The following gragoid related information shall not be deemed “ditigimaterials” or to be “filed” with the
Securities and Exchange Commission, nor shall s@fohmation be incorporated by reference into amyffe filing under the Securities Act of
1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, extetiie extent that we specifically incorporathyitreference into such filing.
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Comparizon of Cumulative Total Return

—i—"WellPoint, Inc.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

The table below provides selected consolidatedhfiz data of WellPoint. The information has beenived from our consolidated
financial statements for each of the years in ithee year period ended December 31, 2006. You shread this selected consolidated financial
data in conjunction with the audited consolidatedrcial statements and notes and Management'sif8gm and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations included is #orm 10-K.

As of and for the Years Ended December 3

2006 20051 2004* 2003 20021

(In millions, except where indicated and except @rare data,
Income Statement Date
Total operating revente $56,074.( $43,918. $20,353." $16,429.¢ $12,963.:
Total revenué 56,953.( 44,541.. 20,707.¢ 16,724.. 13,255.(
Net income 3,094.¢ 2,463.¢ 960.1 774.2 549.1
Per Share Data
Basic net income per she $ 4.9: $ 4.0 $ 3.1f $ 2.8C $ 231
Diluted net income per sha 4.82 3.94 3.0t 2.73 2.2¢
Other Data (unaudited)
Benefit expense ratib 81.2% 80.2% 81.&8% 80.7% 82.2%
Selling, general and administrative expense ratio 15.7% 16.€% 17.1% 18.9% 19.4%
Income before income taxes as a percentage of

revenue 8.6% 8.7% 7.0% 7.2% 6.1%
Net income as a percentage of total reve 5.4% 5.5% 4.6% 4.6% 4.1%
Medical membershi(ln thousands 34,101 33,85¢ 27,72¢ 11,923 11,05:
Balance Sheet Dat:
Cash and investments $20,812.: $20,336.( $15,792.: $ 7,478.. $ 6,726.
Total assetd 51,759.¢ 51,287.: 39,663.. 13,408.¢ 12,413.¢
Long-term deb# 6,493.: 6,324. 4,289." 1,662.¢ 1,659.
Total liabilities® 27,184.( 26,294.. 20,204.. 7,409.( 7,051.:
Total shareholde’ equity 24 ,575.¢ 24,993.: 19,459.( 5,999.¢ 5,362.1

! The net assets for WellChoice, Inc. and the nettagd and results of operations for Lumenos, M&e|IPoint Health Networks Inc., and
Trigon Healthcare, Inc. are included from theipestive acquisition dates of December 28, 200% ¢iffe December 31, 2005 for
accounting purposes), June 9, 2005, November 3#,20hd July 31, 2002.

2 Operating revenue is obtained by adding premiuasijristrative fees and other revenue.

3 Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiedhform to the current year presentation.

4 The benefit expense ratio represents benefit exgess a percentage of premium revenue. The sallémgral and administrative expense
ratio represents selling, general and adminisgatixpenses as a percentage of total operatingueven

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

References to the terms “we”, “our”, or “us” usédaughout this Management’s Discussion and Analysisinancial Condition and
Results of Operations, or MD&A, refer to WellPoihiic. (name changed from Anthem, Inc. effective &lmber 30, 2004), an Indiana holding
company, and unless the context otherwise requtgedirect and indirect subsidiaries.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiedhform to current year presentation.
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The structure of our Management’s Discussion andlysis of Financial Condition and Results of Opierat is as follows:
l. Executive Summar
II.  Overview
[ll.  Significant Transaction
IV. Membershi—December 31, 2006 Compared to December 31,
V. Cost of Care
VI. Results of Operatio—Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to the YededDecember 31, 20!
VII. Membershi—December 31, 2005 Compared to December 31,
VIIl. Results of Operatio—Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to the YededDecember 31, 20!
IX. Critical Accounting Policies and Estimat
X.  Liquidity and Capital Resourct
Xl. Safe Harbor Statement under the Private Secultitiggmtion Reform Act of 199!

I. Executive Summary

We are the largest health benefits company in tefreemmercial membership in the United Statesjisgrover 34 million medical
members as of December 31, 2006. We are an indepelicensee of the Blue Cross and Blue Shield éiasion, or BCBSA, an association
independent health benefit plans. We serve our reesrds the Blue Cross licensee for California antha Blue Cross and Blue Shield, or
BCBS, licensee for: Colorado, Connecticut, Georfgidiana, Kentucky, Maine, Missouri (excluding 38uaties in the Kansas City area),
Nevada, New Hampshire, New York (as BCBS in 10 Nk City metropolitan and surrounding countiesgl @s Blue Cross or BCBS
selected upstate counties only), Ohio, Virginiac(eding the Northern Virginia suburbs of WashingtbnC.), and Wisconsin. We also serve
customers throughout the country as UniCare. WdiGgesed to conduct insurance operations in aita€es through our subsidiaries.

No other health benefits company has the leadiogl lmarket presence in as many geographic are&snidrket position offers
advantages in attracting physicians and hospitatsit networks at attractive rates and in helpoigeep our products affordable.

Operating revenue for the year ended December(B @as $56.1 billion, an increase of $12.2 billion28%, over the year ended
December 31, 2005. Operating revenue increasesianarily driven by the December 28, 2005 acqigiribf WellChoice, Inc., or
WellChoice, described in “Significant Transactiot®low, as well as premium rate increases acrbssistomer types, the addition of the New
York state prescription drug contract and Medid2aet D Prescription Drug Plan, or Medicare Paréirpliment.

We have successfully executed our strategy to eletim our long-term goal of achieving at least 1gi#%wth in fully diluted earnings per
share, or EPS, and exceeded our goal in 2006 @&Rfiincreased by 22%. We have accomplished thisdmgsing on profitable enroliment
growth with innovative product offerings, pricingttvdiscipline, implementing initiatives to optingizhe cost of care, continuing to leverage
administrative costs over a larger membership Hasher penetrating our specialty businesses gnasimg our cash flow effectively.
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We intend to continue expanding through a combamatif organic growth and strategic acquisitions sadsactions in both existing and
new markets. Our growth strategy is designed tblenas to take advantage of the additional econewiiscale provided by increased overall
membership as well as providing us access to nevewalving technologies and products. In additiwa,believe geographic diversity reduces
our exposure to local or regional regulatory, eeoizoand competitive pressures and provides usiwiteased opportunities for growth. Wh
we have achieved strong growth as a result ofegfi@imergers and acquisitions, we have also acthiekganic growth in our existing markets
by providing excellent service, offering competiiy priced products and effectively capitalizingtbe brand strength of the Blue Cross and
Blue Shield names and marks.

Effective January 1, 2006, we began marketing Madi®art D to eligible Medicare beneficiaries inbél states. As of December 31,
2006, we had approximately 1.6 million MedicaretEamembers. See also Part |, Item 1A, Risk Facforsadditional information regarding
Medicare Part D.

II. Overview
Through December 31, 2006, we managed our opesatfiwmaugh three reportable segments: Health Cpexi8ity and Other.

Our Health Care segment includes strategic businaits delineated primarily by geographic areasiwitvhich we offer similar produc
and services, including commercial accounts, irtligl, senior and government programs such as tiher&leEmployee Program, or FEP, and
Medicaid. We offer a diversified mix of managedecaroducts, including preferred provider organaadi or PPOs, health maintenance
organizations, or HMOs, traditional indemnity betsefind point of service, or POS plans. We alserdadfvariety of hybrid benefit plans,
including consumer-driven health plans, or CDHRspital only and limited benefit products. Additély, we provide a broad array of
managed care services to self-funded customelsding claims processing, underwriting, stop lassurance, actuarial services, provider
network access, medical management, care managemiother administrative services.

Our Specialty segment is comprised of businessmdding specialty products and services such agpgliée and disability insurance
benefits, pharmacy benefit management, or PBM,iglig@harmacy, dental, vision, behavioral heakinéfit services and long-term care
insurance. We ceased underwriting workers compemshtisiness effective December 31, 2005; howevergontinue to provide network
rental and medical management services to worl@rgpensation carriers.

Our Other segment is comprised of our Medicaregssing business, including National GovernmentiSesy Inc., which name chang
from AdminaStar Federal, Inc., effective Novemb@y 2006, United Government Services, LLC, and EenMedicare Services, Inc.; Arcus
Healthy Living Services, Inc., which works to deslinnovative means to promote quality care, welhy and education; Arcus Financial
Services, Inc., which provides a number of prodtmtd/ellPoint-owned health plans associated wikhadvantaged accounts such as Health
Savings Accounts, Flexible Spending Accounts andltHdReimbursement Accounts; intersegment revendesapense eliminations; and
corporate expenses not allocated to our Health @aBpecialty segments.

We have announced a new organizational structisiguied to support our 2010 strategic plan. This sgucture capitalizes on our
unique local presence and emphasizes company-niation and strong customer focus. As a restthiefnew organizational structure we
are organized around two strategic business Widmmercial and Consumer Business, or CCB, and 8pecsenior and State-Sponsored
Business, or 4SB. In addition, our government sevbusiness includes the Federal Employees Pragndlational Government Services,
Inc., which acts as a Medicare contractor in séwvegions across the nation. We expect to revisgeportable segments in the first quarter of
2007 in accordance with the new organizationakstine, which reflects how our chief operating diecisnaker evaluates the performance of
our business beginning January 1, 2007. See Note d9r audited consolidated financial statemestsfand for the year ended December 31,
2006 included in this Form 10-K.
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Our operating revenue consists of premiums, adtnatige fees and other revenue. Premium revenuesdrom fully-insured contracts
where we indemnify our policyholders against céstscovered health and life benefits. Administratiees come from contracts where our
customers are self-insured, or where the fee istan either processing of transactions or a peafaretwork discount savings realized.
Additionally, we earn administrative fee revenuesrf our Medicare processing business and from dtbalth-related businesses including
care management programs. Other revenue is prihcgenerated from member co-payments and dedestibsociated with the mail-order
sale of drugs by our PBM companies.

Our benefit expense includes costs of care forthaalrvices consumed by our members, such as @rpeare, inpatient hospital care,
professional services (primarily physician cared pharmacy benefit costs. All four components &fecged both by unit costs and utilization
rates. Unit costs include the cost of outpatiendiced procedures per visit, inpatient hospital gage admission, physician fees per office visit
and prescription drug costs. Utilization rates espnt the volume of consumption of health sendecestypically vary with the age and health
status of our members and their social and lifestyloices, along with clinical protocols and mebgractice patterns in each of our markets. A
portion of benefit expense recognized in each témpperiod consists of actuarial estimates ofrekaincurred but not yet paid by us. Any
changes in these estimates are recorded in thedpde need for such an adjustment arises.

Our selling expense consists of external brokerrn@sion expenses, and generally varies with premvalime. Our general and
administrative expense consists of fixed and végiabsts. Examples of fixed costs are depreciatiomrtization and certain facilities expen
Other costs are variable or discretionary in natGertain variable costs, such as premium taxey,digectly with premium volume. Other
variable costs, such as salaries and benefitsptieamy directly with changes in premium, but arerenaligned with changes in membership.
The acquisition or loss of a significant block afsiness would likely impact staffing levels, anddlsalary and benefit expense. Discretionary
costs include professional and consulting expeasdsadvertising. Other factors can impact our adtative cost structure, including systems
efficiencies, inflation and changes in productivity

Our cost of drugs consists of the amounts we pghtsmaceutical companies for the drugs we selinad order through our PBM. This
amount excludes the cost of drugs related to afffiti health customers recorded in benefit expé&secost of drugs can be influenced by the
volume of prescriptions at our PBM, as well as atsinges, driven by prices set by pharmaceuticapamies and mix of drugs sold.

Our results of operations depend in large partwrability to accurately predict and effectively mage health care costs through effec
contracting with providers of care to our memberd aur medical and care management programs. Sepengomic factors related to health
care costs, such as regulatory mandates of covarajdirect-to-consumer advertising by providers pinarmaceutical companies, have a
direct impact on the volume of care consumed bynoeimbers. The potential effect of escalating hezdtie costs as well as any changes in our
ability to negotiate competitive rates with our yiders may impose further risks to our ability tfitably underwrite our business, and may
have a material impact on our results of operations

This MD&A should be read in conjunction with ourdited consolidated financial statements for the pe@led December 31, 2006
included in this Form 10-K.

lll.  Significant Transactions
Stock Repurchase Program

We maintain a common stock repurchase programthsi@zed by our Board of Directors. Repurchases bregnade from time to time
prevailing market prices, subject to certain refiths on volume, pricing and timing. During theayended December 31, 2006, we
repurchased and retired approximately 60.7 milfibares at an average share price of $74.91, faggregate cost of $4.6 billion. On
March 15, May 16, August 17 and
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December 7, 2006, our Board of Directors authorinedteases of $1.0 billion, $1.0 billion, $0.5 lmf and $1.0 billion, respectively, in our
common stock repurchase program, which increasetbthl authorized common stock repurchases toldiidn since the current program’s
inception in 2005. As of December 31, 2006, $0l8obi remained authorized for future repurchasedsgquent to December 31, 2006, we
repurchased and retired approximately 6.0 millioarss for an aggregate cost of approximately $4@®I®n, leaving approximately $486.3
million for authorized future repurchases at Febrd2, 2007. Our stock repurchase program is digcrary as we are under no obligation to
repurchase shares. We repurchase shares becabséieve it is a prudent use of surplus capital.

Acquisition of WellChoice, In

On December 28, 2005 (December 31, 2005 for acowuptirposes), WellPoint completed its acquisittbWellChoice. The acquisition
of WellChoice strengthened our leadership in priogjchealth benefits to National Accounts and predidis with a strategic presence in New
York City, the headquarters of more Fortune 500 manies than any other U.S. city. Under the ternti®imerger agreement, the stockholders
of WellChoice (other than subsidiaries of WellPpiiceived consideration of $38.25 in cash and9l5if a share of WellPoint common stock
for each share of WellChoice common stock outstamdin addition, WellChoice stock options and otheards were converted to WellPoint
awards in accordance with the merger agreementptlitehase price including cash, fair value of stacll stock awards and estimated
transaction costs was approximately $6.5 billion.

Multi-District Litigation Settlement Agreement

On July 11, 2005, we announced that an agreementeeahed with representatives of more than 70QB@8icians nationwide involve
in two multi-district class-action lawsuits againstand other health benefits companies. As pahteoMulti-District Litigation Settlement
Agreement, or the Agreement, we agreed to pay $I8ilion to physicians and to contribute $5.0 ioifl to a not-for-profit foundation whose
mission is to promote higher quality health card tmenhance the delivery of care to the disadggmutand underserved. In addition, up to
$58.0 million will be paid in legal fees. As a résaf the Agreement, we incurred a pre-tax expesfsk103.0 million during the year ended
December 31, 2005, or $0.10 EPS, which represkatfirtal settlement amount of the Agreement that m@t previously accrued. Appeals of
the settlement initially filed by certain physicgawere resolved and final cash payments undergteement totaling $209.5 million, including
accrued interest, were made on October 5 and &.200

Acquisition of Lumenos, In

On June 9, 2005, we completed our acquisition afiknos, Inc., or Lumenos, for approximately $185illian in cash paid to the
stockholders of Lumenos. Lumenos is recognizedm@sreeer and market leader in consumer-driven hgatigrams.

Two-For-One Stock Split

On April 25, 2005, WellPoint’s Board of Directorpoved a two-for-one split of shares of commoristavhich was effected in the
form of a 100 percent common stock dividend. Akigholders of record on May 13, 2005 received aluitianal share of WellPoint common
stock for each share of common stock held on the. d’he additional shares of common stock weteilolised to shareholders of record in the
form of a stock dividend on May 31, 2005. All histal weighted average share and per share amaudtall references to stock compensa
data and market prices of our common stock fopatiods presented in this MD&A have been adjustectfiect this two-for-one stock split.

Merger with WellPoint Health Networks Ir

On November 30, 2004, Anthem, Inc. and WellPoinaltleNetworks Inc., or WHN, completed their mergene merger with WHN
helped us to create the nation’s leading healtkefitsrcompany and the largest
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holder of Blue Cross and/or Blue Shield licensethencountry. Additionally, our merger with WHN m@ased our presence in several new
strategic markets, most notably California. Undher terms of the merger agreement, the stockhotdéiHN (other than subsidiaries of WH
received consideration of $23.80 in cash and oagesbtf Anthem, Inc. common stock for each WHN sloartstanding. In addition, WHN sto
options and other awards were converted to WellPbin. awards in accordance with the merger agee¢nThe purchase price including ce
fair value of stock and stock awards and estimaatsaction costs was approximately $15.8 billismthem, Inc., the surviving corporate
parent, was renamed WellPoint, Inc. concurrent dighmerger.

IV.  Membership—December 31, 2006 Compared to Dember 31, 2005

Through December 31, 2006, our medical membersigipded six different customer types: Large Grdagividual and Small Group,
National Accounts, BlueCard, Senior and State Spramus

Large Group consists of those employer custometis 3ili to 4,999 employees eligible to participata asember in one of our hea
plans. In addition, Large Group includes customeéts 5,000 or more eligible employees with lesath&o of eligible employees
located outside of the headquarter’s state. Lamgei®also includes members in the Federal Empl&yegram, or FEP, which
provides health insurance coverage to United Sgaesrnment employees and their dependents witlnigeographic markets
through our participation in the national contraetween the BCBSA and the U.S. Office of PersoMalagement

Individual and Small Group, or ISG, consists ofiuidual customers under age 65 as well as thosdampcustomers with one to
eligible employees

National Accounts customers are r-state employer groups primarily headquartered\WedlPoint service area with 5,000 or more
eligible employees, with at least 5% of eligibleptayees located outside of the headquarter's staevice area is defined as the
geographic area in which we are licensed to seB8@roducts

BlueCard host members represent enrollees of BloesGand/or Blue Shield plans not owned by WellPwimo receive health care
services in our BCBSA licensed markets. BlueCardhbvership consists of estimated host members usagational BlueCard
program. Host members are generally members wilder@sor travel to a state in which a WellPoinbsidliary is the Blue Cross
and/or Blue Shield licensee and who are covereemaa employer-sponsored health plan issued byaMellPoint controlled
BCBSA licensee (i.e., the “home” plan). We perfarertain administrative functions for BlueCard mensbéor which we receive
administrative fees from the BlueCard members’ hptaas. Other administrative functions, includingimtenance of enrollment
information and customer service, are performethbyhome plan. Host members are computed usinghguatber things, the
average number of BlueCard claims received per neefpdr month

Senior members are Medic-eligible individual members age 65 and over whoeherrolled in Medicare Advantage, a mana
care alternative for the Medicare program, or wheehpurchased Medicare Supplement benefit cove

State Sponsored membership represents eligible ersmbith state sponsored managed care alternétiedicaid and State
Childrer’s Health Insurance progran

We expect to revise our customer type definitionthe first quarter of 2007 in accordance withribes organizational structure, as
described above, which reflects how our chief ofiegadecision maker evaluates the performance pbasginess beginning January 1, 2007.

In addition to reporting our medical membershipchgtomer type, we report by funding arrangementraiag to the level of risk that v
assume in the product contract. Our two fundingragement categories are fully-insured and selfdédnéullyinsured products are products
which we indemnify our policyholders against cdstshealth benefits. Self-funded products are @ffieto customers, generally larger
employers, who
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elect to retain some or all of the financial rislsaciated with their employees’ health care c&@&isne customers choose to purchase stop-loss
coverage to limit their retained risk. These custmsrare reported with our self-funded business.

The following table presents our medical member$ligustomer type, funding arrangement and geogralptegion as of December 31,
2006 and 2005. Also included below are key mefrims our Specialty segment, including prescriptmtume for our PBM companies and
membership by product. The membership data predéntenaudited and in certain instances includémates of the number of members
represented by each contract at the end of thegeri

December 31

2006 20051 Change % Change
(In thousands)
Medical Membership
Customer Type
Large Groug 16,01« 16,36: (34¢) (2%
Individual and Small Grou 5,65¢ 5,64¢ 9 —
National Account: 5,044 4,77¢ 26¢ 6
BlueCard 4.27¢ 3,91¢ 364 9
Total National 9,32: 8,691 632 7
Senior 1,22¢ 1,22¢ 5 —
State Sponsore 1,881 1,93¢ (53 3
Total medical membership by customer t 34,10 33,85¢ 24E 1
Funding Arrangement *
Self-Funded 16,74¢ 16,58 161 1
Fully-Insured 17,35¢ 17,27: 84 —
Total medical membership by funding arrangen 34,10 33,85¢ 24E 1
Regional Membership
East 13,87¢ 13,80( 79 1
Central 10,90" 10,97( (63 Q)
West 9,31t 9,08¢ 22¢ 3
Total medical membership by regi 34,10 33,85¢ 24k 1
Specialty Metrics
PBM prescription volumé 392,66¢ 344,62: 48,04 14
Behavioral health membersk 16,93: 15,66¢ 1,26¢ 8
Life and disability membershi 5,97( 5,82¢ 144 2
Dental membershi 5,27( 5,19¢ 75 1
Vision membershi| 1,53¢ 81¢€ 72C 88
Medicare Part D membership 1,56¢ — 1,56¢ NA

1 Medical membership data for 2005 has been recleddid conform to the current presentation. Outassifications for minimum
premium amendments to fully-insured contracts teduh an increase in self-funded membership acatri@sponding decrease in fully-
insured membership, with no impact on total medisambership.

2 Represents prescription volume for the years efs@mber 31, 2006 and 2005.

8 Effective January 1, 2006, the Company began mack&iedicare Part D to eligible Medicare benefigarin all 50 states. Membership
includes auto-assigned, stand-alone, Medicare Adgangroup waiver and external PBM members wighpitescription drug plans.
Certain of our Medicare Part D members are alsaoBemedical members.
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During the twelve months ended December 31, 2@28l tmedical membership increased approximatelyh or 1%, primarily due to
increases in our BlueCard and National Accounttigir offset by the loss of 315,000 Large Groupmbers in the state of Georgia, as well as
approximately 95,000 members of another Large Gemgount, which was previously disclosed. AlsdDacember 2006, our ownership of a
joint venture in Puerto Rico changed from a 50 getownership of a Medicaid managed care subsidieaysmaller percentage in the jc
venture’s parent company. Accordingly, we no lorigelude the 222,000 members related to this imaest in our reported enrollment.

Large Group membership decreased 348,000, or 2faply due to the loss of the state of Georgia RB6Gtract and the other Large
Group account previously disclosed, partially dftsg new sales.

National Accounts membership increased 268,006%grprimarily due to success in attracting new @uetrs as they recognize the va
of the BCBS networks and discounts.

BlueCard membership increased 364,000, or 9%, duhia twelve months ended December 31, 2006, direteased sales by other
BCBSA licensees to accounts with members who renside travel to our licensed areas.

State Sponsored membership decreased 53,000, gnBf&rily due to the membership accounting chanetgted to our Puerto Rico jo
venture investment discussed above. Partially tfifgethis 222,000 member decrease, we added 68@80members from the acquisition of
QualChoice Select, Inc. and won new business figendwards in 2006 due to our comprehensive arfénealth management services we
make available to the nation’s Medicaid recipients.

Self-funded medical membership increased 161,000%g primarily due to increases in our Nationakéunts and BlueCard businesses
and shifts in the mix of business from fully-insdite self-funded, partially offset by the loss lo¢ tstate of Georgia PPO contract and the other
Large Group contract noted above, as well as tipaatnof the Puerto Rico joint venture membershigoaating change. Fully-insured
membership increased by 84,000 members, primauiytd the August 1, 2006 acquisition of QualCh@&egect, Inc.

Our specialty metrics are derived from membershig activity from our specialty products. These prid are often ancillary to our
health business, and can therefore be impacteddwtly in our medical membership.

Prescription volume in our PBM companies incredsed8,047,000, or 14%, during the year ended Deeerdb, 2006, primarily due to
growth in both our retail and mail order operatidnisen by the addition of Medicare Part D.

Behavioral health membership increased 1,268,008%q during the year ended December 31, 2006,grifyndue to a 568,000
membership gain from the acquisition of Behavistahlth Network in New Hampshire in October 2006wadl as 347,000 new members fr
sales of our behavioral health products.

Vision membership increased 720,000, or 88%, dukadntroduction of our Blue View Vision producatchthe associated conversion of
432,000 members of a competing plan in Virginighie new product, as well as new sales in seveaakets.

V. Cost of Care

The following discussion summarizes our aggregast of care trends for the full year 2006 for oarge Group and ISG fully-insured
businesses only. In order to provide a more medwlimgmparison to the current period due to theusition of WellChoice, cost of care
information as discussed below is presented asifRiint and WellChoice were combined for all 0D80Accordingly, cost of care reported
previously for WellPoint is not comparable to théormation presented below.
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Our cost of care trends are calculated by compdhagear-over-year change in average per membengeth claim costs for which we
are responsible, which excludes member co-paynagrttsieductibles. While our cost of care trend &g geographic location, our aggregate
cost of care was less than 8% for the full year6200

Costs for outpatient and inpatient services aretheary drivers of overall cost trends. Cost trémcteases for outpatient services were
primarily driven by higher per visit costs as mprecedures are being performed during each vigittpatient providers, particularly
emergency room visits, as well as the impact afgpimcreases included within certain provider cacts. However, we are seeing the positive
impact of our expanding radiology management progran our outpatient trends. These programs aigrabsto ensure appropriate use of
radiology services by our members. Inpatient tréralse been driven primarily by unit cost, a reflectof negotiated contract increases with
hospitals. Utilization (admissions per 1,000 merapegmains flat, while average length of hospitay and hospital days per 1,000 members
have both decreased slightly.

Pharmacy benefit cost trend increased primarilytdygharmacy unit cost (cost per prescription)dréFhe unit cost trend in 2006 is
reflecting a return to normal cost trends compaoe2D05 when the unit cost trend was favorably iotg@ by merger synergies and improved
pharmaceutical contracting following the mergefmi¥HN, the non-renewal of pharmacy only businesmfe large state customer with
historically high utilization and cost trends ahe impact of lower utilization for the COX 2 Inhibf therapeutic class of drugs. In addition, the
increased use of specialty drugs, also known aediiadrugs, which generally have a higher costaadeing utilized more frequently, has
increased the unit cost trend in 2006. These iseem unit costs were partially offset by increaseour generic usage rates and benefit plan
design changes.

In response to cost trends, we continue to pursn&acting and plan design changes, promote anttimgnt performance-based
contracts that reward clinical outcomes and quadityd expand our radiology management, diseasegearent and advanced care
management programs. We recently announced theHaafl8360° Health, a program to integrate all care management pnogiend tools into
centralized, consumer-friendly resource that asgiatients in navigating the health care systeingubeir health benefits and accessing the
most comprehensive and appropriate care availabiddition, we are expanding our specialty phagrm@ograms and continuously evaluate
our drug formulary to ensure the most effectiverpteceutical therapies are available for our members
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VI. Results of Operations—Year Ended December 32006 Compared to the Year Ended December 31, 2005

Our consolidated results of operations for the yesmded December 31, 2006 and 2005 are discusseel fiollowing section.

(In millions, except per share data)
Premiums

Administrative fee:

Other revenut

Total operating revent
Net investment incom

Net realized losses on investme
Total revenue

Benefit expens

Selling, general and administrative exper
Selling expens
General and administrative expel

Total selling, general and administrative
expens¢
Cost of drugs

Interest expens

Amortization of other intangible assets
Total expense

Income before income tax expense

Income tax expens

Net income

Average diluted shares outstand
Diluted net income per share

Benefit expense ratib

Selling, general and administrative expe
ratio

Income before income taxes as a percer
of total revenut

Net income as a percentage of total reve

Year Ended December 31

2006 2005 % Change
$51,971.¢ $40,680.( 28%
3,5009.¢ 2,719.: 29
593.1 519.2 14
56,074. 43,918.: 28
878.1 633.1 39
(0.3) (10.2) (97)
56,953.( 44,541 28
42,218.¢ 32,625.; 29
1,654.t 1,474.. 12
7,163.: 5,798.! 24
8,817." 7,272 21
301.2 288.( 5
403.t 226.2 78
297.4 238.¢ 24
52,038.¢ 40,651.( 28
4,914.. 3,890.: 26
1,819.! 1,426.¢ 28
$ 3,094.¢ $ 2,463.¢ 26
642.] 625.¢ 3
$ 482 $ 3.94 22
81.2% 80.2% 10Cbp*®
15.7% 16.6% (90)bp 5
8.6% 8.7% (10)bp*S
5.4% 5.5% (10)bp*®

Comparable
Basis12
Year Ended
December 31
2005 $ Change % Change
$ 46,531.: $5,440.¢ 12%
3,325.( 184.¢ 6
518.2 74.C 14
50,374.. 5,700.: 11
718. NM?3 NMm?3
(5.4) NM3 NM3
51,087.¢ NM?3 NMm?3
37,676.( 4,542 .¢ 12
1,549.¢ 104.¢ 7
6,770.( 393.2 6
8,319.¢ 498.1 6
288.( NM3 NM3
226.2 NM3 NM3
238.¢ NM:3 NM3
46,748. NM3 NM3
4,338.¢ NM?3 NM3
1,604.¢ NM3 NM3
$ 2,734.( NM?3 NM3
NM3 NM3 NM3
NM:3 NM?3 NM:3
81.(% 20bp*
16.5% (80)bp*S
NM3 NM3
NMm?3 NMm?3

Certain of the following definitions are also applble to all other results of operations tablethis discussion:

1 See below for discussion of “comparable basis”rimfation.

2 For certain line items impacted by our acquisitidWellChoice, comparable basis is not meaningfid tb related capitalization and

purchase accounting.
3 NM = Not meaningful
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4 Benefit expense ratio = Benefit expense + Premiums.
5 bp = basis point; one hundred basis points = 1%.
6 Selling, general and administrative expense raflmtal selling, general and administrative expen3etal operating revenue.

We discuss our 2006 and 2005 operations using “eoatgte basis” information, which is presented twvie a more meaningful prior-
year comparison to the current year, due to ouebéer 28, 2005 acquisition of WellChoice. Comparddasis information is not calculatec
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accoumptimgiples, or GAAP, and is not intended to représe be indicative of the results of
WellPoint had the acquisition been completed akofiary 1, 2005. Comparable basis informationHeryear ended December 31, 2005 was
calculated by adding the reclassified historicateshents of income for WellPoint and WellChoice aradudes no intercompany eliminations
or pro forma adjustments.

Year Ended December 31, 2005
WellChoice, Inc.

WellPoint, Inc. WellPoint, Inc.

Reclassification:

Reclassification:

As As Comparable
Reported 1 Reclassifiec Reported ! Reclassifiec Basis
(In millions)
Premiums $41,216. $ (536.7)  $40,680.! $5,862.¢ $ (11.5 $5,851. $ 46,531.
Administrative fee: 2,729.¢ (10.7) 2,719.. 561.t 44.: 605.¢ 3,325.(
Other revenue (expens 566.5 (47.9) 519.2 (1.0 — (1.0 518.2
Total operating
revenue 44,513.: (594.%) 43,918. 6,422.¢ 33.C 6,455.¢ 50,374..
Net investment incom 633.1 — 633.1 85.€ — 85.¢€ 718.%
Net realized (losses) gai
on investment (10.2) — (10.2) 4.8 — 4.8 (5.9
Total revenue 45,136. (594.%) 44,541 . 6,513.! 33.C 6,546.! 51,087.
Benefit expens 33,219.! (594.%) 32,625.. 5,078.¢ (27.6) 5,050.¢ 37,676.(
Selling, general and
administrative expens
Selling expens 1,474.. — 1,474.. — 75.4 75.4 1,549.¢
General and
administrative
expense 5,798.! — 5,798.! 986.: (14.9) 971.t 6,770.(
Total selling, general and
administrative expens 7,272 — 7,272 986.: 60.€ 1,046.¢ 8,319.¢
Cost of drug 288.( — 288.( — — — 288.(
Interest expens 226.2 — 226.2 — — — 226.2
Amortization of othel
intangible assel 238.¢ — 238.¢ — — — 238.¢
Total expense 41,245, (594.7) 40,651.( 6,064." 33.C 6,097.° 46,748.
Income before income tax
expense 3,890.: — 3,890.! 448.¢ — 448.¢ 4,338.¢
Income tax expens 1,426. — 1,426. 178.¢ — 178. 1,604.¢
Net income $ 2,463.¢ $ = $ 2,463.¢ $ 270.C $ = $ 270. $ 2,734.(
Benefit expense ratid 80.6% 80.2% 86.€% 86.2% 81.(%
Selling, general an
administrative expense
ratio 3 16.2% 16.€% 15.4% 16.2% 16.5%

! To reflect the reclassification of certain histatiamounts to a consistent presentation format.
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2 Benefit expense ratio = Benefit expense + Premiums.
3 Selling, general and administrative expense raflmtal selling, general and administrative expen3etal operating revenue.

Year Ended December 31, 200

WellPoint, Inc. WellChoice, Inc. WellPoint, Inc.
As Reclassification: As Reclassification: Comparable
Reported ! Reclassifiec Reported ! Reclassifiec Basis
(In millions)
Operating Revenue
Health Care $42,597.! $ (730.5)  $41,867.( $ — $ 6,292.¢ $ 6,292.¢ $ 48,159.¢
Specialty 2,863.: 203.( 3,066.: — 32.1 32.1 3,098.:
Other (947.5) (67.2) (1,014.9 — 131.2 131.2 (883.5)
Commercial Managed Ca — — — 5,530.7 (5,530.7) — —
Other Insurance Products and
Services — — — 892.2 (892.7) — —
Total operating revent $44,513.. $ (594.7) $43,918.: $6,422.¢ % 33.C $ 6,455.¢ $ 50,374.:
Operating Gain (Loss)?
Health Care $ 3,459.( $ (41.00 $ 3,418.( $ — $ 371.¢ $ 371.¢ $ 3,789.¢
Specialty 388.1 38.: 426.£ — 0.t 0.t 426.¢
Other (114.¢ 2.7 (111.9 — (23.9 (23.9 (125.9
Commercial Managed Ca — — — 331t (331.% — —
Other Insurance Products and
Services — — — 26.7 (26.7) — —

1 To reflect the reclassification of certain histatiamounts to a consistent presentation format.

2 We use operating gain (loss) to evaluate the padace of our reportable segments, as describethiargent of Financial Accounting
Standards No.13Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise andt&tlaformation Operating gain (loss) is defined as operating
revenue less benefit expense, selling expenserajearel administrative expense and cost of drugs.

Premiums increased $11.3 billion, or 28%, to $3#llon in 2006. On a comparable basis, premiuntsaased $5.4 billion, or 12%,
primarily due to premium rate increases acrossuatomer types, the addition of the New York sgatsscription drug contract and new
enrollment in our Medicare Part D products.

Administrative fees increased $790.4 million, o#230 $3.5 billion in 2006. On a comparable basiBninistrative fees increased $184.6
million, or 6%, primarily due to self-funded membkip growth in National Accounts, including Blue@aand rate increases in Large Group
and National Accounts. Self-funded membership gnomeas driven by successful efforts to attract lagiée-funded accounts and was
attributable to our network breadth, discountsyiserand increased focus on health improvementaiihess, as well as the popularity of the
BlueCard program.

Other revenue principally includes amounts fromlroeder prescription drug sales by our PBM compsgniehich provide services to
members of our Health Care segment and third géigygts. Other revenue increased $73.9 milliorl4%o, to $593.1 million in 2006. On a
comparable basis, other revenue increased $74i®mibr 14%, primarily due to revenue generatedytpwth in mail-order prescription
revenue from both our Health Care segment and garties. Increased mail-order prescription volugsilted from additional utilization of
our PBM companies’ mail-order pharmacy option with introduction of Medicare Part D.

Net investment income increased $245.6 millior3@%b, to $878.7 million in 2006 primarily resultifigm invested assets acquired with
the acquisition of WellChoice, growth in investessets from reinvestment of cash generated fromatipas and higher interest rates. This
growth was partially offset by the use of cashrégurchases of our common stock.
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A summary of our net realized gains (losses) oestments for the years ended December 31, 2008G0%lis as follows:

Years Ended
December 31
2006 2005 $ Change
(In millions)
Net realized losses from the sale of fixed matwségurities $(47.9) $(25.9) $ (22.€)
Net realized gains from the sale of equity se@s 98.t 22.C 76.5
Othel-thar-temporary impairmen—credit relatec (32.5) (14.¢) 17.7)
Otherthar-temporary impairmen—interest rate relate (23.9) — (23.9)
Other realized gain 5.3 7. (2.6)
Net realized losse $ (0.3 $(10.2) $ 9¢

Net realized losses in 2006 primarily related toepithan-temporary impairments of investments aedsale of fixed maturity securities
at a loss due to the restructuring of the combjatfolio after our acquisition of WellChoice attlend of 2005. Other-than-temporary
impairments—credit related were primarily due te kangth of time that equity securities’ fair valwas below their cost basis. Other-than-
temporary impairments—interest related were prilpahie to the prevailing interest rate environmamd our intent to hold fixed maturity
securities until their anticipated recovery. $z#ical Accounting Policies and Estimatisthis MD&A for a discussion of our investment
impairment review process. These losses were pridiffiset by realized gains on the sale of eqgsiegurities during 2006.

Net realized losses in 2005 primarily related tbrealized losses on sales of fixed maturity séiesrdue to the restructuring of the
combined portfolio after our merger with WHN at #wd of 2004 and credit-related other-than-temgarapairments of equity and fixed
maturity securities. These realized losses werggligroffset by net realized gains on sales ofiggsecurities and other invested assets.

Benefit expense increased $9.6 billion, or 29%&%48.2 billion in 2006. On a comparable basis, bieegpense increased $4.5 billion, or
12%, primarily due to increased cost of care, whiets driven by higher costs in outpatient and iigpatservices, the addition of the New Y
State prescription drug contract and benefit expdéasour Medicare Part D products.

On a comparable basis, our benefit expense ratieased 20 basis points to 81.2% in 2006. Thieaser was primarily related to a
change in business mix, primarily driven by theiadd of the New York State prescription drug caat, growth in FEP and State Sponsored
business, as well as the introduction of Medica B. All of these products have a higher bereeffiense ratio than the WellPoint average.
These increases were partially offset by disciglipacing and the non-recurrence of $35.0 millidmenefit expense recorded in the second
quarter of 2005 related to the multi-district l#igpn settlement agreement, or MDL settlement agess, discussed in Significant Transactions
within this MD&A.

Selling, general and administrative expense ine&4.5 billion, or 21%, to $8.8 billion in 2006n@ comparable basis, selling, general
and administrative expense increased $498.1 mjlbos%. The increase in selling, general and athtnative expense was primarily due to
increases in volume-sensitive costs such as corunggremium taxes and other expenses associdgtednrowth in our business, as well as
additional share-based compensation expense regfitim our January 1, 2006 adoption of StateméRirancial Accounting Standards
No. 123 (revised 2004Share-Based Paymeit, FAS 123R. See Note 12 to our audited consolibifit@ncial statements as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2006 included in this Form 10-K.

On a comparable basis, our selling, general andrastmative expense ratio decreased 80 basis pturit5.7% in 2006, primarily due to
growth in premium income, continued expense cornal further leveraging of general and administeatiosts over a larger membership b
In addition, the 2005 selling, general and admiatste expense ratio was negatively impacted by®6G8llion, or 10 basis points, related to
MDL settlement agreement.
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Cost of drugs increased $13.2 million, or 5%, t6%2 million in 2006. This increase is primarilyrégutable to increased mail-order
prescription volume by our PBM companies, partialtiset by higher utilization of generic prescrigstidrugs.

Interest expense increased $177.3 million, or 78%403.5 million in 2006, primarily due to addit@ interest expense on the debt
incurred in conjunction with the acquisition of Wethoice.

Amortization of other intangible assets increasg8.% million, or 24%, to $297.4 million in 2006,imarily due to additional amortizati
expense related to identifiable intangible asséts finite lives resulting from the acquisition @fellChoice.

Income tax expense increased $393.0 million, or,28%1.8 billion in 2006, consistent with the iease in pre-tax income. The effective
tax rate in 2006 and 2005 was 37.0% and 36.7%eotisply. The increase in the effective tax rat@®96 was primarily related to increases in
state taxes due to the addition of operations w Merk following the acquisition of WellChoice.

Reportable Segmen

We use operating gain to evaluate the performahoeraeportable segments, as described in Stateofi¢financial Accounting
Standards No. 13Disclosure about Segments of an Enterprise andt&dlaformation Through December 31, 2006, our reportable segs
were Health Care, Specialty and Other. Operatimg igacalculated as total operating revenue legsefiteexpense, selling, general and
administrative expense and cost of drugs. It deé$nelude net investment income, net realized géivsses) on investments, interest expense,
amortization of other intangible assets or incomes$, as these items are managed in a corporagsg&vice environment and are not the
responsibility of operating segment managementalditional information, see Note 19 to our auditedsolidated financial statements
included in this Form 10-K. The discussions of seghresults for the years ended December 31, 200@@05 presented below are based on
operating gain, as described above, and operatargim which is calculated as operating gain disibg operating revenue. Our definitions of
operating gain and operating margin may not be egaipe to similarly titted measures reported byeottompanies.

Health Care

Our Health Care segment’s summarized results afatipas for the year ended December 31, 2006 af# a€e as follows:

Compa_rable
Year Ended December 3: YeaBraEs;\sded
December 31
2006 2005 % Change 2005 $ Change % Change
(In millions)
Operating revenu $53,860.! $41,867.( 29% $ 48,159. $5,701.( 12%
Operating gait $ 4,288.: $ 3,418.( 25% $ 3,789.¢ $ 498.7 13%
Operating margi 8.C% 8.2% (20)bp 7.€% 1Cbp

Operating revenue increased $12.0 billion, or 289453.9 billion in 2006. On a comparable basigrapng revenue increased $5.7
billion, or 12%, primarily due to premium rate ieases across all customer types, the additioredfi#w York state prescription drug contract
and our Medicare Part D products.

Operating gain increased $870.3 million, or 25%%$4a billion in 2006. On a comparable basis, ofiegagain increased $498.7 million,
or 13%, primarily due to disciplined pricing acradklines of business and continued expense chtitv® non-recurrence of $103.0 million in
benefit and general and administrative expenseeceta the MDL settlement agreement, as well astidition of the New York state
prescription drug
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contract and Medicare Part D. These increases patilly offset by the impact of increased shaasdul compensation expense following the
adoption of FAS 123R in 2006.

The operating margin decreased by 20 basis paimts 8.2% in 2005 to 8.0% in 2006. On a comparabkd) operating margin increas
10 basis points in 2006. The 2006 operating mangis impacted by 30 basis points related to increabare-based compensation following
the adoption of FAS 123R, as well as 20 basis powlated to a business mix shift, including thditoh of lower margin governmental
business. The 2005 operating margin included aa®@slpoint impact related to the MDL settlementagrent.

Specialty

Our Specialty segment’s summarized results of djpersifor the year ended December 31, 2006 and a894s follows:

Comparable
Year Ended Basis
December 31 Year Ended
December 31
2006 2005 % Change 2005 $ Change % Change
(In millions)
Operating revenu $3,566.: $3,066.: 16% $ 3,098. $468.( 15%
Operating gait $ 523.¢ $ 426.¢ 23%  $ 426 $ 96.7 23%
Operating margi 14.7% 13.%% 80bp 13.€% 90bp

Operating revenue increased $500.1 million, or 16243.6 billion in 2006. On a comparable basigrafing revenue increased $468.0
million, or 15%, primarily due to increased preption volume by our PBM companies, including spkgipharmacy, driven by the addition of
Medicare Part D, partially offset by the sale of morkers compensation business in Wisconsin irb200

Operating gain increased $97.2 million, or 23%$%83.6 million in 2006. On a comparable basis, afeg gain increased $96.7 million,
or 23%, primarily due to increased prescriptionumoé by our PBM companies, as well as a changetima&s® in noncurrent reserves for future
policy benefits following the change of experief@etors for waiver of premium reserves based ondhently released group term life
mortality study. These increases were partiallgetfby the sale of our workers compensation busime®/isconsin in 2005.

Operating margin increased 80 basis points fror%3n 2005 to 14.7% in 2006. On a comparable bapisrating margin increased 90
basis points in 2006, primarily due to the chamgestimate in reserves mentioned in the precedinggpaph, as well as increased prescription
volume and higher utilization of generic prescoptdrugs in our mail-order PBM companies.

Other

Our summarized results of operations for our Otfegiment for the year ended December 31, 2006 0&l&@ as follows:

Comparable
Year Ended Basis
December 31 Year Ended
December 31
2006 2005 % Change 2005 $ Change % Change
(In millions)
Operating revenue from external custon $ 454.¢ $ 333 36% $ 464.¢ $ (10.9 2%
Elimination of intersegment reven (1,806.9 (1,348.9) 34% (1,348.) (458.%) 34%
Total operating revent $(1,352.9)  $(1,014.) 33% $ (883.F)  $(468.7) 53%
Operating los: $ (75.0 $ (1119 3% $ (125.() $ 50.t (40)%
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Operating revenue from external customers incre@$ed.0 million, or 36%, to $454.6 million in 200Bn a comparable basis, operating
revenue from external customers decreased $10li2mibr 2%. On both a reported and comparablesb#sé elimination of intersegment
revenue increased $458.5 million, or 34%, in 2088ecting additional sales by our PBM companieMeflicare Part D and specialty
pharmacy products to our Health Care segment.

Operating loss decreased $36.9 million, or 33%,748.0 million in 2006. On a comparable basis, djregdoss decreased $50.8 million,
or 40%, primarily due to lower expenses relaterbtention bonuses and other compensation costsiasbwith the merger between the
former Anthem, Inc. and the former WellPoint Heatbtworks Inc.

VIl.  Membership—December 31, 2005 Compared to @ember 31, 2004

The following table presents our medical membersligustomer type, funding arrangement and geograjptegion as of December 31,
2005 and 2004. Also included below are key mefrims our Specialty segment, including prescriptmtume for our PBM companies and
membership by product. The membership data predéntenaudited and in certain instances includémates of the number of members
represented by each contract at the end of thegeri

WellPoint Without

WellPoint, Inc. WellPoint WellChoice as

Without WellPoint, Inc. Conlr:pared to
. h WellPoint at
as Reported WellChoice WellChoice
December 31, December 31 December 31 as Reported December 31,
December 31, 2004
2005% 20052 200583 2004 Change % Change
(In thousands)
Medical Membership
Customer Type
Large Grouf 16,36: 3,08t 13,273 13,07: 204 2%
Individual and Small Group (ISC 5,64t 34¢ 5,29¢ 5,19¢ 97 2
National Account: 4,77¢ 1,23t 3,541 3,21z 32¢ 10
BlueCard 3,91t (93 4,00¢ 3,46: 54E 16
Total National 8,691 1,14 7,54¢ 6,67¢ 874 13
Senior 1,22¢ 147 1,077 1,05¢ 18 2
State Sponsore 1,934 64 1,87( 1,722 14€& 9
Total medical membership by customer t 33,85¢ 4,78 29,06¢ 27,72¢ 1,341 5
Funding Arrangemer
Self-Fundec 16,58 1,87¢ 14,70¢ 13,30:  1,40: 11
Fully-Insured 17,27: 2,90¢ 14,36¢ 14,42¢ (62 —
Total medical membership by fundi
arrangemer 33,85¢ 4,78 29,06¢ 27,72¢ 1,341 5
Regional Membershi
East 13,80( 5,03( 8,77( 8,50¢ 262 3
Central 10,97( (125) 11,09¢ 10,56¢ 53C 5
West 9,08¢ (11€) 9,20/ 8,65¢ 54¢ 6
Total medical membership by regi 33,85¢ 4,78 29,06¢ 27,72¢ 1,341 5
Specialty Metrics
PBM prescription volumé 344,62: — 344,62: 336,54.  8,08( 2
Behavioral health membership 15,66¢ _ 15,66¢ 11,75: NMS NMS
Life and disability membershi 5,82¢ _ 5,82¢ 5,30¢ NMS5 NMS
Dental membership 5,19¢ 26¢ 4,93( 5,04¢ NMS NMS
Vision membershij 81¢€ — 81¢€ 773 43 6
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1 Amounts reported at December 31, 2005, include neeshiip from the WellChoice acquisition that closedDecember 28, 2005 and
from the Lumenos acquisition that closed on Jurz095.

2 Represents membership at December 31, 2005, reséidim the WellChoice acquisition. Medical memivgpss shown net of
overlapping BlueCard host membership.

8 WellPoint without WellChoice membership was caltedaby subtracting membership resulting from thdl@teice acquisition from
WellPoint, Inc.’s reported membership at Decemlier205.

4 Represents annual PBM prescription volume for mi@er and retail prescriptions for the full yeansied December 31, 2005 and 2004.

5 Changes from prior period information are not meghil due to different counting methodologies ubgdhe former Anthem, Inc. and
the former WellPoint Health Networks Inc.

During the twelve months ended December 31, 2@28l, inedical membership increased approximatel&Q00, or 22%, primarily du
to our acquisition of WellChoice and organic growtltall customer types. Excluding the impact of WellChoice acquisition: BlueCard
membership increased 545,000, or 16%, represemérgbership growth in other Blue Cross and Blue I8Hieensees with members who
reside in or travel to our licensed areas; Natidw@ounts membership increased 329,000, or 10%apifly due to new sales, as well as in-
group increases in membership and members acduinedthe acquisition of Lumenos; Large Group merabgrincreased 204,000, or 2%
primarily due to our acquisition of Lumenos as vesllnew sales throughout the year; State Sponsweetbership increased 148,000, or 9%
due to new sales, primarily in the West region; E8@ membership increased 97,000, or 2%, primally to the introduction of new, more
affordable product designs and an overall incré@asensumer awareness of our wide variety of gualibducts and services as well as efforts
to market products to the uninsured.

Self-funded medical membership increased 3,28200@%%, primarily due to our merger with WellChomed increases in our
BlueCard, National Accounts and Large Group busiegsFully-insured membership increased by 2,840600@20%, due to our merger with
WellChoice. However, on a comparable basis, fullsdred membership decreased by 62,000 primarilyalad_arge Group fully-insured
account in the East region, which represented ajrpedely 140,000 medical members, converting téfeglded during the third quarter of
2005. This was partially offset by growth in oud@&nd State Sponsored businesses, as well as tesnasa positive in-group change in Large
Group.

Our specialty metrics are derived from membershig activity from our specialty products. These pradd are often ancillary to our
health business, and can therefore be impacteddwtly in our medical membership. Prescription vaduah our PBM increased 8,080,000
prescriptions, or 2%, in 2005 primarily due to gthwn both our mail order and retail operations.
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VIIl. Results of Operations—Year Ended DecembeB1, 2005 Compared to the Year Ended December 31,020
Our consolidated results of operations for the yesmded December 31, 2005 and 2004 are discusseel fiollowing section.

Comparable
Docember 51 Jpasiste
December 31
2005 20041 % Change 2004 $ Change % Change
(In millions, except per share data)
Premiums $40,680.( $18,678.: 11&% $ 38,050.: $2,629.° 7%
Administrative fee: 2,719.: 1,457.( 87 2,493.( 226.2 9
Other revenut 519.2 218.¢ 13€ 489.2 30.C 6
Total operating revent 43,918.: 20,353 11€ 41,032.! 2,885.¢ 7
Net investment incom 633.1 311.7 102 563.1 NM4 NMm*
Net realized (losses) gains on investme (10.2) 42.F (124 75.¢ NM4 NM#4
Total revenue 44,541 20,707.¢ 11F 41,671.! NM* NM*
Benefit expens 32,625.: 15,280.¢ 114 30,731.( 1,894.; 6
Selling, general and administrative exper
Selling expens 1,474.. 537.2 174 1,358.( 116.Z 9
General and administrative expel 5,798.! 2,940.! 97 5,479. 319.2 6
Total selling, general and administrative
expens¢ 7,272 3,477. 10¢ 6,837. 435. 6
Cost of drugs 288.( 95.C 20¢ 269.¢ 18.2 7
Interest expense 226.2 142.: 59 190.4 NM* NM4
Amortization of other intangible assets 238.¢ 61.2 28¢ 104.F NM4 NM#4
Merger-related undertaking _ 61.F (100) 61.E NM4 NM#4
Loss on repurchase of debt securities — 146.1 (100 146.1 NM4 NM#4
Total expense 40,651.( 19,264.( 111 38,340.! NM#4 NM4
Income before income tax expense 3,890.: 1,443 17C 3,330.¢ NM4 NM#4
Income tax expens 1,426.! 483.2 19t 1,238.: NM#4 NM4
Net income $2463¢ $ 960.] 157 $ 2,002.¢ NM* NM#
Average diluted shares outstand 625.¢ 314.¢ 99 NM4 NM4 NM4
Diluted net income per share $ 3.94 $ 3.0F 29 NM#4 NM4 NM#4
Benefit expense ratid 80.2% 81.8% (16Q)bp* 80.8% (6Q)bp©
Selling, general and administrative expe
ratio’ 16.6% 17.1% (5Q)bp® 16.7% (10)bp®©
Income before income taxes as a percer
of total revenut 8.7% 7.C% 17Cbp® NM*4 NM#4
Net income as a percentage of total reve 5.504 4.6% 9Cbp® NM#4 NM#4

Certain of the following definitions are also apgplble to all other results of operations tablethis discussion:

1 Financial results for 2004 include operations &ffibrmer WellPoint Health Networks Inc. for the anenth period ended December 31,
2004 and the former Anthem, Inc. for the year eridedember 31, 2004.
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2 See below for discussion of “comparable basis”rimfation.

3 For certain line items impacted by the merger ofhem and WHN, comparable basis is not meaningfaltduelated capitalization and
purchase accounting.

NM = Not meaningful

Benefit expense ratio = Benefit expense + Premiums.

bp = basis point; one hundred basis points = 1%.

Selling, general and administrative expense raflmtal selling, general and administrative expen3etal operating revenue.

~N o o b

We discuss our 2005 and 2004 operations using “eoatybe basis” information, which is presented tvjte a more meaningful 2004
comparison to 2005, due to the merger with WHN. @arable basis information is not calculated in agance with GAAP and is not intenc
to represent or be indicative of the results of M@&iht, Inc. had the merger been completed asrofaly 1, 2004. Comparable basis informe
for the year ended December 31, 2004 was calculgtediding the reclassified historical statemefiisame for the former WHN for the 11
months ended November 30, 2004 to the reportedtsesfVellPoint, Inc. for the year ended DecembBer2004, which includes one month of
the former WHN. Comparable basis information cargaio intercompany eliminations or pro forma adnesits.

WellPoint, Inc.

WellPoint
Health
Networks Inc.

WellPoint, Inc.

Eleven Months Compa(able
$Z§re£:éfg Ended Reclassificatior YeaE:aESrlijed
December 31, November 30, December 31,
2004 2004 Adjustments 2004
(In millions)
Premiums $ 18,678.. $ 19,804. $ (432.7) $ 38,050..
Administrative fee: 1,457.( 1,108.¢ (72.9) 2,493.(
Other revenur 218.¢ 54.1 216.7 489.2
Total operating revent 20,353." 20,967. (288.9 41,032.!
Net investment incom 311.7 276.< (24.9 563.1
Net realized gains on investmel 42.5 8.4 25.C 75.€
Total revenue 20,707.¢ 21,252.. (288.¢) 41,671.!
Benefit expens 15,280.¢ 15,925.! (475.7) 30,731.(
Selling, general and administrative exper
Selling expens 537.2 820.¢ — 1,358.(
General and administrative expel 2,940.! 2,493.¢ 45.4 5,479.1
Total selling, general and administrative expe 3,477, 3,314.. 45.4 6,837.:
Cost of drug 95.C 32.€ 142.2 269.¢
Interest expens 142.% 48.1 — 190.4
Amortization of other intangible ass¢ 61.4 7.8 35.: 104.t
Other expense — 36.€ (36.6) —
Mergel-related undertaking 61.t — — 61.t
Loss on repurchase of debt securi 146.] — — 146.1
Total expense 19,264 19,364.! (288.€) 38,340.¢
Income before income tax exper 1,443.: 1,887.¢ — 3,330.¢
Income tax expens 483.2 755.] — 1,238.!
Net income $ 960.1 $ 1,132t $ — $ 2,092.¢
Benefit expense ratid 81.8% 80.8%

Selling, general and administrative expense Fatio 17.1% 16.7%

1 Represents the reclassification of certain WHNdnisal amounts to conform to a consistent presiematith WellPoint.
2 Benefit expense ratio = Benefit expense + Premiums.
3 Selling, general and administrative expense raflmtal selling, general and administrative expen3etal operating revenue.
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WellPoint, Inc.

WellPoint
Health
Networks Inc.

WellPoint, Inc.

Eleven Months Comparable
as Reported Basis
Year Ended Ended Reclassificatior Year Ended
December 31, November 30, December 31,
2004 2004 Adjustments 2004
(In millions)
Operating Revenue:
Health Care $ 19,427’ $ 20,014. $ (460.9) $ 38,982..
Specialty 1,447 .( 976.( 423.( 2,846.(
Other:
External customer 208.¢ 37.4 69.¢ 315.¢
Elimination of intersegment reven (729.6) (60.5) (321.9) (1,111.9
Total Other (521.0) (23.1) (251.6) (795.7)
Total operating revent $ 20,353’ $ 20,967. $ (288.9 $ 41,032
Operating Gain (Loss)
Health Care $ 1,497. $ 1,507. $ (9.2 $ 2,995.¢
Specialty 105.2 226.( 6.C 337.2
Other (102.2) (38.9) 1.8 (138.%)

Premiums increased $22.0 billion, or 118%, to $40libn in 2005. On a comparable basis, premiuoréased $2.6 billion, or 7%,
primarily due to premium rate increases in our ka@youp, ISG and Senior businesses and memberainip ig our ISG, State Sponsored and
Senior membership types. Partially offsetting theact of premium rate increases was the converdisome Large Group customers from
fully-insured contracts to self-funded arrangememis the non-renewal of certain fully-insured actsu

Administrative fees increased $1.3 billion, or 8%%$2.7 billion in 2005. On a comparable basisnaistrative fees increased $226.2
million, or 9%, primarily due to increased self-led membership in our National and Large Groupriassies. These membership gains are
driven by the popularity of the BlueCard prograseell as successful efforts to attract large geified accounts and the continuing trend
towards self-funded arrangements over fully-inswredtracts among our Large Group customers.

Other revenue principally includes amounts fromlroader drug sales by our PBM companies, which jgles services to members of
our Health Care segment and third party clienthe®tevenue increased $300.8 million, or 138% 5b92 million in 2005. On a comparable
basis, other revenue increased $30.0 million, oy marily due to additional mail-order prescriptirevenue and increased prices of
prescription drugs sold by our PBM companies. laseel mail-order prescription volume resulted frathbmembership increases and
additional utilization of our PBM’s mail-order phmacy option.

Net investment income increased $321.4 milliorl @8%, to $633.1 million in 2005 primarily resultifigm invested assets acquired \
the WHN merger (net of cash used in the merger)fiammd growth in invested assets from reinvestmémiagh generated from operations.

A summary of our net realized (losses) gains oestments for the years ended December 31, 2002G0dis as follows:

Year Ended
December 31
2005 2004 $ Change
(In millions)
Net realized (losses) gains from the sale of fisedurity securitie: $(25.9) $40.€ $ (65.9
Net realized gains from the sale of equity seas 22.C 3.3 18.7
Otherthar-temporary impairmen—credit relatec (14.¢) (0.9 (24.0
Other realized gains (losse¢ 7.9 (0.6) 8.5
Net realized (losses) gai $(10.2) $42.5 $ (52.7)
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In 2005, net realized gains and losses from theddixed maturity and equity securities were ity due to restructuring of our
portfolio as a result of integration activitiesatdd to our merger with WHN.

During 2004, we reallocated securities in our fixeaturity portfolio, primarily to optimize futureftar-tax income by investing in a
higher mix of tax-exempt fixed maturity securitidhie sale of fixed maturity securities associatéti this reallocation resulted in the majority
of the net realized gains reported during the pealed December 31, 2004.

Net gains or losses on investments are influengeddrket conditions when an investment is sold, aitidvary from year to year.

Other-than-temporary impairments in 2005 were axprately equal between equity securities and fiscedurity securities, while in
2004, other-than-temporary impairments were sukisihnrelated to equity securities. Other-than-parary impairments in both 2005 and
2004 are primarily due to the length of time thatlssecurities’ fair value had been less than cost.

Benefit expense increased $17.3 billion, or 1149432.6 billion in 2005. On a comparable basisgfierxpense increased $1.9 billion,
or 6%, primarily due to increased cost of care clvhivas driven primarily by higher costs in outpatiand inpatient services. In addition, our
benefit expense included $35.0 million in 2005 tedeto the MDL settlement agreement discussedgniftéant Transactions within this
MD&A. On a comparable basis, our benefit expensie decreased 60 basis points from 80.8% in 20@Dt@% in 2005. The decrease in our
benefit expense ratio is driven by moderating obstare trends coupled with disciplined underwgtpractices.

Selling, general and administrative expense ine@&8.8 billion, or 109%, to $7.3 billion in 2008n a comparable basis, selling, ger
and administrative expense increased $435.4 mjlbo6%, primarily due to increases in volume-sivesicosts such as higher commissions,
premium taxes and other expenses associated veitttlyin our business; increased incentive compé@nrsahcluding merger-related stay
bonuses; and costs associated with the transifiorffamation technology infrastructure servicedBd/. In addition, we incurred expenses
related to the MDL settlement agreement and statasts related to Medicare Part D. On a compataddes, our selling, general and
administrative expense ratio decreased 10 basdsim 16.6% in 2005, primarily due to growth ireagting revenue and the leveraging of
costs over a larger membership base, partiallyebffg the factors noted above.

Cost of drugs increased $193.0 million, or 203%%$288.0 million in 2005. On a comparable basis ocbsirugs increased $18.2 million,
or 7%, primarily due to higher mail-order presdoptvolume at our PBM companies.

Interest expense increased $83.9 million, or 5828226.2 million in 2005, primarily due to additadrinterest expense on the debt
incurred in conjunction with the WHN merger, pdtjiaffset by reduced interest expense from theirelpase of debt securities in Decembe
2004.

Amortization of other intangible assets increased7s million, or 289%, to $238.9 million in 20Q&imarily due to a full year of
additional amortization expense related to ideati® intangible assets with finite lives resultfrgm the WHN merger.

Income tax expense increased $943.3 million, oP4,96 $1,426.5 million in 2005. Included in 2005s/%28.4 million in tax benefits
associated with a refund claim recognizing the dgbility of capital losses on the sale of certairbsidiaries that occurred in prior years.
Included in 2004 was $44.8 million in tax benefissociated with a change in Indiana laws goveritiagstate’s highiisk health insurance po

Our net income as a percentage of total revenueased 90 basis points, from 4.6% in 2004 to 5/52005. The increase in this metric
reflects a combination of all factors discussedvabo
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The discussion of segment results for the yearsecdietcember 31, 2005 and 2004 presented belowaaesllmn operating gain, as
described above, and operating margin, which isutatled as operating gain divided by operating maee Our definitions of operating gain ¢
operating margin may not be comparable to similatlgd measures reported by other companies.

Health Care

Our Health Care segment’s summarized results afatipas for the year ended December 31, 2005 afd ate as follows:

Comparable
Year Ended Basis
December 31 Year Ended
December 31
2005 2004 % Change 2004 $ Change % Change
(In millions)
Operating revenu $41,867.( $19,427. 11€% $ 38,982.: $2,884.¢ 7%
Operating gait $ 3,418.( $ 1,497.. 12&% $ 2,995.¢ $ 422.1 14%
Operating margil 8.2% 7.7% 5Cbp 7.7% 5Cbp

Operating revenue increased $22.4 billion, or 1168441.9 billion. On a comparable basis, operatévgnue increased $2.9 billion, or
7%, primarily due to growth in premium income agsult of premium rate increases in our Large Grangh ISG businesses resulting from
underwriting discipline. Also contributing to prewni revenue growth was higher membership, primamilyur ISG and State Sponsored
businesses. Administrative fees also increasedgpilydue to additional self-funded membership itilnal Accounts and Large Group

businesses.
Operating gain increased $1.9 billion, or 128%$304 billion. On a comparable basis, operating gaireased $422.1 million, or 14%,

primarily due to premium rate increases mentiorteal/a along with membership growth and lower thgmeeied cost of care within our ISG,
Senior and Large Group businesses. Partially difigethis increase was the impact of the $103.(0ianilpre-tax expense recognized in

connection with the MDL settlement agreement in5200

Specialty
Our Specialty segment’s summarized results of djpesfor the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2f@0as follows:
Comparable
Year Ended Basis
December 31 Year Ended
December 31
2005 2004 % Change 2004 $ Change % Change
(In millions)
Operating revenu $3,066.: $1,447 ( 112% $ 2,846.( $220.1 8%
Operating gait $ 4264 $ 105.Z 305% $ 337 $ 89.2 26%
Operating margi 13.%% 7.3% 66Cbp 11.€% 21Cbp

Operating revenue increased $1.6 billion, or 112943.1 billion. On a comparable basis, operatewgnue increased $220.1 million, or
8%, primarily due to increases in PBM operatingeraye driven by improved pharmaceutical contraciing increased script volume,
particularly mail-order script volume. This increasas partially offset by decreases in behavicgalth revenue due to the standardization in

funding arrangements between Health Care and Spyestgments.

Operating gain increased $321.2 million, or 30584426.4 million. On a comparable basis, operagaig increased $89.2 million or
26%, primarily due to an increase in PBM, behavibealth and dental businesses.
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On a comparable basis, PBM operating gain incredgsedo higher script volume and improved pharmacalucontracting. In addition,
operating gain from behavioral health increasede@standardized funding arrangements between th#Heare and Specialty segments.
Finally, membership growth, driven primarily by ttransition of 1.9 million behavioral health memb&om an outside vendor, also
contributed to the improved results in Specialtyrsent. These gains are partially offset by decikesies on workers’ compensation insurance
in California driven by unfavorable legislation.

Other

Our summarized results of operations for our Otfegiment for the years ended December 31, 2005G0%i&e as follows:

Comparable
Year Ended Basis Year
December 31 Ended
December 31
2005 2004 % Change 2004 $ Change % Change
(In millions)
Operating revenue frol
external customel $ 333.€ $ 208.¢ 6% $ 315.¢ $ 17.7 6%
Elimination of
intersegment revent (1,348.9) (729.6 85% (1,111.¢ (236.7) 21%
Total operating
revenue $(1,014.) $(521.0) 95% $ (795.%) $(219.0 28%
Operating los: $ (111.9  $(102.9) 9% $ (138.7) % 26.€ (19)%

Operating revenue from external customers incre@i$2d.0 million, or 60%, to $333.6 million. On angparable basis, operating revel
from external customers increased $17.7 millior6% The elimination of intersegment revenue inseele$618.7 million, or 85%. On a
comparable basis, the elimination of intersegmenenue increased $236.7 million, or 21%, reflectidditional sales by our PBM companies
to our Health Care segment.

Operating loss increased $9.7 million, or 9%, t&%2 million. On a comparable basis, operating myeased $26.8 million or 19%,
primarily due to expenses not allocated to the tHeahre or Specialty segments.

IX. Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our consolidated financial statementsirformity with U.S. generally accepted accounfnigiciples, or GAAP. Application
of GAAP requires management to make estimates ssuhaptions that affect the amounts reported irconsolidated financial statements and
accompanying notes and within this MD&A. We consigeme of our most important accounting policies tiequire estimates and
management judgment to be those policies with gpdiabilities for medical claims payable, incetaxes, goodwill and other intangible
assets, investments and retirement benefits, wariehliscussed below. Our significant accountindgcfas are summarized in Note 2 to our
audited consolidated financial statements for & ynded December 31, 2006 included in this FarK.1

Medical Claims Payabl

The most judgmental accounting estimate in our aliested financial statements is our liability foedical claims payable. At
December 31, 2006, this liability was $5.3 billiand represented 19% of our total consolidatedliiggs. We record this liability and the
corresponding benefit expense for incurred butpadd claims including the estimated costs of preicgssuch claims. Incurred but not paid
claims include (1) an
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estimate for claims that are incurred but not regghras well as claims reported to us but not yetgssed through our systems, which
approximated 95%, or $5.1 billion, of our total read claims liability as of December 31, 2006; g8) claims reported to us and processed
through our systems but not yet paid, which appnatéd 5%, or $239.3 million, of the total medidalms liability as of December 31, 2006.
The level of claims payable processed through gstesns but not yet paid may fluctuate from oneqakend to the next, from 1% to 5% of «
total medical claims liability, due to timing of wh claim payments are made.

Liabilities for both claims incurred but not repedtand reported but not yet processed throughysterss are determined in aggregate,
employing actuarial methods that are commonly useklealth insurance actuaries and meet Actuaréaidstrds of Practice. Actuarial
Standards of Practice require that the claim ligddl be adequate under moderately adverse cireunoss. We determine the amount of the
liability for incurred but not paid claims by folldng a detailed actuarial process that entailsgubth historical claim payment patterns as
as emerging medical cost trends to project our ésghate of claim liabilities. Under this procesistorical data of paid claims is formatted
into “claim triangles,” which compare claim incudrdates to the dates of claim payments. This inétion is analyzed to create “completion
factors” that represent the average percentagatalfincurred claims that have been paid througtvan date after being incurred. Completion
factors are applied to claims paid through therfoial statement date to estimate the ultimate ckipense incurred for the current period.
Actuarial estimates of incurred but not paid cléimbilities are then determined by subtractingdletual paid claims from the estimate of the
ultimate incurred claims.

For the most recent incurred months (generallyntbst recent two months), the percentage of claians for claims incurred in those
months is generally low. This makes the completamtor methodology less reliable for such monthseréfore, incurred claims for recent
months are not projected from historical completiond payment patterns; rather they are projectesktisnating the claims expense for those
months based on recent claims expense levels aiith lvare trend levels, or “trend factors”.

Because the reserve methodology is based uponib@tmformation, it must be adjusted for knownsomispected operational and
environmental changes. These adjustments are nyaoler lactuaries based on their knowledge and #stimate of emerging impacts to ben
costs and payment speed. Circumstances to be eoedith developing our best estimate of reservdade changes in utilization levels, unit
costs, mix of business, benefit plan designs, gervwieimbursement levels, processing system coiovesrand changes, claim inventory levels,
claim processing patterns, claim submission pattand operational changes resulting from businesginations. A comparison of prior
period liabilities to re-estimated claim liabiliidvased on subsequent claims development is atsidesed in making the liability
determination. In our comparison of prior year, thethods and assumptions are not changed as resee/eecalculated, rather the availability
of additional paid claims information drives oulaciges in the re-estimate of the unpaid claim lighilo the extent appropriate, changes in
such development are recorded as a change to tpegad benefit expense.

In addition to incurred but not paid claims, thability for medical claims payable includes ressrf@ premium deficiencies, if
appropriate. Premium deficiencies are recognizeeinwtis probable that expected claims and admatise expenses will exceed future
premiums on existing medical insurance contractsauit consideration of investment income. Detertidmaof premium deficiencies for
longer duration life and disability contracts, whiare reported with reserves for future policy igaeincludes consideration of investment
income. For purposes of premium deficiencies, @mtérare grouped in a manner consistent with otinadeof acquiring, servicing and
measuring the profitability of such contracts.

We regularly review and set assumptions regardasg ttends and utilization when initially estabirgiclaim liabilities. We continually
monitor and adjust the claims liability and benefipense based on subsequent paid claims activitys determined that our assumptions
regarding cost trends and utilization are signiftbadifferent than actual results, our incomeesta¢nt and financial position could be impacted
in future periods. Adjustments of prior year estiesamay result in additional benefit expense adaiction of benefit expense in the period an
adjustment is made. Further, due to the considenadriability of health care costs, adjustments to
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claim liabilities occur each quarter and are somes significant as compared to the net income decbin that quarter. Prior period
development is recognized immediately upon theaagts judgment that a portion of the prior periabillity is no longer needed or that an
additional liability should have been accrued. Tdetermination is made when sufficient informatisavailable to ascertain that the re-
estimate of the liability is reasonable.

While there are many factors that are used astabptre estimation of our medical claims payad®ility, the two key assumptions
having the most significant impact on our incurbed not paid liability as of December 31, 2006 wie completion and trend factors. As
discussed above, these two key assumptions carflbericed by other operational variables includiggtem changes, provider submission
patterns and business combinations.

There is variation in the reasonable choice of detign factors by duration for durations of threenths through 12 months where the
completion factors have the most significant impAst previously discussed, completion factors tenle less reliable for the most recent
months and therefore are not specifically utilif@dmonths one and two. At December 31, 2006, #r&bility in months three to five was
estimated to be between 20 and 70 basis point$e witinths six through twelve have much lower valitglranging from 10 to 20 basis poin

Over the period from December 31, 2005 to DecerBligP006, completion factors have increased. Withsieration of claim payments
through December 31, 2006, the completion factseezluo determine the incurred but not paid claihility estimate for the December 31,
2005 valuation period have developed higher thasghused at December 31, 2005, primarily becausseveeceiving claims information frc
our providers more timely as a result of increasledtronic submissions. In addition, we are payilams more quickly once they have been
received. This resulted in approximately $113.8iarilof redundancy in the December 31, 2005 estraat is included in the statement of
income for the year ended December 31, 2006. Tdrifrued increase has been taken into considerati@m determining the completion
factors used in establishing the December 31, 20f16red but not paid claim liability by choosirgcfors that reflect the more recent
experience. The difference in completion factouagstions, assuming moderately adverse experieasalts in variability of 2%, or
approximately $101.0 million, in the December 300& incurred but not paid claim liability, depenglion the completion factors chosen. It is
important to note that the completion factor metilody inherently assumes that historical completates will be reflective of the current
period. However, it is possible that the actual ptation rates for the current period will develdffietently from historical patterns and
therefore could fall outside the possible variatidiescribed herein.

Over the period from December 31, 2004 to DecerBtheP005, completion factors increased. With caersition of claims payment
through December 31, 2005, the completion facteexliuo determine the incurred but not paid claahility estimate for the December 31,
2004 valuation period have developed higher thasghused at December 31, 2004, primarily becausseveeceiving claims information frc
our providers more timely as a result of increasledtronic submissions. This resulted in approxétya$194.3 million of redundancy in the
December 31, 2004 estimate and included in therstatt of income for the year ended December 315.20003, results presented repre:
the former Anthem, Inc. on a stand alone basis. tOdke acquisition of WHN at the end of 2004, thperiods are not on a comparable basis.
Therefore, changes in assumptions from 2003 to 20040t meaningful in comparing these periods.

The other major assumption used in the establishofehe December 31, 2006 incurred but not paaihcliability was the trend factors
used in determining the claims expense per mendrempnth for the most recent two incurral monthsD&cember 31, 2006, there was a 740
basis point differential in the high and low trefladtors assuming moderately adverse experiencs.rdhge of trend factors would imply
variability of 10%, or approximately $504.0 milliom the incurred but not paid claims liability,mding upon the trend factor used. Because
historical trend factors are often not represewgatif current claim trends, the trend experiencdlfe most recent six to nine months, plus
knowledge of recent events likely affecting curreahds, have been taken
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into consideration in establishing the incurred foit paid claim liability at December 31, 2006. e look at the year-overear claim trend fc
the prior period (November and December 2005) coetht the current period (November and Decemb@6R@he trend used in our reserve
models have increased moderately due to mix chaegetting from the introduction of Part D drug mdeand other product changes. However,
claim trends observed as of December 31, 2005 hgsausubsequent claim runout were lower than ipatied in the assumptions used to
estimate medical claims payable at December 315.20Mis decline was due to moderating outpatientice trends and declines in pharmacy
benefit cost trend. This difference between thedseassumed in establishing the December 31, 2@@%cal claims payable, and the trend
observed based upon subsequent claims runout thitbegwelve months ended December 31, 2006, ezbirtapproximately $504.1 million

of redundancy in the December 31, 2005 estimaterarhaided in the statement of income for the yewteel December 31, 2006.

Over the period from 2004 to 2005, claim trenddided. Claim trends observed based upon subseglant runout were lower than
anticipated in the assumptions used to estimatecaledaims payable at December 31, 2004. Thisideslas due to moderating outpatient
service trends and declines in pharmacy beneftttomsd. This difference between the trends assumesdtablishing the December 31, 2004
medical claims payable, and the trend observeddbgsen subsequent claims runout, resulted in appaely $450.6 million of redundancy
the December 31, 2004 estimate and included istitement of income for the year ended Decembe2®B15.

As summarized below, Note 10 to our audited codatdid financial statements for the year ended Dbeefil, 2006 included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K provides historical imf@tion regarding the accrual and payment of outica claims liability. Components of
the total incurred claims for each year include ants accrued for current year estimated claims esg@as well as adjustments to prior year
estimated accruals. In Note 10 to our audited dateged financial statements, the line labeled “Metirred medical claims: Prior years
(redundancies)” accounts for those adjustments rteagdor year estimates. The impact of any reductf “Net incurred medical claims: Pri
years (redundancie” claims may be offset as we establish the estiroftdlet incurred medical claims: Current yea@ur reserving practice
to consistently recognize the actuarial best esdrofour ultimate liability for our claims. Wherewecognize a release of the redundancy, we
disclose the amount that is not in the ordinaryrsewf business, if material. We believe we havesistently applied our methodology in
determining our best estimate for unpaid claimisiliy at each reporting date.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending bakfar medical claims payable for the years endecebBer 31, 2006, 2005 and 200
as follows:

Years Ended December 3

2006 2005 2004
(In millions)
Gross medical claims payable, beginning of pe $ 4,853.: $ 4,134.( $ 1,836.(
Ceded medical claims payable, beginning of pe (27.9) (31.9 (8.7
Net medical claims payable, beginning of pei 4,825. 4,102.; 1,827.:
Business combinations and purchase adjustn (6.4) 784.% 2,331.(
Net incurred medical claim

Current yea 42,613.. 32,865. 15,344.

Prior years (redundancie (617.7%) (644.9 (171.9

Total net incurred medical clain 41,995.! 32,220. 15,173.(
Net payments attributable t

Current year medical clain 37,486.( 28,997.. 12,453..

Prior years medical clairn 4,089.! 3,284.! 2,776.(

Total net payment 41,575.! 32,281.¢ 15,229..
Net medical claims payable, end of per 5,239.: 4,825.7 4,102.:
Ceded medical claims payable, end of pe 51.C 27.7 31.€
Gross medical claims payable, end of pe $ 5,290.: $ 4,853.¢ $ 4,134.(
Current year medical claims paid as a percent oEatiyear net incurred medical clail 88.(% 88.2% 81.2%
Prior year redundancies in the current period pereent of prior year net medical clair

payable less prior year redundancies in the cuperitd 14.7% 18.7% 10.4&%
Prior year redundancies in the current period pesreent of prior year net incurred
medical claims 1.9% 4.2% 1.4%

Amounts incurred related to prior years vary fromavously estimated liabilities as the claims atanately settled. Liabilities at any
period end are continually reviewed and re-estithatinformation regarding actual claims paymemtsynout, becomes known. This
information is compared to the originally estabdidtyear end liability. Negative amounts reportadriourred related to prior years result from
claims being settled for amounts less than orityiredtimated. The prior year redundancy of $617illian shown above for the year ended
December 31, 2006 represents an estimate baseaidolaim activity from January 1, 2006 to DecemBgr2006. Medical claim liabilities a
usually described as having a “short tail”, whichans that they are generally paid within severaithmof the member receiving service from
the provider. Accordingly, the majority, or appnamtely 82%, of the $617.7 million redundancy redateclaims incurred in calendar year
2005, with the remaining 18% related to claims med in 2004 and prior.

The ratio of current year medical claims paid aeent of current year net medical claims incumed 88.0% for 2006, 88.2% for 2005
and 81.2% for 2004. The 2004 ratio was impactedasng only one month of medical claims incurred gaid during 2004 for the former
WHN. If the former WHN had not been included dur@p4, current year medical claims payments woaltttbeen $12,057.7 million,
current year net incurred medical claims would haeen $13,835.1 million and the adjusted ratio @Wdwdve been approximately 87.2% for
2004. Comparison of the 2006 ratio of 88.0% and2@5 ratio of 88.2% reflect a moderate decline tdugystem conversions and integration
activity that impacted the 2006 ratio. Comparisbthe 2005 ratio of 88.2% and the adjusted 2004 &Ht87.2% indicate that we paid claims
faster between those periods. The increase wasplynattributable to improved processes and oowigler networks submitting claims
information to us more timely as a result of inse@ electronic submissions. The result of thesagd®is an enhanced ability to adjudicate
pay claims more quickly.
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We calculate the percentage of prior year redunidaric the current period as a percent of prior yed incurred claims payable less p
year redundancies in the current period in ordeletmonstrate the development of the prior yearvese This metric was 14.7% for 20(
18.7% for 2005 and 10.4% for 2004. As discussedipusly, the 400 basis point decrease in this métri 2006 was caused by actual
completion factors and claim trends differing frime assumptions used to support our best estimdite incurred but not paid claim liability
of the prior period.

We calculate the percentage of prior year redunidaric the current period as a percent of prior yed incurred medical claims to
indicate the percentage of redundancy includetiérpreceding year calculation of current year metiired medical claims. We believe this
calculation indicates the reasonableness of oor gaar estimation of incurred medical claims aml ¢onsistency of our methodology. This
metric was 1.9% for 2006, 4.2% for 2005 and 1.4%@2f@04. This ratio is calculated using the redumngasf $617.7 million, shown above,
which represents an estimate based on paid cldimtadrom January 1, 2006 to December 31, 200%e 2006 ratio is impacted by having no
net incurred medical claims for the former WellGtgilnc. in 2005. If the former Wellchoice, Incdhgeen included for the full year 2005, this
ratio would have been approximately 1.6%. The 2@®® is impacted by having only one month of meirred medical claims for WHN in
2004. If WHN had been included for the full yeaB20estimated prior year net incurred medical ctamould have been $30,819.1 million,
and the adjusted ratio would have been approxim&téPs for the year ended December 31, 2005.

The following table shows the variance between to¢aincurred medical claims as reported in thevattable for each of 2005 and 2004
and the incurred claims for such years had it lmktarmined retrospectively (computed as the diffeeebetween “net incurred medical
claims—current year” for the year shown and “neuimed medical claims—prior years (redundancies)tfie immediately following year):

Years Ended December 31

2005 2004
(In millions)
Total net incurred medical claims, as repol $32,220. $15,173.(
Retrospective basis, as described at 32,247 14,700.(
Variance $ (27.9 $ 473.(
Variance to total net incurred medical claims,esorted (0.2)% 3.1%

Given that our business is primarily short tailéd variance to total net incurred medical claiassteported above, is used to assess the
reasonableness of our estimate of ultimate incumredical claims for a given calendar year withlibaefit of one year of experience. We
expect that substantially all of the developmerthef2006 estimate of medical claims payable valkhown during 2007.

The 2005 variance of $(27.2) million and varianzéatal incurred medical claims, as reported of Y% are impacted by having no
WellChoice, Inc. activity in the total incurred ported during 2005 and full development of attifiom the former WellChoice, Inc. in the
retrospective basis amount. The adjusted variameédibe approximately $(175.2) million and the gare to total incurred would be
approximately (0.5)% if the impact of WellChoicerésnoved.

The 2004 variance of $473.0 million and variancetal incurred medical claims, as reported of 3d#impacted by having only one
month of total incurred as reported for WHN dur@P4 and a full development of WHN activity in ttegrospective basis amount. The
adjusted variance would be approximately $136.%5ioniland the variance to total incurred would bpragimately 1.0% if the impact of WHN
is removed.

These small variances to total net incurred medieans, adjusted for the impacts of WellChoices. land WHN, shows that our
estimates of this liability have approximated tk&ual experience for the years depicted.
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Income Taxes

We account for income taxes in accordance witheBtant of Financial Accounting Standards No. J8&;ounting for Income Taxes
This standard requires, among other things, tharagprecognition of deferred tax assets and defdax liabilities. Such deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities represent the taxctftd temporary differences between financial réipgrand tax reporting measured at tax rates
enacted at the time the deferred tax asset ofitialsi recorded. A valuation allowance must beabished for deferred tax assets if it is “more
likely than not” that all or a portion may be unized. Our judgment is required in determining @p@priate valuation allowance.

At each financial reporting date, we assess thguatsy of the valuation allowance by evaluating ezfobur deferred tax assets based on
the following:

» the types of temporary differences that createdi#ierred tax asset;

» the amount of taxes paid in prior periods and atwéél for a carry-back claim;

» the forecasted future taxable income, and therghtuady future deduction of the deferred tax iteamd
» any significant other issues impacting the likedglization of the benefit of the temporary differes.

During 2006 the valuation allowance increased h$ $@illion. This resulted from realized and unreadl capital losses of subsidiaries,
which are not included in our consolidated tax metiDuring 2004 and 2003, the valuation allowaneerdased by $33.8 million and
$81.9 million, respectively. The 2004 and 2003 rtituns resulted from utilizing alternative minimuex, or AMT, credits and net operating
losses on our federal income tax return for whiehhad a deferred tax asset with a correspondingtiah allowance. As deferred tax assets
related to those deductions are available for mdke tax return, a valuation was no longer reqguéned was reduced. The decrease in the
valuation allowance in 2004 was partially offsetdyyadditional $5.6 million related to Indiana stttxes, as discussed below.

During 2004 and 2003, we recorded additional takilities of $44.1 million and $81.9 million, respizely, offsetting the reduction in
valuation allowances discussed above. These additiabilities were recorded for uncertainty ones@l tax issues, including the lack of clear
guidance from the Internal Revenue Service, or BtSyarious tax issues relating to our conversiohd86 from tax-exempt to tax-paying
status.

During the third quarter of 2006, we decreasedstate deferred tax liability by $43.0 million, rétng in a tax benefit, net of federal
taxes, of $28.0 million, or $0.04 per basic andteid share, for the year ended December 31, 2008 r@sulted from a lower effective tax rate
due to changes in our state apportionment factdi®fing the WellChoice acquisition.

During 2005, a refund claim we filed in 2003 wagigved by the Congressional Joint Committee on fi@xaThe claim related to
initially disallowed losses on the sale of certsibsidiaries in the late 1990s. A tax benefit &.82nillion related to this claim was recorded in
the first quarter of 2005. Net income related is tiaim was $0.04 per basic and diluted shar¢hferyear ended December 31, 2005.

As a result of legislation enacted in Indiana orréfal6, 2004, we recorded deferred tax assetsialpitities, with a corresponding net !
benefit in our income statement of $44.8 million$0.15 per basic share and $0.14 per diluted sfarthe year ended December 31, 2004.
The legislation eliminated the creation of tax @®desulting from the payment of future assessmtmthe Indiana Comprehensive Health
Insurance Association, or ICHIA. ICHIA is Indiandigyh-risk health insurance pool. Our historicaHI@ assessment payments far exceeded
our Indiana income tax liability. Thus, the recdgmi of a state deferred tax asset was not wamaatea future Indiana tax liability was
unlikely. Under the new legislation, ICHIA tax ciedare limited to any unused ICHIA assessment pdit to December 31, 2004. FAS 109
requires that deferred assets or liabilities bal#isthed in the period a change in law is enadthdse deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect
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temporary differences, net operating loss carryéods and tax credits relating to our Indiana incéaxefilings. Following guidance in FAS
109, a valuation allowance of $5.6 million was bBthed for the portion of the deferred tax ass#iich we believe will likely not be utilized.
There is no carryforward limitation on the tax dtednd the net operating loss carryforwards ddoegfin to expire until 2018. We believe we
will have sufficient taxable income in future yetoffset these carryforwards; therefore, no aolditl valuation allowance was recorded.

We, like other companies, frequently face challesnfgem tax authorities regarding the amount of sackee. These challenges include
guestions regarding the timing and amount of dedastthat we have taken on our tax returns. Inugatailg any additional tax liability
associated with various positions taken in ourréurn filings, we record additional tax liabilityr potential adverse tax outcomes. Based on
our evaluation of our tax positions, we believeha@e appropriately accrued for tax exposures. €@ient we prevail in matters we have
accrued for, our future effective tax rate wouldrééuced and net income would increase. If weegaired to pay more than accrued, our
future effective tax rate would increase and nebine would decrease. Our effective tax rate anéheetne in any given future period could
materially impacted.

In the ordinary course of business, we are reguartlited by federal and state authorities, anahftime to time, these audits result in
proposed assessments. We believe our tax posgamply with applicable tax law and intend to defennl positions vigorously through the
IRS appeals process. We believe we have adequatalided for any reasonable foreseeable outconagetto these matters. Accordingly,
although their ultimate resolution may require éiddal tax payments, we do not anticipate any nigtampact to earnings from these matters.
As of December 31, 2006, the IRS was nearing catioplef its examination of our 2003 tax year. TRSIwill continue auditing our 2004 tax
year and will initiate a review of the 2005 and @Q@8x years during 2007. In addition, the IRS mad#téd us to join the Compliance Assural
Program, or CAP, for 2007. The objective of CARviseduce taxpayer burden and uncertainty whilarasg the IRS of the accuracy of tax
returns prior to filing, thereby reducing or elirating the need for post-filing examinations. Vasgdax examinations and proceedings also
continue for certain subsidiaries for tax yearsipto being included in our consolidated tax return

For additional information, see Note 14 to our &edliconsolidated financial statements as of anthiyear ended December 31, 2006
included in this Form 10-K. See alslew Accounting Pronouncemeunisclosure included in this Critical Accounting ek and Estimates
section of our MD&A for discussion of new accoumgtiguidance related to uncertain tax positions.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Our consolidated goodwill at December 31, 2006 $&&4 billion and other intangible assets were $8l#bn. The sum of goodwill and
intangible assets represents 44% of our total dintaded assets and 93% of our consolidated shatetslequity at December 31, 2006.

We follow Statement of Financial Accounting Stamt$aNo. 141Business Combinationsand Statement of Accounting Standards
No. 142,Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset§AS 141 specifies the types of acquired intarg#ssets that are required to be recognized anc
reported separately from goodwill. Under FAS 14&ydwill and other intangible assets (with indefiritves) are not amortized but are tested
for impairment at least annually. We completed amual impairment tests of existing goodwill anldestintangible assets (with indefinite
lives) for each of the years ended December 316,20005 and 2004 and based upon these tests wenbaireurred any impairment losses
related to any goodwill and other intangible aséetith indefinite lives).

On December 28, 2005, we purchased 100% of théamglisg common stock of WellChoice, Inc. In accomawith FAS 141, we
allocated the purchase price to the fair valuessets acquired, including intangible assets, afiliies assumed. This allocation process
included the review of relevant information
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about the assets and liabilities, independent dggisaand other valuations to determine the fdinevaf assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
The allocation resulted in $3.5 billion of non-@de&ductible goodwill and $1.7 billion of identifiaintangible assets.

On November 30, 2004, we completed our merger WiHN and purchased 100% of the outstanding comnuasksif WHN. In
accordance with FAS 141, we allocated the purchase to the fair value of assets acquired, ingigdintangible assets, and liabilities
assumed. This allocation process included the wewoferelevant information about the assets andliiegs, independent appraisals and other
valuations to determine the fair value of assetgimed and liabilities assumed. The allocation ltesuin $7.6 billion of non-tax deductible
goodwill and $7.0 billion of identifiable intangilassets.

While we believe we have appropriately allocategighrchase price of our acquisitions, this allasatequires many assumptions to be
made regarding the fair value of assets and ltedslacquired. In addition, the annual impairmesting required under FAS 142 requires us to
make assumptions and judgments regarding the estinfiair value of our goodwill and intangibles. 8wssumptions include the discount
factor used to determine the fair value of a repgrtinit, which is ultimately used to identify pateal goodwill impairment. Such estimated {
values might produce significantly different restiftother reasonable assumptions and estimatestwdre used. If we are unable to support a
fair value estimate in future annual goodwill impaént tests or if significant impairment indicatarg noted relative to other intangible assets
subject to amortization, we may be required to meampairment losses against future income.

For additional information, see Note 4 to our aeditonsolidated financial statements as of anthfoyear ended December 31, 2006
included in this Form 10-K.

Investments

Current and long term available-for-sale investnssmurities were $17.5 billion at December 31, 2806 represented 34% of our total
consolidated assets at December 31, 2006. In aacoedvith Statement of Financial Accounting Stadsl@to. 115Accounting for Certain
Investments in Debt and Equity Securitour fixed maturity and equity securities are clfisdias “available-for-sale” securities and are
reported at fair value. We classify our investmémtavailable-for-sale fixed maturity securitiesedther current or noncurrent assets based on
their contractual maturity. Investment income isoreled when earned, and realized gains or lossésndined by specific identification of
investments sold, are included in income when #oaisties are sold.

WellPoint maintains various rabbi trusts to accdonthe assets and liabilities under certain defecompensation plans. Under these
plans, the participants can defer certain typesofpensation and elect to receive a return onefericed amounts based on the changes in fair
value of various investment options, primarily aisty of mutual funds. Rabbi trust assets were ipesty classified as noncurrent available-
for-sale investments. Effective January 1, 2006iarmbnnection with a restructuring of the plangl\Woint changed its classification for the
majority of such securities from available-for-saddrading, which are reported in “Other investsdets, current” in the consolidated balance
sheet. The change in the fair value of the tragimgfolio rabbi trust assets during 2006 resulte#35.6 million of realized gains, which,
together with net investment income from tradingtfodio rabbi trust assets of $8.6 million, is dd&d in general and administrative expense
in the consolidated statement of income, consistéthtthe related increase in compensation expense.

During December 2006, WellPoint initiated a prognatrereby it generally purchases corporate-ownedii$urance policies on
participants in the deferred compensation plans.dash surrender value of the corporate-ownedhlifierance policies is reported in “Other
invested assets, long-term” in the consolidatedrazd sheets. The change in cash surrender valeiedaded as an offset to premium expense
classified as general and administrative expense.

In addition to available-for-sale investment setiesi we held other long-term investments of $628il8on, or 1% of total consolidated
assets, at December 31, 2006. These long-termtineess consist primarily
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of real estate, cash surrender value of corporateed life insurance policies and certain other gtreents. Due to their less liquid nature, these
investments are classified as long-term.

An impairment review of securities to determindetlines in fair value below cost are other-thangerary is subjective and requires a
high degree of judgment. We evaluate our investraeatrrities on a quarterly basis, using both qtegtiveé and qualitative factors, to determine
whether a decline in value is other-than-tempor8nch factors considered include the length of tme the extent to which a security’s
market value has been less than its cost, finanoradition and near term prospects of the isseegmmendations of investment advisors, and
forecasts of economic, market or industry trenflany declines are determined to be other-than-tearp, we charge the losses to income
when that determination is made. We have a comenittade up of certain accounting and investmentéges and management responsible
for managing the impairment review process. Theetureconomic environment and recent volatilitgefurities markets increase the
difficulty of assessing investment impairment alnel $ame influences tend to increase the risk a@ntiatl impairment of these assets. We
recorded charges for other-than-temporary impaitroéeecurities of $56.2 million, $14.8 million af8.8 million, respectively, for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. The $5Bi@nmpairment for the year ended December 3I0@primarily related to our intent
to hold fixed maturity securities that were in amealized loss position due to the prevailing iesérate environment, as well as other-than-
temporary impairments of equity securities that haén in an unrealized loss position for an extdmgiod of time. Impairments recorded in
2005 and 2004 were primarily the result of the pargd credit deterioration on specific issuershim bond and equity markets.

We believe we have adequately reviewed our investisecurities for impairment and that our investigrturities are carried at fair
value. However, over time, the economic and magketronment may provide additional insight regagdine fair value of certain securities,
which could change our judgment regarding impainmé€his could result in realized losses relatingtioer-than-temporary declines being
charged against future income.

A summary of available-for-sale investments witmaatized losses as of December 31, 2006 alongtivitimelated fair value, aggregated
by the length of time that investments have beemdontinuous unrealized loss position, is as fadlo

Less than Twelve Months
Twelve Months or More Total
Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Fair Fair
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
(In millions)
Fixed maturity securitie $3,884.. $ (28.) $5,306.« $(103.9) $9,190.! $ (132.])
Equity securitie: 234.¢ (15.9) 21.C (0.6) 255.¢ (15.9)
Total $4,118.7 $ (44.1) $5,327.« $ (103.9 $9,446.. $ (148.0

Our fixed maturity investment portfolio is senséito interest rate fluctuations, which impact thie ¥alue of individual securities.
Unrealized losses reported above were primarilgeduiy the effect of a rising interest rate enviment on certain securities with stated
interest rates currently below market rates. Weetuly have the ability and intent to hold theseusiies until their full cost can be recovered.
Therefore, we do not believe the unrealized losspgesent an other-than-temporary impairment &ecember 31, 2006.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, we saRil§iBion of fixed maturity and equity securitiessulting in gross realized losses of
$95.7 million. Subsequent to the acquisition of Mkbice, during 2006, we restructured our investnpemtfolios to align the merged
portfolios with our overall investment guidelind$he majority of the sales of fixed maturity sedestresulted in realized losses due to the
prevailing interest rate environment. For equityusiies, the 2006 sales to restructure the mepgetiolios primarily resulted in realized gail
Similarly, subsequent to the merger with WHN, dgr005, we restructured our investment
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portfolios to align the merged portfolios with aurerall investment guidelines. The majority of #aes of fixed maturity securities resulted in
realized losses due to the prevailing interesteatéronment. For equity securities, the 2005 stdesstructure the merged portfolios primarily
resulted in realized gains.

A primary objective in the management of the fixeaturity and equity portfolios is to maximize totaturn relative to underlying
liabilities and respective liquidity needs. In aohing this goal, assets may be sold to take adgardbmarket conditions or other investment
opportunities as well as tax considerations. Salkgenerally produce realized gains and losses.

In the ordinary course of business, we may sellsies at a loss for a number of reasons, inclgdiout not limited to: (i) changes in the
investment environment; (ii) expectation that thie ¥alue could deteriorate further; (iii) desicereduce our exposure to an issuer or an
industry; (iv) changes in credit quality; or (v)astges in expected cash flow.

We participate in securities lending programs whgmarketable securities in our investment portfalie transferred to independent
brokers or dealers based on, among other things,dteditworthiness in exchange for collateralily equal to at least 102% of the value of
the securities on loan and is thereafter maintagiedminimum of 100% of the market value of theusities loaned. The market value of the
securities on loan to each borrower is monitorety dad the borrower is required to deliver addibcollateral if the market value of the
collateral falls below 100% of the market valuahe securities on loan. The fair value of the ¢elial amounted to $904.7 million and
$1,389.9 million, which represented 103% and 102%h® carrying value at December 31, 2006 and 268fpectively. Under guidance
provided in FAS 140Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Finandakets and Extinguishments of Liabilitiege recognize the collate
as an asset, which is reported as “securities hgnchllateral” on our balance sheet and we recamrgesponding liability for the obligation to
return the collateral to the borrower, which isagpd as “securities lending payable”. The seasitin loan are reported in the applicable
investment category on the balance sheet.

Through our investing activities, we are exposefinancial market risks, including those resultingm changes in interest rates and
changes in equity market valuations. We managentimet risks through our investment policy, whishablishes credit quality limits and
limits of investments in individual issuers. Ineffee management of these risks could have an itrgraour future earnings and financial
position.

We have evaluated the impact on the fixed matyatgfolio’s fair value considering an immediate 100 basistgiange in interest rat
A 100 basis point increase in interest rates woesdilt in an approximate $619.0 million decreaskinvalue, whereas a 100 basis point
decrease in interest rates would result in an aqpeEte $583.0 million increase in fair value. Annmadiate 10% decrease in each equity
investment'’s value, arising from market movemerduld result in a fair value decrease of $207.1iarill Alternatively, an immediate 10%
increase in each equity investment’s value, attable to the same factor, would result in a falugancrease of $207.1 million.

For additional information, see Part Il, Item 7Aydptitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MaRisk, of this Form 10-K, and Note
5 to our audited consolidated financial statemastef and for the year ended December 31, 2008dedlin this Form 10-K.

Retirement Benefit:
Pension Benefits

We sponsor defined benefit pension plans for oysleyees, including plans sponsored by the formell®@t#eice and WHN prior to the
related mergers. These plans are accounted faciorédance with FAS 8 Employers’ Accounting for Pensionwhich requires that amounts
recognized in financial statements be determinedroactuarial basis. As permitted by FAS 87, weudate the value of plan assets described
below. Further, the difference between our experéslof return and the actual performance of pksets, as well as certain changes in
pension liabilities, are amortized over future pds.
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An important factor in determining our pension exgeis the assumption for expected long-term redarplan assets. As of our
September 30, 2006 measurement date, we seletdad-téerm rate of return on plan assets of 8.00f@lfigplans. We use a total portfolio
return analysis in the development of our assump#@ctors such as past market performance, tigeteym relationship between fixed
maturity and equity securities, interest ratedatidn and asset allocations are considered im$samption. The assumption includes an
estimate of the additional return expected fronivaananagement of the investment portfolio. Pe¢a dad historical returns are also reviewed
for appropriateness of the selected assumptioneXpected long-term rate of return is calculatedh®ygeometric averaging method, which
calculates an expected multi-period return, reiftgctolatility drag on compound returns. We beliewe assumption of future returns is
reasonable. However, if we lower our expected Itarg: return on plan assets, future contributionthéopension plan and pension expense
would likely increase.

The assumed long-term rate of return on assetsgiged to a calculated value of plan assets, whaclognizes changes in the fair value of
plan assets in a systematic manner over three,y@axucing the expected return on plan assetsdfiatiuded in the determination of pension
expense. The difference between this expectedrana the actual return on plan assets is defamddimortized over the average remaining
service of the workforce as a component of pensigrense. The net deferral of past asset gainssesdoaffects the calculated value of plan
assets and, ultimately, future pension expense.

The discount rate reflects the current rate at vttie pension liabilities could be effectively kdtat the end of the year based on our
September 30, 2006 measurement date. The seldstedidt rate for all plans is 5.90% (compared teegghted average discount rate of 5.%
for 2006 expense recognition), which was develagsdg a yield curve approach. Using yields avadain high-quality fixed maturity
securities with various maturity dates, the yialdve approach provides a “customized” rate, whichneant to match the expected cash flows
of our specific benefit plans. The net effect ofebes in the discount rate, as well as the nettaffeother changes in actuarial assumptions
experience, have been deferred and amortized asmpanent of pension expense in accordance with&AS

In managing the plan assets, our objective is ta tEsponsible fiduciary while minimizing financi&@k. Plan assets include a diversified
mix of investment grade fixed maturity securitiesl &quity securities across a range of sectordeameds of capitalization to maximize the
long-term return for a prudent level of risk. Ind&tbn to producing a reasonable return, the inmesit strategy seeks to minimize the volatility
in the Companys expense and cash flow. As of our September 315 Akasurement date, we had approximately 67%aof gdsets invested
equity securities, 27% in fixed maturity securitéesl 6% in other assets. No plan assets were go/@sWellPoint common stock as of the
measurement date.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, there wecemtabutions required under the Employee Retimgniecome Securities Act of
1974, as amended, or ERISA; however we electedateerdiscretionary contributions totaling $108.6limnil during the three months ended
September 30, 2006. For the year ending Decemh&0BT, we do not expect any required contributiomder ERISA; however, we may el
to make discretionary contributions up to the maximamount deductible for income tax purposes.

At December 31, 2006, our consolidated net prepaitsion asset was $274.1 million. For the years@imi:cember 31, 2006, 2005 and
2004, we recognized consolidated pretax pensiorresgof $32.6 million, $48.6 million and $40.8 iifl, respectively.

Effective January 1, 2006, we curtailed the besefitder the WellPoint Cash Balance Pension PlaeoPlan, which name changed
from the Anthem Cash Balance Pension Plan effedi@wriary 1, 2006. Most participants will no longave pay credits added to their
accounts, but continue to earn interest on exigio@punt balances. Employees hired on or afteraigriy 2006, are not eligible to participat
the Plan. Certain participants will be “grandfat@érinto the Plan based on age and years of seirvigpeeviously merged plans. Grandfathered
participants continue to receive pay credits urtiderPlan formula. We recorded a curtailment
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gain of $4.6 million in the first quarter of 200@/e increased our matching contributions to certigfined contribution plans during 2006 at
amounts equal to or greater than the curtailmeint g@ount.

The Empire Blue Cross Blue Shield Cash BalanceiBefdan, or the Empire Plan, was merged into tae Bn December 31, 2006.
Effective January 1, 2007, we curtailed the begefitder the Empire Plan. Most participants willormger have pay credits added to their
accounts, but will continue to earn interest orsexg account balances. Participants will contittuearn years of service for vesting.
Employees hired on or after January 1, 2007 willbeable to participate in the Plan. Certain pgogints will be “grandfathered” into the Plan
based on age and years of service in the Empire Bleandfathered participants will continue to reegay credits under the Plan formula.
There will be no curtailment gain or loss assodatéh the curtailment of benefits under the Emiitan.

Other Postretirement Benefits

We provide most associates with certain life, maldicision and dental benefits upon retirement. We various actuarial assumptions
including a discount rate and the expected trerftbalth care costs to estimate the costs and befdfiations for our retiree benefits. We
recognized a postretirement benefit liability o645 million at December 31, 2006.

At our September 30, 2006 measurement date, thetedldiscount rate for all plans was 5.90% (coeubés a weighted average discc
rate of 5.29% for 2006 expense recognition). Weettgped this rate using a yield curve approach asrieed above.

The assumed health care cost trend rates usedasunecthe expected cost of other benefits at opteS&er 30, 2006 measurement dates
was 9.00% for 2007 with a gradual decline to 5.08£the year 2012. These estimated trend ratesulject to change in the future. The health
care cost trend assumption has a significant effiethe amounts reported. For example, an inclieabe assumed health care cost trend re
one percentage point would increase the postretinéimenefit obligation as of December 31, 2006 44.% million and would increase service
and interest costs by $2.9 million. Converselyeeardase in the assumed health care cost trendfratee percentage point would decrease the
postretirement benefit obligation by $38.1 millias of December 31, 2006 and would decrease saniténterest costs by $2.6 million.

For additional information regarding retirement éfits, see Note 17 to our audited consolidatechfifed statements as of and for the y
ended December 31, 2006 included in this Form 18d€ alstNew Accounting Pronouncemendisclosure included in this Critical Account
Policies and Estimates section of our MD&A for dission of new accounting guidance related to megm benefits.

New Accounting Pronouncemen

We maintain a share-based employee compensationRi®r to January 1, 2006, we accounted for tae pnder the recognition and
measurement provisions of Accounting PrinciplesrBd@pinion No. 25Accounting for Stock Issued to Employ€@ég’B 25”). Effective
January 1, 2006, we adopted the fair value reciognjtrovisions of FAS 123R under the modified pexdjve method of adoption for which
compensation expense related to stock optioncagrézed on a prospective basis. Also in accordariitethe prospective method of adopti
prior period results have not been restated. See RlBasis of Presentation and Significant AccmgnPolicies, and Note 12, Capital Stock, to
our audited consolidated financial statements asdffor the year ended December 31, 2006 includéds Form 10-K.

In July 2006, FASB issued FASB Interpretation N®, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes-an iptetation of FASB Statement
109(“FIN 48”") . Among other things, FIN 48 creates a model to eskluncertainty in tax positions and clarifiesabeounting for income
taxes by prescribing a minimum recognition thredhwhich all income tax positions must achieve befoeing recognized in the financial
statements. In
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addition, FIN 48 requires expanded annual discksuncluding a rollforward of the beginning andlieiy aggregate unrecognized tax benefits
as well as specific detail related to tax uncettasfor which it is reasonably possible the amafninrecognized tax benefit will significantly
increase or decrease within twelve montidN 48 was effective for us on January 1, 2007y Aifferences between the amounts recogniz:
the statements of financial position prior to thegtion of FIN 48 and the amounts reported aftepédn are generally accounted for as a
cumulativeeffect adjustment recorded to the beginning balaficetained earnings. We do not expect the adomifd-IN 48 to have a mater
impact on our beginning retained earnings at JanLia2007. See Note 2 to our audited consoliddtexhtial statements as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2006 included in this Form 10-K.

In September 2006, FASB issued Statement of FimhAcicounting Standards No. 138nployers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Ple— an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88at@6,32(R)Y“FAS 158”"). FAS 158 retains the
previous measurement and disclosure requirememsarfaccounting guidance. In addition, FAS 158uiees the recognition of the funded
status of pension and other postretirement beplgfits on the balance sheet (“recognition provisioiairthermore, for fiscal years ending
after December 15, 2008, FAS 158 requires fiscal{gnd measurements of plan assets and benefjatiblis, eliminating the use of earlier
measurement dates which are currently permissiie.recognition provisions of FAS 158 were effeetior us on December 31, 2006. The
adoption of FAS 158 decreased our accumulated otitaprehensive income by $99.5 million at Decendigr2006. See Note 2 to our audi
consolidated financial statements as of and foydss ended December 31, 2006 included in this Fdi+K.

There were no other new accounting pronouncemssiied during 2006 that had a material impact orfioancial position, operating
results or disclosures.

X.  Liquidity and Capital Resources
Introduction

Our cash receipts result primarily from premiundmanistrative fees, investment income, other reeemuoceeds from the sale or
maturity of our investment securities, proceedsiflmrrowings, and proceeds from exercise of st@tlons and our employee stock purchase
plan. Cash disbursements result mainly from clgmgnents, administrative expenses, taxes, purclodsesestment securities, interest
expense, payments on long-term borrowings, cagipénditures and repurchases of our common staxgh Gutflows fluctuate with the
amount and timing of settlement of these transastiény future decline in our profitability woulikély have some negative impact on our
liquidity.

We manage our cash, investments and capital steustuwe are able to meet the short and long-téligadions of our business while
maintaining financial flexibility and liquidity. Wéorecast, analyze and monitor our cash flows ebéninvestment and financing within the
overall constraints of our financial strategy.

A substantial portion of the assets held by ouulagd subsidiaries are in the form of cash antl egsivalents and investments. After
considering expected cash flows from operatingvaigts, we generally invest cash that exceeds ear term obligations in longer term
marketable fixed maturity securities, to improve ouerall investment income returns. Our investngtrategy is to make investments
consistent with insurance statutes and other regylaequirements, while preserving our asset ba@se.investments are generally available-
for-sale to meet liquidity and other needs. Exaagstal at our subsidiaries is paid annually bysédiries in the form of dividends to their
respective parent companies for general corporsgeas permitted by applicable regulations.

The availability of financing in the form of debt equity is influenced by many factors including puofitability, operating cash flows,
debt levels, debt ratings, contractual restrictioagulatory requirements and market conditions.Halee access to a $2.5 billion commercial
paper program supported by a $2.5 billion senieditifacility, which allows us to maintain furtheperating and financial flexibility.
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Liquidity—Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Year Hridecember 31, 2005

During 2006, net cash flow provided by operatintivities was $4,044.2 million, compared to $3,13ilion in 2005, an increase of
$908.7 million. This increase resulted from impréygemium collections, and higher net income, idirlg the impact of the acquisition of
WellChoice, partially offset by higher tax payments

Net cash flow used in investing activities was $85willion in 2006, compared to $5,151.6 millionazfsh used in 2005. The table below
outlines the decrease in cash flow used in invgsiuiivities of $4,694.3 million between the twaipds:

Change in
Cash Used il

Investing

Activities

(In millions)

Decrease in net purchases of investm $ 1,441
Decrease in securities lending collate 1,216.¢
Decrease in net purchases of subsidie 2471t
Increase in net purchases of property and equip (35.9
Increase in other, ni (399.9)
Net decrease in cash used in investing activ $ 4,694.

The decrease in net purchases of investmentsedduotim the portfolio restructure in 2005 followitige WHN merger, with lower
amounts of restructuring in 2006 following the V@#bice acquisition. The decrease in securitiesihgncollateral is consistent with the
decrease in amounts outstanding under this programoffset to the reduction of securities lendiofjateral is a reduction of securities
lending payable, which is reported with cash usefihiancing activities. The decrease in net purehdsubsidiaries resulted from the
WellChoice acquisition in 2005, with no correspargdacquisition during 2006. The increase in othet,includes the purchase of corporate-
owned life insurance policies on participants im deferred compensation plans.

Net cash flow used in financing activities was £5.D million in 2006 compared to cash providedibgricing activities of $3,299.1
million in 2005. The table below outlines the inase in cash used in financing activities of $7,024illion between the two periods:

Change in
Cash Used it

Financing

Activities

(In millions)

Decrease in net proceeds from commercial papeowargs $(1,114.9
Decrease in net proceeds from I-term borrowings (1,038.9
Decrease in securities lending paye (1,216.6
Increase in bank overdral 293.1
Increase in repurchases of common s (4,216.9
Increase in proceeds from exercise of employe&siptions and employee stock purchase 130.2
Decrease in proceeds from sale of put options astscelated to issuance of common st 2.5
Increase in excess tax benefits from s-based compensatic 136.F
Net increase in cash used in financing activi $ (7,024.)

The decrease in net proceeds from commercial gapeowings reflects repayment of commercial pap#éofving our offering of senior
unsecured notes in January 2006 as compared issmances of commercial paper in 2005 used togligrtund the WellChoice acquisition.
The decrease in net proceeds from long-term bomgswvas impacted by issuance of the bridge lo&10f00.0 in 2005, as compared to 2006
activity including our issuance of senior unsecuretes of $2,700.0 in January 2006, repaymentebtitge loan in January 2006 and
scheduled debt maturity of $450.0 in July 2006.
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On January 10, 2006, we issued $700.0 million 806% notes due 2011; $1,100.0 million of 5.250%aatue 2016; and $900.0 million
of 5.850% notes due 2036 under a registrationretéfiled on December 28, 2005. The proceeds flosndebt issuance were used to repay a
bridge loan of $1,700.0 million and approximately®0.0 million in commercial paper borrowed totjadlly fund the December 28, 2005
WellChoice acquisition.

Our securities lending payable declined during 208fecting reduced amounts outstanding undeptbgram. The offset to this is
included in cash used in investing activities above

The increase in bank overdrafts reflects an ine@ashecks issued but outstanding at Decembe2(®16 as compared to December 31,
2005.

We increased our common stock repurchases duridg, 20mpleting an additional $4,216.8 million in0B0as compared to 2005.
Liquidity—Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Eridecember 31, 2004

During 2005, net cash provided by operating adtisitvas $3,135.5 million, as compared to $1,078Ibomin 2004, an increase of
$2,057.0 million. The increase resulted from img@wet income, including the impact of our mergeghWHN. Net cash provided by
operating activities for 2005 included a full yedWWHN cash flow activity following the merger.

Net cash used in investing activities was $5,15dilBon in 2005, compared to cash used of $2,134illon in 2004, an increase in cash
used of $3,019.7 million. The table below outlities changes in investing cash flow between theytsans:

Change in
Cash Used il
Investing
Activities
(In millions)
Increase in net purchases of investm $ (1,749.)
Increase in net purchases of subsidie (349.9
Increase in net sale of subsidiar 92.¢
Decrease in proceeds from settlement of a cashtkxige (15.7)
Increase in securities lending collate (973.9
Increase in net purchases of property and equip (23.9)
Net increase in cash used in investing activ $ (3,019.)

The purchase of investment securities in 2005 aszd from 2004 resulting from increased cash flivars operations driven by
improved net income, including the impact of ourgez with WHN. The increase in 2005 subsidiary pases resulted primarily from the use
of cash for the WellChoice and Lumenos acquisitiasscompared to cash used for the WHN merger(d.2Dhe increase in 2005 sale of
subsidiaries resulted primarily from the receiptash for the sale of certain subsidiaries, as esetpto no activity in 2004. The increase in
securities lending collateral reflects increasedamts under this program. The offset to this isn@nease in securities lending payable which is
reported with cash provided by financing activities
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Net cash flow provided by financing activities w8299.1 million in 2005 compared to cash providgdinancing activities of $2,046.1
million in 2004. The table below outlines the irese in cash flow provided by financing activitiésst,253.0 million between the two years:

Change in
Cash Providec
by Financing
Activities
(In millions)
Increase in proceeds from exercise of employe&siptions and employee stock purch
plan $ 270.3
Increase in repurchases of common s (251.)
Increase in net proceeds from commercial papeoldngs 15.C
Decrease in repayment of Ic-term borrowings 643.2
Decrease in lor-term borrowings (70.2)
Decrease in proceeds from issuance of common stoadér Equity Security Units stor
purchase contrac (230.0
Increase in securities lending paya 973.¢
Decrease in bank overdra (103.5)
Other 5.7
Net increase in cash provided by financing acgei $ 1,253.(

The increase in proceeds from the exercise of eyaplatock options reflects the significant increéasemployees with vested options
to our merger with WHN. The increase in repurchademmmon stock reflects the activity in our Boaggbroved common stock repurchase
program. The decrease in repayments of long-tetrhrésulted primarily from the significant amoufitepayments in 2004 as new long-term
debt was issued to partially pay off outstandinggléerm debt and fund the WHN merger. The decreapeoceeds from the issuance of
common stock under Equity Security Units stock pase contracts reflects the maturity of theseunstnts in 2004.

The increase in securities lending payable reflecteased amounts outstanding under this progaachjs offset in cash used in inves
activities. The decrease in bank overdrafts redléstver checks issued but outstanding at Decenf#s @s compared to December 2004.

Financial Condition

We maintained a strong financial condition andiliify position, with consolidated cash, cash eglgints and investments, including
longterm investments, of $20.8 billion at DecemberZ106. Since December 31, 2005, total cash, caskaents and investments, includi
long-term investments, increased by $476.2 milisrcash generated from operations was used foepliechase of our common stock.

Many of our subsidiaries are subject to variousegoment regulations that restrict the timing anadant of dividends and other
distributions that may be paid to their respecpigeent companies. Also, in connection with the WidBrger, the Company and certain of our
subsidiaries in California and Georgia executedeutadkings with the California Department of Managiehlth Care, the California
Department of Insurance and the Georgia Departofdnsurance which contained various commitmemisluiding the commitment to provide
$61.5 million of support for health benefit progrmm those states. Additional undertakings incliderequirement to maintain certain capital
levels at those subsidiaries.

During 2006, we received $2.3 billion of dividerfdsm our subsidiaries. At December 31, 2006, wel fa¢lthe parent company
approximately $1.7 billion of cash, cash equivadeand investments, which is available for genevgbarate use, including investment in our
businesses, acquisitions, share and debt repuchagénterest payments.
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Our consolidated debt-to-total capital ratio (cédted as the sum of debt divided by the sum of gl shareholders’ equity) was 22.2%
as of December 31, 2006 and 21.4% as of Decembh@085, which increased only slightly considering $4.6 billion of common stock
repurchases during 2006.

Our senior debt is rated “BBB+" by Standard & Pspt’/A-" by Fitch, Inc., “Baal” by Moody’s Investd@ervice, Inc. and “a-" by AM
Best Company, Inc. We intend to maintain our sedait investment grade ratings. A significant doraxg in our debt ratings could adversely
affect our borrowing capacity and costs.

Future Sources and Uses of Liquidity

On December 28, 2005, we filed a shelf registratiith the Securities and Exchange Commission testeigan unlimited amount of any
combination of debt or equity securities in onermare offerings. At the time of an offering, specififormation regarding terms of the offering
and the securities being offered will be providetbceeds from any future offerings are expectdukbtased for general corporate purposes,
including the repayment of debt, capitalizatioroof subsidiaries or the financing of possible asitjons or business expansion. On Januar
2006, we issued $700.0 million of 5.000% notes 2kl; $1.1 billion of 5.250% notes due 2016; andd0 million of 5.850% notes due 20
under this registration statement. The proceedn ftos debt issuance were used to repay a bridgedd$1,700.0 million and $1,000.0 milli
in commercial paper borrowed to partially fund Becember 28, 2005 acquisition of WellChoice.

On November 29, 2005, we entered into a seniodvengcredit facility, or the facility, with certailenders for general corporate
purposes. We amended the facility on Septembe2@16. The facility, as amended, provides creditau$2.5 billion (reduced for any
commercial paper issuances) and matures on Sept@&®p2011. The interest rate on this facility &éd on either (i) the LIBOR rate plus a
predetermined percentage rate based on our catiig rat the date of utilization, or (ii) a basteras defined in the facility agreement. Our
ability to borrow under this facility is subject tompliance with certain covenants. There weremoumts outstanding under this facility as of
December 31, 2006 or during the year then ende®e&ember 31, 2006, we had $1.2 billion availalvigéar this facility.

We have Board of Directors’ approval to borrow ag.5 billion under our commercial paper programreased from $2.0 billion on
March 15, 2006). Proceeds from any issuance of cential paper may be used for general corporategses including the repurchase of our
debt and common stock. Commercial paper notesham-term senior unsecured notes, with a matuityto exceed 270 days from date of
issuance. When issued, the notes bear interdst #tén current market rates. There were $1.2bilhf borrowings outstanding under this
commercial paper program as of December 31, 2006 \maercial paper borrowings outstanding at DecerBheP006 are classified as long-
term debt as our practice and intent is to repiet-term commercial paper outstanding at expinatvith additional short-term commercial
paper for an uninterrupted period extending forentbean one year or with borrowings under our setriedit facility.

As discussed in “Financial Condition” above, mafipor subsidiaries are subject to various goverrtimegulations that restrict the
timing and amount of dividends and other distribasi that may be paid. Based upon these requirenveatare currently estimating
approximately $2.7 billion of dividends to be p&idthe parent company during 2007.

During December 2004, WellPoint completed a temdier to purchase subsidiary surplus notes fromhtiiders, and purchased $258.0
million of 9.125% notes due 2010 and $174.9 milladr®.000% notes due 2027. During December 20@6stibsidiary repurchased these
surplus notes from WellPoint.

We maintain a common stock repurchase programthsi@zed by our Board of Directors. Repurchases bregnade from time to time
prevailing market prices, subject to certain refishs on volume, pricing and timing. We purchaapgroximately 60.7 million shares during
the year ended December 31, 2006 at a cost ofifid. On March 15, May 16, August 17 and Decembe2006, our Board of Directors
authorized
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increases of $1.0 billion, $1.0 billion, $0.5 kot and $1.0 billion, respectively, in our commoocktrepurchase program, which increased the
total authorized common stock repurchases to $i8lidrbsince the current program’s inception in 80@s of December 31, 2006, we had $0.9
billion of authorization remaining under this pragr. Subsequent to December 31, 2006, we repurclaskcetired approximately 6.0 million
shares for an aggregate cost of approximately $4@dlion, leaving approximately $486.3 million fauthorized future repurchases at
February 12, 2007. Our stock repurchase progratis¢setionary as we are under no obligation to refmase shares. We repurchase shares
because we believe it is a prudent use of sur@pgad.

Our current pension funding strategy is to fundaarount at least equal to the minimum required fogdis determined under ERISA v
consideration of maximum tax deductible amounts.tke year ended December 31, 2006, no contribsiiometirement benefit plans under
ERISA were required, however, the Company eleadaddke tax deductible discretionary contributiostaling $108.6 million.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

Our estimated contractual obligations and commitsias of December 31, 2006 are as follows:

Payments Due by Perioc

Less than More than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years

(In millions)
Long-term debt, including capital leases $10,871.¢ $2,130.. $ 908.F $1,286.¢ $6,546..
Operating lease commitmer 1,061. 145.5 270.k 202.2 443.(
Projected other postretirement bene 919.1 37.t 200.¢ 207.¢ 473.1
Purchase obligation

IBM outsourcing agreements 935.¢ 170.1 340.2 340.2 85.1

Other purchase obligatiofis 450.( 105.2 149.t 128.¢ 66.7
Other lon¢-term liabilities 761.7 — 302.7 301.C 158.(
Venture capital commitmen 261. 88.( 164.¢ 7.8 1.3
Total contractual obligations and commitme $15,261.. $2,676.& $2,336.7 $2,474.0 $7,773..
1 Includes estimated interest expense.

2 Relates to agreements with International Busineashifies Corporation, or IBM, to provide informati@ehnology infrastructure
services. See Note 18 to the audited consolidateddial statements for the year ended Decembe2@®1 for further information.
8 Includes obligations related to IT service agreemand telecommunication contracts.

In addition to the contractual obligations and cdtmrents discussed above, we have a variety of aihwetractual agreements related to
acquiring materials and services used in our ojmeratHowever, we do not believe these other agee¢sicontain material noncancelable
commitments.

We believe that funds from future operating casw§, cash and investments and funds available undesredit agreement or from
public or private financing sources will be suféint for future operations and commitments, andatégital acquisitions and other strategic
transactions.

For additional information on our debt and leaseeitments, see Notes 7 and 16, respectively, tmodited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 200&l&d in this Form 10-K.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We have agreed to guarantee up to $37.0 milliakebt incurred by an unaffiliated entity to partydihance the purchase of a hospital.
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In connection with an investment in a joint ventto@evelop and operate a well-being center infQalia, we may be required, based on
specific targets, to make additional capital cdnttions up to $18.0 million. The well-being centers completed and began operations during
November 200€

In connection with the formation in 2000 of a joirgnture providing Medicaid services in Puerto Riwe agreed under certain
circumstances to provide additional funding tojtiiet venture entity. Since the formation of thénjoventure in 2000, we have not been
required to make any payments under this guarabBiggng December 2006, the joint venture was teat@id and the guarantee was
extinguished.

For additional information on these off-balanceetl@rangements, see Note 18 to our audited caoiaged financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2006 included in this Fd-K.

Risk-Based Capital

Our regulated subsidiaries’ states of domicile hete¢utory risk-based capital, or RBC, requiremémtdiealth and other insurance
companies largely based on the NAIC's RBC Model. Attese RBC requirements are intended to measpilcadequacy, taking into
account the risk characteristics of an insurenggtments and products. The NAIC sets forth thenfda for calculating the RBC requirements,
which are designed to take into account asset, fiisggrance risks, interest rate risks and othewraat risks with respect to an individual
insurance company’s business. In general, undett, an insurance company must submit a repdts ®BC level to the state insurance
department or insurance commissioner, as apprepaathe end of each calendar year. Our risk-beagital as of December 31, 2006, which
was the most recent date for which reporting wgsired, was in excess of all mandatory RBC thrafhdh addition to exceeding the RBC
requirements, we are in compliance with the liqyidind capital requirements for a licensee of theeECross and Blue Shield Association and
with the tangible net worth requirements applicableertain of our California subsidiaries.

Xl. Safe Harbor Statement under the Private Seaities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

This document contains certain forward-looking miation about WellPoint, Inc. (“WellPoint®hat is intended to be covered by the
harbor for “forward-looking statements” provided ltlye Private Securities Litigation Reform Act oB59Forward-looking statements are
statements that are not historical facts. Wordshsag “expect(s)”, “feel(s)”, “believe(s)”, “will”, “may”, “anticipate(s)” and similar
expressions are intended to identify forward-logkatatements. These statements include, but ademnited to, financial projections and
estimates and their underlying assumptions; stateseegarding plans, objectives and expectatiorih véaspect to future operations, products
and services; and statements regarding future perémce. Such statements are subject to certais skl uncertainties, many of which are
difficult to predict and generally beyond the cahtof WellPoint, that could cause actual resultgliffer materially from those expressed in, or
implied or projected by, the forwaldeking information and statements. These riskswaratrtainties include: those discussed and idieuatifn
public filings with the U.S. Securities and Excha@pmmission‘SEC”) made by WellPoint; trends in health care toand utilization rates;
our ability to secure sufficient premium rate inases; competitor pricing below market trends oféasing costs; increased government
regulation of health benefits, managed care and'piagy benefit management operations; risks and ntaicgies regarding the Medicare Part
D Prescription Drug benefits program, including potial uncollectability of receivables resultingiin processing and/or verifying enrollme
(including facilitated enrollment), inadequacy ofderwriting assumptions, inability to receive andgess information, uncollectability of
premium from members, increased pharmaceuticakcasid the underlying seasonality of the busingigsiificant acquisitions or divestiturt
by major competitors; introduction and utilizatiofinew prescription drugs and technology; a dowgrén our financial strength ratings;
litigation and investigations targeted at healtmbkéits companies and our ability to resolve litigatand investigations within estimates; our
ability to contract with providers consistent wjihst practice; other potential uses of cash infthare that present attractive alternatives to
share repurchases; our ability to achieve expestgtergies and operating efficiencies in the Weli€&adnc. acquisition within the expected
time frames or at all, and to successfully
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integrate our operations; our ability to meet exjadions regarding repurchases of shares of our comstock; future bio-terrorist activity or
other potential public health epidemics; and gehe@nomic downturns. Readers are cautioned nptaoe undue reliance on these forward-
looking statements that speak only as of the datedf. WellPoint does not undertake any obligatmnepublish revised forward-looking
statements to reflect events or circumstances #ftedate hereof or to reflect the occurrence antitipated events. Readers are also urged to
carefully review and consider the various disclesimn WellPoint’s various SEC reports.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK.

As a result of our investing and borrowing actasti we are exposed to financial market risks, tholy those resulting from changes in
interest rates and changes in equity market valnatiPotential impacts discussed below are baseud sgnsitivity analyses performed on
WellPoint’s financial position as of December 3Q08. Actual results could vary from these estimafrs primary objectives with our
investment portfolio are to provide safety and preation of capital, sufficient liquidity to meeash flow requirements, the integration of
investment strategy with the business operatiodsaanattainment of a competitive after-tax totaime.

Investments
Our investment portfolio is exposed to three priyregurces of risk: credit quality risk, interesteraisk and market valuation risk.

The primary risks associated with our fixed magusiécurities are credit quality risk and interegéerisk. Credit quality risk is defined as
the risk of a credit downgrade to an individuakfixmaturity security and the potential loss attable to that downgrade. Credit quality risk is
managed through our investment policy, which eg@hbt credit quality limitations on the overall ffolio as well as diversification and
percentage limits on securities of individual igsud@he result is a well-diversified portfolio akéd maturity securities, with an average credit
rating of approximately AA. Interest rate risk isfihed as the potential for economic losses ordfixaturity securities due to a change in
market interest rates. Our fixed maturity portfadnvested primarily in U.S. government secusitieorporate bonds, asset-backed bonds,
mortgage-related securities and municipal bondisfabhich represent an exposure to changes ifethed of market interest rates. Interest rate
risk is managed by maintaining asset duration withband based upon our liabilities, operatingqgrerdnce and liquidity needs. Additionally,
we have the capability of holding any security tatamity, which would allow us to realize full paalue.

Our portfolio includes corporate securities (apjpmately 34% of the total fixed maturity portfolio Becember 31, 2006), which are
subject to credit/default risk. In a declining eooric environment, corporate yields will usuallyiease prompted by concern over the abilit
corporations to make interest payments, thus cgusithecrease in the price of corporate securdiges the decline in value of the corporate
fixed maturity portfolio. This risk is managed thgh fundamental credit analysis, diversificationssuers and industries and an average credit
rating of the corporate fixed maturity portfolio approximately A-.

Our equity portfolio is comprised of large capitalion and small capitalization domestic equitiesgign equities and index mutual
funds. Our equity portfolio is subject to the vdigt inherent in the stock market, driven by comeeover economic conditions, earnings and
sales growth, inflation, and consumer confidendesE systematic risks cannot be managed throughsification alone. However, more
routine risks, such as stock/industry specificgjskre managed by investing in a diversified equitstfolio.

As of December 31, 2006, approximately 88% of ouatilable-for-sale investments were fixed maturggrities. Market risk is
addressed by actively managing the duration, dilmcand diversification of our investment porttmlWe have evaluated the impact on the
fixed maturity portfolios fair value considering an immediate 100 basiatpddiange in interest rates. A 100 basis poinease in interest rat
would result in an
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approximate $619.0 million decrease in fair valukereas a 100 basis point decrease in interestwateld result in an approximate $583.0
million increase in fair value. While we classifyrdixed maturity securities as “available-for-Sdier accounting purposes, we believe our
cash flows and duration of our portfolio shoulduallus to hold securities to maturity, thereby airgdhe recognition of losses should interest
rates rise significantly.

Our available-for-sale equity securities portfols, of December 31, 2006, was approximately 12&upfnvestments. An immediate
10% decrease in each equity investment’s valusingrirom market movement, would result in a failue decrease of $207.1 million.
Alternatively, an immediate 10% increase in eadhitggnvestment’s value, attributable to the same&tdr, would result in a fair value increase
of $207.1 million.

Long-Term Debt

Our total long-term debt at December 31, 2006 wa8 Billion, and included $1.3 billion of commetcimper. The carrying value of the
commercial paper approximates fair value as thedyidg instruments have variable interest ratanatket value. The remainder of the del
subject to interest rate risk as these instrumiegie fixed interest rates and the fair value is@éd by changes in market interest rates.

At December 31, 2006, we had $5.6 billion of seniosecured notes with fixed interest rates. Thesesnat par value, included $200.0
million at 3.50% due 2007, $300.0 million at 3.78%e 2007, $300.0 million at 4.25% due 2009, $70dlbon at 5.000% due 2011, $350.0
million at 6.375% due 2012, $800.0 million at 6.88%e 2012, $500.0 million at 5.00% due 2014, $1A0dillion at 5.250% due 2016, $50!
million at 5.95% due 2034 and $900.0 at 5.850%2086. These notes had combined carrying and estihfair value of $5.6 billion and $5.6
billion, respectively, at December 31, 2006.

Our subordinated debt includes surplus notes isbyaxhe of our insurance subsidiaries. Par valusadunts outstanding at
December 31, 2006 included $42.0 million of 9.12&%plus notes due 2010 and $25.1 million of 9.062%plus notes due 2027. Any payrr
of interest or principal on the surplus notes mayrtade only with the prior approval of the Indi@epartment of Insurance. The combined
carrying value of the surplus notes was $66.6 amliind $66.5 million at December 31, 2006 and 26&¥pectively. The estimated fair value
of the surplus notes exceeded the carrying valu&lBy6 million and $16.7 million at December 3108@&nd 2005, respectively.

Should interest rates increase or decrease irutheef the estimated fair value of our fixed ragbtdvould decrease or increase
accordingly.

Derivatives

We use derivative financial instruments, specificalterest rate swap agreements, to hedge expasimterest rate risk on our
borrowings. Our derivative use is generally limitechedging purposes and we generally do not useadi®e instruments for speculative
purposes.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, we entetedwo fair value hedges with a total notionalue of $440.0 million. The first
hedge is a $240.0 million notional amount interagt swap agreement to receive a fixed 6.800%aradgpay a LIBOR-based floating rate and
expires on August 1, 2012. The second hedge i9@.§2nillion notional amount interest rate swapeagnent to receive a fixed 5.000% rate
and pay a LIBOR-based floating rate and expireBecember 15, 2014.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, we entstedwo fair value hedges with a total notionalue of $660.0 million. The first
hedge is a $360.0 million notional amount interag swap agreement to exchange a fixed 6.800%aatel IBOR-based floating rate and
expires on August 1, 2012. The second hedge i9@.@3nillion notional amount interest rate swapeagnent to exchange a fixed 5.000% rate
for LIBOR-based floating
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rate and expires December 15, 2014. During the gneded December 31, 2004, we entered into a $30ili6n notional amount interest rate
swap agreement to exchange a fixed 3.750% rate ftBOR-based floating rate. This swap agreemepirex on December 14, 2007.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, we enisted floating to fixed rate cash flow hedge watlotal notional value of $480.0
million. The purpose of this hedge is to offset Waeiability of the cash flows due to the rollowerour variable-rate one-month commercial
paper issuance. In December 2006, the total ndti@iae was reduced to $240.0 million. This swapeagent expires in December 2007.
During the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2@0§aim or loss from hedged ineffectiveness wasrdszbin earnings and the commercial
paper borrowings remain outstanding at Decembe2@16.

Changes in interest rates will affect the estiméa@dvalue of these swap agreements. As of Dece®be2006, we recorded an asset of
$17.4 million and a liability of $29.0 million, thestimated fair value of the swaps at that date hee evaluated the impact on the interest rate
swaps fair value considering an immediate 100 basiatpgiange in interest rates. A 100 basis poineiase in interest rates would result ir
approximate $59.2 million decrease in fair valubeveas a 100 basis point decrease in interestwatglsl result in an approximate $59.2
million increase in fair value.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, we entetedorward starting pay fixed swaps with an aggate notional amount of $875.0
million. The objective of these hedges was to elaté the variability of cash flows in the interpayments on the debt securities to be issu
partially fund the cash portion of the WellChoiegaisition. These swaps were terminated in Jan2@@$, and we paid a net $24.7 million,
net fair value at the time of termination. In aduit we recorded an unrealized loss of $16.0 nmliwet of tax, as accumulated other
comprehensive income. Following the January 10628€uance of debt securities in connection wighWellChoice acquisition, the
unamortized fair value of the forward starting fiagd swaps included in accumulated other comprsiverincome began amortizing into
earnings, as an increase to interest expenseftwéife of the hedged debt securities.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, we entetedorward starting pay fixed swaps and treadack swaps with an aggregate
notional amount of $2.0 billion. The objective bése hedges was to eliminate the variability ohdbsvs in the interest payments on the debt
securities to be issued to partially fund the gastiion of the WHN merger. These swaps were tertathin 2004, and we received a net $15.7
million, the net fair value at the time of termiiwait. In addition, we recorded an unrealized gai1d.2 million, net of tax, as accumulated
other comprehensive income. Following the compietibthe WHN merger on November 30, 2004, we issiedat securities, and the
unamortized fair value of the forward starting fiiaed swaps included in balances in accumulatedratbomprehensive income began
amortizing into earnings, as a reduction of inteeapense, over the life of the debt securities.

The unrecognized loss for all cash flow hedgeauhet! in accumulated other comprehensive incomesa¢émber 31, 2006 was $5.6
million. As of December 31, 2006, the total amoofhamaortization over the next twelve months foraash flow hedges will increase interest
expense by approximately $0.7 million.
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Report of Independent Registered
Public Accounting Firm

Shareholders and Board of Directors
WellPoint, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of WellPoint, Inc. (the “Company”) aPetember 31, 2006 and 2005, and the
related consolidated statements of income, shatelsilequity, and cash flows for each of the thyea&rs in the period ended December 31,
2006. Our audits also included the financial staenschedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a).sEhénancial statements and schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Oupaasibility is to express an opinion on these foiahstatements and schedule based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighamiqUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether the finestatements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on alasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disis in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting principged and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of WellPoint,
Inc. at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the catadeli results of its operations and its cash flmvgach of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with U.Sagally accepted accounting principles. Also, in opinion, the related financial statem
schedule, when considered in relation to the fasgmcial statements taken as a whole, presentyg faiall material respects the information
set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated findrste&iements, during 2006, the Company changedetsod of accounting for the recognition
of share-based compensation expense and the réoagyfithe funded status of its defined benefitgien and postretirement plans.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bb@nited States), the effectivenes:
WellPoint, Inc.’s internal control over financiaporting as of December 31, 2006, based on crigstiblished in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoringa@imations of the Treadway Commission and our itegiied February 14, 2007
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s ERNST& Y OUNGLLP

Indianapolis, Indiana
February 14, 2007
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(In millions, except share data)

Assets
Current asset
Cash and cash equivalel
Investments availak-for-sale, at fair value
Fixed maturity securities (amortized cost of $48&infl $734.8
Equity securities (cost of $1,669.7 and $1,38
Other invested assets, curr
Accrued investment incorr
Premium and se-funded receivable
Other receivable
Securities lending collater
Deferred tax assets, r
Other current asse
Total current asse
Long-term investments availal-for-sale, at fair value
Fixed maturity securities (amortized cost of $18,80and $14,941.(
Equity securities (cost of $82.7 and $71
Other invested assets, lc-term
Property and equipment, r
Goodwill
Other intangible asse
Other noncurrent asse

Total assets

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Policy liabilities:
Medical claims payabl
Reserves for future policy benef
Other policyholder liabilitie!
Total policy liabilities
Unearned incom
Accounts payable and accrued expel
Income taxes payab
Security trades pending payal
Securities lending payab
Current portion of lon-term debt
Other current liabilitie:
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, less current porti
Reserves for future policy benefits, noncurt
Deferred tax liability, ne
Other noncurrent liabilitie
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenc—Note 18
Shareholders’ equity

Preferred stock, without par value, shares autec—100,000,000; shares issued and outsta—none
Common stock, par value $0.01, shares authc—900, 000, 000; shares issued and outstanding: 0865 and 660,424,1"

Additional paic-in capital

Retained earning

Unearned sha-based compensatic
Accumulated other comprehensive income (I«

Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

See accompanying notes.

WellPoint, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31

2006 2005
$ 2602. $ 2740.:
465. 734.¢
1,984.¢ 1,448
72.8 307.(
157.: 156.¢
2,520.: 2,216.¢
1,172 743
904.7 1,389.¢
642.¢ 689.(
1,284t 1,022
11,806 11,448
14,972 14,825
86.2 723
628. 207.¢
988.¢ 1,078.¢
13,383  13,469.
9,396.: 9,686.:
497. 498.¢
$51,759.4 $ 51,287.;
$ 52900 $ 4,853
76.2 82.1
2,240.¢ 1,752.
7,607.: 6,687.¢
987.¢ 1,057.:
3,242.: 2,860.:
538.; 833.¢
124.¢ 181.¢
904.7 1,389.¢
521.( 481.;
1,397.c 1,286.¢
15323 14,778
6,493.0 6,324.’
646.¢ 679.¢
3,350.. 3,267.
1,370.¢ 1,244.(
27,184  26,294.
6.1 6.6
19,863  20,915.
4,656.. 4,173
= (82.1)
50.1 (20.9)
24575 24,993
$51,759.4 $ 51,287.:
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(In millions, except per share data)

Revenues

Premiums

Administrative fee:

Other revenui

Total operating revent

Net investment incom

Net realized (losses) gains on investm:
Total revenue

Expenses
Benefit expens
Selling, general and administrative exper
Selling expens
General and administrative expel
Total selling, general and administrative expe
Cost of drugs
Interest expens
Amortization of other intangible ass¢
Mergel-related undertaking
Loss on repurchase of debt securi
Total expense
Income before income tax expens
Income tax expens
Net income

Net income per share

Basic
Diluted

See accompanying notes.

WellPoint, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Income

Years ended December 31

2006 2005 2004
$51,971.¢  $40,680.(  $18,678.:
3,5009.¢ 2,719.. 1,457.(
593.1 519.2 218.
56,074 43,918.. 20,353.
878.7 633.1 311.7
0.9 (10.2) 42.F
56,953. 44,541 20,707.
42,218 32,625.: 15,280.(
1,654.¢ 1,474. 537.
7,163.. 5,798.! 2,940.!
8,817.; 7,272, 3,477.
301.2 288.( 95.
403.F 226.: 142.°
297. 238.¢ 61.c
— — 61.f

— — 146.1
52,038. 40,651 19,264.(
4,914 3,890.. 1,443
1,819.! 1,426.! 483.:
$3,094.¢ $2463¢f $ 960.]
$ 49t $ 40 $ 3.1f
$ 48 $ 39/ $ 3.0¢f
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WellPoint, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In millions)

Operating activities
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:
Net realized losses (gains) on investm
Loss on disposal of ass¢
Loss on repurchase of debt securi
Deferred income taxe
Amortization, net of accretio
Depreciation expens
Shar-based compensatic
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffett of business combinatior
Receivables, ne
Other invested assets, curn
Other asset
Policy liabilities
Unearned incom
Accounts payable and accrued expet
Other liabilities
Income taxe:

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing activities
Purchases of fixed maturity securit
Proceeds from fixed maturity securiti
Sales
Maturities, calls and redemptio
Purchase of equity securiti
Proceeds from sales of equity securi
Changes in securities lending collate
Purchases of subsidiaries, net of cash acq
Proceeds from sales of subsidiaries, net of cask
Purchases of property and equipm
Proceeds from sale of property and equipn
Other, ne

Net cash used in investing activitie

Financing activities

Net (repayments of) proceeds from commercial phpaowings

Proceeds from lor-term borrowings

Repayment of lor-term borrowings

Changes in securities lending pays

Changes in bank overdra

Repurchase and retirement of common s

Proceeds from exercise of employee stock optiodseamployee stock purchase p
Proceeds from sale of put optic

Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic

Proceeds from issuance of common stock under E&aityrity Unit stock purchase contra
Costs related to issuance of common s

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activitie

Change in cash and cash equivalt

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

Cash and cash equivalents at end of yei

See accompanying notes.
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Years ended December 31

2006 2005 2004
$ 3,094.¢ $ 2463¢ $ 960.1
0.3 10.2 (42.5)
1.7 2.7 0.8
— — 146.1
273.7 (102.6) (103.9)
471.€ 437. 191.
133.( 118.7 78.1
246.¢ 81.c 10.C
(136.5) — —
(649.) (230.) (2.5)
234.¢ — —
(362.9) (165.6) (89.9)
874.: 46.: 26.¢
(69.5) (38.2) 34.C
(91.7) 188.¢ (33.1)
134.: (136.7) 28.F
(112.0 459.¢ (125.5)
4,044 3,135 1,078t
(11,198.)  (17,457.)  (7,242.)
9,630. 14,391. 6,273k
721.¢ 1,344.! 952.F
(2,434.9) (4,530.6) (6.6)
2,950.¢ 4,480.( 1.3
485.: (731.) 242.(
(25.4) (2,589.)  (2,239.9
— 92.¢ —
(193.9) (161.9) (136.9)
6.4 10.2 9.1
(399.7) — 15.7
(457.9) (5151  (2,131.9
(306.0) 808.: 793.
2,668. 1,700.( 1,770..
(2,162.) (155.1) (798.5)
(485.7) 731.c (242.0)
414 121.2 224.7
(4,550.7) (333.) (82.9)
550. 429. 159.(
— 1.1 —
136.5 — —
— — 230.(
— (3.6) (8.2)
(3,725.0) 3,299.: 2,046.
(138.]) 1,283.( 992.7
2,740. 1,457.. 464.F
$ 2602. $ 2740 $1,457.
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WellPoint, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity

s Additional Accumulated
(In millions) Common Stock Retainec Unearned Other Total
Number Paid-in Share-Based Comprehensive Shareholders’
of Share: Par Value Capital Earnings Compensatior Income (Loss) Equity

January 1, 200 1376  $ 14 $ 4,708, $1154: $ B2 $ 1385 $ 5,999.¢
Net income — — — 960.1 — — 960.1
Change in net unrealized gains on investm — — — — — (2.5) (2.5)
Change in net unrealized gain on cash flow he — — — — — 9.7 9.7
Change in additional minimum pension liabil — — — — — (0.2) 0.0)
Comprehensive incor 967.2
Issuance of common stock and conversion of stotkmgin

connection with WellPoint Health Networks Inc. mergnet o

issue costs and elimination of subsidiary heldls 154.2 1.6 12,029.: — (46.9) — 11,983.¢
Issuance of common stock under Equity Security $Jstiock

purchase contrac 5.3 — 230.( — — — 230.(
Repurchase and retirement of common s 1.0 — (34.€) (47.7) — — (82.9)
Issuance of common stock under employee stock pretof

repurchases under stock-for-stock option exercressricted

stock amortization and related tax bene 6.5 — 500.2 (106.6) (33.9 — 360.%
December 31, 20C 302.¢ 3.0 17,433.¢ 1,960.: (83.5) 145.¢ 19,459.(
Net income — — — 2,463.¢ — — 2,463.¢
Change in net unrealized gains on investm — — — — — (157.2) (157.2)
Change in net unrealized gains on cash flow he — — — — — 9.7) 9.7
Change in additional minimum pension liabil — — — — — 0.8 0.8
Comprehensive incor 2,297
Issuance of common stock and conversion of stotkmgin

connection with WellChoice, Inc., net, of issuetsand

elimination of subsidiary held stock and other jase

accounting adjustmen 42.7 04 2,953.; — — — 2,953t
Repurchase and retirement of common s 3.9 — (146.€ (186.§) — — (333.9
Issuance of common stock under employee stock pheatof

repurchases under stock-for-stock option exercressricted

stock amortization and related tax bene 12.C 0.1 675.% (60.5) 1.4 — 616.:
Two-for-one stock spli 307.C 3.1 — (3.7 — — —
December 31, 20C 660.4 6.6 20,915. 4,173t (82.3) (20.9) 24,993.
Net income — — — 3,094.¢ — — 3,094.¢
Change in net unrealized losses on investr — — — — — 180.2 180.2
Change in net unrealized losses on cash flow he — — — — — (5.€) (5.6
Change in additional minimum pension liabil — — — — — (4.7) (4.7)
Comprehensive incor 3,264.¢
Repurchase and retirement of common s (60.7) (0.6) (2,937.9) (2,612.9) — — (4,550.7)
Reclassification of unearned share-based compensati

connection with adoption of FAS 12! — — (82.1) — 82.1 — —
Issuance of common stock under employee stock pheatof

related tax benef 15.€ 0.1 967.5 — — — 967.€
Adoption of FAS 158, net of te — — — — — (99.5) (99.5)
December 31, 200 615.F $ 6.1 $ 19,863.! $ 4,656.. $ = $ 50.1 $ 24,575.

See accompanying notes.
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WellPoint, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2006
(In Millions, Except Per Share Data)
1. Organization

WellPoint, Inc. (“WellPoint”), which name changedm Anthem, Inc. (“Anthem”) effective November 3004, is the largest health
benefits company in terms of commercial memberghthe United States, serving over 34 million matiimembers as of December 31, 2006.
WellPoint and its consolidated subsidiaries (therfpany”) offer a broad spectrum of network-basedagad care plans to the large and small
employer, individual, Medicaid and senior markdise Company’s managed care plans include pref@m@dder organizations (“PPOs"),
health maintenance organizations (“HMOs"), pointsefvice (“POS”) plans, traditional indemnity plearsd other hybrid plans, including
consumer-driven health plans (“CDHPs”), hospitdlyand limited benefit products. In addition, ther@pany provides a broad array of
managed care services to self-funded customelsding claims processing, underwriting, stop lossurance, actuarial services, provider
network access, medical cost management and alh@nistrative services. The Company also providearaay of specialty and other
products and services such as life and disabilgytiance benefits, pharmacy benefit managemertiadiygoharmacy, dental, vision,
behavioral health benefits services, long-term @aerance and flexible spending accounts. The Goyhas licenses in all 50 states.

The Company is an independent licensee of the Btass and Blue Shield Association (“BCBSA”), anasation of independent health
benefit plans, and serves its members as the Blogsdicensee for California and as the Blue CemgsBlue Shield licensee for: Colorado,
Connecticut, Georgia, Indiana, Kentucky, Maine, #digri (excluding 30 counties in the Kansas Cityaardlevada, New Hampshire, New Y1
(as Blue Cross Blue Shield in 10 New York City metlitan and surrounding counties and as Blue Goo&due Cross Blue Shield in selected
upstate counties only), Ohio, Virginia (excludimg tNorthern Virginia suburbs of Washington, D.Gijl&Visconsin. The Company also serves
customers throughout various parts of the courgrij@iCare.

2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountin@olicies

Basis of PresentationThe accompanying consolidated financial statemeintise Company include the accounts of WellPoirtt &
subsidiaries and have been prepared in confornitty W S. generally accepted accounting principt€&AP”). All significant intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminateahisotidation.

Use of EstimatesThe preparation of consolidated financial states@ntonformity with GAAP requires management tckmastimates
and assumptions that affect the amounts reportdteisonsolidated financial statements and accowipgmotes. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Two-for-One Stock SplitOn April 25, 2005, WellPoint’s Board of Directorgoved a two-for-one split of shares of commorrlsto
which was effected in the form of a 100 percent cam stock dividend. All shareholders of record oayM 3, 2005 received one additional
share of WellPoint common stock for each sharenafroon stock held on that date. The additional shafeommon stock were distributed to
shareholders of record in the form of a stock dividl on May 31, 2005. All historical weighted averafpare and per share amounts and all
references to share-based compensation data akdtmparces of WellPoint's common stock for all pet$ presented have been adjusted to
reflect this two-for-one stock split.

Investmentsin accordance with FAS 11Bccounting for Certain Investments in Debt and BgS8kecuritiesfixed maturity and equity
securities are classified as “available-for-sale"ttading” and are reported
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WellPoint, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountin@olicies (continued)

at fair value. The Company classifies its investtaém available-forsale fixed maturity securities as either curremt@mncurrent assets basec
their contractual maturities. Certain investmersisduto satisfy contractual, regulatory or otheunesments continue to be classified as long-
term, without regard to contractual maturity. Theaalized gains or losses on both current and teng-fixed maturity and equity securities
classified as available-for-sale are included icuatulated other comprehensive income as a sepaatponent of shareholders’ equity, unless
the decline in value is deemed to be other-tlegmporary and the Company does not have the iatehtbility to hold such securities until th
full cost can be recovered, in which case the seéesiiare written down to fair value and the lassharged to realized losses in current
operations. The Company evaluates its investmextrigies for other-than-temporary declines basedwmtitative and qualitative factors.

In November 2005, the Financial Accounting Stangd@dard (“FASB”) issued FASB Staff Position FAS N&$5-1 and 124-IThe
Meaning of Othe-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application tertain Investment&he “FSP”), which was effective for the Company
January 1, 2006. The adoption of the FSP did ne¢ laasignificant impact on the Company’s consoéiddtnancial position or results of
operations.

WellPoint maintains various rabbi trusts to accdonthe assets and liabilities under certain defecompensation plans. Under these
plans, the participants can defer certain typesofpensation and elect to receive a return oneferced amounts based on the changes in fair
value of various investment options, primarily aiety of mutual funds. Rabbi trust assets were ipresly classified as noncurrent available-
for-sale investments. Effective January 1, 2006iarmbnnection with a restructuring of the plangl\Woint changed its classification for the
majority of such securities from available-for-saddrading, which are reported in other investesess, current in the consolidated balance
sheet. The change in the fair value of the tragioigfolio rabbi trust assets during 2006 resulte#35.6 of realized gains, which, together with
net investment income from trading portfolio rabiist assets of $8.6, is classified in generaladinistrative expense in the consolidated
statement of income, consistent with the relatedeiase in deferred compensation expense.

During December 2006, WellPoint initiated a prognahereby it generally purchases corporate-ownedti$urance policies on
participants in the deferred compensation plans.dash surrender value of the corporate-ownedhiifierance policies is reported in other
invested assets, long-term in the consolidatedhibalaheets. The change in cash surrender valapasted as an offset to the premium expense
of the policies, classified as general and adnritiste expense.

The Company uses the equity method of accountingnf@stments in companies in which its ownershipriest enables the Company to
influence the operating or financial decisionstef investee company. The Company’s proportionadeestf equity in net income of these
unconsolidated affiliates is reported with net istveent income.

For asset-backed securities included in fixed nitgtgecurities, the Company recognizes income uaimgffective yield based on
anticipated prepayments and the estimated econdmif the securities. When estimates of prepaytisiehange, the effective yield is
recalculated to reflect actual payments to dateaatidipated future payments. The net investmettiérsecurities is adjusted to the amount
would have existed had the new effective yield beggplied since the acquisition of the securitiegiSadjustments are reflected in net
investment income.

All securities sold resulting in investment gaimsldosses are recorded on the trade date. Regj&rd and losses are determined on the
basis of the cost or amortized cost of the spes#iurities sold.
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WellPoint, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountin@olicies (continued)

The Company patrticipates in securities lending mog whereby marketable securities in its investmertfolio are transferred to
independent brokers or dealers based on, amongtbihgs, their creditworthiness in exchange fdtateral initially equal to at least 102
percent of the value of the securities on loaniaridereafter maintained at a minimum of 100 petroéthe market value of the securities
loaned. The market value of the securities on toaach borrower is monitored daily and the bormoweequired to deliver additional
collateral if the market value of the collaterdiddelow 100 percent of the market value of theusiéies on loan. The fair value of the collate
amounted to $904.7 and $1,389.9, which repres@&pércent and 102 percent of the market valubegécurities on loan at December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively. In accordance with EAG Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Finandakets and Extinguishments of
Liabilities , the Company recognizes the collateral as an,agbkéth is reported as “securities lending collateon its balance sheet and the
Company records a corresponding liability for tihdigation to return the collateral to the borrowehich is reported as “securities lending
payable.” The securities on loan are reported énapplicable investment category on the balancetshe

Cash EquivalentsAll highly liquid investments with maturities ofride months or less when purchased are classifiedsisequivalents.

Derivative Financial Instrumentsin accordance with FAS 133ccounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedgirgivities, all
investments in derivatives are recorded at fain@ah derivative is typically defined as an instemhwhose value is “derived” from an
underlying instrument, index or rate, has a nofi@maount, requires little or no initial investmeartd can be net settled. The Company typically
invests in the following types of derivative findaldnstruments: interest rate swaps, call optiemsbedded derivatives and warrants.
Derivatives embedded within non-derivative instramsgsuch as options embedded in convertible firatlrity securities) are bifurcated from
the host instrument when the embedded derivatinetislearly and closely related to the host inseunt.

The Companys derivatives are reported as other current assdibilities or other noncurrent assets or lidiais, as appropriate, with t|
exception of embedded derivative instruments nbjesi to bifurcation, which are reported togeth&hwheir host instrument. If certain
correlation, hedge effectiveness and risk reduatiieria are met, a derivative may be specificdiygignated as a hedge of exposure to ch:
in fair value or cash flow. The accounting for chas in the fair value of a derivative depends enittended use of the derivative and the
nature of any hedge designation thereon.

Any amounts excluded from the assessment of heffigtieeness, as well as the ineffective portioritaf gain or loss, are reported in
results of operations immediately. If the derivatig not designated as a hedge, the gain or les#tirgy from the change in the fair value of the
derivative is recognized in results of operationghie period of change.

The Company’s accounting for changes in the fdue/af derivatives is as follows:

Nature of Hedge Designation Derivative’'s Change in Fair Value Reflected In
No hedge designatic Realized investment gains or los:
Fair value hedg Realized investment gains or losses, along witlcttange in the fair value of the hedged assetbilitly
Cash flow hedg Other comprehensive income, with subsequent refizg®on to earnings when the hedged transac

asset or liability impacts earnin
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WellPoint, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu

2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accountin@olicies (continued)

The Company discontinues hedge accounting prosedgetivhen it is determined that one of the follogrimas occurred: (i) the derivative
is no longer highly effective in offsetting changeshe fair value or cash flows of a hedged it¢iththe derivative expires or is sold,
terminated or exercised; (iii) the derivative iglasignated as a hedge instrument because it leeynthat a forecasted transaction will occur;
(iv) a hedged firm commitment no longer meets tbfinition of a firm commitment; or (v) managemesetermines that the designation of the
derivative as a hedge instrument is no longer gpjate.

If hedge accounting is discontinued, the derivatisecontinue to be carried in the Compasyonsolidated balance sheet at its fair ve
When hedge accounting is discontinued becauseettieative no longer qualifies as an effective fatue hedge, the related hedged asset or
liability will no longer be adjusted for fair valughanges. When hedge accounting is discontinuegiigedt is probable that a forecasted
transaction will not occur, the accumulated uneealigains and losses included in accumulated otmprehensive income will be recognized
immediately in results of operations. When hedgmanting is discontinued because the hedged itelanger meets the definition of a firm
commitment, any asset or liability that was recdrgarsuant to the firm commitment will be removeahf the balance sheet and recognized as
a gain or loss in current period results of opersdi In all other situations in which hedge accmgnis discontinued, changes in the fair valu
the derivative are recognized in current periodltef operations.

The Companys use of derivatives is limited by statutes andilaipns promulgated by the various regulatory bedo which it is subjec
and by its own derivative policy.

Credit exposure associated with noerformance by the counterparties to derivativerimsents is generally limited to the uncollaterad
fair value of the asset related to instrumentsgeized in the consolidated balance sheets. The @oynattempts to mitigate the risk of non-
performance by selecting counterparties with higuit ratings and monitoring their creditworthinessl by diversifying derivatives among
multiple counterparties.

The Company has exposure to economic losses dntetest rate risk arising from changes in the llevevolatility of interest rates. The
Company attempts to mitigate its exposure to istenae risk through active portfolio managemerticl includes rebalancing its existing
portfolios of assets and liabilities, as well aamiing the characteristics of investments to belmased or sold in the future. In addition,
derivative financial instruments are used to motliy interest rate exposure of certain liabilibegorecasted transactions. These strategies
include the use of interest rate swaps and forwardracts. These instruments are generally uskxtkanterest rates or to hedge (on an
economic basis) interest rate risks associatedwaitiable rate debt. The Company has used thegs gfiinstruments as designated hedges
against specific liabilities.

The contractual or notional amounts for derivatiges used to calculate the exchange of contrapaahents under the agreements and
are not representative of the potential for gaitoss on these instruments. Interest rates andyepuices affect the fair value of derivatives.
The fair values generally represent the estimateauats that the Company would expect to receivgagrupon termination of the contracts at
the reporting date. Dealer quotes are availabledbstantially all of the Company’s derivativesr Berivative instruments not actively traded,
fair values are estimated using values obtained fralependent pricing services, costs to settiguoted market prices of comparable
instruments.

Premium and Self-Funded ReceivableBremium and self-funded receivables include thellemcted amounts from insured and self-
funded groups, and are reported net of an allowércdgoubtful accounts of $120.8 and $96.0 at Ddzem31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
The allowance for doubtful accounts is based ototitsal collection trends and management’s judgnegarding the ability to collect specific
accounts.
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Other ReceivablesOther receivables include proceeds due from brakeisvestment trades, government programs, pharseles,
reinsurance, claim recoveries and other miscellan@mounts due to the Company. These receivablestieen reduced by an allowance for
uncollectible amounts of $118.0 and $90.9 at Deeer8lh, 2006 and 2005, respectively, which is baselistorical collection trends and
management’s judgment regarding the ability toemlspecific accounts.

The Company’s pharmacy benefit managers (“PBM"ticant with pharmaceutical manufacturers, some amwiprovide rebates based
on use of the manufacturers’ products by the PBAffiiated and non-affiliated clients. The Compaaugcrues rebates receivable on a monthly
basis based on the terms of the applicable cosfrhistorical data and current estimates. The PBISIthese rebates to the manufacturers on a
quarterly basis. The Company records rebates atittite to affiliated clients as a reduction to Hegrexpense. Rebates attributable to non-
affiliated clients are accrued as rebates recedvabtl a corresponding payable for the amountseofabates to be remitted to non-affiliated
clients in accordance with their contracts is atsmrded. The Company generally receives rebategeba two to five months after billing.

Property and EquipmentProperty and equipment is recorded at cost, natafimulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed
principally by the straight-line method over esttethuseful lives ranging from 15 to 39 years foitdings and improvements, three to seven
years for furniture and equipment, and three te figars for computer software. Leasehold improvésarme depreciated over the term of
related lease. Certain costs related to the denedapor purchase of internal-use software are aligatd and amortized in accordance with
AICPA Statement of Position 98-Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Dmpe or Obtained for Internal Use

Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset3:he Company follows FAS 14Business Combinationsand FAS 142Goodwill and Other
Intangible Asset. FAS 141 requires business combinations to beusted for using the purchase method of accountimbjitealso specifies tt
types of acquired intangible assets that are redu be recognized and reported separately fravdwitl. Under FAS 142, goodwill and other
intangible assets with indefinite lives are not aimed but are tested for impairment at least atyw@oodwill represents the excess of cost of
acquisition over the fair value of net assets aegliOther intangible assets represent the vaksgreed to subscriber bases, provider and
hospital networks, Blue Cross and Blue Shield tmaalks, licenses, nocempete and other agreements. Goodwill and oth@ngible assets a
allocated to reportable segments based on thedhie of the components of the businesses acquired.

Retirement BenefitsPension benefits are recorded in accordance with 8AEmployers’ Accounting for Pensioria. September 2006,
the FASB issued FAS 158mployers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensiod ©ther Postretirement Plans — an amendment ofBFAS
Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(RAS 158 retains the previous measurement antbdise requirements of FAS 87. In addition, FAS
158 requires the recognition of the funded stafyseasion and other postretirement benefit plantherconsolidated balance sheet
(“recognition provisions”). Furthermore, for fisggars ending after December 15, 2008, FAS 158 meg)tiscal-year-end measurements of
plan assets and benefit obligations, eliminatirggube of earlier measurement dates currently psihes Effective with the adoption of the
recognition provisions of FAS 158 on December 3IN& previously unrecognized actuarial gains asdgsand prior service cost were
recognized on the balance sheet within accumulatteer comprehensive income, net of any resultirfgrded tax balances. The adoption of
FAS 158 decreased accumulated other comprehemsioene by $99.5 at December 31, 2006. Prepaid pebsioefits represent prepaid costs
related to defined benefit pension plans and grerted with other noncurrent assets. Postretiretenéfits represent outstanding obligations
for retiree medical, life,
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vision and dental benefits. Liabilities for pensiemmd other postretirement benefits are reporteld sitrent and noncurrent liabilities based on
the amount by which the actuarial present valugeoiefits payable in the next 12 months includeithénbenefit obligation exceeds the fair
value of plan assets.

Medical Claims PayableLiabilities for medical claims payable include estited provisions for incurred but not paid claimsan
undiscounted basis, as well as estimated providmmaxpenses related to the processing of clainesirred but not paid claims include (1) an
estimate for claims that are incurred but not regghras well as claims reported to the Companybtiyet processed through its systems; and
(2) claims reported to the Company and processeddgl its systems but not yet paid.

Liabilities for both claims incurred but not repedtand reported but not yet processed through tinep@ny’s systems are determined in
aggregate employing actuarial methods that are aamynused by health insurance actuaries and meetfial Standards of Practice.
Actuarial Standards of Practice require that tlncliabilities be adequate under moderately advergumstances. The Company determines
the amount of the liability for incurred but notiggglaims by following a detailed actuarial procésat entails using both historical claim
payment patterns as well as emerging medical oastl$ to project its best estimate of claim lidied.

The Company regularly reviews and sets assumptegerding cost trends and utilization when initiaktablishing claim liabilities. It
continually monitors and adjusts the claims liabiind benefit expense based on subsequent paitscativity. If the Companyg assumptior
regarding cost trends and utilization are signiftbadifferent than actual results, the Compangsime statement and financial position could
be impacted in future periods.

Premium deficiencies are recognized when it is abbdthat expected claims and administrative exgeendll exceed future premiums on
existing medical insurance contracts without comsition of investment income. Determination of premdeficiencies for longer duration li
and disability contracts includes consideratiome&stment income. For purposes of premium defaies) contracts are deemed to be either
short or long duration and are grouped in a manassistent with the Comparsymethod of acquiring, servicing and measuringptio&itability
of such contracts. Once established, premium @efiies are released commensurate with actual ciperience over the remaining life of
the contract.

Reserves for Future Policy BenefitReserves for future policy benefits include ligkak for life and long-term disability insurance
policy benefits based upon interest, mortality ematbidity assumptions from published actuarialéabmodified based upon the Company’s
experience. Future policy benefits also includbilites for insurance policies for which some bétpremiums received in earlier years are
intended to pay anticipated benefits to be incumefdture years. Future policy benefits are camdify monitored and reviewed, and when
reserves are adjusted, differences are reflectbdnefit expense.

The current portion of reserves for future poli@nbfits relates to the portion of such reservestlieaCompany expects to pay within one
year. The Company believes that its liabilitiesfitture policy benefits, along with future premiumeseived are adequate to satisfy its ultin
benefit liability; however, these estimates aresneimtly subject to a number of variable circumstan€onsequently, the actual results could
differ materially from the amounts recorded in tomsolidated financial statements of the Company.
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Other Policyholder Liabilities:Other policyholder liabilities include certain caggecific reserves as well as rate stabilizaticenees
associated with retrospectively rated insuranceraots. Rate stabilization reserves represent aglaied premiums that exceed what
customers owe based on actual claim experiencarngaid based on contractual requirements.

Revenue RecognitionGross premiums for fully-insured contracts are geioed as revenue over the period insurance cogesag
provided. Premiums applicable to the unexpired remttal coverage periods are reflected in the apemying consolidated balance sheets as
unearned income. Premiums include revenue frorogpéctively rated contracts where revenue is basebe estimated ultimate loss
experience of the contract. Premium revenue indagteadjustment for retrospectively rated refuradsed on an estimate of incurred claims.
Premium rates for certain lines of business argestibo approval by the Department of Insuranceawh respective state.

Administrative fees include revenue from certaiougr contracts that provide for the group to basktfor all, or with supplemental
insurance arrangements, a portion of their clairpggence. The Company charges these self-fundmegpgran administrative fee, which is
based on the number of members in a group or the{g claim experience. In addition, administrafigees include amounts received for the
administration of Medicare or certain other goveemtrprograms. Under the Company’s self-funded gearents, revenue is recognized as
administrative services are performed. All bengdiyments under these programs are excluded froefiberpense.

Other revenue principally includes amounts fromlroeder prescription drug sales, which are recogghias revenue when the Company
ships prescription drug orders.

Federal Income TaxesThe Company files a consolidated income tax retDeferred income tax assets and liabilities aregnized for
temporary differences between the financial stateérard tax return bases of assets and liabilizsg8 on enacted tax rates and laws. The
deferred tax benefits of the deferred tax assetsemognized to the extent realization of such fisne more likely than not. Deferred income
tax expense or benefit generally represents thehsatge in deferred income tax assets and liagslduring the year. Current income tax
expense represents the tax consequences of rev@mdiespenses currently taxable or deductible olowsincome tax returns for the year
reported.

In July 2006, FASB Interpretation No. 48¢counting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an iptetation of FASB Statement 108IN
48") was issued. Among other things, FIN 48 createsodel to address uncertainty in tax positiorts@arifies the accounting for income
taxes by prescribing a minimum recognition thredhwlhich all income tax positions must achieve befoeing recognized in the financial
statements. In addition, FIN 48 requires expandeuial disclosures, including a rollforward of theginning and ending aggregate
unrecognized tax benefits as well as specific tegthited to tax uncertainties for which it is reaably possible the amount of unrecognized tax
benefit will significantly increase or decreasehiittwelve months. FIN 48 was effective on Janugr2007. The cumulative effect of the
adoption of FIN 48 is not expected to have a maltéripact on the Company’s beginning retained egsat January 1, 2007.

Share-Based Compensatioithe Company’s compensation philosophy providesifiare-based compensation, including stock options
and restricted stock awards, as well as an emplstged purchase plan. Stock options are granted fixed number of shares with an exercise
price at least equal to the fair value of the shatehe date of the grant. Restricted stock anarelsssued at the fair value of the stock on the
grant date. The employee stock purchase plan alloms purchase price per share which is 85% ofdaher of the fair
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value of a share of common stock on (i) the firatling day of the plan quarter, or (ii) the lastling day of the plan quarter. Through
December 31, 2005, the Company historically acaxlifdr share-based compensation using the intriradice method under Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 2Bccounting for Stock Issued to Employ€@d’B 25"), and, accordingly, recognized no compensation exg
related to stock options and employee stock pusshdsor grants of restricted stock, other thandlagarded under long-term incentive
agreements, unearned compensation equivalent faithalue of the shares at the date of grantiwasrded as a separate component of
shareholders’ equity and subsequently amortizehapensation expense over the award’s vestinggeFize Company has historically
reported pro forma results under the disclosurg-privisions of FAS 123Accounting for Stock-Based CompensafitiAS 123"), as
amended by FAS 14&ccounting for Stock-Based Compensation—TransétiahDisclosure

On December 16, 2004, FAS 123 (revised 208hgare-Based PaymefiFAS 123R”), was issued. FAS 123R is a revisiofralS 123,
supersedes APB 25 and amends FASS#atement of Cash Flow&enerally, the approach in FAS 123R is similath approach described in
FAS 123. However, FAS 123R requires all share-basgthents to employees, including grants of emm@mteck options and discounts
associated with employee stock purchases, to lgnéed as compensation expense in the incomerstatedased on their fair values. Pro
forma disclosure of compensation expense is nogloag alternative. Additionally, excess tax besefithich result from actual tax benefits
exceeding deferred tax benefits previously recaghlzased on grant date fair value, are recognigediditional paid-in-capital and are
reclassified from operating cash flows to financoagh flows in the consolidated statement of closinst

The Company adopted FAS 123R on January 1, 200§) tlee modified prospective transition method. Binthe modified prospective
transition method, fair value accounting and redagm provisions of FAS 123R are applied to shaasdudl awards granted or modified
subsequent to the date of adoption and prior pefiwdsented are not restated. In addition, for @svgranted prior to the effective date, the
unvested portion of the awards are recognized iiioge subsequent to the adoption based on the ded@tfair value determined for pro forma
disclosure purposes under FAS 123.

The Company'’s share-based employee compensating afal assumptions are described in Note 12. Thusvfog table illustrates the
effect on net income and earnings per share iCtrapany had applied the fair value recognition jgions of FAS 123 to share-based
employee compensation:

Years ended December 31

2005 2004
Reported net incomr $ 2,463.¢ $ 960.1
Add: Shar-based employee compensation expense for reststiell and stock awards includec

reported net income (net of te 52.¢ 6.6
Less: Total share-based employee compensation sxmtermined under fair value based method for

awards (net of tax (175.9) (89.5)
Pro forma net incom $ 2,341 $ 877.c
Basic earnings per shai

As reportec $ 4.0: $ 3.1F

Pro forma 3.8 2.8¢
Diluted earnings per shat

As reportec $ 3.94 $ 3.0F

Pro forma 3.72 2.8C
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Earnings per ShareEarnings per share amounts, on a basic and dihasid, have been calculated based upon the weighitgedge
common shares outstanding for the period.

Basic earnings per share excludes dilution andnspaited by dividing income available to common shatders by the weightealrerage
number of common shares outstanding for the pebddted earnings per share include the dilutiie@fof stock options, restricted stock and
purchase contracts included in Equity Security §lnising the treasury stock method. The treasogkshethod assumes exercise of stock
options, vesting of restricted stock and conversibstock purchase rights under purchase contiaclisded in Equity Security Units, with the
assumed proceeds used to purchase common stdukatdrage market price for the period. The diffeecbetween the number of shares
assumed issued and number of shares assumed mdcbasesents the dilutive shares. The purchageactsincluded in Equity Security
Units were settled in November 2004, and the comstock issued is included in the basic earningspare calculation at December 31, 2004
and thereafter.

Advertising costs The Company uses print, broadcast and other adieytio promote its products. The cost of advertiss expensed
incurred and totaled $223.7, $143.9, and $40.4h@years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2€€pkatively.

ReclassificationsCertain prior year amounts have been reclassifiewdhform to the current year presentation.
3. Business Combinations
WellChoice, Inc. Acquisition

On December 28, 2005, the Company completed itgisitiqn of WellChoice, Inc. (“WellChoice”). The quisition was accounted for
using the purchase method of accounting, and wameeé effective December 31, 2005 for accounting@sgs. Accordingly, the operating
results of WellChoice are included in WellPointtneolidated financial statements in periods follegvDecember 31, 2005.

Under the merger agreement, WellChoice stockholdmmived thirty-eight dollars and twenty-five ce$38.25) in cash and 0.5191 of a
share of WellPoint common stock for each share efl@hoice common stock outstanding. The value eftthnsaction is estimated to be
approximately $6,463.9, including cash of $3,124,issuance of 42.4 shares of common stock, ¢ati§3,180.8, 0.3 shares of WellChoice
restricted stock and stock units converted to WhtlPstock, valued at $19.8, WellChoice stock amiconverted to WellPoint stock options,
valued at $113.4, and $23.5 of transaction costs.fair value of common stock issued was basedrdrd$ per share, which represents the
average closing price of the Company’s common stockhe five trading days ranging from two day$doe to two days after September 27,
2005, the date the merger was announced.

In accordance with FAS 141 the purchase price Wasaded to the fair value of WellChoice assetsuéregl and liabilities assumed,
including identifiable intangible assets. The excekpurchase price over the fair value of nettassequired resulted in $3,450.4 of non-tax
deductible goodwill which was allocated to the He&are segment.
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The fair values of WellChoice assets acquired &tilities assumed at the date of the acquisitaaljisted for final purchase price
allocations, are summarized as follows:

Current assel $ 4,284
Goodwiill 3,450.¢
Other intangible asse 1,729.!
Other noncurrent asse 186.¢
Total assets acquire 9,650.
Current liabilities 2,482.¢
Noncurrent liabilities 703.¢
Total liabilities assume 3,186.¢
Net assets acquire $ 6,463.¢

Of the $1,729.5 of acquired intangible assets, 38 was assigned to Blue Cross and Blue Shieltnarks, which are not subject to
amortization due to their indefinite life. The reimiag acquired intangible assets consist of $568 Aibscriber base with an average life of 15
years and $13.5 of provider contracts with a 20 jia The values assigned to goodwill and intéhgiassets with finite and indefinite liv
were determined based on independent third-pattyatians.

The pro forma effects of this acquisition were matterial to the Company’s consolidated resultspafrations.
Lumenos, Inc. Acquisitior

On June 9, 2005, the Company completed its acouisiff Lumenos, Inc. (“Lumenos”), a market leadeconsumer-driven health
programs. The total consideration for the acquisitvas approximately $185.0 in cash paid to thek$tolders of Lumenos. The acquisition
was accounted for using the purchase method ofuatiog, and was deemed effective June 1, 2005doounting purposes. Accordingly, the
results of operations for Lumenos are includecdhen@ompany’s consolidated financial statementpéoiods following June 1, 2005. In
accordance with FAS 141, the purchase price wasatkd to the fair value of Lumenos assets acqainediabilities assumed, including
identifiable intangible assets, and the excessuofhmse price over the fair value of net assetsisad|resulted in $119.3 of non-tax deductible
goodwill, which was allocated to the Health Cargrsent. The pro forma effects of this acquisitiorreveot material to the Company’s
consolidated results of operations.

Merger with WellPoint Health Networks Inc

On November 30, 2004, Anthem and WellPoint Healdtmrks Inc. (“WHN") completed their merger and Aet purchased 100% of
the outstanding common stock of WHN. WHN mergedwaitd into Anthem Holding Corp., a direct and wialned subsidiary of Anthem,
with Anthem Holding Corp. as the surviving entitythe merger. In connection with the merger, Antlsnended its articles of incorporatiol
change its name to WellPoint, Inc. In addition, ticker symbol for Anthem’s common stock listedtbe New York Stock Exchange was
changed to “WLP”. WHN’s operating results are ir#d in WellPoint's consolidated financial statensefot the periods following
November 30, 200¢
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As a result of the merger, each WHN stockholdeeirazl twenty-three dollars and eighty cents ($28i8@ash, without interest, and one
share of WellPoint common stock for each share bfN\\¢ommon stock held. The purchase price was $B5%57and included cash of $3,718.8,
the issuance of approximately 310.6 shares of VigltRommon stock, valued at $11,293.8, WHN stoafioms converted to WellPoint stock
options and other stock awards for approximately 4Bares, valued at $563.6, and $197.4 of traimsacbsts. The fair value of common stock
issued was based on $36.35 per share, which reysabe average closing price of the Company’s comstock for the five trading days
ranging from two days before to two days after ®etd27, 2003, the date the merger was announced.

In accordance with FAS 141, the purchase priceallasated to the fair value of WHN assets acquéed liabilities assumed, including
identifiable intangible assets. The excess of pasetprice over the fair value of net assets acgdjuésulted in $7,626.4 of non-tax deductible
goodwill, of which $7,397.6 was allocated to thealie Care segment and $228.8 to the Specialty segme

The fair values of WHN assets acquired and lidbgiassumed at the date of the merger, adjustdoh&bpurchase price allocations, are
summarized as follows:

Current assel $ 11,381.
Goodwiill 7,626.¢
Other intangible asse 7,031
Other noncurrent asse 1,100.!
Total assets acquire 27,140.:
Current liabilities 6,969.:
Noncurrent liabilities 4,397 .
Total liabilities assume 11,366.1
Net assets acquire $ 15,773.1

Of the $7,031.7 of acquired intangible assets, #1Bwas assigned to Blue Cross and Blue Shield#ret trademarks, $271.0 was
assigned to provider networks, and $258.0 was meditp a license for a state sponsored progranthvdre not subject to amortization due to
their indefinite life. The remaining acquired intgiole assets consist of $2,030.0 of subscriber bétbean average life of 20 years and $102.7
of provider contracts with a 23 year life. The \edassigned to goodwill and intangible assets fivitte and indefinite lives were determined
based on independent third-party valuations.

In connection with the WHN merger, the Company exed certain undertakings with the California Déypent of Managed Health
Care, the California Department of Insurance (“foafiia DOI"), and the Georgia Department of Insweif‘Georgia DOI"), which contained
various commitments by the Company. Expenses fogeneelated undertakings of $61.5 were recorde2Di¥ for certain obligations under
these agreements with the California DOI and ther@a DOI. Under these obligations, during 2005 JIiR&nt donated $35.0 to community
clinics in California and $15.0 for a program todmnducted through California community collegesuapport the training of new nurses in
California. Further, Blue Cross and Blue Shieldsaforgia, Inc. and Blue Cross and Blue Shield Healdh Plan of Georgia, Inc., are funding
the establishment and administration of a telenieelinetwork to benefit health care in rural Geongider the $11.5 commitment establishe
connection with the WHN merger.
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The unaudited pro forma information includes theuhes of operations for WHN for the periods priothe merger, adjusted for interest
expense on long-term debt and reduced investmeoinia related to the cash and investment secuuiied to fund the acquisition, additional
amortization and depreciation associated with tirelpase and the related income tax effects. Thaditea pro forma financial information is
presented for informational purposes only and natybe indicative of the results of operations haldN\been owned by WellPoint for the full
year ended December 31, 2004, nor is it necessadigative of future results of operatiol

The following summary of unaudited pro forma finehénformation presents revenues, net income amdspare data of WellPoint for
the year ended December 31, 2004 as if the WHN endrad occurred on January 1, 2004.

Pro forma revenue $42,124.
Pro forma net incom $ 1,910.
Pro forma earning per sha
Basic $ 3.1C
Diluted $ 3.0C
Pro forma shares outstandir
Basic 615.¢
Diluted 636.¢

4. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

A summary of the change in the carrying amountaafdyvill by reportable segment (see Note 19) for280d 2005 is as follows:

Health Care Specialty Total
Balance as of January 1, 2C $ 9,629. $ 388.€ $10,017.¢
Goodwill acquirec 3,565.¢ — 3,565.¢
Purchase price allocation adjustme 40.5 (154.9) (114.9
Balance as of December 31, 2( 13,235. 233.7 13,469.:
Goodwill acquirec 31.C 3.2 34.z
Purchase price allocation adjustme (116.9) (3.6) (119.9
Balance as of December 31, 2( $13,150.. $ 233.8 $13,383.!

For a period of time after the date of a mergeaamuisition, the initial fair values allocated tetmssets acquired may be subject to ch
as these fair value estimates are refined. Changagse fair value estimates are recorded as taggus to goodwill. Subsequent to the
purchase allocation period, additional changesitovilue of net assets acquired are recordedrieicuioperations, except for certain
adjustments related to income taxes and severanieh continue to be adjusted to goodwill.

Goodwill acquired in 2006 included $34.2 relatednigcellaneous acquisitions deemed not materiddeédCompany’s consolidated
financial statements. Goodwill adjustments in 206@buded a reduction of $54.5 related to the taxdbié on the exercise of stock options iss
as part of the WellChoice, WHN and Trigon Healtlegdnc. (“Trigon”) acquisitions. Goodwill adjustmsralso include an increase of $86.5
related to employee termination and other exitsasd a reduction of $30.9 for other purchase atowyadjustments related to the
WellChoice acquisition. Deferred tax allocationuadinents resulted in a reduction of $120.9 to golbadw2006.
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Goodwill acquired in 2005 included $3,445.2 relaiethe acquisition of WellChoice, $119.5 relatedte acquisition of Lumenos and
$0.9 related to other acquisitions. Goodwill adjustts of $75.4 in 2005 relate primarily to adjustisdor costs associated with employee
terminations and costs for exiting certain actdstin connection with the WHN merger. Goodwill adinents in 2005 also include a reduction
of $161.1 related to the tax benefit on the exeroisstock options issued as part of the WHN angoFr acquisitions and a reduction of $28.7
for other purchase accounting adjustments relat¢ldet WHN merger and initial WellChoice-relatecht@ration cost accruals.

The following table represents a summary of empdgemination and other exit costs recorded in eotian with the WHN merger and

WellChoice acquisition:

Employee Other
Termination Exit
Costs Activities Total

Initial WHN-related accrual at November 30, 2( $ 252.( $ — $ 252.(
Purchase accounting adjustments to initial W-related accrue 44t 27.€ 72.1
Payments and costs charged against liak (261.9 (27.6¢) (289.0
Initial WellChoice-related accrual at December 31, 2! 3.3 — 3.3
Accrued costs December 31, 2( 38.4 — 38.4
Purchase accounting adjustments to initial WellCé-related accrue 29.€ 56.¢ 86.t
Payments and costs charged against liak (48.€) (8.0 (56.¢)
Accrued costs December 31, 2( $ 19z $ 48.¢ $ 68.1

The components of other intangible assets as oéiber 31 are as follows:

2006 2005
Gross Net Gross Net
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount

Intangible assets with finite live

Subscriber bas $3,102¢ $ (661.7) $2,441! $ 3,103.( $ (3811 $2,721.¢

Provider and hospital networ 154.1 (30.2) 123.¢ 153.¢ (21.9) 132.2

Other 11.t (6.4) 5.1 18.¢ (12.9) 6.€
Total 3,268.: (697.7%) 2,570.! 3,275t (414.%) 2,860.;
Intangible assets with indefinite lif

Blue Cross and Blue Shield tradema 6,296." — 6,296. 6,296." — 6,296.°

Provider relationship 271.( — 271.( 271.( — 271.(

License 258.( — 258.( 258.( — 258.(
Total 6,825." — 6,825." 6,825." — 6,825."
Other intangible asse $10,093.¢ $ (697.7)  $9,396.. $10,101.. $ (414.%)  $9,686.

As required by FAS 142, the Company completedritaial impairment tests of existing goodwill andestintangible assets with
indefinite lives during the fourth quarters of 20@605 and 2004. These tests involved the usetiofi@es related to the fair value of the
reporting unit to which the goodwill and other imggble assets with indefinite lives are allocafEldere were no impairment losses recorded

during 2006, 2005 and 2004.
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As of December 31, 2006, estimated amortizatioreegp for each of the five years ending Decembeis3is follows: 2007, $282.5;
2008, $265.2; 2009, $247.2; 2010, $226.7; and 26209.6.

5. Investments

A summary of current and long-term investmentsjlakke-for-sale, is as follows:

Cost or Gross Gross Unrealized Losse
Amortized Unrealized Less than Greater than Estimated
Cost Gains 12 Months 12 Months Fair Value
December 31, 200¢
Fixed maturity securities
United States Government securi $ 1,255.¢ $ 41 $ (2.9 $ (8.3 $ 1,248.¢
States, municipalities and political
subdivision—tax-exempt 3,426.¢ 24.t (3.€) (19.6) 3,428..
Corporate securitie 5,200.: 39.¢ (15.2) (35.5) 5,189.:
Redeemable preferred securit — — — — —
Options embedded in convertible debt secur 40.€ — — — 40.€
Mortgage-backed securitie 5,562.¢ 15.2 (7.2) (39.9 5,5631.;
Total fixed maturity securitie 15,486.: 83.¢ (28.9) (203.9) 15,437.
Equity securitie: 1,752.¢ 334.2 (15.9) (0.6) 2,070.°
Total investments, availat-for-sale $17,238.! $ 418.( $ (44 $ (103.9) $17,508.!
December 31, 200t
Fixed maturity securitie:
United States Government securi $ 1,951.¢ $ 44 $ (119 $ (1.9 $ 1,942.¢
States, municipalities and political
subdivision—tax-exempt 2,902.¢ 7.2 (22.1) (12.7) 2,874.¢
Corporate securitie 5,997.t 21.: (54.9 (7.2 5,956."
Redeemable preferred securit 14.7 0.8 — — 5.9
Options embedded in convertible debt secur 19.C — — — 19.C
Mortgage-backed securitie 4,797.; 11.7 (45.9) (5.7) 4,758.(
Total fixed maturity securitie 15,682.¢ 45.4 (134.2) (26.9 15,566.!
Equity securitie: 1,734.! 114.¢ (27.6) (0.9 1,821.:
Total investments, availat-for-sale $17,417.. $ 160.( $ (161.9) $ (279 $17,388.1

The December 31, 2005 summary of available-forisalestments includes certain rabbi trust assetts avcost or amortized cost of
$281.6 and estimated fair value of $307.0. Thesetasvere classified as available-for-sale at Déegr@1, 2005 and classified as trading
securities at January 1, 2006 and are reportethar invested assets, current on the balance ste@&®scember 2006, the Company invested
the majority of its rabbi trust assets in corpomatened life insurance policies. The cash surrendére of the corporate-owned life insurance
policies is reported in other invested assets,-keng on the balance sheet.
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The following table summarizes for fixed maturigcarities and equity securities in an unrealizesd lposition at December 31, the
aggregate fair value and gross unrealized losetgth of time those securities have been continy@usn unrealized loss position.

2006 2005
Gross Gross
Number of Unrealized Number of Unrealized
Securities Fair Value Loss Securities Fair Value Loss
(Securities are whole amount:
Fixed maturity securities
12 months or les 1,62¢ $3,884.. $ (28.9) 4,057 $9,164. $(134.9)
Greater than 12 montl 3,06¢ 5,306.¢ (103.9) 934 1,115.; (26.9)
Total fixed maturity securitie 4,69¢ 9,190.! (132.]) 4,991 10,279.¢ (161.0)
Equity securities
12 months or les 1,10 234.¢ (15.9) 1,662 403.¢ (27.€)
Greater than 12 montl 1 21.C (0.€) 29 4.8 (0.9
Total equity securitie 1,10/ 255.¢ (15.9) 1,691 408. (28.0)
Total fixed maturity and equity securiti 5800 $9,446.. $ (148.0 6,682 $10,688.! $ (189.])

The Company’s fixed maturity investment portfoliosiensitive to interest rate fluctuations, whiclpact the fair value of individual
securities. Accordingly, unrealized losses on firgaturity securities reported above were generalysed by the effect of a rising interest rate
environment on certain securities with stated eggerates currently below market rates. The Compasythe ability and intent to hold these
fixed maturity securities until their full cost ce recovered. Therefore, the Company does naveethe unrealized losses represent an other-
than-temporary impairment as of December 31, 2006.

The amortized cost and fair value of fixed matusigurities at December 31, 2006, by contractuéinty, are shown below. Expected
maturities may be less than contractual maturitexsause the issuers of the securities may hawigtiteto prepay obligations without
prepayment penalties.

Amortized Estimated

Cost Fair Value

Due in one year or let $ 545: $ 543
Due after one year through five ye 4,547 .. 4,521..
Due after five years through ten ye 2,769.! 2,768.
Due after ten yeal 2,061.; 2,073.(
Mortgage-backed securitie 5,562.¢ 5,631.:
Total availabl-for-sale debt securitie $15,486..  $15,437.
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The major categories of net investment incomeHentears ended December 31 are as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Fixed maturity securitie $767.5 $570.¢ $299.1
Equity securitie: 43.¢ 33.¢ 8.1
Cash and cash equivalel 94.1 47.€ 11.¢
Other invested assets, lc-term 2.3 3.4 0.8
Investment incom 907.¢ 655.¢ 319.¢
Investment expens (29.1) (22.7) (8.2)
Net investment incom $878.7 $633.1 $311.7

Net realized investment gains (losses) and netgghanunrealized appreciation (depreciation) irestments for the years ended
December 31, were as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Net realized investment (losses) gai
Fixed maturity securities
Gross realized gains from sa $ 38.:c $ 90.¢ $92.C
Gross realized losses from sa (86.2) (116.2) (51.9
Gross realized losses from ot-thar-temporary impairment (26.9) (7.9 —
Net realized (losses) gains on fixed maturity seies (74.9) (32.¢) 40.€
Equity securitie:
Gross realized gains from sa 108.( 43.¢ 34
Gross realized losses from sa (9.5) (21.9 (0.2
Gross realized losses from ot-thar-temporary impairment (29.9) (7.5) (0.8
Net realized gains on equity securit 68.7 14.5 2.5
Other realized investment gains (loss 5.2 7.9 (0.6)
Net realized investment (losses) ge (0.3 (10.2) 42.F
Net change in unrealized appreciation (depreciafiomvestments
Fixed maturity securitie 67.4 (244.2) (61.9)
Equity securitie: 255.1 1.3 59.1
Other invested assets, lc-term (23.9) — (1.9
Total net change in unrealized appreciation (degtien) in investment 299.1 (242.9 (3.6)
Deferred income tax (expense) ben (118.9) 85.7 1.1
Net change in unrealized appreciation (depreciafiomvestment: 180.Z (157.2) (2.5
Net realized gains (losses) and change in unrebéippreciation (depreciatio
in investment: $179.¢ $(167.9)  $40.C

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Coynpald $5,886.3 of fixed maturity and equity setiesi which resulted in gross
realized losses of $95.7. Subsequent to the atiguisif WellChoice, during 2006, the Company restived its investment portfolios to align
the merged portfolios with the Company’s overalldstment guidelines. The majority of the salesxad maturity securities resulted in
realized losses due to the prevailing interesteatéronment. For equity securities, the 2006 stesstructure the merged
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portfolios primarily resulted in realized gainsnfiiarly, subsequent to the merger with WHN, durdti5, the Company restructured its
investment portfolios to align the merged portfsligith the Company’s overall investment guidelinBse majority of the sales of fixed
maturity securities resulted in realized lossestduée prevailing interest rate environment. Fauity securities, the 2005 sales to restructure
the merged portfolios primarily resulted in reatizgains. During 2004, the majority of the salefixad maturity securities resulted in realized
gains. Impairments recorded in 2006, 2005 and 20€4 primarily the result of the continued creditatioration on specific issuers in the
bond markets and certain equity securities’ falugaemaining below cost for an extended periotinoé.

A primary objective in the management of the fixedturity and equity portfolios is to maximize totaturn relative to underlying
liabilities and respective liquidity needs. In ahing this goal, assets may be sold to take adgarddmarket conditions or other investment
opportunities as well as tax considerations. Salkgenerally produce realized gains and losses.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company seéysecurities at a loss for a number of reasockjding, but not limited to:
(i) changes in the investment environment; (ii) @xtation that the fair value could deterioratetfart (iii) desire to reduce exposure to an is:
or an industry; (iv) changes in credit quality;(a@y changes in expected cash flow.

Investment securities are exposed to various rigksh as interest rate, market and credit. Dubddevel of risk associated with certain
investment securities and the level of uncertaiatgted to changes in the value of investment #gesirit is possible that changes in these risk
factors in the near term could have an adverserrabi@pact on the Company’s results of operationshareholders’ equity.

A significant judgment in the valuation of investmt®is the determination of when an other-ttemporary decline in value has occurt
The Company follows a consistent and systematicqe®for impairing securities that sustain othanttemporary declines in value. The
Company has established a committee responsibteddmpairment review process. The decision toaiima security incorporates both
guantitative criteria and qualitative informatidrhe impairment review process considers a numbgrabdrs including, but not limited to:
(a) the length of time and the extent to whichfdievalue has been less than book value, (b)ittem€ial condition and near term prospects of
the issuer, (c) the intent and ability of the Compto retain its investment for a period of timdfisient to allow for any anticipated recovery
value, (d) whether the debtor is current on inteaesl principal payments and (e) general marketlitioms and industry or sector specific
factors. For securities that are deemed to be -thi@r-temporarily impaired, the security is adjdstie fair value and the resulting losses are
recognized in realized gains or losses in the dafeted statements of income. The new cost badiseoimpaired securities is not increased for
future recoveries in fair value.

At December 31, 2006, no investments other thaestments in U.S. government agency securities eece®0% of shareholders’
equity.

The carrying value of fixed maturity investmentatttlid not produce income during 2006 and 2005%6a8 and $4.7 at December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively.

As of December 31, 2006 the Company had commifppdoximately $261.5 to future capital calls fronrieas thirdparty investments
exchange for an ownership interest in the relateitye
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At December 31, 2006 and 2005, securities withyagrvalues of approximately $342.3 and $227.Qeetvely, were deposited by the
Company'’s insurance subsidiaries under requiremanmesgulatory authorities.

During 2006, 2005 and 2004, the Company entereds@cturities lending programs. Securities on lgatten the Company’s securities
lending programs are included in the investmenticap shown on the accompanying consolidated balaheets. Under these programs,
brokers and dealers who borrow securities are requo deliver substantially the same securithe@ompany upon completion of the
transaction. The fair value of securities on loamBDecember 31, 2006 and 2005 was $879.7 an®®1,3respectively. Income earned on
security lending transactions for the year endedelier 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $1.9, $1.6 @uid i&spectively.

6. Derivative Financial Instruments

A summary of the aggregate contractual or notianabunts and estimated fair values related to déravéinancial instruments at
December 31 is as follows:

2006 2005
Contractual/ Estimated Contractual/ Estimated
Notional Fair Value Notional Fair Value
Amount Asset (Liability) Amount Asset (Liability)
Swaps $ 1,640.( $ 17. $  (29.0 $ 2,315.( $ 5.6 $ (449
Equity warrants 0.6 4.3 — 0.6 3.7 —
Options embedded in convertible debt
securities 149.¢ 40.€ — 148.¢ 19.C —
Futures — 1. — — — —
Total $ 1,790.( $ 64.c $  (29.0 $ 2,464.: $ 28.c $ (449

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 art] #89Company recognized realized gains relateldtivative financial instruments
of $13.3, $1.5 and $0.7, respectively.

Fair Value Hedge:

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Coyngatered into two fair value hedges with a totational value of $440.0. The first
hedge is a $240.0 notional amount interest ratg gaeement to receive a fixed 6.800% rate anchddBOR-based floating rate and expires
on August 1, 2012. The second hedge is a $200i6rrabamount interest rate swap agreement to recefixed 5.000% rate and pay a LIBOR-
based floating rate and expires on December 15.201

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Coyngatered into two fair value hedges with a totational value of $660.0. The first
hedge is a $360.0 notional amount interest rate sgacement to exchange a fixed 6.800% rate fdB&®R-based floating rate and expires on
August 1, 2012. The second hedge is a $300.0 radt@onount interest rate swap agreement to exchafiged 5.000% rate for LIBOR-based
floating rate and expires December 15, 2014.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Coyngatered into a $300.0 notional amount interest savap agreement to exchany
fixed 3.750% rate for a LIBOR-based floating rdtee swap agreement expires December 14, 2007.
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For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 ant] #80Company recognized (expense) income of $[,1$0.5 and $0.1,
respectively, from these swap agreements, whicle werorded as an (increase) reduction of intergstrese.

Cash Flow Hedges

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Coynpaiered into a floating to fixed rate cash flomdge with a total notional value of
$480.0. The purpose of this hedge is to offsewtv@bility of the cash flows due to the rollovdrtbe Company’s variable-rate one-month
commercial paper issuance. In December 2006, thertotional value was reduced to $240.0. This saggeement expires in December 2007.
During the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2@0§ain or loss from hedged ineffectiveness wasrde in earnings and the commercial
paper borrowings remain outstanding at Decembe2@16.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Coynpatered into forward starting pay fixed swapsweih aggregate notional amount
of $875.0. The objective of these hedges was iirdite the variability of cash flows in the intdrpayments on the debt securities to be issuec
to partially fund the cash portion of the WellChemcquisition. These swaps were terminated in Jgrd@06, and the Company paid a net
$24.7, the net fair value at the time of terminatim addition, the Company recorded an unrealiassd of $16.0, net of tax, as accumulated
other comprehensive income. Following the Janu@r2006 issuance of debt securities in connectiitim tve WellChoice acquisition, the
unamortized fair value of the forward starting fiiased swaps included in accumulated other comprsiverincome began amortizing into
earnings, as an increase to interest expenseftwéife of the hedged debt securities.

During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Coyngatered into forward starting pay fixed swaps edsury lock swaps with an
aggregate notional amount of $2,000.0. The objeaivthese hedges was to eliminate the varialwhityash flows in the interest payments on
the debt securities to be issued to partially fthedcash portion of the WHN merger. These swapsg tegminated in 2004, and the Company
received a net $15.7, the net fair value at the tfiitermination. In addition, the Company recordadinrealized gain of $10.2, net of tax, as
accumulated other comprehensive income. Followhegcbmpletion of the WHN merger on November 304208 Company issued debt
securities, and the unamortized fair value of thevérd starting pay fixed swaps included in acclatad other comprehensive income began
amortizing into earnings, as a reduction of inteeapense, over the life of the debt securities.

The unrecognized loss for all cash flow hedgeauhet! in accumulated other comprehensive incomese¢mber 31, 2006 was $5.6. As
of December 31, 2006, the total amount of amortrmadver the next twelve months for all cash floedges will increase interest expense by
approximately $0.7.
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The carrying value of long-term debt at Decembec@isists of the following:

2006 2005
Senior unsecured note
6.375%, face amount of $450.0, due 2 $ — $ 455.¢
3.500%, face amount of $200.0, due 2 198.: 195.F
3.750%, face amount of $300.0, due 2 294.¢ 292.1
4.250%, face amount of $300.0, due 2 298.4 297.¢
5.000%, face amount of $700.0, due 2 694.¢ —
6.375%, face amount of $350.0, due 2 369.1 375.2
6.800%, face amount of $800.0, due 2 793.t 786.1
5.000%, face amount of $500.0, due 2 484.: 481.2
5.250%, face amount of $1,100.0, due 2 1,088.t —
5.950%, face amount of $500.0, due 2 494.1 493.¢
5.850%, face amount of $900.0, due 2 888.¢ —
Surplus notes
9.125%, face amount of $42.0, due 2! 41.¢ 41.7
9.000%, face amount of $25.1, due 2! 24.¢ 24.¢
Variable rate deb
Commercial paper progra 1,295.: 1,601.¢
Bridge loan — 1,700.(
Capital leases, stated or imputed rates from 1.8®027.480% due through 20 48.2 60.3
Total debi 7,014.: 6,805.¢
Current portion of dek (521.0 (481.7)
Long-term debt, less current porti $6,493.. $6,324."

On June 15, 2006, the Company repaid $450.0 6f385% notes, which matured on that date.

On January 10, 2006, the Company issued $700.M00% notes due 2011; $1,100.0 of 5.250% notedW6; and $900.0 of 5.850%
notes due 2036, under a shelf registration statefited with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Cossioin on December 28, 2005. The
proceeds from this debt issuance were used to mgdyridge loan of $1,700.0 (as further describeldw) and to repay approximately
$1,000.0 of commercial paper, which were both oletdito partially fund the December 28, 2005 WelliCaacquisition.

WellPoint had cash requirements of approximatelft$3.0 for the WellChoice acquisition, includinglbthe cash portion of the
purchase price and estimated transaction cosssticipation of the acquisition, on December 28%20NellPoint entered into a bridge loan
agreement under which it could borrow up to $3,000n December 28, 2005, WellPoint borrowed $1F@@der this bridge facility to
partially fund the WellChoice acquisition. The irgst rate on this bridge loan was based on eithtérg LIBOR rate plus a predetermined
percentage rate based on the Company’s credigratithe date of utilization, or (ii) a base radedafined in the facility agreement. The
weighted-average interest rate on the bridge lo&eaember 31, 2005 was 7.250%. The bridge loanclessified as long-term debt at
December 31, 2005 in accordance with FAElassification of Short-Term Obligations Expectede Refinance{fFAS 6”), as this short-
term borrowing was replaced with a long-term boiirgnon January 10, 2006.
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On November 29, 2005, the Company entered intmmseredit facility (the “facility”) with certainenders for general corporate
purposes. The Company amended this facility in &aper 2006. The facility provides credit for ug#500.0 (reduced for any commercial
paper issuances) and matures on September 30, P4 Interest rate on this facility is based ohesit(i) the LIBOR rate plus a predetermined
percentage rate based on the Company’s credigratithe date of utilization, or (ii) a base rasedafined in the facility agreement. The
Company'’s ability to borrow under the facility islgect to compliance with certain covenants. Commaitt fees for the facility were $2.4 in
2006 and there are no conditions that are prolzfidecurring under which the facility may be withdm. There were no amounts outstanding
under the senior credit facility as of DecemberZ1)6 or during the year then ended. At Decembg23Q6, the Company had $1,204.7
available under this facility.

Surplus notes are unsecured obligations of Anthesarance Companies, Inc. (“Anthem Insurance”), allytowned subsidiary, and are
subordinate in right of payment to all of Anthensunance’s existing and future indebtedness. Anyreay of interest or principal on the
surplus notes may be made only with the prior aygdrof the Indiana Department of Insurance (“IDQEhd only out of capital and surplus
funds of Anthem Insurance that the IDOI determitoelse available for the payment under Indiana iasce laws. During December 2004,
WellPoint completed a tender offer to purchase Anthnsurance surplus notes from the holders, anthpeed $258.0 of 9.125% notes due
2010 and $174.9 of 9.000% notes due 2027. The Coymaorded a loss of $146.1 which was recordddssson repurchase of debt securi
in the statement of income for the year ended Déeerdl, 2004.

The Company has an authorized commercial paperamogf up to $2,500.0, the proceeds of which maydesl for general corporate
purposes. The weighted-average interest rate omewaial paper borrowings at December 31, 2006 &% 2vas 5.42% and 4.40%,
respectively. Commercial paper borrowings have lotessified as longerm debt at December 31, 2006 and 2005 in accoedaith FAS 6, a
the Company’s practice and intent is to replacetsieom commercial paper outstanding at expiratidth additional short-term commercial
paper for an uninterrupted period extending forertban one year or with borrowings under the sesriedit facility described above.

Interest paid during 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $34288.7, and $146.7, respectively.
The Company was in compliance with all applicaldeenants under its outstanding debt agreements.

Future maturities of debt, including capital leases as follows: 2007, $1,816.3; 2008, $9.1; 2$398.0; 2010, $45.6; 2011, $698.6;
and thereafter, $4,136.6.

8. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In the normal course of business, WellPoint investgrious financial assets, incurs various finahleabilities and enters into
agreements involving derivative securities.

Fair values are disclosed for all financial instamts for which it is practicable to estimate fafue, whether or not such values are
recognized in the consolidated balance sheets. §anant attempts to obtain quoted market pricethi&se disclosures. Where quoted market
prices are not available, fair values are estimagidg present value or other valuation techniglieese techniques are significantly affected
by management’s assumptions, including discouetrand estimates of future cash flows. Potentk@st@and other transaction costs have not
been considered in estimating fair values. Theregés presented herein are not necessarily indécafithe amounts that the Company would
realize in a current market exchange.
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Non-financial instruments such as real estate,gntg@nd equipment, other current assets, def@émoegne taxes and intangible assets,
and certain financial instruments such as poliabilities are excluded from the fair value disclesu Therefore, the fair value amounts cannot
be aggregated to determine the underlying econgaliee of the Company.

The carrying amounts reported in the consolidatddrize sheets for cash and cash equivalents, accnvestment income, premium and
self-funded receivables, other receivables, sdestiénding collateral, unearned income, accouayslple and accrued expenses, income taxes
payable, security trades pending payable and oesther current liabilities approximate fair valoecause of the short term nature of these
items. These assets and liabilities are not listede following table.

The following methods and assumptions were usedtimate the fair value of each class of finanicistrument:

Current and long-term investments, available-folesat fair value:The carrying amount approximates fair value, baseduoted marki
prices, where available. For securities not agfitelded, fair values were estimated using vallained from independent pricing services or
guoted market prices of comparable instruments.

Other invested assets, curre@ther invested assets, current include securiébih rabbi trusts that are classified as tradirtge
carrying amount approximates fair value, basedumteyl market prices, where available. For secarit@ actively traded, fair values were
estimated using values obtained from independécingrservices or quoted market prices of comparaidtruments.

Other invested assets, long-teri@ther invested assets, long-term include primahié Company’s investments in limited partnerships
joint ventures and other n-controlled corporations, as well as, beginnin@®6, the cash surrender value of corporate-owifeethsurance
policies. Investments in limited partnerships, joiantures and other non-controlled corporatioescarried at the Company’s share in the
entities’ undistributed earnings, which approxinsdfer value. The carrying value of corporate-owlidinsurance policies are the cash
surrender value as reported by the respectiveénsur

Long-term debt—notes and capital leas@&se fair value of notes is based on quoted maykees for the same or similar debt, or, if no
guoted market prices were available, on the cumaes estimated to be available to the Compangdbt of similar terms and remaining
maturities. Capital leases are carried at the unigaed present value of the minimum lease paymevtig;h approximates fair value.

Long-term debt—commercial papéihe carrying amount for commercial paper approx@sdair value as the underlying instruments
have variable interest rates at market value.

Derivatives—interest rate swapBhe fair value of the interest rate swaps are bagdtie quoted market prices by the financial ingtin
that is the counterparty to the swap.

Derivatives—equity warrantd:he fair value of equity warrants are based onepiotarket prices, where available. For warrants not
actively traded, fair values were estimated usialges obtained from independent pricing servicastefl market prices of comparable
instruments, or independent pricing models.
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The carrying values and estimated fair values ef@bmpany’s financial instruments at December &laarfollows:

2006 2005
Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated
Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
Assets:
Investments availak-for-sale:
Fixed maturity securitie $15,437.( $15,437.( $15,560.. $15,560..
Equity securitie: 2,070. 2,070.° 1,520.¢ 1,520.¢
Other invested assets, curn 72.¢ 72.¢ 307.( 307.(
Other invested assets, lc-term 628.¢ 628.¢ 207.¢ 207.¢
Interest rate swaps and equity warrants (reporigdather noncurrent asse 21.7 21.7 9.2 9.3
Liabilities:
Debt:
Commercial pape 1,295.: 1,295.¢ 1,601. 1,601.
Notes and capital leas 5,718.¢ 5,752.; 5,204.! 5,323.:
Interest rate swaps (reported with other noncuiliabilities) 29.C 29.C 44.¢ 44.¢
9. Property and Equipment
A summary of property and equipment at Decembés 3% follows:
2006 2005
Land and improvemen $ 601 $ 60.¢
Building and componen 469.¢ 451.¢
Data processing equipment, furniture and othergqgant 709.4 673.1
Computer software, purchased and internally dessl 782.2 679.1
Leasehold improvemen 138.7 133.4
2,160.¢ 1,997.¢
Accumulated depreciation and amortizat (1,271.9 (919.9)
Property and equipment, r $ 988.¢ $1,078.¢

Property and equipment includes assets purchagstat noncancelable capital leases of $54.9 and &84December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Total accumulated amortization osdgbassets at December 31, 2006 and 2005 was&80D3#17.0, respectively. Depreciation
expense for 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $133.0, $HIRI B78.1, respectively. Amortization expense asee assets, computer software and
leasehold improvements for 2006, 2005 and 2004$483.4, $109.9, and $57.6, respectively, whichuides amortization expense on
computer software, both purchased and internalgkbped, for 2006, 2005 and 2004 of $122.9, $1ah®$49.8, respectively. Capitalized
costs related to the internal development of saftved $470.5 and $409.9 at December 31, 2006 aff,2@spectively, are reported with
computer software.
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending bakstor medical claims payable is as follows:

Years Ended December 3

2006 2005 2004
Gross medical claims payable, beginning of pe $ 4,853.¢ $ 4,134.( $ 1,836.(
Ceded medical claims payable, beginning of pe (27.7) (31.9 (8.7
Net medical claims payable, beginning of pel 4,825." 4,102.. 1,827.:
Business combinations and purchase adjustn (6.9 784.% 2,331.(
Net incurred medical claim

Current yea 42,613.: 32,865.¢ 15,344.¢

Prior years (redundancie (617.7) (644.9) (171.9
Total net incurred medical clain 41,995.! 32,220. 15,173.(
Net payments attributable t

Current year medical clain 37,486.( 28,997.. 12,453.;

Prior years medical clain 4,089.! 3,284.! 2,776.(
Total net payment 41,575.! 32,2814 15,229..
Net medical claims payable, end of per 5,239.: 4,825.° 4,102.:
Ceded medical claims payable, end of pe 51.C 27.1 31.¢
Gross medical claims payable, end of pe $ 5,290.! $ 4,853. $ 4,134.(

Amounts incurred related to prior years vary fromavyously estimated liabilities as the claims dtenately settled. Liabilities at any ye
end are continually reviewed and re-estimated fasrivation regarding actual claims payments beconwvk. This information is compared to
the originally established year end liability. Néga amounts reported for incurred related to pyears result from claims being settled for
amounts less than originally estimated. The faverdbvelopment in medical claims payable for thergeended December 31, 2006, 2005, and
2004 is primarily attributable to actual claim pagmh patterns and cost trends differing from thasimed at the time the liability was
established.

11. Reinsurance

The Company reinsures certain of its risks witheottompanies and assumes risk from other compartiesCompany remains primarily
liable to policyholders under ceded insurance @mt$rand is contingently liable for amounts recalkr from reinsurers in the event that such
reinsurers do not meet their contractual obligation

The Company evaluates the financial condition ®fdéinsurers and monitors concentrations of crégkitarising from similar geographic
regions, activities, or economic characteristicthefreinsurers to minimize its exposure to sigatfit losses from reinsurer insolvencies.
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A summary of direct, assumed and ceded premiunttewrand earned for the years ended December 84 fadlows:

2006 2005 2004
Written Earned Written Earned Written Earned
Direct $52,143.. $52,061.! $40,776.( $40,829. $18,792. $18,731.:
Assumec 63.4 63.4 22.2 41.: 5.9 5.4
Cedec (154.9) (153.0 (169.9 (190.%) (58.7) (58.2)
Net premiums $52,052.. $51,971.¢ $40,628.¢ $40,680.( $18,740.( $18,678..
Percentage of amount assumed to net prem 0.1% 0.1% — % 0.1% — % — %

A summary of net premiums written and earned fer@ompany’s segments for the years ended Decerilisra3 follows:

2006 2005 2004
Written Earned Written Earned Written Earned
Reportable segment
Health Care $51,093.: $51,018. $39,810.« $39,803.: $18,480.. $18,420..
Specialty 1,046.: 1,040.. 853.t 911.% 269.1% 268.1
Other (86.9) (86.9) (35.1) (35.1) (10.0) (10.0)
Net premiums $52,052.! $51,971.¢ $40,628.8 $40,680.( $18,740.( $18,678.:

The effect of reinsurance on benefit expense feytars ended December 31 is as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Direct $42,320.! $32,779. $15,312.:
Assumec 43.1 8.5 9.6
Ceded (144.9 (163.0) (41.7)
Benefit expens $42,218.1 $32,625.. $15,280.¢
The effect of reinsurance on certain assets abdilias at December 31 is as follows:
2006 2005
Policy liabilities, assume $106.2 $169.(
Unearned income, assum 0.1 0.3
Premiums payable, ced 35.2 25.7
Premiums receivable, assurmr 11.¢ 7.3

12. Capital Stock
Shares Issued for the WellChoice Acquisitit

On December 28, 2005, as partial consideratioherWellChoice acquisition, the Company issued Ql54f% share of WellPoint
common stock for each share of WellChoice commoaoksbutstanding, resulting in
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additional outstanding shares of approximately 4Ptié $3,200.6 fair value of the common sharesdsuas determined based on $74.97 per
share, which represents the average closing pfiteedCompany’s common stock for the five tradiyslranging from two days before to two
days after September 27, 2005, the date the atignigias announced. Transaction costs of $11.6cextithe aggregate fair value and $3,189.0
was recorded as par value of common stock andiadditpaid-in capital.

Shares Issued for the WHN Merge

Effective November 30, 2004, as partial consideratin the WHN merger, the Company issued one shfatemmon stock for each
WHN share outstanding, resulting in additional tariding shares of approximately 310.6. The $11288r value of the common shares
issued was determined based on $36.35 per shaieh vepresents the average closing price of theg2my's common stock for the five
trading days ranging from two days before to twgsdafter October 27, 2003, the date the mergeramasunced. Offering costs of $8.3
reduced the aggregate fair value and $12,030.8eeasded as par value of common stock and additjmaid-in capital.

Stock Incentive Plars

The Company’s 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, as ameadddestated on January 1, 2003 (“2001 Stock Plardn omnibus plan, which
allowed for the grant of stock options, stock, negtd stock, phantom stock, stock appreciatiohtsgnd performance awards to eligible
employees and non-employee directors. On Marcl20@6, the Board of Directors adopted the WellP2(16 Incentive Compensation Plan
(the “2006 Incentive Plan”), which was approvedWgllPoint’s shareholders on May 16, 2006. The 20@entive Plan allows the flexibility
to grant or award stock options, stock appreciatights, restricted stock awards, restricted stauiks, performance unit awards, performance
share awards, cash-based awards and other shakdaards to eligible persons. Following appro¥ahe 2006 Incentive Plan on May 16,
2006, no new awards have been or will be made uhée2001 Stock Plan, but the awards outstandidgmutihe 2001 Stock Plan will remain
effect in accordance with their terms.

The 2006 Incentive Plan allows the Company to gifaee share-based incentive awards to employeas:mployee directors and
consultants covering a total of up to 20.0 shafésompany common stock, plus (i) 7.0 shares of Camgpcommon stock, as previously
approved by the Company’s shareholders, but nagnlyidg any outstanding options or other awardseurtide 2001 Stock Plan, and (ii) any
additional shares of Company common stock subjectitstanding options or other awards under thd Zi6ck Plan that expire, are forfeited
or otherwise terminate unexercised on or after WM&, 2006, less 0.1 shares of Company common giacked under the 2001 Stock Plan
between March 15, 2006 and May 16, 2006.

In connection with the WellChoice acquisition, hempany assumed the WellChoice, Inc. 2003 Omniboantive Plan, which provide
for the granting of stock options to employees aod-employee directors. WellChoice stock optionsenmnverted to WellPoint stock options
using the option exchange ratio as defined in theger agreement. The converted stock options veearded at the acquisition date as
additional paid-in capital and valued at $113.4gs binomial lattice model. The following weightaderage assumptions were used for the
conversion: risk-free interest rate of 4.32%; \titgtfactor of 22.00%; expected dividend yield@D0%; and expected option life of three
years.

In connection with the WHN merger, the Company assilithe WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 1999 Stawteintive Plan, the WellPoi
Health Networks Inc. 2000 Employee Stock OptiomPthe Cobalt
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Corporation Equity Incentive Plan, the RightCHOI®Enaged Care, Inc. 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, iigatRHOICE Managed Care, Inc.
1994 Equity Incentive Plan and the RightCHOICE MgethCare, Inc. Nonemployee Directors’ Stock Opfen, which collectively provided
for the granting of stock options to employees aodemployee directors. WHN stock options were coneketrteWellPoint stock options usit
the option exchange ratio as defined in the mesigezement. The converted stock options were redatithe acquisition date as additional
paid-in capital and valued at $559.9 using a Bl&ckeles option-pricing model. The following weigtii@verage assumptions were used fo
conversion: risk-free interest rate of 3.07%; \titatfactor of 33.00%; expected dividend yield@D0%; and expected option life of three
years.

Stock options are granted for a fixed number ofehavith an exercise price at least equal to thhevédue of the shares at the grant date.
The stock options granted in 2006 and 2005 genevalt over three years in equal semi-annual iinségits and have a term of ten years from
the grant date. The stock options granted pri@0@5 generally vest in equal annual installments three years and expire ten years from the
grant date.

Certain option grants contain provisions wherelgygmployee continues to vest in the award subsétuésrmination due to retirement.
Prior to the adoption of FAS 123R, the Company’semse attribution methodology did not consider stegdting provisions and the fair value
of the awards was amortized over the stated vepenigds. Effective with the adoption of FAS 123k Company changed its attribution
method for newly granted awards and now consideresting and other provisions, including retiremheligibility, in determining the
requisite service period over which the fair vadfiehe awards will be recognized.

Restricted stock awards are issued at the fairevaiuhe stock on the grant date. The restrictiapse in three equal annual installments.
Prior to the adoption of FAS 123R, unearned comgtems for grants of restricted stock equivalenthte fair value of the shares at the date of
grant was recorded as a separate component ohsidees’ equity and subsequently amortized to caregton expense over the awards’
vesting period. In accordance with FAS 123R, shaldehs’ equity is credited commensurate with thegmition of compensation expense. All
unamortized unearned compensation at January 5,286 reclassified to additional paid-in capital.

For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 art] #80Company recognized share-based compensaisbiof $246.9, $81.2 and
$10.0, respectively, as well as related tax benefit$89.9, $28.5 and $3.6, respectively. As alredihe adoption of FAS 123R effective
January 1, 2006, the Company’s income before indaxes and net income for the year ended Decenih@0®6 were $158.2 and $97.9
lower, respectively, than if the Company had camihto account for the share-based compensatigmngns under APB 25. Accordingly, the
reported basic and diluted earnings per sharéhtoyear ended December 31, 2006 were $0.16 an8,$@spectively, lower than had the
Company not adopted FAS 123R effective JanuarpQ62

In addition to the higher compensation cost unde® E23R, the adoption of FAS 123R resulted in daéighumber of diluted shares
outstanding for purposes of calculating dilutech&ags per share due to a change in the calculafidilutive stock options under the treasury
method.
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A summary of stock option activity for the year edddecember 31, 2006 is as follows:

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining
Average Contractual Aggregate
Number of Option Price Life Intrinsic
Shares per Share (Years) Value
Outstanding at January 1, 20 44.7 $ 40.9¢
Granted 6.6 76.52
Exercisec (13.9) 36.71
Forfeited or expires (1.9 63.7(
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 35.2 48.1¢ 6.7 $1,073.¢
Exercisable at December 31, 2C 25.C 41.12 6.C 940.2

The intrinsic value of options exercised during years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 dewbin$482.1, $490.5 and
$363.0, respectively. The Company recognized taefiis of $168.5, $199.1 and $141.4 in 2006, 20852004, respectively, from option
exercises and disqualifying dispositions. The tfdalvalue of shares vested during the years efd@mber 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was
$105.3, $59.5 and $11.6, respectively. During th&ry ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 the&ymeceived cash of $505.2, $41
and $137.1, respectively, from exercises of stqutioas.

A summary of the status of nonvested restrictedkséativity for the year ended December 31, 200&sifollows:

Weighted-
Average

Grant

Date

Fair

Value
Shares per Share
Nonvested at January 1, 20 2.6 $ 56.8¢
Granted 1.C 76.3:¢
Vested 1.3 52.1¢
Forfeited 0.9 64.5¢
Nonvested at December 31, 2( 2.0 68.7¢

As of December 31, 2006, the total remaining ungacxed compensation cost related to nonvested stptiéns and restricted stock
amounted to $83.4 and $75.4, respectively, whidhbgiamortized over the weighted-average remaingogiisite service periods of 10 and 12
months, respectively.

As of December 31, 2006, there were 28.2 sharesramon stock available for future grants under2®@6 Incentive Plan.
Employee Stock Purchase Ple

The Company has registered 6.0 shares of commok &ipthe Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“Stockcirase Plan"hich is intende
to provide a means to encourage and assist emglayeequiring a stock ownership interest in WellbdNo employee will be permitted to
purchase more than $25,000 (actual dollars) wdrgtazk in any calendar year, based on the faevalf the stock at the beginning of each
plan quarter. Employees become participants bytieepayroll deductions from 1% to 15% of gross pemsation. Payroll
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deductions are accumulated during each quarteapplied toward the purchase of stock on the laslitig day of each quarter. Once
purchased, the stock is accumulated in the empleyeeestment account. The purchase price per $&8&% of the lower of the fair value c
share of common stock on either the first or lesling day of the quarter. During 2006, 2005 an@420.9, 1.0 and 0.6 shares of common
stock, respectively were purchased under the Seockhase Plan, resulting in $11.6, $12.8 and $&r@lated compensation cost, respectively.
As of December 31, 2006, there were approximatéysBares of common stock available for issuandeiuthe Stock Purchase Plan.

Fair Value

As described in Note 2, the Company adopted FARI&BJanuary 1, 2006, using the modified prospedtiansition method. The pro
forma information regarding net income and earnjpgysshare presented in Note 2 has been determmiédhe Company accounted for its
stock-based compensation using the fair value ndetho

In 2005, the Company began using a binomial lattadeation model to estimate the fair value offailire stock options granted. The
binomial lattice model is deemed to provide a nmaweurate estimate of the fair values of employeeksoptions as it incorporates the impac
employee exercise behavior and allows for the impat range of assumptions. Expected volatilityuagstions used in the binomial lattice
model are based on an analysis of implied volsdiof publicly traded options on WellPoint stoeidanistorical volatility of WellPoint’s stock
price. The risk-free interest rate is derived fritva U.S. Treasury strip rates at the time of ttengrThe expected term of the options was
derived from the outputs of the binomial latticedal which incorporates post-vesting forfeitureuasptions based on an analysis of historical
data. The dividend yield was based on the Compastimate of future dividend yields. Similar grogemployees that have dissimilar
exercise behavior are considered separately foatiah purposes. The Company utilizes the “multgriant” approach, as described in FAS
123R, for recognizing compensation expense assakwith each separately vesting portion of the estiiaased award. Prior to 2005, the
Company historically used a Black-Scholes optidnipg model to estimate the fair value of stockiaps with inputs for volatility and
expected term of the options primarily based otohizal information.

The following weightedaverage assumptions were used to estimate theafaies of options granted during the years endestber 31

2006 2005 2004
Risk-free interest rat 4.5% 4.0% 3.56%
Volatility factor 26.0(% 28.0(% 37.0(%
Dividend yield — — —
Weightec-average expected li 5.1 year 3.9 year 4.5 year

The following weighted-average fair values weresd@ined for the years ending December 31:

2006 2005 2004
Options granted during the ye $24.52 $19.71 $16.3¢
Restricted stock and stock awards granted duriegyéar 76.3: 65.7i 53.9¢
Employee stock purchases during the ) 12.3:2 13.27 9.1¢
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The binomial lattice and Black-Scholes option-pricimodels require the input of highly subjectiveuasptions including the expected
stock price volatility. Because the Company’s stopkon grants have characteristics significantffedent from those of traded options, and
because changes in the subjective input assumptaonmaterially affect the fair value estimatenanagement’s opinion, existing models do
not necessarily provide a reliable single meastiteeofair value of its stock option grants.

Stock Repurchase Progral

Under the Board of Directors’ authorization, Welltanaintains a common stock repurchase programpuRRéases may be made from
time to time at prevailing market prices, subjectértain restrictions on volume, pricing and tipiburing 2006, the Company repurchased
and retired approximately 60.7 shares at an averasfeper share of $74.91 for an aggregate cd®,650.2. During 2005, WellPoint
repurchased and retired approximately 5.1 sharas average cost per share of $64.92 for an aggregat of $333.4. During 2004, the
Company repurchased and retired 2.0 shares, atemage per share price of $41.12, for an aggregsateof $82.3. The excess of cost of the
repurchased shares over par value is charged omratp basis to additional paid-in capital andiretd earnings. On December 7, 2006, the
Board of Directors authorized an increase of $1000the Company'’s stock repurchase program, asing the program to $5,500.0 since the
current program’s inception in 2005. As of Decemb®Er2006, the Company had Board of Directors’ axitlation to purchase up to an
additional $949.8 of common stock. Subsequent weBer 31, 2006, we repurchased and retired appately 6.0 shares for an aggregate
cost of approximately $463.5, leaving approxima@&p6.3 for authorized future repurchases at Fepri@, 2006. The Company’s stock
repurchase program is discretionary as the Comgsamyder no obligation to repurchase shares. Slasesepurchased under the program
because the Company believes it is a prudent usapital.

Equity Security Units

At the time of its initial public offering on Novdmer 2, 2001, the Company issued 4.6 Equity Secuniys at 6.00%. Each Equity
Security Unit contained a purchase contract undecmthe holder agreed to purchase, for twenty-figbars, shares of the Company’s
common stock on November 15, 2004. In November 28@ACompany received $230.0 for the issuanc@pfoximately 10.6 shares of
Anthem common stock pursuant to the purchase adrmation of the Equity Security Units. The numbéshares purchased was determined
based on the average trading price of the Compaytsnon stock at the time of settlement.

Put Options

During 2005, WellPoint sold put options to indepemidthird parties that would have required WellRtinpurchase 1.0 shares of its
common stock if exercised. All of these put optierpired unexercised in 2005 and WellPoint recoied as net realized gains on
investments.
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The denominator for basic and diluted earningsshare at December 31 is as follows:

2006 2005 2004

Denominator for basic earnings per s—weightecaverage share 627.¢ 610.¢ 305.Z
Effect of dilutive securities
Employee and director stock options and non vessiiicted stock awarc 14z 14.¢ 4.4
Shares to be contingently issued under -term incentive plai — — 04
Incremental shares from conversion of Equity Séglhit purchase contrac — — 4.€
Denominator for diluted earnings per sh 642.1 625.t 314.¢

During the year ended December 31, 2006, weightethge stock options of 5.3 were excluded fromdirominator for diluted earnin
per share because the stock options were antisdiluEhere were no anti-dilutive stock options dgrthe years ended December 31, 2005 and
2004. Shares were issued under the long-term iivegplan in April 2004. The Equity Security Unitiqghase contracts were settled on
November 15, 2004, and approximately 10.6 sharéiseo€ompan’s common stock were issued and included in th&lesnings per share
calculation.
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The components of deferred income taxes at Decefibare as follows:

2006 2005
Deferred tax assets relating
Pension and postretirement bene $ 255.C $ 210.
Accrued expense 418.k 401.C
Alternative minimum tax and other cred 2.C 203.7
Insurance reserve 192.c 188.¢
Net operating loss carryforwar 64.5 71.C
Bad debt reserve 83.¢ 65.€
Depreciation and amortizatic 24.7 37.€
State income ta 105.¢ 116.Z
Deferred compensatic 169.¢ 177.¢
Other 57.% 55.1
Total deferred tax asse 1,373. 1,527.¢
Valuation allowanct (22.9) (22.9)
Total deferred tax assets, net of valuation allove: 1,350.! 1,505.!
Deferred tax liabilities relating t
Unrealized gains (losses) on securi 103.1 (16.6)
Acquisition related
Goodwill and conversio 50.£ 43.c
Trademarks and software developm 2,676. 2,683.t
Subscriber base, provider and hospital netw 962.( 1,067.:
Other 18.€ 8.9
Investment basis differen: 51.C 147
Pension benefit 120.t 81.1
Other 76.1 68.¢
Total deferred tax liabilitie 4,058.: 4,083.¢
Net deferred tax liabilit $(2,707.9) $(2,578.)
Deferred tax ass—current $ 642.¢ $ 689.(
Deferred tax liabilit—noncurren (3,350.9) (3,267.)
Net deferred tax liabilit $(2,707.9) $(2,578.)

The net increase in the valuation allowance for&2@0d 2005 was $0.5 and $0.0, respectively. Thease resulted from realized and
unrealized capital losses of subsidiaries not ghetlin the Company’s consolidated tax return. Hmeaining valuation allowance is primarily
attributable to the uncertainty of alternative minim tax credits and net operating loss carryforaafd deferred tax assets related to these
types of deductions are recognized in the tax metilie valuation allowance is no longer required @rreduced.
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Significant components of the provision for incotares for the years ended December 31, consibedbtlowing:

2006 2005 2004
Current tax expens
Federal $1,397.¢  $1,401.! $508.2
State and loce 133.¢ 113.7 27.2
Total current tax expen: 1,531.¢ 1,515.; 535.4
Deferred tax expense (bene 287. (88.7) (52.2)
Total income tax expen: $1,819.8  $1,426.! $483.2

A reconciliation of income tax expense recordethinconsolidated statements of income and amoontputed at the statutory federal
income tax rate for the years ended December 2 fsllows:

2006 2005 2004

Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Perceni
Amount at statutory rai $1,720.( 35.(%  $1,361.¢ 35.(%  $505.Z 35.(%
State and local income taxes net of federal tavefie 84.€ 1.7 61.C 1.6 (35.7) (2.5)
Tax exempt interest and dividends received dedun (41.5) (0.8 (29.0 (0.7) (14.7) (1.0
Non-deductible acquisition expen — — 21.t 1kt

Other, ne 56.4 1.1 32.¢ 0.8 6.9 0.5
Total income tax expen: $1,819.! 37.0% $1,426.! 36.7%  $483.2 33.5%

During the third quarter of 2006, the Company dasedl its state deferred tax liability by $43.0ulésg in a tax benefit, net of federal
taxes, of $28.0, or $0.04 per basic and dilutedeshdor the year ended December 31, 2006. Thidteesfrom a lower effective tax rate due to
changes in the Company’s state tax apportionmetarf&following the WellChoice acquisition.

During the first quarter of 2005, a refund claitedi by the Company in 2003 was approved by the @msipnal Joint Committee on
Taxation. The claim relates to initially disallowkx$ses on the sale of certain subsidiaries itatee1990s. A tax benefit of $28.4 related to this

claim was recorded in the first quarter of 2005t ideome per basic and diluted share related ®dlaiim was $0.04 for the year ended
December 31, 2005.

As a result of legislation enacted in Indiana orréfal6, 2004, the Company recorded deferred taetgand liabilities, with a
corresponding net tax benefit in the income staterae$44.8, or $0.15 per basic share and $0.14lihged share, for the year ended
December 31, 2004. The legislation eliminated tieation of tax credits resulting from the paymeifiuture assessments to the Indiana
Comprehensive Health Insurance Association (“ICH|Afdiana’s high-risk health insurance pool. Untler new legislation, ICHIA tax
credits are limited to any unused ICHIA assessrpaitt prior to December 31, 2004. A valuation alloes of $5.6 was established for the
portion of the deferred tax asset, which the Comgmlieves will likely not be utilized. There is warryforward limitation on the tax credits
and the net operating loss carryforwards do noirbiegexpire until 2018.
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In certain states, the Company pays premium taxéeu of state income taxes. Premium taxes arerteg with general and
administrative expense.

At December 31, 2006, the Company had unused federaet operating loss carryforwards of approxeha$184.4 to offset future
taxable income. The loss carryforwards expire eytbars 2007 through 2024. During 2006, 2005 afd 28deral income taxes paid totaled
$1,553.3, $994.0 and $646.3, respectively.

15. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

A reconciliation of the components of accumulatéteo comprehensive income (loss) at December 34 fsllows:

2006 2005
Investments
Gross unrealized gail $418.( $ 160.(
Gross unrealized loss (148.0 (189.0)
Net pretax unrealized gains (loss 270.C (29.)
Deferred tax (liability) ass¢ (108.2) 10.7
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investm 161.¢ (18.9
Cash flow hedge:
Gross unrealized loss (8.5 —
Deferred tax asst 2.9 —
Net unrealized loss on cash flow hed (5.6 —
Additional minimum pension liability
Gross additional minimum pension liabil — (2.9
Deferred tax asst — 1.C
Net additional minimum pension liabili — (1.9
Defined benefit pension plar
Reclassification of additional minimum pension ligp (10.€) —
Deferred net actuarial lo: (98.€) —
Deferred net actuarial lo! (109.2) —
Deferred prior service cos (7.0 —
Deferred tax asst 45.2 —
Net unrecognized period benefit costs for definendfit pension plan (71.0 —
Postretirement benefit plar
Deferred net actuarial lo: (87.0) —
Deferred prior service credi 29.€ —
Deferred tax asst 225 —
Net unrecognized period benefit costs for poseatant benefit plar (35.) —
Accumulated other comprehensive income (It $ 50.1 $ (20.9)
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Comprehensive income (loss) reclassification adjests for the years ended December 31 are as fallow

2006 2005 2004
Investments
Net holding gain (loss) on investment securitiésiiag during the period, net of tax expense (bénefi
$118.9, $(89.4), and $14.0, respectiv $180.t $(163.) $26.1
Reclassification adjustment for net realized gainnvestment securities, net of tax (benefit) exqeeof
$0.0, $(3.6), and $15.4, respectiv (0.3 6.€ (28.6)
Total reclassification adjustment on investme 180.2 (157.2) (2.5
Cash flow hedge:
Holding (loss) gain, net of tax (benefit) expens&@.9), $(5.2) and $5.2, respectiv (5.6) (9.7 9.7
Other:
Net change in additional minimum pension liabilitgt of tax (benefit) expense of $(3.0), $0.4 add
respectively (4.7 0.8 (0.7
Net gain (loss) recognized in other comprehensigeme, net of tax expense (benefit) of $113.0, H(¢
and $3.8, respective $169.¢ $(166.) $ 71
16. Leases

The Company leases office space and certain comanterelated equipment using noncancelable operégases. At December 31,
2006, future lease payments for operating leastsinitial or remaining noncancelable terms of gear or more consisted of the following:

2007
2008
2009
2010
2011
Thereaftel

Total minimum payments requirt

$ 145.5
140.2

The Company has certain lease agreements thaitaotatingent payment provisions. Under these piowis, the Company pays
contingent amounts in addition to base rent, primaased upon annual changes in the consumer jprilex. The schedule above contains

estimated amounts for potential future increasdsdae payments based on the contingent paymevisjanas.
Lease expense for 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $221149,3and $62.8, respectively.
17. Retirement Benefits

The Company, through certain subsidiaries, spongaisus non-contributory employee defined ber@éns.

The WellPoint Cash Balance Pension Plan (the “Blamfiich name changed from the Anthem Cash Bal®eeesion Plan effective

January 1, 20086, is a cash balance pension plarssperl by Anthem Insurance.
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The Plan covered eligible employees of the Compard/certain subsidiaries prior to its merger withiM/ Effective January 1, 2006, the plan
sponsor curtailed the benefits under the Plan. fesalt, most participants’ accounts no longer aeqray credits, but do continue to earn
interest. Employees hired on or after January 0624e not eligible to participate in the Plan.t&ierparticipants were “grandfathereidto the
Plan based on age and years of service. Grandégtiparticipants continue to accrue pay credits utidePlan formula. The Company recor

a curtailment gain of $4.6 during the three momthded March 31, 2006.

Prior to June 30, 2006, Anthem Holding Corp. spoadahe WellPoint Health Networks Inc. Pension Analation Plan (the “WHN
Plan”), a defined benefit pension plan which codeskgible employees of WHN and certain WHN sulesiigis prior to its merger with
Anthem. Effective January 1, 2004, the plan sponsadailed benefits under the WHN Plan, with theutethat most participants’ accounts no
longer accrued pay credits, but do continue to gaemest. Employees of WHN hired after December28D3 were not eligible to participate
the WHN Plan, except for certain employees covésedollective bargaining agreements. Certain pigditts were “grandfathered” into the
WHN Plan based on age and years of service. Grinaattal participants continue to accrue pay creditier the WHN Plan formula. Effective
June 30, 2006, the WHN Plan was merged into the.Pla

Prior to December 31, 2006, WellPoint Holding Cajponsored the Empire Blue Cross Blue Shield CasdarBe Pension Plan (the
“Empire Plan”) a cash balance defined benefit plduwrch covered eligible employees of WellChoice apdain of its subsidiaries prior to
WellPoint’s acquisition of WellChoice. The Empirta® was merged into the Plan on December 31, ZBBéctive January 1, 2007, the plan
sponsor curtailed benefits under the Empire PlanaAesult, most participants’ accounts no longerwe pay credits, but continue to earn
interest. Employees hired on or after January 07 20e not eligible to participate in the Plan.t@erparticipants were “grandfatherddto the
Plan based on age and years of service in the fdEm@ire Plan. Grandfathered participants contitoueceive pay credits under the Plan
formula. There will be no curtailment gain or l@ssociated with the curtailment of benefits unterEmpire Plan.

The UGS Pension Plan is a defined benefit pendam pvhich covers eligible employees (includingtaer employees covered by a
collective bargaining agreement) of National Goweent Services, Inc., which name changed from AdBii@maFederal, Inc. effective
November 17, 2006, who were formerly employed bytééhGovernment Services, LLCUGS"). Effective January 1, 2004, the plan sponsor
curtailed benefits under the UGS Pension Plan]tiegun most non-bargained participants’ accourddonger accruing pay credits but
continuing to earn interest. Employees subjecbtlective bargaining, as well as certain non-bargdiemployees who were “grandfathered”
based on age and years of service, continue toveepay credits. Non-bargained employees of UG8dhafter December 31, 2003 are not
eligible to participate in the UGS Pension Plan.

The Employees’ Retirement Plan of Blue Cross off@alia (the “BCC Plan”) provides retirement betgfio eligible employees of Blue
Cross of California who are covered by a collechaegaining agreement. Effective January 1, 209 ptan sponsor curtailed benefits under
the BCC Plan by providing that no Blue Cross ofif6atia employees hired after December 31, 2006gible to participate in the BCC
Plan. There will be no curtailment gain or lossoagsted with the curtailment of benefits under B@&C Plan.

All of the plans’ assets consist primarily of commrsiocks, fixed maturity securities, investmentdsiand short-term investments. The
funding policies for all plans are to contributeamts at least sufficient to meet the minimum fugdiequirements set forth in the Employee
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amer{tERISA”), and the Pension Protection Act of 20G&lan accordance with income tax
regulations, plus such additional amounts as ategsary to provide assets sufficient to meet thefits to be paid to plan participants.
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In addition, the Company offers certain employeestietirement benefits including certain life, medj vision and dental benefits upon
retirement. There are several postretirement bigpleins, which differ in amounts of coverage, dditiles, retiree contributions, years of
service and retirement age. The Company may furtdinebenefit costs through discretionary contiidms to a Voluntary Employees’
Beneficiary Association (“VEBA”}rust. Other costs are accrued, with the retirggngaa portion of the costs. Postretirement plasetsheld i
the VEBA trust consist primarily of bonds and eysécurities.

The Company currently uses a September 30 measntelate for determining benefit obligations and failue of plan assets and will
adopt the fiscal-year-end measurement requirentéiAS 158 on December 31, 2008.

The following tables disclose consolidated “pendienefits”, which include the defined benefit pemsplans described above, and
consolidated “other benefits”, which include otpestretirement benefits described above. Weightedagie calculations were computed using
assumptions at the relevant measurement datesffidue of acquisitions on the consolidated ber@dltgation and plan assets is reflected
through the business combination lines of the tabkdow.

The reconciliation of the benefit obligation isfaBows:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2006 2005 2006 2005
Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $1,966.( $1,380.: $603.2 $431.¢
Service cos 60.1 59.C 12.1 8.1
Interest cos 102.4 78.% 31.1 25.C
Plan amendmen 10.Z — (20.2) —
Actuarial (gain) los: (140.9) 83.t (6.9 74.2
Benefits paic (183.5) (110.9 (35.9) (27.7)
Business combinatior 1.8 475.1 19.2 91.4
Benefit obligation at end of ye $1,816." $1,966.( $603.¢ $603.2
The changes in the fair value of plan assets afellasvs:
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2006 2005 2006 2005
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y $1,911.¢  $1,347.. $41.¢c  $40.€
Actual return on plan asse 150.¢ 124.¢ (0.7) 3.7
Employer contribution: 108.¢ 117.¢ 33.8 247
Benefits paic (183.5) (110.9 (35.29) (27.)
Business combinatior — 432.F — —
Fair value of plan assets at end of y $1,987.«  $1,911.¢ $39.Z $41¢
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The reconciliation of the funded status to thebwetefit cost recognized is as follows:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2006 2005 2006 2005
Funded statu $170.7 $(54.0) $(564.5) $(561.0)
Unrecognized net actuarial lo — 289.t — 94.C
Unrecognized prior service cc — (6.4 — (12.0
Net amount recognized at the measurement 170.7 229.( (564.5) (479.2
Contributions made after the measurement 1.5 0.5 10.1 6.9
Net amount recognized at Decembel $172.2 $229.t $(554.9)  $(472.9)
The net amount recognized in the consolidated balaheets is as follows:
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2006 2005 2006 2005
Noncurrent asse $274.1 $290.¢€ $ — $ —
Current liabilities (6.9) — (19.1) —
Noncurrent liabilities (95.0 (64.0) (535.9) (472.%)
Accumulated other comprehensive inca — 2.9 — —
Net amount recognized at Decembel $172.2 $229.F $(554.9) $(472.7)

The amounts included in accumulated other compi#heincome that have not been recognized as coemp@of net period benefit
costs are as follows:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2006 2005 2006 2005
Net actuarial los — —

$109.2 % $87.C $

Prior service cost (credit) — —
7.¢c (29.¢9
Net amount recognized at Decembel — —
$116.2 $ = $57.¢ $

The estimated net actuarial loss and prior semast (credit) for the defined benefit pension pltra will be amortized from
accumulated other comprehensive income into nébdierbenefit costs over the next fiscal year a&kr2%nd $(0.6), respectively. The estim:
net loss and prior service cost (credit) for pasement benefit plans that will be amortized framcumulated other comprehensive income
net periodic benefit costs over the next fiscalry@a $4.8 and $(2.9), respectively.
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The incremental effect of applying FAS 158 on indial line items in the consolidated balance sae&ecember 31, 2006, including !
effect of related deferred taxes, is as follows:

Before After

Application Application

of FAS 158 Adjustments of FAS 158
Deferred tax assets, r $ 6327 $ 9.9 $ 642.¢
Total current asse 11,796.¢ 9.9 11,806.
Other noncurrent asse 596.1 (98.7) 497 .
Total asset 51,848. (88.9) 51,759.1
Other current liabilities 1,371.¢ 26.C 1,397.¢
Total current liabilities 15,297 .- 26.C 15,323.:
Deferred tax liability, ne 3,403.¢ (53.9) 3,350.:
Other noncurrent liabilitie 1,332.( 38.Z 1,370.:
Total liabilities 27,173.: 10.7 27,184.(
Accumulated other comprehensive inca 149.€ (99.5 50.1
Total shareholde’ equity 24,675.: (99.5) 24,575.1

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defibedefit pension plans was $1,803.7 and $1,942ke¢mber 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2006, certain pension plank®@fQompany had accumulated benefit obligations@ess of plan assets. For those
same plans, the projected benefit obligation was &l excess of plan assets. Such plans had a nedthprojected benefit obligation,
accumulated benefit obligation and fair value @frphssets of $103.4, $94.5 and $0.0, respectively.

The weighted-average assumptions used in calcgl#tii benefit obligations for all plans are asdai:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2006 2005 2006 2005
Discount rate 5.9(% 5.31% 5.9(% 5.2%
Rate of compensation incree 4.5(% 4.3% 4.5(% 4.42%
Expected rate of return on plan as: 8.0(% 7.8(% 7.11% 6.95%
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The components of net periodic benefit cost inallidethe consolidated statements of income arelbsafs:

2006 2005 2004
Pension Benefits
Service cos $ 60.1 $ 59.C $47.2
Interest cos 102.¢ 78.5 54.7
Expected return on asst (144.¢) (102.¢) (71.9
Recognized actuarial lo: 17.¢ 17.2 14.4
Amortization of prior service co: 1.4 (3.6) (3.6)
Curtailment gair (4.€) — —
Net periodic benefit co: $ 32.€ $ 48.€ $ 40.¢
Other Benefits
Service cos $ 12.1 $ 81 $ 4.3
Interest cos 31.1 25.C 15.C
Expected return on asst (2.9 (2.7 (2.5
Recognized actuarial lo: 4.2 0.4 0.4
Amortization of prior service co: (2.5 (4.0 (6.3
Net periodic benefit co: $ 42.1 $ 26.¢ $ 10.€

The weighted-average assumptions used in calcgl#timnet periodic benefit cost for all plans asdadlows:

2006 2005 2004

Pension Benefits

Discount rate 5.31% 5.8:% 6.25%
Rate of compensation incree 4.3% 4.3%% 4.5(%
Expected rate of return on plan as 8.0(% 8.1% 8.0(%
Other Benefits

Discount rate 5.2% 5.81% 6.25%
Rate of compensation incree 4.47% 4.2¢% 4.5(%
Expected rate of return on plan as: 6.95% 6.05% 6.0(%

The weighted average assumed health care costriatesito be used for next year to measure thectegheost of other benefits is 9.00%
with a gradual decline to 5.0% by the year 2012sEhestimated trend rates are subject to chartbe fature. The health care cost trend rate
assumption has a significant effect on the amoragsrted. For example, an increase in the assuethicare cost trend rate of one
percentage point would increase the postretirefpen¢fit obligation as of December 31, 2006 by $44@ would increase service and interest
costs by $2.9. Conversely, a decrease in the assbeadth care cost trend rate of one percentage pould decrease the postretirement
benefit obligation by $38.1 as of December 31, 2806 would decrease service and interest cost oy $

An important factor in determining the Company’sipien expense is the assumption for expected lerg-tate of return on plan assets.
The Company uses a total portfolio return analysthe development of its
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assumption. Factors such as past market performtretong-term relationship between fixed matuaityd equity securities, interest rates,
inflation and asset allocations are consideretiénatssumption. The assumption includes an estiofiditee additional return expected from
active management of the investment portfolio. Pke¢s and historical returns are also reviewedypropriateness of the selected assumption.
The expected long-term rate of return is calculéethe geometric averaging method, which calcslate expected multi-period return,
reflecting volatility drag on compound returns.

In managing the plan assets, the Company’s obgito be a responsible fiduciary while minimiziingancial risk to the Company. In
addition to producing a reasonable return, thedtment strategy seeks to minimize the volatilitgia Companys expense and cash flow. O
time, the Company has increased the duration docagion of fixed maturity securities to more clysmatch the sensitivity of plan assets with
the plan obligations.

Plan assets include a diversified mix of investnggate fixed maturity securities and equity se@siacross a range of sectors and levels
of capitalization to maximize the long-term retdion a prudent level of risk. As of the measurendate, the Company’s weighted-average
targeted asset allocation and actual allocatioadset category are as follows:

Target Actual Allocation
Allocation Pension Other Benefit
for All Benefit Assets Assets
Plans 200¢ 200¢ 200¢ 200t
Equity securities
Domestic equitie 51% 51% 42% 48% 43%
International equitie 14 16 14 18 12
Fixed maturity securitie 33 27 37 26 42
Other 2 _ 6 7 _ 8 _ 3
Total 10C% 10C% 10C% 10C% 10C%

The Company’s current funding strategy is to funcamount at least equal to the minimum requiredifumas determined under ERISA
with consideration of maximum tax deductible amguiihe Company may elect to make discretionaryrifmnitons up to the maximum
amount deductible for income tax purposes. Foyte ended December 31, 2006, no contributions vegpgired under ERISA; however, the
Company made tax deductible discretionary contidimsttotaling $108.6 to the defined benefit pengilams. Employer contributions relatec
other benefits represent payments to retireesuioent benefits. Contributions to the VEBA are gailg not material. The Company may elect
to make discretionary contributions up to the maximamount deductible for income tax purposes.
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The Company'’s estimated future payments for penserefits and postretirement benefits, which réfepected future service, as
appropriate, are as follows:

Pension Other

Benefits Benefits
2007 $156.: $ 37.t
2008 139.c 39.2
2009 150.¢ 40.¢
2010 202.¢ 42.¢€
2011 151.¢ 442
2012- 2016 845.¢ 231t

In addition to the defined benefit plans, the Compmaintains the WellPoint 401(k) Retirement Sasifgan, which name changed from
the Anthem 401(k) Long Term Savings Investment Rffective December 31, 2005, a qualified definedtdbution plan covering
substantially all employees. Voluntary employeetibations are matched by the Company subject taicelimitations. Contributions made
by the Company totaled $85.2, $74.6 and $34.0 du2@06, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

18. Commitments and Contingencies
Multi -District Litigation Settlement Agreement

In May 2000, a case title@alifornia Medical Association vs. Blue Cross ofli€@ania, et al. (the “CMA Litigation”) , was filed in U.S.
district court in San Francisco against Blue CiafsSalifornia (“BCC”), a subsidiary of WHN at thiarte, and now a Company subsidiary. The
lawsuit alleges that BCC violated the Racketedutrfced and Corrupt Organizations Act (“RICQO”).

In August 2000, WHN was added as a defendaSheme v. Humana, et ala class-action lawsuit brought on behalf of Heedtre
providers nationwide alleging RICO violations (tf8hane Litigation”). Effective upon the November, 2004 merger with WHN, WHN
became a wholly owned subsidiary of the CompanyS@&ptember 26, 2002, Anthem was added as a defetodidye Shane Litigation.

In May 2003, in a case titlddenneth Thomas, M.D., et al., v. Blue Cross Bluel@ssociation, et al.(the “Thomas Litigation"severe
medical providers filed suit in federal districtuzbin Miami, Florida against the BCBSA and Blueo€s and Blue Shield plans across the
country, including the Company and WellChoice. b alleges that the BCBSA and the Blue CrossBlud Shield plans violated RICO and
challenges many of the same practices as the CM@atiion and the Shane Litigation.

In October 2000, the federal Judicial Panel on Migltrict Litigation (“MDL”") issued an order conddhting the CMA Litigation, the
Shane Litigation and various other pending managee class-action lawsuits against the Companyo#ret companies before District Court
Judge Federico Moreno in the Southern Districtlofifia for purposes of pretrial proceedings. A nagali was appointed by Judge Moreno and
the parties conducted court-ordered mediation. @cehber 9, 2004, Judge Moreno issued a new schgdulier extending the expert
discovery deadline to February 7, 2005 and settingfor September 6, 2005.

On July 11, 2005, the Company entered into a sedtit agreement (the “Agreement”) with represengstiof more than 700,000 (actual
number) physicians nationwide to resolve the CM#giaition, the Shane Litigation, the Thomas Litigatand certain other similar cases
brought by physicians. Under the Agreement,
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the Company agreed to make cash payments totghing $198.0, of which $135.0 is to be paid to pbigsis and $5.0 contributed to a not-for-
profit foundation whose mission is to promote higheality health care and to enhance the delivéoace to the disadvantaged members o
public. In addition, up to $58.0 will be paid irgld fees to be determined by the court. The Compi#sty has agreed to implement and mair
a number of operational changes such as standagdizé definition of medical necessity in physic@mtracts, creating a formalized Physic
Advisory Committee and modifying some of the Compsuelaims payment and physician contracting priovis. The Agreement was subject
to, and conditioned upon, review and approval leyuhS. District Court for the Southern DistrictFdbrida. The court preliminarily approved
the settlement in an order filed July 15, 2005. fkaring for final approval was held on Decembex@®5 in Miami, Florida. The Court issued
a final order approving the settlement on Decen22e2005, and issued an amended final order apmydiie settlement on January 4, 200€
a result of the Agreement, the Company incurreteaax expense of $103.0, or $0.10 per dilutedeshéer tax, for the year ended
December 31, 2005, which represents the finalesattht amount of the Agreement that was not preljaccrued. Appeals of the settlement
initially filed by certain physicians have beenaled. Final cash payments under the Agreemenirtigt$209.5, including accrued interest,
were made on October 5 and 6, 2006.

The WellChoice transaction was closed on Decem8gP@05, after the settlement was reached witlpldatiffs in the CMA Litigation,
the Shane Litigation and the Thomas Litigation. Tdrener WellChoice company, which was merged witd ato a wholly-owned subsidiary
of WellPoint, continues to be a defendant in therhs Litigation, and is not affected by the setdatrbetween the Company and plaintiffs.
The Company believes that any liability that masutefrom this action is unlikely to have a mateddverse effect on its financial position or
results of operations.

Other Litigation

Prior to WHN'’s acquisition of the group benefit optons (“GBO”) of John Hancock Mutual Life Insu@nCompany (“John Hancock”
John Hancock entered into a number of reinsurame@gements, including with respect to personaidaett insurance and the occupational
accident component of workersdmpensation insurance, a portion of which wasimatgd through a pool managed by Unicover Managjecs
Under these arrangements, John Hancock assumedgskreinsurer and transferred certain of sg&ls to other companies. Similar
reinsurance arrangements were entered into by Bahnock following WHN's acquisition of the GBO dftih Hancock. These various
arrangements have become the subject of dispuatdading a number of legal proceedings to whicJdlancock is a party. The Company is
currently in arbitration with John Hancock regaglthese arrangements. The Company believes thiaHilty that may result from this
matter is unlikely to have a material adverse éffecits consolidated financial condition or resulf operations.

In various California state courts, the Compangdfending a number of individual lawsuits and twopgorted class actions alleging the
wrongful rescission of individual insurance pol&i&he suits name the Company as well as BCC andif#@&. Health Insurance Company
(“BCL&H"), both Company subsidiaries. The lawsuitsnerally allege breach of contract, bad faith amféir business practices in a purported
practice of rescinding new individual members falilog the submission of large claims. In Decembd&@he California Medical Association
filed a motion to intervene in one of the classaas. The motion has not been heard. In additioe Galifornia Department of Managed Health
Care and California Department of Insurance arelgoting investigations of the allegations. The iparhave agreed to mediate most of these
lawsuits and the mediation has resulted in theluésa of some of these lawsuits. BCC and BCL&Hemwrtty announced an initiative to revise
their rescission policies and practices in Califarn
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In various California state courts, several hospitave filed suits against BCC and WHN for paynardlaims denied where the
member was rescinded. These lawsuits are currignthe process of moving into arbitration. In aduit a recent suit brought against BCC,
BCL&H and WHN by a non-contracting hospital in Gathia state court is a purported class actions Blit also seeks to recover for payment
of claims denied where the member was rescindedebember 2006, this purported class of hospitatsfded a motion to intervene in one of
the individual class action cases referenced abidve motion has not been heard. The Company danies/rongdoing. The Company intends
to vigorously defend these proceedings; howeveir thitimate outcome cannot be presently determined

Other Contingencies

From time to time, the Company and certain of ulssidiaries are parties to various legal proceegintany of which involve claims for
coverage encountered in the ordinary course oflessi The Company, like HMOs and health insurengigédly, excludes certain health care
services from coverage under its HMO, PPO and gilagrs. The Company is, in its ordinary courseusibess, subject to the claims of its
enrollees arising out of decisions to restrict enyglreimbursement for certain services. The los/efi one such claim, if it results in a
significant punitive damage award, could have aeni@tadverse effect on the Company. In additibe,risk of potential liability under puniti
damage theories may increase significantly thecdiffy of obtaining reasonable settlements of cagerclaims.

In addition to the lawsuits described above, then@@any is also involved in other pending and thmeadditigation of the character
incidental to the business transacted, arisingbiis operations and its 2001 demutualization, iarfdom time to time involved as a party in
various governmental investigations, audits, regiewd administrative proceedings. These investigatiaudits and reviews include routine
and special investigations by state insurance tieeats, state attorneys general and the U.S. Agjo@eneral. Such investigations could result
in the imposition of civil or criminal fines, penigs and other sanctions. The Company believesathatiability that may result from any one
these actions, or in the aggregate, is unlikelyawe a material adverse effect on its consolidfiteahcial position or results of operations.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The Company entered into certain agreements withrational Business Machines Corporation (“IBMJ)rovide information
technology infrastructure services. These serwiga® previously performed in-house. The Compamgrsaining commitment under these
contracts at December 31, 2006 is approximatelp $8ver a six year period. The Company has th#yatn terminate these agreements u
the occurrence of certain events, subject to cedarly termination fees.

On July 15, 2004, the Company agreed to guaramtee $37.0 of debt incurred by an unaffiliated gnttb partially finance the purchase
of a hospital. While the maximum amount of the gnéy may be reduced in periods after Septembe2@% as determined by reference to the
leverage ratio (as defined in the guaranty) ofuhaffiliated entity, the maximum guaranty remai$&d.0 at December 31, 2006. The guaranty
also provides for full payment of all obligationsder the guaranty to become immediately due andtpayunder specified circumstances. In
connection with the guaranty, the unaffiliated gngigreed to reimburse the Company upon demanahfpamounts paid by the Company
under the guaranty. The obligations of the unatfd entity under the reimbursement agreementarged by a second lien on certain real
estate collateral. In addition, the parent compaithe unaffiliated entity has provided a guarantfavor of the Company guaranteeing the
obligations of the unaffiliated entity under th@mbursement agreement.
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In connection with an investment in July 2004 jjoiat venture to develop and operate a well-beiagter in California, the Company
may be required to make an additional capital doution of up to $18.0 during the first three yetrat the well-being center is in operation if
cash flows and room nights generated by the Comgdampot exceed specified targets. Constructiomeftell-being center was completed
during December 2006.

In connection with the formation in 2000 of a jougnture providing Medicaid services in Puerto Ribe Company agreed under certain
circumstances to provide additional funds to thetjgenture entity. Since the formation of the joienture in 2000, the Company has not been
required to make any payments under this guaraitkanding. During December 2006, the joint ventuees terminated and the guarantee was
extinguished.

Vulnerability from Concentrations

Financial instruments that potentially subject @@npany to concentrations of credit risk consignprily of cash equivalents,
investment securities, premium receivables andungnts held through hedging activities. All invesht securities are managed by
professional investment managers within policigbaized by the Board of Directors. Such policiesit the amounts that may be invested in
any one issuer and prescribe certain investee aoynpéeria. Concentrations of credit risk with pest to premium receivables are limited due
to the large number of employer groups that canstithe Compang’ customer base in the geographic regions in wihimdnducts business.
of December 31, 2006, there were no significantealrations of financial instruments in a singlegstee, industry or geographic location.

19. Segment Information
Through December 31, 2006, the Company had thpmteble segments: Health Care, Specialty, andrOthe

The Health Care segment is an aggregation of veugperating segments, principally differentiatetydry geography. These Health C
operating segments have similar economic, prodiistibution, customer and regulatory charactersstand meet the aggregation criteria as
defined under paragraph 17 of FAS 1Bisclosures about Segments of an Enterprise andt®&eInformation*FAS 131”). Operating
segments comprising the Health Care segment previttead spectrum of network-based health plans#ret health care-related products to
large and small employers and individuals.

The Specialty segment is maintained as a separgtaent providing various products, including phasynaenefits management,
specialty pharmacy, dental, vision, life and digbinsurance and behavioral health benefit sawic

In addition to intersegment sales and expense mgitions and corporate expenses not allocated twtedpe segments, the Other segment
includes results from the Company’s governmentthessdrvices and other businesses that do not imeepiantitative thresholds for an
operating segment defined under FAS 131.

The Company announced a new organizational strictesigned to facilitate the Company’s 2010 stiatglgn. This new structure
emphasizes unique local presence, company-widesatiom and strong customer focus. As a resultisfriew organizational structure the
Company is organized around two strategic busineds: Commercial and Consumer Business, and Spec&enior and State-Sponsored
Business. In addition, our
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government services business includes the Federpldyee Program and National Government Services, Which acts as a Medicare
contractor in several regions across the natioe. Gbmpany expects to revise its reportable segnirethe first quarter of 2007 in accordance
with the new organizational structure, which refdezow the chief operating decision maker evalugiie performance of the business
beginning January 1, 2007.

As a result of these organizational changes, d@@$, the Company recorded general and administrakpenses of $50.3, $3.4 and
$1.6 for employee termination costs in the HealtineGC Specialty and Other segments, respectively.0dmpany made payments of $3.7
during 2006 related to these termination costsaanof December 31, 2006, a liability of $51.6 remadifor future payments of termination
costs. The total severance charges of $55.3 refatie reorganization were partially offset by roash benefits of $21.6 related to additional
share-based award forfeitures.

Through its participation in various federal gowaent programs, the Company generated approxima6ty, 12% and 17% of its total
consolidated revenues from agencies of the U.Semgavent for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2002004, respectively. These
revenues are contained in all three of the Compamggortable segments.

The Company defines operating revenues to includejom income, administrative fees and other regsn@perating revenues are
derived from premiums and fees received primaribyrf the sale and administration of health beneéitipcts. Operating expenses are
comprised of benefit expense, selling expense,rgéaad administrative expense and cost of druge.Jompany calculates operating gain or
loss as operating revenue less operating expenses.

The accounting policies of the segments are camistith those described in the summary of sigaificaccounting policies in Note 2
except that certain shared administrative expefmse=ach segment are recognized on a pro ratasdéiddasis, which in aggregate
approximates the consolidated expense. Any differdretween the allocated expenses and actual aetsol expense is included in other
expenses not allocated to reportable segmentsségment sales and expenses are recorded atrmo®iminated in the consolidated financial
statements. The Company evaluates performance géfortable segments based on operating gais®amdefined above. The Company
evaluates investment income, interest expense,teaiion expense and income taxes, and assetaitityi details on a consolidated basis as
these items are managed in a corporate shareds@mironment and are not the responsibility ghsent operating management.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (coatihu
19. Segment Information (continued)

Financial data by reportable segment for the yeaded December 31 is as follows:

Health Other and

Care Specialty Eliminations Total
Year ended December 31, 20C
Operating revenue from external custon $53,860.! $1,759.- $ 454.¢ $56,074.1
Intersegment revenu — 1,806.¢ (1,806.%) —
Operating gain (loss 4,288.: 523.¢ (75.0 4,736.¢
Depreciation and lease amortization expe — — 270.¢ 270.¢
Year ended December 31, 20C
Operating revenue from external custon 41,867.( 1,717.¢ 333.¢ 43,918.:
Intersegment revenu — 1,348.: (1,348.9) —
Operating gain (loss 3,418.( 426.4 (111.9 3,732.!
Depreciation and lease amortization expe 6.C 04 222.2 228.¢
Year ended December 31, 20C
Operating revenue from external custon 19,498.! 646.¢ 208.¢ 20,353
Intersegment revenu (70.8) 800.4 (729.¢) —
Operating gain (loss 1,497 .« 105.2 (102.2) 1,500.¢
Depreciation and lease amortization expe 18.€ 0.€ 116.5 135.7

The major product revenues from external custorfogrsach of the reportable segments for the yeaile@d December 31, are as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Health Care
Managed care produc $50,892..  $39,565.! $18,272.
Managed care servic 2,963.: 2,301.! 1,218.°
Other 5.C — 7.7
Total Health Cart 53,860.¢ 41,867.( 19,498.!
Specialty
Pharmacy produc! 610.< 594.¢ 233.(
Dental/Vision 804.7 738.1 281.¢
Other 344.: 384.¢ 132.2
Total Specialty 1,759. 1,717.¢ 646.¢
Other
Medicare service 450.( 325t 206.1
Other 4.€ 8.1 2.E
Total Other 454 ¢ 333.¢ 208.¢
Total revenues from external custom $56,074. $43,918.- $20,353.

The classification between managed care produdsramaged care services for the Health Care segmte above table primarily
distinguishes between the level of risk assumedadgad care products represent insurance produetsewiine Company bears the insurance
risk, whereas managed care services representgirofierings where the Company provides claims @didption and other administrative
services to the customer, but the customer pritligipaars the insurance risk.
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19. Segment Information (continued)

Asset and equity details by reportable segment havéeen disclosed, as they are not reportechiallgrby the Company.

A reconciliation of reportable segment operatingereies to the amounts of total revenues includelderconsolidated statements of
income for the years ended December 31, is asafsllo

2006 2005 2004
Reportable segments operating rever $56,074.¢ $43,918. $20,353.
Net investment incom 878.7 633.1 311.5
Net realized (losses) gains on investm: (0.9 (10.2) 42.5
Total revenue $56,953.( $44,541.. $20,707.!

A reconciliation of reportable segment operatindndga income before income taxes included in thesctidated statements of income for
the years ended December 31 is as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Reportable segments operating ¢ $4,736.¢ $3,732. $1,500.¢
Net investment incom 878.7 633.1 311.5
Net realized (losses) gains on investme (0.3 (20.2) 42.F
Interest expens (403.%) (226.2) (142.3)
Amortization of other intangible ass¢ (297.9) (238.9) (61.4)
Merger-related undertaking — — (61.5)
Loss on repurchase of debt securi — — (146.0)
Income before income tax $4,914.. $3,890.: $1,443.:

20. Related Party Transactions

WellPoint Foundation, Inc. (the “Foundation”), whiname changed from Anthem Foundation, Inc. effecluly 1, 2006, is an Indiana
non-profit organization exempt from federal taxati;mder Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal RevenodeC The Foundation was formed to
conduct, support and assist charitable, healthe@@ducational, and other community-based progi@m projects. Effective July 1, 2006,
WellPoint Foundation, a Section 501(c)(3) non-grofganization previously formed to improve theltteand well-being of individuals in
communities served by the former WHN, was mergéaltine Foundation. The officers and directors effloundation are also officers of the
Company. These officers and directors receive mopemsation from the Foundation for the managenemtces performed for the Foundat
but may be reimbursed by the Foundation for anj eapenditures incurred on behalf of the Foundafidre Foundation is not a subsidiary of
the Company and the financial results of the Fotiadare not consolidated with the Company’s finahstatements. The Company
contributed $3.0 to the Foundation during 2004 mmdontributions were made to the Foundation in62802005. The Company has no cur
legal obligations for future commitments to the Rdation.

21. Statutory Information

WellPoint’s insurance subsidiaries report theircacts in conformity with accounting practices présed or permitted by state insurance
regulatory authorities (“statutory”), which vary éertain respects from GAAP. Typical difference<G#AP reporting as compared to statutory
reporting are the inclusion of unrealized gaintosses relating to fixed maturity securities inrelalders’ equity, recognition of all assets
including those that are
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21. Statutory Information (continued)

non-admitted for statutory purposes and recognitioall deferred tax assets without regard to stayuimits. The National Association of
Insurance Commissioners (“NAIC”) developed a cadifversion of the statutory accounting principtEssigned to foster more consistency
among the states for accounting guidelines andrtiego

WellPoint’s insurance subsidiaries are domicileganious jurisdictions. These subsidiaries pregtautory financial statements in
accordance with accounting practices prescribgrbomnitted by the respective jurisdictions’ insuramegulators. Prescribed statutory
accounting practices are set forth in a varietgudlications of the NAIC as well as state laws utatjons and general administrative rules.

WellPoint’s ability to pay dividends and other dtezbligations is significantly dependent on re¢eipdividends from its subsidiaries.
The payment of dividends to WellPoint by its inswra subsidiaries without prior approval of the nagice departments of each subsidiary’s
domiciliary jurisdiction is limited by formula. Didends in excess of these amounts are subjectidogpproval by the respective state
insurance departments.

WellPoint’s insurance subsidiaries are subjectsio-based capital requirements. Risksed capital is a method developed by the NAI
determine the minimum amount of statutory capipgrapriate for an insurance company to suppoavtsall business operations in
consideration of its size and risk profile. Thenfiata for determining the amount of risk-based edipecifies various factors, weighted based
on the perceived degree of risk, which are appbeckrtain financial balances and financial agfivBelow minimum risk-based capital
requirements are classified within certain levets;h of which requires specified corrective actissmof December 31, 2006 and 2005, all of
WellPoint's insurance subsidiaries exceeded themmim risk-based capital requirements.

Statutory-basis capital and surplus for WellPoim%urance subsidiaries was $7,981.6 and $7,48 Deeember 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Statutory-basis net income of Wellisiinsurance subsidiaries was $2,931.2, $2,3856d1$1,545.9 for 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Statutory-basis net income includesi@hoice and WHN statutory results for the fulbyended December 31, 2006 and 2005
and WHN statutory results for the full year endest®mber 31, 2004.

22. Selected Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
Selected quarterly financial data is as follows:

For the Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 3( December 3.
2006
Total revenue $13,819." $14,151.¢ $14,425.¢ $14,555.!
Income before income tax 1,172 1,203.: 1,254.¢ 1,283.¢
Net income 731.¢ 751.2 810.¢ 801.1
Basic net income per she 1.12 1.2C 1.31 1.3C
Diluted net income per sha 1.0¢ 1.17 1.2¢ 1.2¢
2005
Total revenue $10,943.;  $11,149.¢ $11,156.¢ $11,292..
Income before income tax 928.¢ 896.¢ 1,023.¢ 1,041..
Net income 611.% 559.¢ 640.7 652.(
Basic net income per she 1.01 0.92 1.0t 1.0¢
Diluted net income per sha 0.9¢ 0.9C 1.0z 1.04
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

There have been no changes in or disagreementshgitBompany’s independent registered public adiogifirm on accounting or
financial disclosures.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company carried out an evaluation as of Dece®be2006, under the supervision and with theigipgtion of the Company’s
management, including the Company’s Chief Execub¥ficer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effacness of the design and operation of
the Company’s disclosure controls and procedureefised in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Securities ExgeaAct of 1934. Based upon that
evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chigfancial Officer concluded that the Company’s discdre controls and procedures are
effective in timely alerting them to material infioation relating to the Company (including its cdidaied subsidiaries) required to be
disclosed in the Company’s reports under the StesifExchange Act of 1934. In addition based om é¢laluation, the Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Camyis disclosure controls and procedures were e ensuring that information
required to be disclosed by the Company in thentefbat it files or submits under the Securitiesltange Act of 1934 is accumulated and
communicated to the Company’s management, incluieg_hief Executive Officer and Chief FinanciafiGdr, as appropriate to allow timely
decisions regarding required disclosures.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management, under the supervision and with theqiation of the principal executive officer andrmipal financial officer, of
WellPaint, Inc. (the “Company’s responsible for establishing and maintainingetft’e internal control over financial reportingsagh term i
defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f) (“Internarirol”). The Company’s Internal Control is desidrie provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of our financial repogimnd the preparation of financial statements Xteraal reporting purposes in accordance with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“G%A The Companyg Internal Control includes those policies and pdutes that (i) perta
to the maintenance of records that in reasonaltégl decurately and fairly reflect the transacti@msl dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance thas#aetions are recorded as necessary to permitratepaof financial statements in
accordance with GAAP, and that receipts and experedi of the Company are being made only in acemelavith authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; andp(iiiyide reasonable assurance regarding preventiomely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use or disposition of the Companysessthat could have a material effect on the firstatements.

Because of inherent limitations in any Internal €okhno matter how well designed, misstatementstduerror or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Accordingly, even effective Iné¢i@ontrol can provide only reasonable assurarga&rdéng the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetséor external purposes in accordance with GAAP.

Management, under the supervision and with theqjaation of the principal executive officer andrmipal financial officer, assessed "
effectiveness of the Company’s Internal ControbBBecember 31, 2006. Management's assessmentasasl lon criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued byGoenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TweadCommission.

Based on management’s assessment, managemeninkagled that the Company’s Internal Control wasdfie as of December 31,
2006 to provide reasonable assurance regardingliagility of financial reporting and the prepaoat of financial statements for external
reporting purposes in accordance with GAAP.
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Ernst & Young LLP, our independent registered pubtcounting firm, has audited the consolidatedrfaial statements of the Company
for the year ended December 31, 2006, and hassaised an audit report dated February 14, 200mamagement’s assessment of the
Company'’s Internal Control, which is included iistAnnual Report on Form 10-K.

/s/ LARRY C. GLASSCOCK /s/ Davib C. CoLBY
Chairman, President and Executive Vice President and
Chief Executive Office Chief Financial Office

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There have been no changes in the Company’s Iht€orarol that occurred during the three monthseehBecember 31, 2006 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenilly affect, the Company’s Internal Control. g the year ended December 31, 2006, the
Company implemented changes in its general ledggicansolidation systems, as a result of integnadidivity following the November 30,
2004 merger with WellPoint Health Networks Inc. ahd December 28, 2005 acquisition of WellChoioe, The Company believes these
changes have not negatively affected its Interraitfol.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindgrirm

Shareholders and Board of Directors
WellPoint, Inc.

We have audited management’s assessment, incladied accompanying Management’s Report on Inte€oakrol Over Financial
Reporting, that WellPoint, Inc. maintained effeetimternal control over financial reporting as afddember 31, 2006, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framdwissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organinatiof the Treadway Commission (the
“COSO criteria”). WellPoint, Inc.’s management ésponsible for maintaining effective internal cohtiver financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal contret financial reporting. Our responsibility isérpress an opinion on management’s
assessment and an opinion on the effectivene$ge afdmpany’s internal control over financial repaytbased on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stededof the Public Company Accounting Oversightri@iq@nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet amidbtain reasonable assurance about whethetiefenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®@tsr audit included obtaining an understanding tdrimal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management’s assessment, testing ahchéng the design and operating effectivenessatefnal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary @irtlenstances. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablezassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantegenerally accepted accounting princip
A company’s internal control over financial repogiincludes those policies and procedures thgté€ftain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseofompany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@éawith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®itbmpany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabturance regarding prevention or timely deteafainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company'’s assets that could lzareaterial effect on the financial statements.
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Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periodssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policiepraicedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that WallHac. maintained effective internal control o¥imancial reporting as of
December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all mategapects, based on the COSO criteria. Also, mopinion, WellPoint, Inc. maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal control dfleancial reporting as of December 31, 2006, basethe COSO criteria

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of WellPoint, Incf&ecember 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related tidased statements of income,
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for each eftkitee years in the period ended December 31, 2B@6our report dated February 14, 2007
expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST& Y OUNGLLP
Indianapolis, Indiana
February 14, 2007
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART Il
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORAT E GOVERNANCE.

The information required by this Item concerning Executive Officers, the Directors and nomineefioector, Audit Committee
members and financial expert of the Company andeming disclosure of delinquent filers under Setti6(a) of the Exchange Act and
concerning the Company’s Standards of Business @itnsl incorporated herein by reference from thenBany’s definitive Proxy Statement
for its 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, whigh be filed with the Commission pursuant to Reggidn 14A within 120 days after the e
of the Company’s last fiscal year.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.

The information required by this Item concerninmtmeration of the Company’s Executive Officers Bikctors, material transactions
involving such Executive Officers and Directors @&wimpensation Committee interlocks, as well atbmpensation Committee Report, are
incorporated herein by reference from the Compadgfitive Proxy Statement for its 2007 Annual Meg of Shareholders, which will be
filed with the Commission pursuant to RegulatiolMithin 120 days after the end of the Company& fescal year.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The information required by this Item concerning #tock ownership of management and five percemafimal owners and securities
authorized for issuance under equity compensatmmsgs incorporated herein by reference from then@any’s definitive Proxy Statement for
its 2007 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, which Wwélfiled with the Commission pursuant to RegulatidA within 120 days after the end of
the Company’s last fiscal year.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.

The information required by this Item concerningt@a@ relationships and related person transactmlsdirector independence is
incorporated herein by reference from the Compadgffmitive Proxy Statement for its 2007 Annual Meg of Shareholders, which will be
filed with the Commission pursuant to RegulatiolMithin 120 days after the end of the Company& fescal year.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.

The information required by this Item concerninmpipal accounting fees and services is incorpdragrein by reference from the
Company'’s definitive Proxy Statement for its 200@n&ial Meeting of Shareholders, which will be filwidh the Commission pursuant to
Regulation 14A within 120 days after the end of @@npany’s last fiscal year.
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PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(@) 1. Financial Statements:

The following consolidated financial statementshaf Company are set forth in Part Il, Iten
Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEimm
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&008005
Consolidated Statements of Income for the yearséiecember 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
Consolidated Statements of Sharehol' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2006, 20052004
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yeradled December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedule:
The following financial statement schedule of tr@r@any is included in Iltem 15(¢
Schedule —Condensed Financial Information of Registrant (Ra@mpany Only)

All other schedules for which provision is madehe applicable accounting regulations of the Séiesrand Exchang
Commission are not required under the relatedunstns, are inapplicable, or the required infoliorats included in the
consolidated financial statements, and therefove bhaen omitted.

3. Exhibits:

A list of exhibits required to be filed as parttbis report is set forth in the Index to Exhibitgyich immediately precedes st
exhibits, and is incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Exhibits

The response to this portion of Item 15 is submiitie a separate section of this report.
(c) Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regnt (Parent Company Only).
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Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant

WellPoint, Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Balance Sheets

(In millions, except share dat

Assets
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel
Investments availak-for-sale, at fair value
Fixed maturity securities (amortized cost of $2&n8 $136.9
Equity securities (cost of $299.8 and $¢
Other invested assets, curr
Other receivable
Net due from subsidiarie
Securities lending collater
Deferred tax assets, r
Other current asse
Total current asse
Long-term investments available for sale, at fair va
Fixed maturity securities (amortized cost of $1,65d $1,611.€
Equity securities (cost of $11.4 and $C
Other invested assets, I-term
Property and equipme
Investment in subsidiary surplus no
Investment in subsidiarie
Other noncurrent asse

Total assets

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Liabilities

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expe!
Income taxes payab
Securities lending payab
Current portion of lon-term debt
Other current liabilitie:

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Deferred income taxe

Other noncurrent liabilitie

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingenc—Note 6

Shareholder¢ equity

Preferred stock, without par value, shares autkd#z100,000,000;
shares issued and outstan—none

Common stock, par value $0.01, shares authc—900,000,000
shares issued and outstanding: 615,500,865 and 60,4

Additional paic-in capital

Retained earning

Unearned sha-based compensatic

Accumulated other comprehensive income (i

Total shareholders equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

See accompanying notes.
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December 31

2006 2005
$ 2031 $ 716.
26.¢ 136.¢
323.( 9.C
30. —
27.4 25.¢
185.¢ 175.¢
278.2 —
2,583. 2,591
103.2 4.1
3,761. 3,658.¢
1,142.¢ 1,599.
8.3 —
385.( —
5.6 4.0
— 539.
29,847.. 28,335
17. 5.6
$35,168..  $34,142.
$ 2666 $ 23z
513.( 618.7
278.2 —
4932 —
93.¢ 100.
1,645 742.2
6,037.: 5,848.(
2,468.: 2,513.
442.( 45.(
10,592..! 9,149.
6.1 6.6
19,863.!  20,915.:
4,656.. 4,173
— (82.1)
50.1 (20.9)
24575  24,993.
$35,168..  $34,142..
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Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant—(continued)

WellPoint, Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Statements of Income

(In millions)

Revenues

Net investment incom

Net realized (losses) gains on investm:
Other revenui

Total revenue

Expenses

General and administrative expel
Interest expens

Mergel-related undertaking

Loss on repurchase of debt securi

Total expense

Loss before income tax credits and equity in net tome of subsidiaries
Income tax credit

Equity in net income of subsidiari

Net income

See accompanying notes.
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Years ended December 31

2006 2005 2004
$ 816 $ 776 $ 23¢
(17.9) (3.2) (10.9)
0.4 0.4 0.4
64.¢€ 74.¢ 13.4
208.: 95.¢ 32.¢
327.¢ 185.¢ 92.2
— — 50.C
— — 146.1
535.¢ 281.7 321.;
(471.9) (206.) (307.9)
(161.9) (46.2) (98.1)
3,404. 2,624.. 1,169.¢
$3,094.(  $2,463.¢ $ 960.1
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Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant—(continued)

WellPoint, Inc. (Parent Company Only)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In millions) Year ended December 31
2006 2005 2004
Operating activities
Net income $ 3,094.¢ $ 2,463.¢ $ 960.1
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:
(Undistributed) distributed earnings of subsidia (1,059.) 398.¢ (72.7)
Net realized losses on investme 17.4 3.1 10.¢
Loss on repurchase of debt securi — — 146.1
Deferred income taxe (58.6) 32.C 67.¢
Amortization, net of accretio 6.5 10.1 10.z
Depreciatior 0.3 0.3 0.3
Shar+-based compensatic 149.( 75.€ —
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic (136.5) — —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, neffett of business combinatior
Receivables, ne (2.0 (25.9) —
Other invested assets, curr (30.9) — —
Other asset (114.0 6.6 11.7
Amounts due (from) to subsidiari (3.0 (94.0 122.¢
Accounts payable and accrued expel 45.7 32.C 6.3
Other liabilities 443.% (18.9) 15.2
Income taxe: (103.9) 443.2 (67.9)
Net cash provided by operating activities 2,250.7 3,327.¢ 1,210.¢
Investing activities
Purchases of investmer (2,095.) (3,538.9 (1,376.9
Proceeds from sales, maturities and redemptioits/zestment: 2,346.: 1,774.. 1,934.¢
Redemption (purchase) of subsidiary surplus n 432.¢ — (582.7)
Capitalization of subsidiarie (34.¢) — —
Change in securities lending collate (278.9 — —
Purchases of subsidiaries, net of cash acq — (3,505.9 (3,718.9
Other, ne (411.6) — 15.7
Net cash used in investing activitie (40.¢) (5,270.7) (3,727.9)
Financing activities
Net (payment) proceeds from commercial paper barmgs (306.0) 808.2 793.2
Proceeds from lor-term borrowings 2,668.: 1,700.( 1,770.:
Repayment of lor-term borrowings (1,700.0 (150.0 (224.9)
Changes in securities lending paya 278. — —
Change in bank overdral 190.7 — —
Repurchase and retirement of common s (4,550.7) (333.9 (82.2)
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock optiodsamployee stock purchase p 559.k 429.% 159.(
Proceeds from sale of put optic — 1.1 —
Excess tax benefits from sh-based compensatic 136.5 — —
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under E@&ityrrity Unit stock purchase contra — — 230.(
Costs related to the issuance of common s — (3.6) (8.3
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activitie (2,722.9 2,451.¢ 2,637.!
Change in cash and cash equivalt (513.0 508.¢ 121.2
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 716.1 207.2 86.1
Cash and cash equivalents at end of yei $ 203.1 $ 716.1 $ 207.:

See accompanying notes.
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Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant—(continued)

WellPoint, Inc.
(Parent Company Only)
Notes to Condensed Financial Statements

December 31, 2006
(In Millions, Except Per Share Data)

1. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accouimg Policies

On November 30, 2004, Anthem, Inc. (“Anthem”) an@Woint Health Networks Inc. (“WHN") completed thenerger. WHN merged
with and into Anthem Holding Corp., a direct andoMrowned subsidiary of Anthem, with Anthem Holdi€orp. as the surviving entity in
the merger. In connection with the merger, Antheneaded its articles of incorporation to changad@me to WellPoint, Inc. (“WellPoint”). In
addition, the ticker symbol for Anthem’s commoncétdisted on the New York Stock Exchange was chdngeWLP”. WHN’s operating
results are included in WellPoint's consolidatethficial statements for the period following Novemg@ 2004.

In WellPoint’'s parent company only financial statarts, WellPoint’'s investment in subsidiaries idexdaat cost plus equity in
undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries. WeltPsishare of net income of its unconsolidated glidges is included in income using the
equity method of accounting.

WellPoint’s investment in subsidiary surplus ndtestated at estimated fair value.

Certain amounts presented in the parent comparyfio@incial statements are eliminated in the cadatéd financial statements of
WellPoint.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiedhform to the current year presentation.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated findrsteements, during 2006, WellPoint adopted FAS (t8vised 2004)Share-Based
Paymen, and FAS 158Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Plans—aamendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 &{R).3

WellPoint’s parent company only financial statensestiould be read in conjunction with WellPoint'sliéed consolidated financial
statements and the accompanying notes includdédsifrorm 10-K.

2. Subsidiary Transactions
Dividends

WellPoint received cash dividends from subsidiaci£$2,346.4, $3,023.1 and $1,097.7 during 20006526hd 2004, respectively.
Investment in Subsidiarie

On December 28, 2005, WellPoint completed its aitian of WellChoice, Inc. (“WellChoice”) and purabed 100% of the outstanding
common stock of WellChoice. As a result of the asitjon, each WellChoice stockholder received $38r2cash, without interest, and 0.5191
shares of WellPoint common stock for each shai&efChoice common stock held. The purchase price $6463.9 and included cash of
$3,126.4, the issuance of 42.4 shares of WellRamintmon stock, valued at $3,180.8, 0.3 shares ofGMelce restricted stock and stock units
converted to WellPoint stock valued at $19.8, Whedl{ite stock options converted to WellPoint stockiays and other stock awards valued at
$113.4, and $23.5 of transaction costs. The fdirevaf common stock issued was based on $74.93haee, which represents the average
closing price of the Company’s common stock forfiae trading days ranging from two days beforévto days after September 27, 2005, the
date the merger was announced.
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Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant—(continued)

WellPoint, Inc.
(Parent Company Only)
Notes to Condensed Financial Statements (continued)
2. Subsidiary Transactions (continued)

On June 9, 2005, WellPoint completed its acquisitbLumenos, Inc. (“Lumenos”). The total considema for the acquisition was
approximately $185.0 in cash paid to stockholdétsumenos.

As described in Note 1, on November 30, 2004, Amticempleted its merger with WHN and purchased 100%e outstanding comm:i
stock of WHN. As a result of the merger, each WHbtkholder received $23.80 in cash, without interasd one share of WellPoint common
stock for each share of WHN common stock held. fimehase price was $15,773.6 and included casB,81.8.8, the issuance of
approximately 310.6 shares of WellPoint commonlstealued at $11,293.8, WHN stock options convetted/ellPoint stock options and
other stock awards for approximately 43.7 sharésedsat $563.6, and $197.4 of transaction costs.fain value of common stock issued was
based on $36.35 per share, which represents thagevelosing price of the Company’s common stockHe five trading days ranging from
two days before to two days after October 27, 28@3date the merger was announced. In conneciitbrttre WHN merger, WellPoint
executed certain undertakings with the CalifornegpBrtment of Managed Health Care, the Californipdd@nent of Insurance (“California
DOI”), and the Georgia Department of Insurance whiontained various commitments by WellPoint. Exgeanfor mergerelated undertaking
with the California DOI of $50.0 were recorded byeNRoint in 2004.

Capital contributions to subsidiaries were $16$6).1 and $14.7 during 2006, 2005 and 2004, reispéctThe contributions in 2006
included non-cash amounts of $133.0. The 2005 804 2ontributions were non-cash.

Amounts Due to and From Subsidiarie

During December 2004, WellPoint completed a terdier to purchase surplus notes of Anthem Insur&@m@panies, Inc. a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary, and purchased $258.0 52%% notes due 2010 and $174.9 of 9.00% notes @Ri& 2 loss of $146.1 was recorded
by WellPoint, representing the amount fair valueeded par value at the time of purchase. DurirgeBéer 2006, Anthem Insurance
Companies, Inc. redeemed the surplus notes atghae vand cash of $432.9 was received by WellPoint.

At December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 WellPoint repo$185.8, $175.9 and $34.4 due from subsidiagspectively. These amounts
consisted principally of administrative expensed are routinely settled, and as such, are cladsifiecurrent assets.
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Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant—(continued)

WellPoint, Inc.
(Parent Company Only)
Notes to Condensed Financial Statements
3. Long-Term Debt

The carrying value of long-term debt at Decembec@isists of the following:

December 31

2006 2005
Senior unsecured note
3.500%, face amount of $200.0, due 2! $ 198.c $ 195:
3.750%, face amount of $300.0, due 2/ 294.¢ 292.1
4.250%, face amount of $300.0, due 2! 298.¢ 297.¢
5.000%, face amount of $700.0, due 2! 694.¢ —
6.800%, face amount of $800.0, due 2/ 793.t 786.1
5.000%, face amount of $500.0, due 2! 484.: 481.2
5.250%, face amount of $1,100.0, due 2 1,088.t —
5.950%, face amount of $500.0, due 2! 494.1 493.¢
5.850%, face amount of $900.0, due 2 888.4 —
Variable rate deb
Commercial paper progra 1,295.: 1,601.
Bridge loan — 1,700.(
Total debi 6,530.: 5,848.(
Current portion of dek (493.2) —
Long-term debt, less current portir $6,037.: $5,848.(

On January 10, 2006, WellPoint issued $700.0 dd®@0 notes due 2011; $1,100.0 of 5.250% notes dué;2thd $900.0 of 5.850% no
due 2036, under a shelf registration statemerd filgh the U.S. Securities and Exchange CommisgsioBecember 28, 2005. The proceeds
from this debt issuance were used to repay thgériolan of $1,700.0 (as further described below)tarrepay approximately $1,000.0 of
commercial paper, which were both obtained to aiytfund the December 28, 2005 WellChoice acdjoisit

WellPoint had cash requirements of approximatelft $3.0 for the WellChoice acquisition, includinglbthe cash portion of the
purchase price and estimated transaction cosssticipation of the acquisition, on December 28%20NellPoint entered into a bridge loan
agreement under which it could borrow up to $3,000n December 28, 2005, WellPoint borrowed $1F@@der this bridge facility to
partially fund the WellChoice acquisition. The irgst rate on this bridge loan was based on eithtérg LIBOR rate plus a predetermined
percentage rate based on the WellPoint’s creditgait the date of utilization, or (ii) a base ragedefined in the facility agreement. The
weighted-average interest rate on the bridge lo&eaember 31, 2005 was 7.250%. The bridge loanclessified as long-term debt at
December 31, 2005 in accordance with FAElassification of Short-Term Obligations Expectede Refinance{fFAS 6”), as this short-
term borrowing was replaced with a long-term boiirgnon January 10, 2006.

On November 29, 2005, WellPoint entered into aaretriedit facility (the “facility”) with certain leders for general corporate purposes.
WellPoint amended this facility in September 200i6e facility provides credit for up to $2,500.0dveed for any commercial paper issuan
and matures on September 30, 2011. The interesbrethis facility is based on either (i) the LIB®d&e plus a predetermined percentage rate
based on WellPoint’s credit rating at the datetdization, or (ii) a base rate as defined in theility agreement.
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Schedule II—Condensed Financial Information of Regitrant—(continued)

WellPoint, Inc.
(Parent Company Only)
Notes to Condensed Financial Statements (continued)
3. Long-Term Debt (continued)
WellPoint's ability to borrow under the facility &ibject to compliance with certain covenants. Cimant fees for the facility were $2.4 in
2006 and there are no conditions that are prolzftidecurring under which the facility may be withdm. There were no amounts outstanding
under the senior credit facility as of DecemberZ106 or during the year then ended. At Decembge06, WellPoint had $1,204.7 available
under this facility.

WellPoint has an authorized commercial paper progsaup to $2,500.0, the proceeds of which maydsifor general corporate
purposes. The weighted-average interest rate omesaial paper borrowings at December 31, 2006 &% 2vere 5.42% and 4.40%,
respectively. Commercial paper borrowings have lotessified as longerm debt at December 31, 2006 and 2005 in accoedaith FAS 6, a
WellPoint’s practice and intent is to replace sherim commercial paper outstanding at expiratiothatditional short-term commercial paper
for an uninterrupted period extending for more tbae year or with borrowings under the senior d¢riadility described above.

Interest paid during 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $2%3.81.6 and $86.7, respectively.

WellPoint was in compliance with all applicable eoants under its outstanding debt agreements.
Future maturities of long-term debt are as follo2@07, $1,788.5; 2008, $0.0; 2009, $298.4; 201M;&D11, $694.6; and thereafter, $3,748.8.
4. Derivative Financial Instruments

The information regarding derivative financial inshents contained in Note 6 of the Notes to Codatdid Financial Statements of
WellPoint and its subsidiaries is incorporated heby reference.

5. Capital Stock

The information regarding capital stock contained\ote 12 of the Notes to Consolidated Financiatedhents of WellPoint and its
subsidiaries is incorporated herein by reference.

6. Commitments and Contingencies

The information regarding commitments and contirmgeicontained in Note 18 of the Notes to Constdidi&inancial Statements of
WellPoint and its subsidiaries is incorporated heby reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

W ELL POINT, I NC.

By: /'s/ L ARRYC. GLASSCOCK

Larry C. Glasscock
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Dated: February 26, 2007

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ites indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s LARRY C. GLASSCOCK Chairman, President and Chief Executive Offi  February 26, 200
Larry C. Glasscock (Principal Executive Officer
/s/ Davib C. CoLBY Executive Vice President and Chief Financial ~ February 26, 2007
David C. Colby Officer (Principal Financial Officer
/sl WAYNES. DEV EYDT Senior Vice President, Chief of Staff and Chief February 26, 2007
Wayne S. DeVeydt Accounting Officer (Chief Accounting Office
/s/ LEeNoxD.BAkeER, JrR., M.D. Director February 26, 200
Lenox D. Baker, Jr., M.D.
/'s/ SusanB. B AYH Director February 26, 200
Susan B. Bayh
/s/ SHEILA P. BURKE Director February 26, 200
Sheila P. Burke
/s/ WiLLiam H.T. BusH Director February 26, 200
William H.T. Bush
/s/ JuLeA.HiL Director February 26, 200
Julie A. Hill
/s/ WARRENY. JOBE Director February 26, 200
Warren Y. Jobe
/sl VICTORS. Liss Director February 26, 200
Victor S. Liss
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Signature

Title

Date

/s/ WiLLiam G. M AYs

William G. Mays

/s/ RawmIRO G. PERU

Ramiro G. Peru

/s/ JANE G. PisaNO

Jane G. Pisano

/s/ SENATOR D oNALD W. RIEGLE, JR.

Senator Donald W. Riegle, Jr.

/s/ WiLLiAM J. RYAN

William J. Ryan

/s/ GEORGEA. SCHAEFER, JR.

George A. Schaefer, Jr.

/s/ JAckiE M. W ARD

Jackie M. Ward

/s/ JOHNE. ZuccotTl

John E. Zuccotti

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Exhibit
Number

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit

Amended and Restated Agreement and Plan of Megfective as of October 26, 2003, among WellPdimt, (the
“Company”), Anthem Holding Corp. and WellPoint HésalNetworks Inc., incorporated by reference to Apfie A to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (Redisn No. 333-110830) (exhibits thereto will herfished
supplementally to the Securities and Exchange Casion upon request

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of May 8528mong the Company, Light Acquisition Corp. &adhenos, Inc.,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 to the @any’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the queeteded June 30,
2005.

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Septe@ihet005, among the Company, WellPoint HoldingpgCand
WellChoice, Inc., incorporated by reference to Bith2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8l&d on September
30, 2005.

Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amehdfective November 30, 2004, incorporated byrexfee to Exhibit 3..
to the Compar’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on November 30, 200

By-Laws of the Company, amended and restated aféebtovember 30, 2004, as further amended Nover@de2005 and
October 28, 2006, incorporated by reference to lEkBi2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8kd on November
2, 2006.

Articles of Incorporation of the Company, as amehetective November 30, 2004 (Included in Exhiit).

By-Laws of the Company, amended and restated aféebtovember 30, 2004, as further amended Nover@de2005 and
October 28, 2006 (Included in Exhibit 3.

Specimen of Certificate of the Company’s commorelst$0.01 par value per share, incorporated byeatee to Exhibit 4.1
to the Compar’s Registration Statement on Fori-8 (Registration No. 3:-120851).

Indenture, dated as of July 31, 2002, between tmpgany and The Bank of New York, as trustee, inoated by referenc

to Exhibit 4.13 to the Compa’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

(@) First Supplemental Indenture, dated as lgfJi, 2002, between the Company and The Bank @f Nerk, Trustee
establishing 4.875% Notes due 2005 and 6.800% Nhte®012, incorporated by reference to Exhibit4dlthe
Compan’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

(b) Form of 4.875% Note due 2005 (Included imibi 4.4(a)), incorporated by reference to Exhibt4 to the Compar's
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

(c) Form of 6.800% Note due 2012 (Included imiBk 4.4(a)), incorporated by reference to Exhibit4 to the Compars
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

Senior Note Indenture, dated as of December 312, 20tween the Company and The Bank of New Yorkijustee
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.16 to thenpany' s Current Report on Forn-K filed on August 25, 200«

(a) First Supplemental Indenture, dated as @usti27, 2004, between the Company and The Bahlewf York,
as trustee, establishing 3.50% Senior Notes dug,20€orporated by reference to Exhibit 4.20 to@wenpany’s
Current Report on Formr-K filed on August 27, 200«
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(o) Form of 3.50% Senior Note due 2007 (includedExhibit A in Exhibit 4.5(a)), incorporated Bference to Exhibit 4.21
to the Compar’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on August 27, 200

4.6 Amended and Restated Indenture, dated as of JRGOR, by and between WellPoint Health Networks (as predecessor by
merger to Anthem Holding Corp., “WellPoint Healttahd The Bank of New York, as trustee, incorporétgedeference to
Exhibit 4.3 to WellPoint Heal’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on June 12, 200:

() First Supplemental Indenture, dated as ofdxtber 30, 2004, between Anthem Holding Corp. anel Bank of New
York, as trustee, incorporated by reference to EkHil1(a) to the Company’s Annual Report on FAOK for the yea
ended December 31, 20(

(b) Form of Note evidencing WellPoint Health’3/6,% Notes due 2012, incorporated by reference toldixil to
WellPoint Healtl's Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 16, 200

4.7 Indenture, dated as of December 9, 2004, betwee@dmpany and The Bank of New York Trust Company.Nas trustee
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the @am’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on December 15, 200

(@) Form of the Compa’s 3.750% Notes due 2007 (included in Exhibit 4
(b) Form of the Compar’s 4.250% Notes due 2009 (included in Exhibit 4
(c) Form of the Compar’s 5.000% Notes due 2014 (included in Exhibit 4
(d) Form of the Compa’s 5.950% Notes due 2034 (included in Exhibit 4

4.8 Indenture, dated as of January 10, 2006, betwee@€dimpany and The Bank of New York Trust Company.Nas trustee,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the @am’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on January 11, 200

(@) Form of 5.00% Notes due 2011, incorporatedeierence to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Curfeaport on Form 8-K
filed on January 11, 200

(b) Form of 5.25% Notes due 2016, incorporatgdeterence to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Curigaport on Form 8-K
filed on January 11, 200

(c) Form of 5.85% Notes due 2036, incorporatedeference to Exhibit 4.4 to the Comp’s Current Report on Form-K
filed on January 11, 200

4.9 Upon the request of the Securities and Exchangen@ssion, the Company will furnish copies of anyestmstrument:
defining the rights of holders of lo-term debt of the Company or its subsidiar
10.1* Anthem 2001 Stock Incentive Plan, amended andtesstes of January 1, 2003, incorporated by referém&xhibit 10.1(iii)

to the Compar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

(@) Form of Stock Incentive Plan General Stogki@h Grant Agreement as of March 1, 2006, incoafext by reference to
Exhibit 10.1(b) to the Compa’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20

(b) Form of Stock Incentive Plan Stock Optiora@rAgreement with Larry Glasscock as of March@Q®&, incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1(b) to the Comp’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20

(c) Form of Stock Incentive Plan General RestdcStock Award Agreement as of March 1, 2006, ipeated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1(c) to the Compa’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20
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Number Exhibit
(d) Form of Stock Incentive Plan Restricted &tAgvard Agreement for Annual Bonus over two timaget as of March 1,
2006, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1¢the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qtti@r quarter
ended March 31, 200
(e) Form of Stock Incentive Plan Restricted 8tAward Agreement with Larry Glasscock as of Mat¢t2006, incorporate
by reference to Exhibit 10.1(e) to the Comy’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20
10.2* WellPoint 2006 Incentive Compensation Plan, incaafed by reference to Exhibit 10.58 to the Compsu@tirrent Report on
Form &K filed on May 18, 2006
(a) Form of Incentive Compensation Plan NondieaiStock Option Award Agreement, incorporated&ference to
Exhibit 10.58(a) to the Compa’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(
(b) Form of Incentive Compensation Plan NondigaliStock Option Award Agreement for Larry C. Glasck,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.58 (b)he Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fordbarter ended
June 30, 200¢
(c) Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Restdc$tock Award Agreement; incorporated by referaéndexhibit 10.58 (c)
to the Compar’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(
(d) Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Restdc$tock Award Agreement for Annual Bonus over tinges target,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.58 (d)he Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q fordbarter ended
June 30, 200¢
(e) Form of Incentive Compensation Plan Restti&tock Award Agreement with Larry C. Glasscookprporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.58(e) to the Comg’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(
(H  Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Award Aggment, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 13)38 the Company’s
Current Report on Form-K filed on November 2, 200I
(g) Form of Restricted Stock Award Agreementomporated by reference to Exhibit 10.58(g) to@menpany’s Current
Report on Form -K filed on November 2, 200t
(h) First Amendment to the WellPoint 2006 IncemtCompensation Plan, effective as of Decemb@066.
10.2* Anthem Annual Incentive Plan, effective Januarg2d03, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3th®oCompany’s
Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(
10.4* Anthem Employee Stock Purchase Plan, incorporageefierence to Exhibit 10.2 to the Comp’s Registration Statement
Form £-1 (Registration No. 3:-67714).
(&) Amendment No. 1 to Anthem Employee StoclcRase Plan, dated July 2, 2002, incorporated leyeate to Exhibi
10.2(i) to the Compar's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2
(b) Amendment No. 2 to Anthem Employee StockcRase Plan, dated July 29, 2002, incorporated fleyenece to Exhibi
10.2(ii) to the Compar’'s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2
10.5* WellPoint, Inc. Comprehensive Non-Qualified Defer@ompensation Plan, effective as of December G5 2incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Comp’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C
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Number
10.€*
10.7*
10.&

10.¢*

10.1¢*

10.1%

10.1

10.1%

Exhibit

WellPoint, Inc. Executive Agreement Plan, amendadi r@stated effective January 1, 2006, with centéier effective dates,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to thenPany's Current Report on Forn-K filed on November 2, 200!

WellPoint, Inc. Executive Salary Continuation Pé&ffective January 1, 2006, incorporated by refeeendExhibit 10.59 to the
Compan’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

WellPoint Directed Executive Compensation Planpiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.13 to the Cany's Quarterly
Report on Form 1-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20

WellPoint, Inc. Board of Directors Compensationd?eon, approved February 2, 2005, incorporated feyeace to Exhibi
99.1 to the Compar's Current Report on Forn-K filed on February 8, 200!

WellPoint Board of Directo’ Deferred Compensation Plan, as amended and restif¢etive January 1, 2005, incorporated
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Comp’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

(@) First Amendment to the WellPoint Board ofdgtor’ Deferred Compensation Plan, dated as of Decem!2£08,.

Anthem Deferred Compensation Plan, amended anatedstffective January 1, 1997, incorporated bgresfce to Exhibit
10.14(i) to the Compar's Registration Statement on For-1 (Registration No. 3:-67714).

(&) First Amendment to Anthem Deferred Compéasd®lan, adopted December 16, 1998, incorporayae@ference to
Exhibit 10.14(ii) to the Compar' s Registration Statement on Fori-1 (Registration No. 3-67714).

(b) Second Amendment to Anthem Deferred Compens®lan, executed March 30, 2000, incorporatedelfigrence to
Exhibit 10.14(iii) to the Compar's Registration Statement on For-1 (Registration No. 33-67714).

(c) Third Amendment to Anthem Deferred CompeiosalPlan, effective January 1, 2006, incorporatededierence to Exhib
10.8 (c) to the Compa’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

Anthem Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, am@mand restated effective January 1, 1997, incated by reference 1
Exhibit 10.16(i) to the Compa’s Registration Statement on For-1 (Registration No. 3-67714).

(a) First Amendment to the Anthem Supplemenkaditive Retirement Plan, executed on March 3002b@orporated b
reference to Exhibit 10.16(ii) to the Comp’s Registration Statement on Fori-1 (Registration No. 3-67714).

(b) Second Amendment to the Anthem Supplemé&ntatutive Retirement Plan, executed on Septemt2000, incorporate
by reference to Exhibit 10.16(iii) to the Comp’s Registration Statement on Fori-1 (Registration No. 3:-67714).

Anthem 200-2003 Lon¢-Term Incentive Plan, effective January 1, 2001oiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to
Compan’s Registration Statement on Forl-1 (Registration No. 3:-67714).

(&) First Amendment to the Anthem 2-2003 Lon(¢-Term Incentive Plan, dated April 25, 2002, incogded by reference 1
Exhibit 10.18(i) to the Compa’s Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(
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10.1#

10.1%

10.1€*

10.1°*

10.1¢&

Exhibit

WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 1999 Stock Incent®lan (as amended through December 6, 2000), incatgd by referenc
to Exhibit 10.37 to WellPoint Heal's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

(@) Form of WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 198fck Incentive Plan Notice of Grant of Stock Optand Stock Optio
Agreement, revised December 2001, incorporatecf®rence to Exhibit 10.01 to WellPoint Hea#tlQuarterly Report ¢
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2

(b) Form of WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 198fbck Incentive Plan Notice of Grant of Stock Optand Stock Option
Agreement, revised September 2003, incorporategfeyence to Exhibit 10.02 to WellPoint Health’'sa@erly Report
on Form 1-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2

(c) Form of WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 1989fbck Incentive Plan Restricted Share Right Gragre@ment (No-
Officers), as of January 26, 2004, incorporateddigrence to Exhibit 10.05 to WellPoint Health’sa@erly Report on
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2

(d) Form of WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 199fck Incentive Plan Restricted Share Right Gragre@ment (Officers), &
of January 26, 2004, incorporated by referencextalit 10.06 to WellPoint Health’s Quarterly Report Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 2(

(e) Form of WellPoint Health Networks Inc. 198&ck Incentive Plan Notice of Automatic Grant 6d¢&k Option, Notice of
Annual Automatic Grant of Stock Option, Notice ofa@t of Stock Option and Automatic Stock Option égment for
Non-Employee Directors, incorporated by referemcEsthibit 10.09 to WellPoint Health’'s Quarterly Repon Form 10-
Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2

WellPoint Health Networks Inc. Officer Change-int@ml| Plan (As amended and restated through Deceh2901) (as
revised in October 2003), incorporated by referandexhibit 10.13 to WellPoint Health’s Quarterlgport on Form 10-Q for
the quarter ended September 30, 2(

WellPoint Health Networks Inc. Supplemental ExeeaifRetirement Plan (As restated effective Decemb001) (As
amended October 24, 2003), incorporated by referem&xhibit 10.14 to WellPoint Health’s QuarteRgport on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 30, 2!

Form of letter agreement, dated February 2004, émtviWellPoint Health and executive officers of Welht Health,
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.83 to Weili? Health’s Annual Report on Form X0for the year ended December
2003.

Empire HealthChoice, Inc. Executive Savings PlanAmended and Restated effective January 1, 1868¢porated b
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Empire HealthChoice, s Registration Statement on Fori-1 (Registration No. 3:-99051).

(a) First Amendment, dated December 18, 200theéd=mpire Blue Cross and Blue Shield Executivarggs Plan Trust, as
Amended and Restated as of January 1, 1999, incugubby reference to Exhibit 10.33 (a) to the Canys Annual
Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 2C

(b) Second Amendment, dated as of DecemberQ3, 2o the Empire Blue Cross and Blue Shield Etteelbavings Plan,
Amended and Restated as of January 1, 1999, incigubby reference to Exhibit 10.33(b) to the ConymAnnual
Report on Form 1-K for the year ended December 31, 2C
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Exhibit
Number

10.1¢*

10.2(*

10.2%

10.22

10.2%

10.2#

10.2%*

10.2¢*

10.2°*

10.2¢

10.2¢

10.3(

Exhibit

WellChoice, Inc. Long-Term Incentive CompensatitenPas amended on March 24, 2004, incorporategfeyence to
Exhibit 10.8 to WellChoice, In's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended March 31, 20

(a) Goals for the 201-2006 cycle and the 20-2007 cycle under the WellChoice, Inc. L-Term Incentive Compensatic
Plan, as amended on March 24, 2004, incorporatedfeyence to WellChoice, Inc.’s Definitive Proxiag&ment for its
2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders filed on Ma28h 2005 in the Executive Compensation sectionthedLong-
Term Incentive Plan (Award for 2005-2007 PerformeaReriod)” section of the Compensation CommittepdReon
Executive Compensation, respective

WellChoice Supplemental Plans Trust, incorporatedefierence to Exhibit 10.35 to WellChoice, IndJsarterly Report on
Form 1(-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2(

WellChoice, Inc. 2003 Omnibus Incentive Plan, agaded on September 22, 2004, incorporated by refer® Exhibit 10.37
to WellChoice, Inc's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2

Empire BlueCross BlueShield 2005 Executive SaviPigs (Effective December 27, 2004), incorporateddfgrence t
Exhibit 10.38 to WellChoice, In's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

Employment Agreement by and between WellPoint, &mal Larry C. Glasscock, dated as of December @@5,dncorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.39 to the Comp’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

Employment Agreement between WellPoint, Inc. angd&a F. Braly, dated as of February 24, 2007, ipoated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Current Report on Forn-K filed on February 26, 200

Employment Agreement by and between Anthem Ins@r&uampanies, Inc. and Samuel R. Nussbaum, M.Deddz o
January 2, 2001 (with respect to Section 5(c) grimgorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to@@mpany’s Registration
Statement on Form-1 (Registration No. 3:-67714).

Employment Agreement between the Company and Mighastocker, M.D., dated as of December 28, 200&rporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.42 to the Comp’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

(@) Amendment One to Employment Agreement batviee Company and Michael A. Stocker, M.D., effeztNovember 1,
2006.

Form of Employment Agreement, dated on or aboutidgnl, 2006, between the Company and each obtloaving: Angela
F. Braly; Mark L. Boxer; Randal Brown; Marjorie WWorr; Randall Lewis; and, Samuel R. Nussbaum, Mifizgrporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.43 to the Comp’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

Executive Agreement, dated March 8, 2005, betwherCompany and Wayne DeVeydt, incorporated by eafar to Exhibit
10.44 to the Compar’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

Blue Cross License Agreement by and between BlossIBlue Shield Association and the Company, inotydevisions, it
any, adopted by the Member Plans through Novembe2d05 meeting, incorporated by reference to Bkhil45 to the
Compan’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C

Blue Shield License Agreement by and between Bles<Blue Shield Association and the Company, @iolyi revisions, it
any, adopted by the Member Plans through Novembg2d05 meeting, incorporated by reference to Bkhih46 to the
Compan’s Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 2C
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Exhibit
Undertakings to California Department of Insurardaed November 8, 2004, delivered by WellPointlthe®C Life,

Anthem, Inc. and Anthem Holding Corp., incorporalgdreference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s €ntiReport on Form
8-K filed on November 10, 200

Undertakings to California Department of ManagedltteCare, dated November 23, 2004, delivered biiRigimt Health,
Blue Cross of California, Anthem, Inc. and Anthemlding Corp., incorporated by reference to Exh@éit2 to the Company’s
Current Report on Fornm-K filed on November 30, 200

Undertakings to California Department of ManagedltheCare, dated November 23, 2004, delivered biiRmt Health,
Golden West, Anthem, Inc. and Anthem Holding Campprporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to thenpany’s Current
Report on Form -K filed on November 30, 200:

Undertakings, dated January 7, 1993, by WellPogulth, Blue Cross of California and certain sulzgids to the California
Department of Corporations, incorporated by refeecio Exhibit 10.24 to WellPoint Health’s Regisibat Statement on Form
S-1 (Registration No. -54898).

Orders Approving Notice of Material Modification ditundertakings, dated September 7, 1995, by Bles<of California,

WellPoint Health and WellPoint Health’s subsidiarte the California Department of Corporationspiporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.47 to WellPoint Heal's Quarterly Report on Form -Q for the quarter ended September 30, 1

Amended and Restated Undertakings, dated Marc8%,, by Blue Cross of California, WellPoint Headthd certain of its
subsidiaries to the California Department of Cogpions, incorporated by reference to Exhibit 98.WellPoint Health’s
Current Report on Formr-K dated March 5, 199¢

Indemnification Agreement, dated as of May 17, 1986and among WellPoint Health, WellPoint HealtbtWorks Inc., a
Delaware corporation, and Western Health Partngssiticorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.9 tdld@nt Healths Curren
Report on Form -K filed June 3, 199¢

Undertakings, dated July 31, 1997, by WellPointIthe®8lue Cross of California and WellPoint Califiset Services, Inc. to the
California Department of Corporations, incorporabgdeference to Exhibit 99.12 to WellPoint HeadtiCurrent Report on
Form &K filed on August 5, 1997

Settlement Agreement, dated as of July 11, 200%noyamong the Company, the Representative Pfairttie Signatory
Medical Societies and Class Counsel, incorporayeterence to Exhibit 10.58 to the Company’s QardytReport on Form
1C-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2

2006 Annual Salary Information for Chief Execut®éficer and Named Executive Officel
Subsidiaries of the Compar
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a) of the Excha&wdrules, as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13-14(a) and Rule 1:-14(a) of the Exchange Act Rules, as adoj
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarhi-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdtioBed06 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdtioBe906 of the Sarbar-
Oxley Act of 2002

Indicates management contracts or compensatorg plaarrangement
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Exhibit 10.2(h)
FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE WELLPOINT 2006
INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN

Pursuant to rights reserved under Section 17.heo¥WellPoint 2006 Incentive Compensation Plan {(Fian”), Sections 4.3 and 17.2 of
the Plan are hereby amended and restated, effextioé December 6, 2006, to provide in their etttiess follows:

“4.3 Adjustment in Authorized Sharei the event of any corporate event or transadiiecluding a change in the Shares or the
capitalization of the Company), such as a reclasdibn, recapitalization, merger, consolidatiagnganization (whether or not such
reorganization comes within the definition of stelm in Section 368 of the Code), issuance of vmsrar rights, dividend or other
distribution (whether in the form of cash, stockotier property), stock split or reverse stocktspfpin-off, split-up, combination or
exchange of shares, repurchase of shares, orlith@hange in corporate structure, partial or clatgliquidation of the Company or
distribution (other than normal cash dividends$tareholders of the Company, or any similar cotgoggient or transaction, the
Committee, in order to prevent dilution or enlargenof Participants’ rights under the Plan, shalisitute or adjust, as applicable, the
number, class and kind of securities which maydierered under Section 4.1; the number, class &md knd/or price (such as the
Option Price of Options or the Grant Price of SARfs3ecurities subject to outstanding Awards; thead limits set forth in Section 4.2;
and other value determinations applicable to ontstey Awards; provided, howev#rat the number of Shares subject to any Award shal
always be a whole number. The Committee shall mlake appropriate adjustments and modificationkértérms of any outstanding
Awards to reflect or related to any such eventgjschents, substitutions or changes, including fications of performance goals and
changes in the length of Performance Periods, sutgeghe requirements of Article Xl in the cadefovards intended to qualify as
Performance-Based Compensation. Any adjustmenstifution or change pursuant to this Section 4.8enaith respect to an Award
intended to be an Incentive Stock Option shall laelenonly to the extent consistent with such intentess the Committee determines
otherwise, and any such adjustment that is madenegipect to an Award that provides for PerformaBased Compensation shall be
made consistent with the intent that such Awardifyuir the performance-based compensation exoeptinder Section 162(m) of the
Code. The Committee shall not make any adjustmersiyant to this Section 4.3 that would cause anrdwlzat is otherwise exempt frc
Code Section 409A to become subject to Code Sedi®A, or that would cause an Award that is suljie€ode Section 409A to fail to
satisfy the requirements of Code Section 409A déterminations of the Committee as to adjustmenthanges under this Section 4.3
shall be conclusive and binding on the Particip”




“17.2 Adjustment of Awards Upon the Occurrence eft@in Unusual or Nonrecurring Eventshe Board or the Committee shall
make adjustments in the terms and conditions af the criteria included in, Awards in recogniticdhumusual or nonrecurring events
(including the events described in Section 4.3¢fhg the Company or the financial statementhi@f@ompany or of changes in
applicable laws, regulations, or accounting pritespn order to prevent unintended dilution or eggnent of the benefits or potential
benefits intended to be made available under tae.ny such adjustment with respect to an Awatended to be an ISO shall be made
only to the extent consistent with such intentesgalthe Board or the Committee determines otherargkany such adjustment that is
made with respect to an Award that is intendedulify as Performance-Based Compensation shalldseroonsistent with the intent
that such Award qualify for the performance-baseahgensation exception under Code Section 162(mgr(gisuccessor provision).
Additionally, neither the Board nor the Committéals not make any adjustment pursuant to this AatVII that would cause an Award
that is otherwise exempt from Code Section 409Bdoome subject to Code Section 409A, or that woaldse an Award that is subjec
Code Section 409A to fail to satisfy the requiretsesf Code Section 409A. The determination of then@ittee as to the foregoing
adjustments shall be conclusive and binding oni¢taaints under the Plan.”




Exhibit 10.10(a]

FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE
WELLPOINT BOARD OF DIRECTORS’
DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

Pursuant to rights reserved under Section 1.0Be¥ellPoint Board of Directors’ Deferred CompeiwaPlan, as amended and restated
effective January 1, 2005 (the “Plan”), WellPoini;. (the “Company”) hereby amends the Plan, effeclanuary 1, 2006, as follows:

Section 1.09 of the Plan is hereby amended imitisety as follows:

Section 1.09nterest Rate The term “Interest Rate” means the annual ratetofn credited to amounts held in the Particiga@ash
Participation Account. The rate shall change eactudry 1. The rate shall be equal to the averagfgeahonthly average rates of the 10-
year United States Treasury Notes for the twel2} fdonths ending on September 30 immediately piegeslich January 1 plus one
hundred and fifty (150) basis points, but not toeed one hundred twenty percent (120%) of the equple federal long-term rate, with
compounding (as prescribed under Section 1274(theo€ode); providedhowever, that the Company reserves the right to change the
method of determining or to increase or decreasdnterest Rate which is credited to a Particiga@sh Participation Account as long
as the Interest Rate shall not be decreased fadsgprior to such action.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this First Amendment to therPteas been executed this 7th day of December, 2006.
WellPoint, Inc.
/sl Larry C. Glasscock

Larry C. Glasscoc
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 10.26(a]

AMENDMENT ONE TO
EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT

ThisAMENDMENT ONE TO EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT (“Amendment”) is by and between WellPoint, Inc.,ladiana
corporation (“WellPoint"with its headquarters and principal place of bussria Indianapolis, Indiana (WellPoint, togethethwits subsidiarie
and affiliates are collectively referred to heragthe “Company”), and Dr. Michael A. Stocker (“Exgve”).

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS , Executive currently serves as an Executive Viesigent of WellPoint and President and Chief ExigelOfficer of
WellPoint’s East Region pursuant to an employmené@ment between WellPoint and the Executive dasssember 28, 2005 (the “Prior
Agreement”);

WHEREAS , the Company and Executive mutually desire to aheemtain provisions of the Prior Agreement;

WHEREAS , the Company desires to retain the services amdogrment of Executive on behalf of the Company tigto May 1, 2007,
and Executive desires to continue his employmetit thie Company through May 1, 2007, upon the teantsconditions hereinafter set forth.

NOW THEREFORE , in consideration of the foregoing, of the mutpdmises contained herein and of other good andatée
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of whach hereby acknowledged, the parties hereby agréalows:

1. Effective November 1, 2006, Section 1 of th@PAigreement is hereby deleted in its entirety tiredfollowing inserted in its place:

POSITION/DUTIES . During the period beginning on November 1, 2006 ending on December 31, 2006, the Executive sisalkt
with the effort to realign the Company into enté&pfwide business units for each market segmentaoentralize certain regional
functions (the “Transition”). During the period bieging on January 1, 2007 and ending on May 1, 20@¥Executive shall remain
employed by the Company, consulting on issuesinglab the Transition. The Executive’s employmeithwhe Company shall terminate
on May 1, 2007.

2. Effective November 1, 2006, Section 3 of th@PAgreement is hereby deleted in its entirety tedfollowing inserted in its place:
BASE SALARY. Through May 1, 2007, the Company agrees to pay Wkeca base salary at an annual rate of $680#@@ble bi-
weekly in accordance with the Company’s regulargihpractices.

3. Effective January 1, 2007, Section 4 of the Phigreement is hereby amended by adding the fofigwiaragraph:

Notwithstanding the foregoing paragraph, for pleary2007, the Executive will not participate in fnual Incentive Plan or any other
annual bonus plan available to executives of the@my. In addition, the Executive will not receas@ equity grant in calendar year
2007. The Executive will, pursuant to the termshef annual bonus plan and the terms of the forggémagraph, receive a payout for
plan year 2006 in the first quarter of 20



4. Effective January 1, 2007, Section 6 of the Phigreement is hereby deleted in its entirety drelfollowing inserted in its place:

BENEFITS. During the Employment Period, the Executive wilhtinue to participate in the WellChoice (or be @i to participate in
the Company’s) medical, dental, hospitalization Bfiednsurance plans and other benefit planslavel that is, in the aggregate, no less
favorable than the lesser of (a) that providedhoExecutive at the Effective Time and (b) thatjted to the Company’s similarly
situated employees. The Executive will not partitgpin any Company executive perquisite benefigr@m nor will he be eligible to
charter a private airplane in lieu of traveling the method of travel permitted by the Companyesidard business travel policy.

5. Effective November 1, 2006, subsections 10@))atd (f) of the Prior Agreement are hereby ddl@igheir entirety.
6. Effective May 1, 2007, Section 11 of the Priggréement is hereby deleted in its entirety andahewing inserted in its place:

CONSEQUENCES OF TERMINATION . In lieu of the continuation of medical, dentadspitalization plans, programs and/or
arrangements and in lieu of participation in thell@teoice and/or WellPoint retiree medical benefdrpfor the Executive and his eligible
dependents as stated in Section 11 of the Priceékgent, the Company shall make a one-time lumpesasgh payment to the Executive of
$99,000, fully grossed-up for taxes (approximagily6,703), such payment to be made on NovembeQrl/,.2

7. All other provisions of the Prior Agreement dlmamain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF , the parties hereto have executed this Amendnseot the dates noted below.

WELLPOINT, INC. MICHAEL A. STOCKER, M.D.
By:  /s/ Randy Brown By: /s/ Michael Stocker
Name Randy Browr

Its: EVP & Chief Human Resources Offic Date: 11/1/06

Date: 11/3/06



Exhibit 10.4C

SALARY INFORMATION FOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
AND NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The following table sets forth as of February 20072, the current annual salary of WellPoint, In¢tfe “Company”) Chief Executive
Officer and each of the other “Named Executive €fifs,” as determined for the Company’s Proxy Staterfor its 2006 Annual Meeting of
Shareholder, which was based on salary and anouaktfor 2005 as required by the Instructionseéml#02(a)(3) of Regulation S-K. The
Company has not yet determined bonus awards fdd 286 therefore the identities of the other Nameechtive Officers for the Company’s
Proxy Statement for its 2007 Annual Meeting of @hatders are not yet known.

Named Executive Officer Salary

Larry C. Glasscoc $1,300,00!
David C. Colby $ 710,00(
Keith R. Fallert $ 680,00(
Joan E. Herma $ 685,00(
John S. Watts, J $ 710,00(

1 Mr. Faller retired as of December 29, 2006.



SUBSIDIARIES OF WELLPOINT, INC.

Company Name

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2006

Jurisdiction of Incorporation

Exhibit 21

Affiliated Healthcare, Inc

Affiliated Provider Systems, In

AHI Healthcare Corporatio

American Managing Compar

Anthem Blue Cross Blue Shield Partnership Plan,
Anthem Credentialing Services, Ir

Anthem Financial, Inc

Anthem Health Plans of Kentucky, Ir
Anthem Health Plans of Maine, Ir

Anthem Health Plans of New Hampshire, |
Anthem Health Plans of Virginia, In
Anthem Health Plans, In

Anthem Holding Corp

Anthem Insurance Companies, i

Anthem Life & Disability Insurance Compal
Anthem Life Insurance Compal

Anthem Prescription Management, LI
Anthem Southeast, In

Anthem UM Services, In

Arcus Enterprises, In

ARCUS Financial Services, In

ARCUS HealthyLiving Services, In

Arison Insurance Services, Ir

Associated Group, In

ATH Holding Company, LLC

Atlanta Healthcare Partners, It

BC Life & Health Insurance Compal
BCCHolding Corporatiol

Behavioral Health Network, In

Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Georgia, |

Blue Cross Blue Shield Healthcare Plan of Geollgia,

Blue Cross Blue Shield of Wiscons

Blue Cross of Californi

Blue Cross of California Partnership Plan, |
C&S Properties, Inc

CC Holdings, LLC

Cerulean Companies, Ir

Claim Management Services, It

Community Insurance Compa

Compcare Health Services Insurance Corpor:
Comprehensive Integrated Marketing Services,

Texas
Texas
Texas
Texas

Ohio
Delaware
Delaware
Kentucky
Maine

New Hampshire
Virginia
Connecticul
Indiana
Indiana
New York
Indiana
Ohio (LLC)
Indiana
Indiana
Delaware
Indiana
Indiana
Kentucky
Indiana
Indiana (LLC)
Georgia
California
California
New Hampshire
Georgia
Georgia
Wisconsin
California
California
Missouri
Wisconsin (LLC)
Georgia
Wisconsin
Ohio
Wisconsin
California



Crossroads Acquisition Cor
CSRA Health Care Partners, Ii

Diversified Life Insurance Agency of Missouri, Ir

EHC Benefits Agency, Inc
Empire HealthChoice Assurance,
Empire HealthChoice HMO, Ini

Empire Medicare Services, Ir

Forty-Four Fort-Four Forest Park Redevelopment C¢

Golden West Health Plan, In
Government Health Services, LL
Greater Georgia Life Insurance Compi
Group Benefits of Georgia, In
Group Benefits Plus, In

Health Core, Inc

Health Initiatives, Inc

Health Management Corporati
Health Ventures Partners, LL
HealthKeepers, Inc

HealthLink HMO, Inc.
HealthLink, Inc.

HealthReach Services, Ir

Healthy Alliance Life Insurance Compa

Delaware
Georgia
Missouri
New York
New York
New York
New York
Missouri
California
Wisconsin (LLC)
Georgia
Georgia
California
Delaware
New Hampshire
Virginia
Illinois (LLC)
Virginia
Missouri
lllinois
Connecticui

Missouri



Healthy Homecomings, In

HMO Colorado, Inc

HMO Missouri, Inc.

HMO-W, Inc.

Insurance4 Agency, In

Landmark Solutions, LL(

Lease Partners, In

Lumenos, Inc

Machigonne, Inc

Matthew Thornton Health Plan, In

Meridian Resource Company, LL

Monticello Service Agency, Int

National Capital Health Plan, In

National Capital Preferred Provider Organizatiar.
National Government Services, It

OneNation Benefit Administrators, In
OneNation Insurance Compa

Park Square Holdings, In

Park Square I, Inc

Park Square Il, Inc

Peninsula Health Care, Ir

Precision Rx, Inc

Preferred Health Plans of Missouri, li

Priority Health Care, Inc

Priority Insurance Agency, In

Priority, Inc.

Professional Claim Services, Ir

QualChoice Select, In

R&P Realty, Inc

Reliance Safeguard Solutions, |
RightCHOICE Insurance Compa
RightCHOICE Managed Care, Ir

Rocky Mountain Health Care Corporati
Rocky Mountain Hospital and Medical Service, |
SellCore, Inc

Southeast Services, Ir

Summit Administrative Services, L.L.¢

Texas Managed Care Administrative Services,
The WellPoint Companies, In

TriState, Inc

TrustSolutions, LLC

UNICARE Health Benefit Services of Texas, |
UNICARE Health Insurance Company of Te:
UNICARE Health Insurance Company of the Midw

Missouri
Colorado
Missouri
Wisconsin
Delaware

New Hampshire (LLC
Delaware
Delaware
Maine

New Hampshire
Wisconsin (LLC)
Virginia
Virginia
Maryland
Indiana

Ohio

Indiana
California
California
California
Virginia
Delaware
Missouri
Virginia
Virginia
Virginia

New York
Ohio

Missouri

New York
lllinois
Delaware
Colorado
Colorado
Delaware
Virginia
Missouri (LLC)
Texas

Indiana
Delaware
Wisconsin (LLC)
Texas

Texas

lllinois



UNICARE Health Plan of Kansas, Ir Kansas

UNICARE Health Plan of Oklahoma, In Oklahoma
UNICARE Health Plan of South Carolina, Ir South Caroling
UNICARE Health Plan of West Virginia, In West Virginia
UNICARE Health Plan: Illinois (Partnership
UNICARE Health Plans of Texas, Ir Texas
UNICARE Health Plans of the Midwest, Ir lllinois
UNICARE lllinois Services, Inc lllinois
UNICARE Life & Health Insurance Compal Indiana
UNICARE National Services, Ini Delaware
UNICARE of Texas Health Plans, Ir Texas
UNICARE Service Co California
UNICARE Specialty Services, In Delaware
United Government Services, LL Wisconsin (LLC)
WellChoice Holdings of New York, In New York
WellChoice Insurance of New Jersey, | New Jerse
WellPoint Association Services Group, li Washingtor
WellPoint Acquisition, LLC Indiana (LLC)
WellPoint Behavioral Health, Ini Delaware
WellPoint California Services, In Delaware
WellPoint Dental Services, In Delaware
WellPoint Development Company, Ir Delaware
WellPoint Holding Corp Delaware
WellPoint Insurance Services, Ir Hawaii
WellPoint Pharmacy IPA, In New York
WellPoint Pharmacy Management, i California



EXHIBIT 23
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference ifoHewing Registration Statements:
®  Form -8 No. 33:-73516 and Form-8 No. 33:-110503 pertaining to the Anthem 2001 Stock Incenilan;
®  Form $-8 No. 33:-84690 pertaining to the Anthem Employee Stock PaseHPlan

B Form $-8 No. 33:-84906 and Form-8 No. 33:-129334 pertaining to the WellPoint 401(k) Retireingavings Plan (formerl
Anthem 401(k) Long Term Savings Investment Pl

B Form S-8 No. 333-97423 pertaining to the Trigon Itheare, Inc. 1997 Stock Incentive Plan; Trigon ltezare, Inc. NorEmployee
Directors Stock Incentive Plan; and Certain OptiGnanted to Consultants to Trigon Healthcare, |

B Form S-8 No. 333-120851 pertaining to the WellPéiatlth Networks Inc. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan;fR@int Health Networks
Inc. 2000 Employee Stock Option Plan; WellPoint kelletworks Inc. Comprehensive Executive Non-Cfieddi Retirement Plan;
Cobalt Corporation Equity Incentive Plan; RightCHIBl Managed Care, Inc. 2001 Stock Incentive Plagh®&IHOICE Managed
Care, Inc. 1994 Equity Incentive Plan; RightCHOIMEBnaged Care, Inc. Nonemployee Direc’ Stock Option Plan

Form £-8 No. 33:-121596 pertaining to the 2005 Comprehensive ExeeiNor-Qualified Retirement Plat
Form &8 No. 33:-130743 pertaining to the WellChoice, Inc. 2003 Opusilncentive Plar

Form &8 No. 33-134253 pertaining to the WellPoint 2006 Incentivan@®ensation Plan; ar

Form £-3 No.333-130736 pertaining to the WellPoint, Inc. automatielf registratior

of our reports dated February 14, 2007, with resfzethe consolidated financial statements andddeeof WellPoint, Inc., WellPoint, Inc.
management’s assessment of the effectivenessaphaitcontrol over financial reporting, and theseffveness of internal control over financial
reporting of WellPoint, Inc. included in this AnduiReport (Form 10-K) for the year ended December28D6.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

February 23, 2007
Indianapolis, Indiana



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) AND RULE 15d-14(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT RULES,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Larry C. Glasscock, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Weiht, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioreny untrue statement of a material fact or emnéitate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeker which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by

this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegos presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as define«
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amdriat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures ttesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed unc
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargagdeng the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséantad report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgulures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

disclosed in this report any change in the regit’s internal control over financial reporting thatowed during the registre’'s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repost) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anbdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitieregistrant’s board of directors (or personggreing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknedsethe design or operation of internal contratiofinancial reporting which ai
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; ant
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelmeanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin
Date: February 26, 2007 /sl LARRY C. GLASSCOCK

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Offi



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13a-14(a) AND RULE 15d-14(a) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT RULES,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, David C. Colby, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this report on Form 10-K of Weiht, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioreny untrue statement of a material fact or emnéitate a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoeker which such statements were made, not misigadith respect to the period covered by

this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememtd,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, thegos presented in this report;

4. The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contasld procedures (as define«
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amdriat control over financial reporting (as definedxchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a)

b)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures ttesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly dgyithe period in which this report is being prepa

designed such internal control over financial réipgr or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed unc
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargagdeng the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

evaluated the effectiveness of the regis’s disclosure controls and procedures and preséantad report our conclusions abc
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgulures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

disclosed in this report any change in the regit’s internal control over financial reporting thatowed during the registre's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodikbal quarter in the case of an annual repost) tfas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the redgist’ s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anbdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitieregistrant’s board of directors (or personggreing the equivalent function):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsssehe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting which au
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’'s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; ant
b) any fraud, whether or not material, that invelmeanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin
Date: February 26, 2007 /sl Davib C. CoLBY

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Offi



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of WellPoilmtc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the perioddexd December 31, 2006 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on thehdaof (the “Report”), I, Larry C. Glasscock, Cimadém, President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 IS8 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of
the Company

/s LARRY C. GLASSCOCK

Larry C. Glasscoc

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
February 26, 200




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of WellPoilmtc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for the perioddexd December 31, 2006 as filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on thehdaeof (the “Report”), I, David C. Colby, ExecutiVéce President and Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 IS8 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of theaBas-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsettion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition and results of operations of
the Company

/s/  Davib C. CoLBY

David C. Colby

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
February 26, 200




